
Meeting Date: November 19, 2013 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins, Engineer Specialist Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Division Director of Development 
Services and Long Range PlaT ing'll ( 

Department Head: S .~Ia, P.E., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Me ber: Commissioner Todd, Precinct Two 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Receive comments regarding a request to authorize the 

filing of an instrument to vacate the five foot wide public utility easements located 

along the rear lot lines of Lots 3-8, Block D of the re-subdivision of Bauldwin's Point 

in Precinct Two. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

TNR staff has received a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate 

the five foot wide public utility easements (PUEs) located along the rear lot lines of 

Lots 3-8, Block D of the re-subdivision of Bauldwin's Point. The easements are 

dedicated per plat note. Lots 3-5 front on Quinlan Park and Lots 6-8 front on Minnie 

Drive. Both streets are maintained by Travis County. 


The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 

vacating the subject easements. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 

meets all Travis County standards. As of this memo, staff has not received any 

inquiries in regards to this request. As such, TNR staff recommends the request. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

According to the request letter the owner of the property would like install a private 

driveway along the rear of the subject lots. Vacating the easements should remedy 

any potential encroachment issues in regards to the subject easements. An area of 

117 square feet located along the common lot line of Lots 5 and 6 at Rush Road will 

remain per separate instrument dedication for a power pole at the request of Austin 

Energy. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

None. 


Item 1Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



ATTACHM ENTS/EXHI BITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes 
Request Letter 
Utility Statements 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director of 

Development Services 
and Long Range 
Planning 

TNR (512) 854-7561 

cc: 

Program Permit TNR (512) 854-7565Stacey Scheffel 
Manager 

PS:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services Long Range Planning - Re-subdivision of Bauldwin's Point 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: November 19, 2013 
Prepared By: Paul Scoggins, Engineer Specialist Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager: Anna Bowlin, Division Director of Development 
Services and Long Range Planning , l 
Department Head: S.~, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Todd, Precinct Two 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on a request to 
authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate the five foot wide public utility 
easements located along the rear lot lines of Lots 3-8, Block D of the re-subdivision 
of Bauldwin's Point in Precinct Two. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
TNR staff has received a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate 
the five foot wide public utility easements (PUEs) located along the rear lot lines of 
Lots 3-8, Block D of the re-subdivision of Bauldwin's Point. The easements are 
dedicated per plat note. Lots 3-5 front on Quinlan Park and Lots 6-8 front on Minnie 
Drive. Both streets are maintained by Travis County. 

The utility companies operating in the area have stated they have no objection to 
vacating the subject easements. Staff foresees no opposition to this request. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The request has been reviewed by TNR staff and staff finds the vacation request 
meets all Travis County standards. As of this memo, staff has not received any 
inquiries in regards to this request. As such, TNR staff recommends the request. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
According to the request letter the owner of the property would like install a private 
driveway along the rear of the subject lots. Vacating the easements should remedy 
any potential encroachment issues in regards to the subject easements. An area of 
117 square feet located along the common lot line of Lots 5 and 6 at Rush Road will 
remain per separate instrument dedication for a power pole at the request of Austin 
Energy. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None. 

Item 4Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Order of Vacation 
Field Notes 
Request Letter 
Utility Statements 
Sign Affidavit and Pictures 
Maps 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin Division Director of 

Development Services 
and Long Range 
Planning 

TNR (512) 854-7561 

cc: 
Stacey Scheffel Program Permit 

Manager 
TNR (512) 854-7565 

PS:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services Long Range Planning - Re-subdivision of Bauldwin's Point 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



ORDER OF VACATION 


STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 

WHEREAS, the property owner requests the vacation of the five foot wide public utility 
easements located along the rear lot lines of Lots 3-8, Block D of the Re-subdivision of Bauldwin's Point 
as recorded at Book 6, Page 172 of the Real Property Records of Travis County, Texas; 

WHEREAS, the utility companies known to be operating in the area have indicated they have no 
need for the public utility easements as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department recommends the 
vacation of the subject public utility easements as described in the attached field notes and sketch; 

WHEREAS, the required public notice was posted and the Travis County Commissioners Court 
held a public hearing on November 19, 2013 to consider the proposed action; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, by unanimous vote, the Commissioners Court of Travis County, Texas, 
orders that the five foot wide public utility easements located along the rear lot lines of Lots 3-8, Block D 
of the Re-subdivision of Bauldwin's Point, as shown and described in the attached field notes and sketch, 
are hereby vacated. 

ORDEREDTHISTHE ___ DAYOF_______ 2013. 

SAMUEL T. BISCOE, COUNTY JUDGE 

COMMISSIONER RON DAVIS COMMISSIONER BRUCE TODD 
PREClNCT ONE PREClNCT TWO 

COMMISSIONER GERALD DAUGHERTY COMMISSIONER MARGARET GOMEZ 
PREClNCT THREE PREClNCT FOUR 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Off: (512) 258-6842B405 DelaVlUl Ave 
Cell: (512) 659-4266Austin. :ex 78717 

·westsurveyorS@austiILrr.com· 

FIELDNOTE DESCRJPTION 
10' P.U.E. VACATION 

BEING 2,252 SQUARE FOOT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 
OUT OF LOTS 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, & 8, BLOCK "D", . A 
RESUBDIVISION OF BALDWIN'S POINT, A SUBDNISION 
RECORDED IN BOOK 6, PAGE 172 OF TIlE PLAT RECORDS 
OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, SAID PUBLIC UTILITY 
EASEMENT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 
BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: ( See attached legal 
size EXHIBIT) 

BEGINNING at a It, inch iron rod set in the North Right-of-Way line of Rush Road for the 
common comer of Lots 5 & 6, Block "D" of said BALDWIN'S POINT SUBDIVISION: 

THENCE departing the said North Right-of-Way line of Rush Road and along the centerline of 
the herein described J 0 foot wide easement, same being the common rear lot lines of Lots 5 and 
6, North 29d 50' 01" East, a distance of 75.07 feet to a It, inch iron rod set for the common 
corner of Lots 5,6,4 & 7; 

THENCE continuing along the centerline of the herein described 10 foot wide easement, same 
being the cornmon rear lot lines of Lots 4 and 7, North 29d 50' 01" East, a distance of75.07 feet 
to a It, inch iron rod set for the common comer of Lots 4,7,3, & 8; 

. 	 ~ 

THENCE continuing along the centerline of the herein described 10 foot wide easement, same 
being the common rear lot lines of Lots 3 & 8, North 29d 50' OJ" East, a distance of75.07 feet 
to a It, inch iron rod set for 'the common corner of Lots 3 and 8, same being the POINT OF 
TERMINATION for the herein described 10 foot wide easement and containing a calculated 
area of 2,252 Square Feet of land subject to easements, conditions or restrictions of record, if 
any. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Field Notes were prepared from a survey on-the-ground, under 
my supervision and are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

~d;~~'OfJUIY2012 

'	 c::oCY:est, R.P.L.S. #4188' 
8405 Delavan A venue 
Austin, Texas 78717 
Project No. P054-0 I JO' Esmt Release 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

mailto:westsurveyorS@austiILrr.com


179.31' 0 EXHIBIT 
S78045 'OO-E; / 

Scale: 1" 20' 

WEST SURVEYORS, INC. 
8405 Delavan Avenue 
Austin, Texas 78717 

Ph. (512) 258-6842 
westsurveyors4iauslin.rr.com 
Project No. P054-01 

Lot 7 

Lot 6 

wood 
utility

ole 

Lot 5 

Rush 

Lot 8 

Lot 3 

4 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

Being out of Lo ts 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, &- 8, Block "0 ", 
A RESUBDIVISION OF BALDWIN'S POINT, according 
to the plat recorded in Book 6, Page 172 of the 
Plat Records, Travis County, Texas. 

~"-31 -j3 
te 

Road 
asphalt 

Pa""'ment 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



----

Linda Peterek 

109 FULLER DR 

BERGHEIM, TX 78004 

Request for Vacating Public Utility Easements 

August 12, 2013 

Attn: Travis County Transportation & Natural Resources, Planning & Engineering 

To Whom it May Concern 

I am submitting a request to vacate a public utility easement that crosses the following lots: 

Lots 3-8, Blk D, of Baldwins Point Resub 

Address: 10804 Rush Rd #1-6 

I have received completed releases from An, WClD 17, & Austin Energy. Austin Energy had us file a 

new electrical easement for them that surrounds a power pole that was located in the released 

easement. The sketch and metes & bounds for Austin Energy is included in the package for reference. 

The lots do not have gas or sewer utilities and cable is with An. 

I need the release because a future private driveway will be needed along the same path as the released 

easement and the existing utilities are already using easements outside of the lots (see plat) so there 

was no need for the PUE. 

Attached are the following: 

Metes & Bounds by RPLS 

Sketch of plat showing the public utility to be vacated 

Release letters from An, WelD, and !JS1in£neqpt.fncluding new metes & bounds for AE) 

Plea~ ntact Ryan Rucker at 512-293-7825 or canyonvista@earthlink.n'et for correspondence in this 

m ter. ~ 
Sincerely 

~9J;z 

Linda Peterek 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

mailto:canyonvista@earthlink.n'et


x 

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

STEVEN M MANlLI.A P E cOlmrx EXEQlll)'B 

411 West 13th Slreei 
Executive Office Building 
PO Box 174l! 
Austin, Texas 78767 
(512) 854-9383 
FAX (512) 854-4649 

EASEMENT REQUIREMENT STATEMENT FOR VACATION OF PROPERTY 

An application is being made to Travis County for the vacation of propelty 
at 10804 Rush Rd_, #1-6, Austin, TX 78732 (address) and/or 
Baldwin's Point Lots 3-8, Elk D (legal description) and as 
desclibed on the enclosed drawing or document. An action of the Commissioners' Court of 
Travis County is pending your return of this statement. Your prompt reply is requested. 

STATEMENT 

We do not have need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 
document. 

We do have a need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 
document. A description of the reqrun:d easement is attached. 

A_~ 
~u~ 
Sonny Poole 

Printed Name 
Mgr., PIRES 

Title 
Austin Energy 

Utility Company or District 
July 19, 2013 

Date 
Please return this completed form to: 

Ryan Rucker 

Name 
12511 Mixson Dr. 

Address 
Austin, TX 78732 

City/State/Zip 

canyonvista@earthlink.net 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

mailto:canyonvista@earthlink.net


TRAVIS COUNTY WATER CONTROL 


AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 17 

3812 E.k u.ae • A...lin, Tous 78734 

• Phone (512) Ui6-J 11 J • Fill (512)266-2790 

Date: S ....(S~t] EASEMENT RELEASE APPLICATION 

A release of the following utility easement(s) is hereby requested. 
($30.00 faa is required ) 

\C004 ·K\f.5~ K.II V)Tt~ 1''K 7:?-r!:)... 
Legal Description: O-,,~,--\--.:..L....:..V_tV....:S_....:..?L..::C....:.','.J---=.-\---,-,....:·g~l_k'--\:'I.:...,)____ 

Property Address: 

Lo-k "1-B 
A plat drawing INith the !easement highlighted must accompany 
this application. 

Applicant Name: 1 LrJ!JFt . tpekRr ~ 
Address: 

Reason for Request : ~f\tJA"lU I $ dMM~y \~LA! eli A+ 
tP{T il1 (1,\\ \v!s( .:...,,--.. f'vL ·:Ar..\ /t!·,.JA{ 

,,.J\V I",e. I),.) \.:.pu:J- r;;t I,!y) . ' 

LWBter District 17 DOES NOT have a need for an easement on the property as described in 

the accompanying document The easement(s) Is (are) hereby released. 

__Water District 17 DOES have a need for an easement on the property as described in the 

accompanying document A description of the required easement is attaChed. 

~1v~S:ZD'/' T~h..d.. ~I$ 

~ Date 	 Signature Date 

Reviewer: H~ t'\Cl>,..l.e. "( 	 Deborah S. Gemes G. ~. 1.3 
Printed Name 

General Manager 

Title 

Please retum this completed form to: 	 Name: &4,-": '«'''( Lr( 
Phone: <; I 'L. . L." '3 . 7~ 7. \" Address: r1-S(I AI\!. " '; oj ~ 

'1 L. ""' \"l. \ 1\ . <"oJ -;.47'< " Fax: ..; t"'L. - .., ~ ,. ') ~ City/statelZlp: erA :; Tt)'J ,,. (;{ / ,_ 

Email: tA..J1r)J JI!.~ (ii t'i.Jf-+ht/'JL n) tT 

03.2613 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

STIWN M MANILLA, P E mumIDCECIIlD'E • 
411 West 131b Street 
Ba&:culive o~ BwIding 
POBox 1748 
AD5tin, TflXIIS 7&767 
(512) 854-9383 
PAX (S 12) 854-4649 

EASEMENT REOUIREMENT STATEMENT FOR VACATION OF PROPERTY 

An application is be~g made to Travis County fur the vacation of property 
at lo!l>o,,", 'j?.!I\jk 'R :it.1={P A..,.'!iV 1")( i'i7'3'l. (address) and/or 
'BAkPwl.r6 P61"""'- ~I£ l? t...J=ts "3-6 Oegal description) and as 

described on the enclosed drawing or document An action of the Commissioners' Court of 
Travis County is pending your return of this statement. Your prompt reply is requested. 

STATEMENT 

L We do not have need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 
document 

We do have a need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 

doc......c A deocriptioo of... reqWnxl_ is """"hed~' i #1c 

. S~M~~ 
Printed Nam 

Pi-t..lcL >.~v~~cr 
Title

-rt2.. Cry. W610 'f 
Utility Company or District 

5.;rot 13 

Please return this completed fonn to: 


Name 

\ 1..~l( l'1\K'!.ON ~ ( 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http:l'1\K'!.ON
http:BAkPwl.r6


.......... 

~at&t 

SOUTHWESTERN BELL-TELEPHONE COMPANY 

RELEASE OF EASEMENT 

THIS RELEASE OF EASEMENT, entered into by SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE 
COMPANY, a Delaware corporation, GRANTOR, AND Linda F. Peterek, GRANTEE, wherein GRANTOR 
in consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, does by these presents ABANDON, RELEASE, RELINQUISH AND DISCLAIM to 
GRANTEE, as is, all or a specific portion of certain easements for telecommunication purposes 
hereinafter described that affects land owned by GRANTEE situated in Travis County, Texas, and 
described as follows: 

Lots 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8, Block D, Resubdivision of Baldwin's Point, Deed of record in Document 
2013054380, Property Records of Travis County, Texas 

Said land of GRANTEE being subject to: 

Easements recorded in Book 6, Page 172, Plat Records of Travis County, Texas, 

The portion of said easements to be hereby released is described as follows: 

All of the 5 foot PUE along the rear property lines of said Lots 3-8, Block D, described above, 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD same, together with aU rights and appurtenances to the same 
belonging, unto GRANTEE, their heirs, successors and assigns forever. 

IN WITNESS WHERE:;'SRANTOR h~_caused this Release of Easement to be executed by 
its duly authorized officers this ~ day of \. \,~~ , 20~ 

~OUTHWESTERN BEt::E::~f.10NE COMPANY 

~~~~~~~ 
Name ~O~n \?l~ ~.()~)):~~~ 

\ "\ 
Title:~~ ~'S.'7 9~~ ~~K~~,~'-.i

THESTATEO~ A ~ 
COUNTY OF ~D§ 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally 
appeared J>t.,.v \"0 W l kL I Af\\.S , known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument as Manager, Engineering-Design of Southwestern Bell Telephone 
Company, a Delaware corporation, and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same for purposes 
and considerations therein expressed in the capacity stated, and as the act and deed of said ration. 

Given under my hand and seal of office this the ~ day of , O~. 

-
REBECCA KHOGUE 


,., CornmItlion &pn• 

.-..,11.2017 


Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



TRANSPORTA T [ON AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

STEVEN M MANll.l A P [ COUNTY I;XEC1 II IVF 

41 1 West l3th Street 
E'x~culive Otlice Building 
PO Box 174&----
Auslin, Texas 787(,7 
(51 2) 1$54·9383 
fA)( (5 12) 854 -4649 

EASEMENT REQUIREMENT STATEMENT FOR VACATION OF PROPERTY 

An application is !Iei'lg made to Travis County for th~ vacation of property 
at IO~(H j2 ,'\ >.h 1).1/1 it i-(p ji,,,,-:.,,,; -'1;( {'('7")Z- (address) and/or 
·G.Ai...i>W:·6 f\~1 ~r( Si K. - . 1-.] t·,; .~ - ~ " (legal description) and as 

described on the enclosed drawing or dOl;ument. An action of the Commissioners' Court of 
Travis County is pending your return of this statement. Your prompt reply is requested. 

/ 	 STATEMENT 

_ _ 	 We do not have need for an easement on the property as described in the accompanying 
document 

Please return this completed form to: "R"t\rJ K",,-Glp( 
Nam~ 

1. S l ( 	 r1qX ",{)-.J '0 ( 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
SlerCII M.llla}li/(II, P.E., e'mll!]" EX£SI~lj ..e . 
7UU W"nell SlrCCI - 5" Floor 
Trat'is Co II Illy .1dmillislTIIlioll Bllildillg 
1'.O. [Jo.r 17./8 
AIISlill. TOils 78767 
lei 5[1-85./-9383 
fax 5/2-85./--/6./9 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

TO: 	 County Judge 
County Commissioners 
Travis County, Texas 

A Public NO.~C. ofvacatio.n sign for vac. tHing several five toot wide public utility easements was 
posted on _ LLtd·"Lh~Y__ ",_.~K___.____,2013, along the northerly ROW line of Rush Road 
at the common lot line of Lots 5 and 6, Block D of the Re-subdivision ofBauldwin's Point at a 
point as near as practical to the area being vacated, and was also posted at the Travis County 
Courthouse. 

CERTIFIED THIS THE 

cc: Garcia (sign shop) 
M:\PERMITS\ Vacate\ 13PUE\ 14-RushRd\SignRequest-RushRd .doc 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



NOVEMBER 19. 0013 AT 9,:QO AM. 

P,UBIillC UJllJIW EMENT YA€ATlON 


TO APAROVE THE VACATION OF mE 

ITlVE FOOT WlDf RUBWG UIlUrn¥ 


EASEMENTS lrOGATED A~ONG rHE RmR 

EDT WNES Of. ~OIS 3-8. BLOCK DOF ifHE 

RE~SUBDIVISION OF BAUlDWIN'S POINT 

ASUBDIVISION IN RREGINGT TWO 

AT IDhI~ iJitRA'lI§ CClWNf¥ 


COMMIS51c!)N~R§ GmWRifRIDmM 

~o.ID. LAv~eA S~REEr 


~fiIRS1f RI!;0 ), AIJJ§IDIN 

FOR MORE INtrORMATION GAl! 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



CITY OF AUSTIN DEVELOPMENT WEB MAP 


AU lo+)CAr-J 

As {~\dRllSS 

(t)'802. ~~st--~A~ 
~l,\h. \IIr-JI+ ~~ber ~ .#f--G,? 

, 


(:.. KlAsl., 
R.d ~ 

_ fklll~cf 
~ 'F=erJt:.e. 

,~" 

& 

\O~o?. 

1010 
6("'\,.;11 .... 

PARk 

Legend 

Lot Lines 

Streets 

Buildi ng Footprints 

Named Creeks 

lakes and Rivers 

Parks 

County 

Contou rs Year 2003 

10Ft Contou rs 

2 Ft Contours 

lot Line 

Block ID 

Lot ID 

-l~%~ 
~ q '-< 

II 
HIS I' RODUCT I~ FOR I N FO RM~TI ONM PURPO~C$ MID MAV ,OT HAve BCfH P R E PA~t D r o ~ Oij 8F SUITABLE fO~ LrG4l, EN GINEERI NG, OR SURVEYING PU R PO~l~ IT 00E5 s o r RE PRt SE NT All ON,THC CROUND SURVEY AlID REPRESENTS 

ON LY THE APP ROX IM AlE RH An VE l OCATIO N ~f PROPERTY BOUN DARIES, TH IS PRODUCT liAS SEEN P,'ODUC[O BV lilt CITY Of AU STIN f D~ THE SOlt PUR PO SE Of GE OGR Af' HI C ~ EHREN C E. NO W'IRR ANTY IS MADE sv nit ( IT Y or 
AuS rw .(LARDI NG 5P£(r~l( '((U ~"'CV OR COMPLlnN f~~ . 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



\I) 

~ c 
~ 

£ 
~ ~I 
WIJ\.l 
~ ()

\.ll ........ 

(,0'/ 

4,> 

I ... ~ 

"'" /J.d> " Por........ £on_ B/ar _ &IJl 
&lid l1J.d'l*JdGl~ flU. Com;t4ZJT. 

""....,. 
Let __ .~".~=;: ...........~\CICI1~ ... ~;:..~... t..~~.!r::'rm.I 
~~=fGh""".~~~~....... -... ftt1t"'~q'rJlNIII""",-"....,..-
~~':J'=:.:.r:~~~~~ 

-?If.""i$J~-'' ~~ 
7'3 

... 14 .... ". 

... ~ ...... ". 
...... -
~~~M~t·-~~
'.~f/#IIf __ IttBeooot"'~,~
Pl<tr".... 1'I1nCI Ctu1/J( rafCla. 
(aI1...,....)tIdlok.,.....I1O~) 

1tU/fPOIf1l 

~:~~7J£~fJI!:tI-uK 
MnIIIOIM' «IWJ4AN.,. "" ..,. npc:w1) 

~'J:::..~~'~,,~~~ 

4...,;6 

&4.SIf" Ill'VAl7QY~ 
Ib •• IJIIQUoM 011_ CICI'Itoc.n tho... ~.-.ott ,.... 

:,=r~",:.,O:~~I:::::'"":flit. 
alI. su. 01 ~. at1 ., Awoth.. 

/ 
/ 

/ 

ScaJa; 1'=20' 

)1 HU, J J6 6 
I ltd 

(:4_ 

~ 
~ ~~ 

~~Iii1"' __ 

_Ill '-Ih 
~ ~~& 
~ !~~ 
~ ~~~ 

I 
JI J f 

~ ~ t 
I 

Biii 
J oi .. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Lol:.S 3 - g 

Travis CAD - Map of Property ID 455756 fo 

Property Details 
Account 

Property 10: 455756 
Geo 10 : 0129580178 

Type : Real 
Legal Description: LOT 5 BLK D BALDWINS POINT RESUB 

Location 

Owner 

Situs Address: 10804 RUSH RD 1 TX 78732 
Neighborhood: RIVER RDGE/BALDWINS PT/LAKELAND 

Mapsco: 520Z 
Jurisdictions : OA, 03, 2J, 52, 68, 69 

Owner Name : PETEREK LINDA F 
Mailing Address: , 109 FULLER DR, BERGHEIM , TX 78004 

Property 
Appra ised Value: $60,000.00 

( f\O'Nrf~ blf' 

http ://propaccess .traviscad .org/Map/View/Ma p/ 1/455756/2013 l~__pr~~p'=~~~~~S~=SS_ =~=, ==~~~~~ 
M,:,p Olscl<l1mer. ThIs tax map w.,s compIled w lely for the use of r eAD. Areas depicted by Ulese digital products are approxImate, and are nOt necessanly accurate to mapPing, surveying or en9Hlt~nno stat'Kfards . cood uslons drawn from thr:s 
Informatlon.:lre the respo nsibility of the user. The reAD makes nO claims, promises or gUllru ntees about the accuracy, complete ness or adequ.)cy of this In formation and e)(pressly disclaims liabiflty for any errors and omissions. The mapped data 

does not con'itltute a legal document

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http://propaccess


L"Il""d 

......... ""11,- ..."'......,...--.... 
- Tr.""c-.y .......... 

"'~d---
Rejedion of 0HalN>n 

~. ~.. 
--R".d-00._--2011 Commissioner Precincts 

city of 
Lago Vista r,;:-)

?J 

-....... 

",".., 

...."".""-. 
~< 

>'. 

J-y-,<>
. ./ _ ,"),1 ' 'I ~ 

• '-t 'h ' ,. 
-'-~ ~-v !iffI;:;. 

'\.J Village ~ 
Point 

Venture 

Travis Coun~catlon Map 

City .Of 
Lakeway 

Village of 
The Hills 

Saure.{al C~tyoIAu 5tln Roa<ls- COA 2013 . 
U~orpon:t.d Roads - T(3\I. Count'l 
2013, Tol Road · various soure. 
C( eelo.- NHO 2005. Paru - Tf2Y1S County 
2013. Commissioner PrClClOCts  Tt 3Y"1 S County 

<

~ 
~ i ·iS. 

. . ~ .'I-''''~~"" ~ .", ' 
.,; ,.......,.,'1;. ~ 
If " . ._ •. 

! ~~y~ 

PRECINT 3 

, ~ 
F 

" 
!

JI' 
\ 
\. I ~... -~\. 

! 
i ~.;.. 

} " 

Hays County 

r 

lr~ 
\ . \ 
t;.~~ 
... ~ ," :j,Io 

-,. . 
'<,/? 
~ . . I ~ 

" \. 

...." 

City of 
Austin 

VotM Registrar 201 1. 

Merp Prepwad by Trill'll s County. 
Oepl 0' Transpoftatlon & Natural~o,:,:.::~~;:::;;';.m:~:;':;:::,"d,:':."",~O~:'~:~'::,":;:!;:~~:::~-::' T ra · s C 0 U nt y R 0 a d waysMap D and repr...". ot'Ify 1he . pproXlmat@relaove iocaflGn ~ property boundanM. Tr.vts County Resources Date 5(211201)~-:~~.::;:::'';:;t~:::~'''' p.""... onty .nd 0.... no w.n.n,•• to< '" V I , 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



~/ie '-OC~t"()N 


'if J 

{l 
~ ~ 

);>;J
O~DI\' 

P~ars 
< '

Village of 
Point 

1 ,. ~ • , 

v.enture 

~ 

_ CL"I
Uj '?, 

. It.. 

"'\f 
~o 

Village of 

~.1:' !.! he Hills 
~ \., 

'" -r ~ l 

I
is 

III I 0 

'i ~ f 
~ -f.,<-Q, . 
'll :\,<-oG ) 

~ <c'-\¥ t.. 
~ 

MURFINRD 

Honey Cree/" 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Anna Bo 
~ g 

Meeting Date: November 19, 2013 
Prepared By: Tim Pautsch, Engineer Specialist 
Phone #: (512) 854-7689 
Division Director/Manager: lin - Division Director Development 
Services and Long Ra~

Department Head: S~anilla, P.., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Davis, Precinct One 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on a Cash Security 
Agreement with Gehan Homes LTD., for sidewalk fiscal for Commons at Rowe Lane 
IIIB, in Precinct One. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The form of the Cash Security Agreement is from the Standards for Construction of 
Streets and Drainage in Subdivisions that were in place before August 28, 1997. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Gehan Homes LTD., proposes to use this Cash Security Agreement for selected 
lots, as follows: Commons at Rowe Lane IIIB, $13,912.08, to post sidewalk fiscal 
where the sidewalks have not been completed in this subdivision. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
None 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
There are no budgetary and/or fiscal impacts as this is fiscal posted for a 
development. 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Cash Security Agreement 
Map of lots 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial ManalJer TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin • Division Director of 

Development Services 
Long Range Planning 

TI'JR (512) 854-7561 

Item 5Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http:13,912.08


\ 
§ EXHIBIT 82.401 (C)' "

~ 
CASH SECURITY AGREEMENT - SIDEWALKS 

TO: Travis County, Texas 

DEVELOPER/BUILDER: Gehan Homes, LTD. 

ESCROW AGENT: Travis County Treasurer 

AMOUNT OF SECURITY: $ 13 ~ J 2 I O<iS 
SUBDIVISION: Commons at Rowe Lane 3B 

DATE OF POSTING: 


EXPIRATION DATE: Three Years, or more from Date of Posting 

The ESCROW AGENT shall duly honor all drafts drawn and presented in accordance with this 
Agreement. Travis County may draw on the account of the DEVELOPER/BUILDER up to 
the aggregate AMOUNT OF SECURITY upon presentation of a draft signed by the County 
Judge that the following condition exists: 

The county considers such a drawing on this Security necessary to complete all or part of the 
SUBDIVISION Sidewalks to ADA and Texas Accessibility Standards. No further 
substantiation of the necessity of the draw is required by this Agreement. 

This Agreement is conditioned on the performance of the duties of the DEVELOPER/ 
BUILDER to provide for the construction and completion of the Sidewalk Improvements in the 
SUBDIVISION to current Travis County Standards for Construction of Streets and Drainage in 
Subdivisions (the "Standards"), so that the Sidewalk Improvements are performing to the 
Standards upon the approval of the construction of the Sidewalk Improvements, and the 
acceptance of the Sidewalk Improvements by the Executive Manager of TNR or his designated 
representative. The DEVELOPER/ BUILDER shall prove that the sidewalk is built to Texas 
Accessibility Standards by submitting an approved inspection letter from a Registered 
Accessibility Specialist. 

If this document needs to be renewed, it will be renewed at the then current rate for Sidewalks 
required by Travis County. In no case shall the amount of Security be less that the amount it 
would cost the County to complete the work if it becomes necessary. 

Partial drafts and reductions in the amount of Security are permitted. Drafts will be honored 
within five calendar days of presentment. In lieu of drawing on the Security, the County, in its 
discretion, may accept a substitute Security in the then current amount of the estimated cost of 
constructing the Improvements. This Agreement may be revoked only by written consent of 
the DEVELOPER/BUILDER and the County. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Cash Security Agreement - Sidewalks 
Page 2 

DEVELOPER/BUILDER COMPANY NAME & ADDRESS 

Gehan Homes, LTD. BY: 2f1~ 
PRINT: [ClI\-'I <;;I1;-V eIv<; ~rJ 3815 S. Capital of Texas Hwy, Suite 275 

TITLE: '0YEQITfl-vrv;, r{\ t\: i2 Austin, TX 78704 

PHONE: 5IL.. 7L/'6 YI ~ '7 

APPROVED BY THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' COURT: ______ 
Date 

COUNTY JUDGE, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

Date 

2 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



); 
\ 

'" ' e \ 
\ 

?G "" ,, ) 

: '-- -'t 

-""""'" .-"'*"', 

~ i--- -

,L: 
THE C0lo41r140NS AT ROW£: LANE, PHASE III e 
~~ TI'1E COIINOM5 AT ROWe L..4HC. l.P 

!Ht ~ !o"'+ ,mrrt. !Mlt " 
nJltT WQR~. lO(AS 7el07 

SUft~. 

~ oret,.ocxs: 

PWOM:: {8'l7)..»2-9000 '-IV:.: ("'7).,..,2 -1400 
2 ..30'2 AC • 
.....coe CA5M:R SlJA\'ty A-27~,.,N\IloI:BCR or LOrs., 

I..II"i£AR!"TI:'T OtT 
HE" "inta~ 

DAne 
SVRVC'I'OR_ 

M-40 \...r. 
~. :lO1' 

~~L~~:) 
. ""'t CO•.(I~:~'::"'~I ~ IJo"4f:: -~L..._....~~~~~ 

OOC'. f'fO. :i"OOeOQ=:!11t .., 

SHEET 
2 

~'fOCAS 71»10 
~ (~'.}:H-Oa9"l tA!" (!>I ~)~II09' 
Cl'tAYat~tt:o. lNC. 
el17 ~L (;RCI:)( I!ILYO.. ~n:: 200 
....lJ5"t1I'f. 1'OIA5 7"757-7':192 
p,4QN(; (~12)e2-0J71 ,.~ {:S'2}4~9?.).J 

O.P. R'.T. C.T. r _ 
2~ ~ $. 

GRAY &: ASSOCIATES, INC. 

~--~17 ~ cr-Il B:m1.. ~ zoo 
Aa.UD. ~ '7'8'"r.!i7-"I"51r.l 
(5.12~1 "AX(~12)4""-"= 
1'1n"fI: I'IItM , ::t04e 

® 

2-01300 (02

0<nCW. """"" RrCO<>OSl"RAVIS CQVHTY. T'!:>'AS 
"tAT RCOORO".> 
l'JtA-.; COUNTY, T'DCA.$ 

....,,:CQl"f'OPf~st..-r .... r-.:: 
90lfTWWCST AII\S£ (7 A ''''- lJ'Io'!: ()Iy(, 
N"9ftOX.7OIYJ!IIIQIm1c:K~.J:CTIOf'oj 
or~~AV£...~ 
J"i/III:KWAY, 
~ 'o.,~. ~e 13 
~l.HI7.197. I) T 
Q..EY._ 68'1.&7 

~2:~~INC"ONCRCr£QN 
IWOffTlo\ ~ or "A..";TUI:\IWATCft -.oLC 
uP, 
~10.1 ~.130.49 
tA.~- .l.lM.~7 . 7~ o...cv... &"-10 

~L~ HIU.S 

<>;;;"""i'li\.......~~ ~ :~T7r' in 

!" 
S. 

~=;;~~--1 ~ 

"'".l~IW;. ~ 
~.~r~ 

.. ClF"Cof $l"N;;£."""'-", 

sor:J.4 '~""" ~.OO· 

I 

LA.t!O vOX 
~NQ.C r....-..Y LOTS 3e 
OftAIHAc:t: CSJoiIT .If PAAKl...AHO lOrs 2: 
ORAIHA<X. C'$\ofT • OPt:N SPAce tOrs 2 
DCTrNTlON ~. ~AGr.. C$lIoIIT .. 
OPO'II sPAa: LOr.> , 

cywl.n..... !!V!j D!f!2TY CALMAnQN'" 

TO!AL ~ or A'CS:IO('NTIAI... UN'I'1'!i : .loll 

rorAl aII'UI or ~11"'" t.Qw MO ~'XI\I.: 
A!«) oou..ECTOfII: ~T5.: ,o.e.3~ AC. 

"'-00< " "'00< • 
"'-00< • 
..."'" 0"'-"'" "/bCHT-OI"'-"A'" 

TOTAL ACf\'CeoCC 

..,.,. ~ DRM: rK! .,.., 
"IIIIIMCWIU..~'S"1'RI:rT ""'~ -=:JiOII'OI_eouu:"f'IIIIlI ~.~ 
'CR£5l'O) 'V"-"£ .()RnIE 'XI ~ 

'=~: 
32:5!""I"". 
190'-,"". 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Meeting Date: November 19, 2013 
Prepared By: Cynthia C. McDonald Phone #: (512) 854-4239 
Division Director/M nager" ccfrc . Joseph 

Department Head: S ven a il a, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the following 
requests: 
A) Approve the issuance of $315,000 in Certificates of Obligation to replace the 
restroom at Hamilton Pool Park; 
B) Approve the issuance of $200,000 in Certificates of Obligation to upgrade 
sidewalks at Southeast Metropolitan Park, East Metropolitan Park, and Northeast 
Metropolitan Park; 
C) Approve the issuance of $80,000 in Certificates of Obligation to replace 
playscape equipment at Richard Moya Park; and 
D) Approve the issuance of $341 ,000 for rebuilding and relocating the maintenance 
building at Richard Moya Park 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
s part of the FY2014 Budget process, TNR included requests for the Hamilton Pool 
Park restroom replacement, metropolitan park sidewalk upgrades, and the Moya 
Park playscape replacements. Only 50% of the playscape replacement costs 
($80,000) were recommended and approved during the budget process. Each of 
these park requests result from concerns regarding public health and safety issues. 
(Please see below, along with the attachments provided.) Item D is a new request to 
rebuild the maintenance building at Richard Moya Park in an area with higher 
elevation, which should help reduce the impact of any future floods. Therefore, 
TNR recommends the approval of items A through D above, at a total cost of 
$936,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
While TNR understands the fiscal constraints and concerns expressed by PBO 
during the budget process, we believe that these projects are critical for FY2014. 
Providing funding this year would allow TNR to mitigate the existing hazardous 
conditions. In addition, it would be prudent to relocate the maintenance building at 
Moya Park to an area that should be high enough to avoid flooding during most 
storm events. Therefore, we are asking the Court to approve the issuance of a total 
of $595,000 in Certificates of Obligation for the park projects listed above. 

Item 6Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Hamilton Pool Restroom -- Over the last 25 years, visitation to Hamilton Pool has 
nearly doubled. The existing composting restroom is not designed to handle the 
number visitors to the park, and frequently has to be closed for pumping. Visitors 
are regularly subjected to nO,xious odors that result from the inadequacy of the 
overloaded composting process. The proposed project would replace the existing 
system with a standard restroom, septic system, and running water. 

Metropolitan Park Sidewalk Upgrades -- This request is to continue to address major 
cracking in the concrete hike and bike trails in the metropolitan parks. In FY2012, 
the Court approved $310,675 for the most serious problems. However, there is still 
approximately 3,995 feet of trail that requires upgrading to eliminate not only the 
existing cracks, but to allow maintenance and emergency vehicle use. 

Moya Park Playscapes -- The FY2014 budget includes $80,000 for replacing existing 
playscape at Moya Park. The total cost of the replacement is $160,000, and PBO 
had recommended using the Parkland Dedication fund for the other $80,000. Parks 
management has already earmarked those funds for other purposes, including the 
BMX track at Northeast Metro Park, and therefore, does not have suitable funding 
for the remaining $80,000. 

Moya Park Maintenance Building -- The maintenance building at Moya Park was 
submerged and damaged during the October 31,2013 flood event. While the cost to 
repair/rebuild in the current location is approximately $50,000 to $75,000, staff 
believes that it would be best to relocate the building to higher ground so that it 
would suffer less damage in future flood events. The current estimated cost of 
relocating the building is $340,975 with the breakdown detailed below. If Risk 
Management pays for any of the loss sustained, then TNR expects that the CO 
issuance could be reduced by that same amount. 

- Building $150,000 ($65 per SF) 
- Concrete slab $29,000 
- Fence $30,000 (3,000 LF X $10 per LF) 
- Driveway $87,500 
- 15% Contingency $44,475 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

The proposed source of funding is through the issuance of Certificates of Obligation 

for FY2014. The fiscal impact will be to increase outstanding obligations by a total of 

$936,000, and therefore will affect the County's debt model. 


Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Detail Project Descriptions: 
1) Hamilton Pool Restroom Replacement 
2) Metropolitan Park Sidewalk Upgrades 
3) Moya Park Playscape Replacement 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

(512) 854-4239Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 
(512) 854-9429Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR 

cc: 


0101 - Administrative 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



FY 2014 BUDGET SUBMISSION 

CAPITAL PRO ..IECTS BUDGET REQUEST 


Project Name: Hamilton Pool Preserve Restroom Replacement 

Description: 
This proposal requests funding to replace the existing 25 year old Clivus composting 
restroom at Hamilton Pool Preserve with a standard restroom and septic system, and 
upgrade the existing water well to a TCEQ approved potable water supply. 

Timeline: 
If funded, staff will proceed with the design process of the restroom, septic system and 
water system upgrades in winter 2013-14. Construction on the facilities would start in 
late summer, 2014. The projected completion date is fall 2014. 

Because Hamilton Pool Preserve is a part of the Balcones Canyonlands Conservation 
Plan (BCCP) and is the spring/summer home for the Golden Cheeked Warbler 
(federally listed as endangered species), construction cannot take place during their 
nesting season which is from March 151 through mid-August. 

Why project is needed? What is the benefit, and to whom?: 
This proposal would provide the public with sanitary, flush-toilet restroom facilities and 
potable water at Hamilton Pool Preserve for the first time since the preserve opened to 
the public. The new restroom and upgrades to the water system would provide restroom 
facilities similar to those in all other improved parks in Travis County. 

Travis County purchased Hamilton Pool Preserve in the mid 1980's with voter approved 
bonds. When the preserve was originally Master Planned, the Plan included 
constructing a composting restroom facility for visitors. The existing composting 
restroom was designed for, and provided for; levels of visitation experienced at that time 
but can no longer meet the demands of increased use seen over the past few years. 

Over the last 25 years, visitation to Hamilton Pool has grown along with the entire Travis 
County population. In FY-1993 (The first park visitation data that has been 
documented), Hamilton Pool experienced 54,585 visitors. In FY-2012 Hamilton Pool 
experienced 91,982 visitors. Because of the increase in visitation over this time period, 
the composting restroom has become less and less efficient; to the point where it can 
no longer function as designed. On a regular basis the restroom needs to be closed to 
the public and pumped out because the amount of human fecal matter continues to 
build at a much more rapid rate than can decompose. Closing the restroom is a 
significant inconvenience for the public and staff. We have experienced increased costs 
due to the need for frequent pumping of the waste collection bins as well as additional 
costs to rent portable toilets while the restroom is closed for pumping. Visitors are 
regularly subjected to noxious odors that result from the inadequacy of the overloaded 
composting process. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



In addition, as the eXisting facility has no running water, visitors cannot wash up after 
using the restroom except by using gel hand sanitizer. 

Issues and opportunities: 
By funding this request, Travis County Parks will be able to provide our preserve visitors 
sanitary and functioning restrooms as well as potable water to wash with or drink as 
there is currently no potable water on site. Travis County Parks will be able to provide 
restroom facilities at service levels comparable to those in other improved Travis County 
parks. 

Once opened, the new restroom will free up park staff time from having to stir the fecal 
matter composting bins, which is done several times a week. It will also reduce the need 
and costs associated with routinely pumping out the composing bins and portable toilet 
rentals. 

Additionally, because the composting restroom facility is consistently being used 
beyond its designed capacity, staff needs to service the restroom more frequently. This 
is a safety concern as in order to service the facility, staff needs to access the fecal 
composting matter under the restroom vaults and physically stir the fecal solution and 
solids. They must also mix in water and biodegradable wood chips to try to maintain a 
uniform decomposition slurry or "paste". This requires staff to wear protective garments, 
gloves and other personal protective equipment to avoid contact with the fecal bacteria 
that is present. 

Options: 
1. 	 No action: If the proposal is not funded, visitors to Hamilton Pool Preserve will 

only have access to the composing restroom at limited intervals, would still not 
have the ability to wash after using the restroom and would not have potable 
drinking water available. Additional costs would be needed for additional 
portable toilet rentals and waste collection bin pumping . Some park maintenance 
may have to be deferred because of staff time required for maintenance of the 
fecal matter composting bins. 

2. 	 If funded : This proposal would provide the public with sanitary, flush-toilet 
restroom facilities and potable water for the first time at Hamilton Pool Preserve. 
The new restroom and upgrades to the water system would provide restroom 
facilities similar to those in all other improved parks in Travis County. 

What is the recommendation and why: 
Staff recommends funding this proposal so that Travis County Parks will be able to 
provide restroom facilities and potable water at service levels comparable to those in 
other improved Travis County parks. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Cost Information: 

The following cost information was estimated by Chiddi N'Jie (854-7585), an engineer 
for TNR, Engineering Services, and is based on similar project costs. 

Prefabricated Restroom Structure (installed)* $ 235,000 
New Septic System and Septic Field 25,000 
New TCEQ Approved Public Water System 35,000 
Old Restroom Demolition and Site Preparation 20,000 
Total Estimated Cost $ 315,000 

*This includes the building design and engineering costs, delivery and setup of the new 
building, connecting the facility to water, wastewater and electrical services. The 
prefabricated restrooms are designed with a projected life of 30-40 years, are built to 
more rigid commercial grade standards than our current site built units, meet all ADA 
requirements, utilize standard plumbing and lighting fixtures that match our other 
restrooms in our parks, are designed to be vandal-resistant and are more utilitarian for 
both the public as well as for maintenance. 

The cost for the prefabricated restroom structure (only) is comparable to a site built 
structure (example: the new restrooms at Northeast Metro Park were $199,000 and 
$203,000 each, plus design and engineering costs of approximately $20-30,000 each). 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Capital Projects Budget Request 

Transportation and Natural Resources 


FY 2014 


Parks Concrete-Hike & Bike Trail Upgrade $200,000 

TNR Parks is requesting addition funds in our operating budget in the amount of 
$200,000 to cover the cost of maintaining the parks' concrete hike & bike trails. Many of 
the concrete hike & bike trails, specifically in eastern Travis County, have become safety 
hazards due to the uneven surfaces of these damaged trails (see photos below). 

This request would allow us to replace and upgrade approximately one half mile of 
concrete hike & bike trails in our Metro Parks in eastern Travis County. The most urgent 
need will be some areas of concrete trail at Southeast Metro Park that would be upgraded 
with this funding. (see below) 

In 2012, Commissioners Court approved a $310,675 package to upgrade many of the 
worst sections of concrete trail at the three Metro Parks. These concrete trails will be 
upgraded to accommodate vehicles (for maintenance and emergency access purposes) 
and to hold up under the expansive and contractive soil conditions that predominate 
eastern Travis County. Below are the estimated quantities that will be repaired with this 
year's funding: 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Northeast Metro Park 1722 sq. yds. @ $70/sq. yd. = Estimated cost of $120,555 
Southeast Metro Park 1661 sq. yds. @ $70/sq. yd. = Estimated cost of $116,270 
East Metro Park 1055 sq. yds. @ $70/sq. yd. = Estimated cost of $73,850 

These quantities will upgrade approximately 1,550 feet of trail at Northeast Metro Park, 
1,495 feet of trail at Southeast Metro Park and 950 feet of trail at East Metro Park. 
Below are a couple of examples of concrete trails that will be replaced with this year's 
fund· 

Since last year's request, park staff have inventoried the concrete hike & bike trails at 
Mansfield Dam, Richard Moya, and at East, Northeast and Southeast Metropolitan Parks. 
These are the five county parks that currently have extensive concrete hike & bike trails. 
Below is the approximate length each trail systems, along with the year the trails were 
constructed: 

Mansfield Dam: 1.5 miles (7,866 linear feet) competed in 2000 
Richard Moya: 2.5 miles (13,533 linear feet) completed in 2001 & 2007 
East Metro: 5.0 miles (26,568 linear feet) completed in 2006 
Northeast Metro 5.4 miles (28,618 linear feet) completed in 2000 & 2012 
Southeast Metro 3.2 miles ( 16,883 linear feet) completed in 1999 

Total: Approximately 17.6 miles of concrete hike & bike trails 

Most of these concrete trails were designed and constructed with standard sidewalk 
specifications. We have realized over the past ten to fifteen years that these concrete 
trails have a lifespan, we estimate twenty plus (20+) years, on the western side of the 
county; However in eastern Travis County we are seeing a ten to fifteen (10-15) year 
lifespan, at best, on these concrete trails. 

The soils on the eastern portion of the county are comprised of high amounts of clay that 
expand when wet and contract during dry periods as compared to the limestone soils in 
the western portion of the county, which are solid. The elasticity of the clay soils causes 
the soil compaction of the foundation of the sidewalks to fluctuate, thereby causing the 
sidewalks to crack under different weather conditions. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



We would like to continue this program of replacing damaged sidewalks using upgraded 
specifications that will accommodate vehicular traffic and the expansive/contractive soil 
conditions. 

Based on an approximate cost of $70 per square yard, we can replace between 2,100 and 
3,150 linear feet of trail depending upon the trail width. Our concrete trails range 
between 8' and 12' in width. 

We anticipate that, if approved, the project would go out for bid in early summer of2014 
and the work would be completed in the fourth quarter of2014. The project would be 
one hundred percent funded in the FY14 Q4. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Capital Projects Budget Request 

Transportation and Natural Resources 


FY 14 Playground Safety Request 

Project Description and Justification 

This request is placed in response to inspections completed by TNR's Safety Officer, Dennis 
Miller, in December of 2012. Mr. Miller is a Certified National Playground Safety Inspector. 
Many of the minor problems itemized during the inspections are being repaired by park staff 
with funds from our operating budget; however, the recommended replacement of the Richard 
Moya Playscape will require Capital funding. 

Equipment Replacement at Richard Moya Park ($160,000) 

Richard Moya Park has four (4) playscapes. The playscape pictured below is over 15 years old 
and is located in a low area of the park; consequently, it has suffered through several floods. 
Much of the deck coating has been damaged and is severely rusted. Two of the slides and one 
of the hoods are in need of replacement. The TNR Safety Officer recommends replacing the 
equipment in lieu of making expensive repairs that will not necessarily extend the life of the 
equipment 

FY 14 Maya Playscape Capital Request 04.01.13 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Our recommendation is to replace the playground equipment and relocate it to an area of the park 
less prone to flooding. We also recommend replacing the existing wood mulch with synthetic 
rubber surfacing, and providing a shade cover for the area. The estimated costs are as follows: 

Play equipment $50,000 
Rubber surfacing with concrete border $55,000 
Shade cover $45,000 
Handicap access $10,000 

The following information explains the advantages of rubber surfacing and the benefits of shade 
cover. 

Synthetic Rubber Surfacing 

This funding would replace the wood fiber surfacing at the Richard Moya Playscape with rubber 
surfacing. Playground surfacing is perhaps the most important area of playground safety because 
it is inevitable that children will fall while climbing, swinging and sliding at the county's 
playgrounds. Our experience demonstrates that most loose fill surfacing, especially wood fiber, 
presents the largest part of our playground maintenance. 

Research indicates that synthetic surfacing and wood fiber are by far the safest materials 
currently being used in playgrounds. Both these materials exceed the ASTMF 1292 Standard 
for impact attenuation. However, wood fiber, being loose material, does have the potential for 
concealing foreign objects such as broken glass, or other sharp objects. And wood fiber, if not 
properly maintained, loses its impact attenuation though material displacement. 

Installation Cost: 
The average cost for synthetic surfacing installed is $11 /square foot. 
The average cost for wood fiber surfacing installed is $2.5/square foot. 

Maintenance Cost: 
The synthetic surfacing generally comes with a ten-year warranty and for the most part is 
maintenance free. Wood fiber surfacing requires periodic maintenance, including redistribution 
of material in high use areas such as underneath swings and slides. Wood fiber will deteriorate 
and settle over time, and is prone to being thrown or carried out of the fall zone by visitors. 
Wood fiber also has a slight flammability risk. Historically, we have had to replace 
approximately 20% of wood fiber fall zone material every year, with total excavation and 
replacement needed every 10 years due to decomposing material. 

Accessibility: 
Both types of surface are currently accepted as meeting wheelchair accessibility standards. 
Synthetic surfacing has superior accessibility due to its inherent and durable smooth surface, and 
there is a possibility that the wood fiber could lose "wheelchair accessible" status in the future. 

04.01.13 2 FY 14 Maya Playscape Capital Request 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http:04.01.13


Shade Covers 

This request will include a shade structure for the new Richard Moya Playscape. Shade 
structures provide park visitors and the plays capes themselves protection from the elements. 

Providing shade and weather protection to our visitors is an important service our park system 
can provide the public. The Skin Cancer Awareness Foundation claims that just one blistering 
sunburn during childhood nearly doubles the lifetime risk of melanoma. Research also indicates 
that shade structures reduce the quantity ofUV radiation children receive, and another important 
advantage of shade is the relatively cooler play structure surfaces. 

We have installed a shade structure over many of our other playscapes. We have realized the 
following benefits: 

• 	 The structure allows heat to escape, thus providing a cool, shaded area for 
children to play and for all park visitors to relax 

• 	 The structure protects the equipment color from fading 
• 	 The structure is an attractive addition to the park. 
• 	 The structure reduces the cost of playscape maintenance due to wear from 

weather conditions, especially exposure to intense sunlight that breaks down 
plastics 

Staff Recommendation 

Play apparatus for children are one of the most used features in our parks. National statistics 
show that over 200,000 children are injured on playgrounds in the United States each year. 
As stewards ofTravis County Parks, one of our primary goals is to provide safe recreational 
opportunities for children visiting our parks. The elements of this request will promote the 
following: 

• 	 Safe areas for children to play 
• 	 Physical challenges that promote childhood fitness 
• 	 A positive public image of TNR and Parks 
• 	 Improved accessibility 
• 	 Lower maintenance costs 

Creating a safe envirorunent for children's play does not mean that we produce a "risk free" 
envirorunent. Learning and play involves risk taking on the part of our visitors. Our duty is to 
remove or control all recognized hazards in the play area. 

Over 70% of children's playground injuries result from falls. Therefore, the primary 
consideration for playscape safety is ensuring the ground surface is designed to absorb the shock 
of a child's fall. 

Providing shade and weather protection to our visitors is an important service our park system 
can provide the public. If funded, this request will result in creating play areas that are safe and 
enjoyable for our park visitors. 

04.01.13 	 3 FY 14 Maya Playscape Capital Request 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http:04.01.13


Meeting Date: November 19, 2013 
Prepared By: Cynthia C. McDonald Phone #: (512) 854-4239 
Division Director/M nager" ccfrc . Joseph 

Department Head: S ven a il a, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on the following 
requests: 
A) Approve the issuance of $315,000 in Certificates of Obligation to replace the 
restroom at Hamilton Pool Park; 
B) Approve the issuance of $200,000 in Certificates of Obligation to upgrade 
sidewalks at Southeast Metropolitan Park, East Metropolitan Park, and Northeast 
Metropolitan Park; 
C) Approve the issuance of $80,000 in Certificates of Obligation to replace 
playscape equipment at Richard Moya Park; and 
D) Approve the issuance of $341 ,000 for rebuilding and relocating the maintenance 
building at Richard Moya Park 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
s part of the FY2014 Budget process, TNR included requests for the Hamilton Pool 
Park restroom replacement, metropolitan park sidewalk upgrades, and the Moya 
Park playscape replacements. Only 50% of the playscape replacement costs 
($80,000) were recommended and approved during the budget process. Each of 
these park requests result from concerns regarding public health and safety issues. 
(Please see below, along with the attachments provided.) Item D is a new request to 
rebuild the maintenance building at Richard Moya Park in an area with higher 
elevation, which should help reduce the impact of any future floods. Therefore, 
TNR recommends the approval of items A through D above, at a total cost of 
$936,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
While TNR understands the fiscal constraints and concerns expressed by PBO 
during the budget process, we believe that these projects are critical for FY2014. 
Providing funding this year would allow TNR to mitigate the existing hazardous 
conditions. In addition, it would be prudent to relocate the maintenance building at 
Moya Park to an area that should be high enough to avoid flooding during most 
storm events. Therefore, we are asking the Court to approve the issuance of a total 
of $595,000 in Certificates of Obligation for the park projects listed above. 

Item 7Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Hamilton Pool Restroom -- Over the last 25 years, visitation to Hamilton Pool has 
nearly doubled. The existing composting restroom is not designed to handle the 
number visitors to the park, and frequently has to be closed for pumping. Visitors 
are regularly subjected to nO,xious odors that result from the inadequacy of the 
overloaded composting process. The proposed project would replace the existing 
system with a standard restroom, septic system, and running water. 

Metropolitan Park Sidewalk Upgrades -- This request is to continue to address major 
cracking in the concrete hike and bike trails in the metropolitan parks. In FY2012, 
the Court approved $310,675 for the most serious problems. However, there is still 
approximately 3,995 feet of trail that requires upgrading to eliminate not only the 
existing cracks, but to allow maintenance and emergency vehicle use. 

Moya Park Playscapes -- The FY2014 budget includes $80,000 for replacing existing 
playscape at Moya Park. The total cost of the replacement is $160,000, and PBO 
had recommended using the Parkland Dedication fund for the other $80,000. Parks 
management has already earmarked those funds for other purposes, including the 
BMX track at Northeast Metro Park, and therefore, does not have suitable funding 
for the remaining $80,000. 

Moya Park Maintenance Building -- The maintenance building at Moya Park was 
submerged and damaged during the October 31,2013 flood event. While the cost to 
repair/rebuild in the current location is approximately $50,000 to $75,000, staff 
believes that it would be best to relocate the building to higher ground so that it 
would suffer less damage in future flood events. The current estimated cost of 
relocating the building is $340,975 with the breakdown detailed below. If Risk 
Management pays for any of the loss sustained, then TNR expects that the CO 
issuance could be reduced by that same amount. 

- Building $150,000 ($65 per SF) 
- Concrete slab $29,000 
- Fence $30,000 (3,000 LF X $10 per LF) 
- Driveway $87,500 
- 15% Contingency $44,475 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

The proposed source of funding is through the issuance of Certificates of Obligation 

for FY2014. The fiscal impact will be to increase outstanding obligations by a total of 

$936,000, and therefore will affect the County's debt model. 


Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Detail Project Descriptions: 
1) Hamilton Pool Restroom Replacement 
2) Metropolitan Park Sidewalk Upgrades 
3) Moya Park Playscape Replacement 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

(512) 854-4239Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 
(512) 854-9429Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR 

cc: 


0101 - Administrative 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



FY 2014 BUDGET SUBMISSION 

CAPITAL PRO ..IECTS BUDGET REQUEST 


Project Name: Hamilton Pool Preserve Restroom Replacement 

Description: 
This proposal requests funding to replace the existing 25 year old Clivus composting 
restroom at Hamilton Pool Preserve with a standard restroom and septic system, and 
upgrade the existing water well to a TCEQ approved potable water supply. 

Timeline: 
If funded, staff will proceed with the design process of the restroom, septic system and 
water system upgrades in winter 2013-14. Construction on the facilities would start in 
late summer, 2014. The projected completion date is fall 2014. 

Because Hamilton Pool Preserve is a part of the Balcones Canyonlands Conservation 
Plan (BCCP) and is the spring/summer home for the Golden Cheeked Warbler 
(federally listed as endangered species), construction cannot take place during their 
nesting season which is from March 151 through mid-August. 

Why project is needed? What is the benefit, and to whom?: 
This proposal would provide the public with sanitary, flush-toilet restroom facilities and 
potable water at Hamilton Pool Preserve for the first time since the preserve opened to 
the public. The new restroom and upgrades to the water system would provide restroom 
facilities similar to those in all other improved parks in Travis County. 

Travis County purchased Hamilton Pool Preserve in the mid 1980's with voter approved 
bonds. When the preserve was originally Master Planned, the Plan included 
constructing a composting restroom facility for visitors. The existing composting 
restroom was designed for, and provided for; levels of visitation experienced at that time 
but can no longer meet the demands of increased use seen over the past few years. 

Over the last 25 years, visitation to Hamilton Pool has grown along with the entire Travis 
County population. In FY-1993 (The first park visitation data that has been 
documented), Hamilton Pool experienced 54,585 visitors. In FY-2012 Hamilton Pool 
experienced 91,982 visitors. Because of the increase in visitation over this time period, 
the composting restroom has become less and less efficient; to the point where it can 
no longer function as designed. On a regular basis the restroom needs to be closed to 
the public and pumped out because the amount of human fecal matter continues to 
build at a much more rapid rate than can decompose. Closing the restroom is a 
significant inconvenience for the public and staff. We have experienced increased costs 
due to the need for frequent pumping of the waste collection bins as well as additional 
costs to rent portable toilets while the restroom is closed for pumping. Visitors are 
regularly subjected to noxious odors that result from the inadequacy of the overloaded 
composting process. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



In addition, as the eXisting facility has no running water, visitors cannot wash up after 
using the restroom except by using gel hand sanitizer. 

Issues and opportunities: 
By funding this request, Travis County Parks will be able to provide our preserve visitors 
sanitary and functioning restrooms as well as potable water to wash with or drink as 
there is currently no potable water on site. Travis County Parks will be able to provide 
restroom facilities at service levels comparable to those in other improved Travis County 
parks. 

Once opened, the new restroom will free up park staff time from having to stir the fecal 
matter composting bins, which is done several times a week. It will also reduce the need 
and costs associated with routinely pumping out the composing bins and portable toilet 
rentals. 

Additionally, because the composting restroom facility is consistently being used 
beyond its designed capacity, staff needs to service the restroom more frequently. This 
is a safety concern as in order to service the facility, staff needs to access the fecal 
composting matter under the restroom vaults and physically stir the fecal solution and 
solids. They must also mix in water and biodegradable wood chips to try to maintain a 
uniform decomposition slurry or "paste". This requires staff to wear protective garments, 
gloves and other personal protective equipment to avoid contact with the fecal bacteria 
that is present. 

Options: 
1. 	 No action: If the proposal is not funded, visitors to Hamilton Pool Preserve will 

only have access to the composing restroom at limited intervals, would still not 
have the ability to wash after using the restroom and would not have potable 
drinking water available. Additional costs would be needed for additional 
portable toilet rentals and waste collection bin pumping . Some park maintenance 
may have to be deferred because of staff time required for maintenance of the 
fecal matter composting bins. 

2. 	 If funded : This proposal would provide the public with sanitary, flush-toilet 
restroom facilities and potable water for the first time at Hamilton Pool Preserve. 
The new restroom and upgrades to the water system would provide restroom 
facilities similar to those in all other improved parks in Travis County. 

What is the recommendation and why: 
Staff recommends funding this proposal so that Travis County Parks will be able to 
provide restroom facilities and potable water at service levels comparable to those in 
other improved Travis County parks. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Cost Information: 

The following cost information was estimated by Chiddi N'Jie (854-7585), an engineer 
for TNR, Engineering Services, and is based on similar project costs. 

Prefabricated Restroom Structure (installed)* $ 235,000 
New Septic System and Septic Field 25,000 
New TCEQ Approved Public Water System 35,000 
Old Restroom Demolition and Site Preparation 20,000 
Total Estimated Cost $ 315,000 

*This includes the building design and engineering costs, delivery and setup of the new 
building, connecting the facility to water, wastewater and electrical services. The 
prefabricated restrooms are designed with a projected life of 30-40 years, are built to 
more rigid commercial grade standards than our current site built units, meet all ADA 
requirements, utilize standard plumbing and lighting fixtures that match our other 
restrooms in our parks, are designed to be vandal-resistant and are more utilitarian for 
both the public as well as for maintenance. 

The cost for the prefabricated restroom structure (only) is comparable to a site built 
structure (example: the new restrooms at Northeast Metro Park were $199,000 and 
$203,000 each, plus design and engineering costs of approximately $20-30,000 each). 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Capital Projects Budget Request 

Transportation and Natural Resources 


FY 2014 


Parks Concrete-Hike & Bike Trail Upgrade $200,000 

TNR Parks is requesting addition funds in our operating budget in the amount of 
$200,000 to cover the cost of maintaining the parks' concrete hike & bike trails. Many of 
the concrete hike & bike trails, specifically in eastern Travis County, have become safety 
hazards due to the uneven surfaces of these damaged trails (see photos below). 

This request would allow us to replace and upgrade approximately one half mile of 
concrete hike & bike trails in our Metro Parks in eastern Travis County. The most urgent 
need will be some areas of concrete trail at Southeast Metro Park that would be upgraded 
with this funding. (see below) 

In 2012, Commissioners Court approved a $310,675 package to upgrade many of the 
worst sections of concrete trail at the three Metro Parks. These concrete trails will be 
upgraded to accommodate vehicles (for maintenance and emergency access purposes) 
and to hold up under the expansive and contractive soil conditions that predominate 
eastern Travis County. Below are the estimated quantities that will be repaired with this 
year's funding: 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Northeast Metro Park 1722 sq. yds. @ $70/sq. yd. = Estimated cost of $120,555 
Southeast Metro Park 1661 sq. yds. @ $70/sq. yd. = Estimated cost of $116,270 
East Metro Park 1055 sq. yds. @ $70/sq. yd. = Estimated cost of $73,850 

These quantities will upgrade approximately 1,550 feet of trail at Northeast Metro Park, 
1,495 feet of trail at Southeast Metro Park and 950 feet of trail at East Metro Park. 
Below are a couple of examples of concrete trails that will be replaced with this year's 
fund· 

Since last year's request, park staff have inventoried the concrete hike & bike trails at 
Mansfield Dam, Richard Moya, and at East, Northeast and Southeast Metropolitan Parks. 
These are the five county parks that currently have extensive concrete hike & bike trails. 
Below is the approximate length each trail systems, along with the year the trails were 
constructed: 

Mansfield Dam: 1.5 miles (7,866 linear feet) competed in 2000 
Richard Moya: 2.5 miles (13,533 linear feet) completed in 2001 & 2007 
East Metro: 5.0 miles (26,568 linear feet) completed in 2006 
Northeast Metro 5.4 miles (28,618 linear feet) completed in 2000 & 2012 
Southeast Metro 3.2 miles ( 16,883 linear feet) completed in 1999 

Total: Approximately 17.6 miles of concrete hike & bike trails 

Most of these concrete trails were designed and constructed with standard sidewalk 
specifications. We have realized over the past ten to fifteen years that these concrete 
trails have a lifespan, we estimate twenty plus (20+) years, on the western side of the 
county; However in eastern Travis County we are seeing a ten to fifteen (10-15) year 
lifespan, at best, on these concrete trails. 

The soils on the eastern portion of the county are comprised of high amounts of clay that 
expand when wet and contract during dry periods as compared to the limestone soils in 
the western portion of the county, which are solid. The elasticity of the clay soils causes 
the soil compaction of the foundation of the sidewalks to fluctuate, thereby causing the 
sidewalks to crack under different weather conditions. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



We would like to continue this program of replacing damaged sidewalks using upgraded 
specifications that will accommodate vehicular traffic and the expansive/contractive soil 
conditions. 

Based on an approximate cost of $70 per square yard, we can replace between 2,100 and 
3,150 linear feet of trail depending upon the trail width. Our concrete trails range 
between 8' and 12' in width. 

We anticipate that, if approved, the project would go out for bid in early summer of2014 
and the work would be completed in the fourth quarter of2014. The project would be 
one hundred percent funded in the FY14 Q4. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Capital Projects Budget Request 

Transportation and Natural Resources 


FY 14 Playground Safety Request 

Project Description and Justification 

This request is placed in response to inspections completed by TNR's Safety Officer, Dennis 
Miller, in December of 2012. Mr. Miller is a Certified National Playground Safety Inspector. 
Many of the minor problems itemized during the inspections are being repaired by park staff 
with funds from our operating budget; however, the recommended replacement of the Richard 
Moya Playscape will require Capital funding. 

Equipment Replacement at Richard Moya Park ($160,000) 

Richard Moya Park has four (4) playscapes. The playscape pictured below is over 15 years old 
and is located in a low area of the park; consequently, it has suffered through several floods. 
Much of the deck coating has been damaged and is severely rusted. Two of the slides and one 
of the hoods are in need of replacement. The TNR Safety Officer recommends replacing the 
equipment in lieu of making expensive repairs that will not necessarily extend the life of the 
equipment 

FY 14 Maya Playscape Capital Request 04.01.13 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Our recommendation is to replace the playground equipment and relocate it to an area of the park 
less prone to flooding. We also recommend replacing the existing wood mulch with synthetic 
rubber surfacing, and providing a shade cover for the area. The estimated costs are as follows: 

Play equipment $50,000 
Rubber surfacing with concrete border $55,000 
Shade cover $45,000 
Handicap access $10,000 

The following information explains the advantages of rubber surfacing and the benefits of shade 
cover. 

Synthetic Rubber Surfacing 

This funding would replace the wood fiber surfacing at the Richard Moya Playscape with rubber 
surfacing. Playground surfacing is perhaps the most important area of playground safety because 
it is inevitable that children will fall while climbing, swinging and sliding at the county's 
playgrounds. Our experience demonstrates that most loose fill surfacing, especially wood fiber, 
presents the largest part of our playground maintenance. 

Research indicates that synthetic surfacing and wood fiber are by far the safest materials 
currently being used in playgrounds. Both these materials exceed the ASTMF 1292 Standard 
for impact attenuation. However, wood fiber, being loose material, does have the potential for 
concealing foreign objects such as broken glass, or other sharp objects. And wood fiber, if not 
properly maintained, loses its impact attenuation though material displacement. 

Installation Cost: 
The average cost for synthetic surfacing installed is $11 /square foot. 
The average cost for wood fiber surfacing installed is $2.5/square foot. 

Maintenance Cost: 
The synthetic surfacing generally comes with a ten-year warranty and for the most part is 
maintenance free. Wood fiber surfacing requires periodic maintenance, including redistribution 
of material in high use areas such as underneath swings and slides. Wood fiber will deteriorate 
and settle over time, and is prone to being thrown or carried out of the fall zone by visitors. 
Wood fiber also has a slight flammability risk. Historically, we have had to replace 
approximately 20% of wood fiber fall zone material every year, with total excavation and 
replacement needed every 10 years due to decomposing material. 

Accessibility: 
Both types of surface are currently accepted as meeting wheelchair accessibility standards. 
Synthetic surfacing has superior accessibility due to its inherent and durable smooth surface, and 
there is a possibility that the wood fiber could lose "wheelchair accessible" status in the future. 

04.01.13 2 FY 14 Maya Playscape Capital Request 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http:04.01.13


Shade Covers 

This request will include a shade structure for the new Richard Moya Playscape. Shade 
structures provide park visitors and the plays capes themselves protection from the elements. 

Providing shade and weather protection to our visitors is an important service our park system 
can provide the public. The Skin Cancer Awareness Foundation claims that just one blistering 
sunburn during childhood nearly doubles the lifetime risk of melanoma. Research also indicates 
that shade structures reduce the quantity ofUV radiation children receive, and another important 
advantage of shade is the relatively cooler play structure surfaces. 

We have installed a shade structure over many of our other playscapes. We have realized the 
following benefits: 

• 	 The structure allows heat to escape, thus providing a cool, shaded area for 
children to play and for all park visitors to relax 

• 	 The structure protects the equipment color from fading 
• 	 The structure is an attractive addition to the park. 
• 	 The structure reduces the cost of playscape maintenance due to wear from 

weather conditions, especially exposure to intense sunlight that breaks down 
plastics 

Staff Recommendation 

Play apparatus for children are one of the most used features in our parks. National statistics 
show that over 200,000 children are injured on playgrounds in the United States each year. 
As stewards ofTravis County Parks, one of our primary goals is to provide safe recreational 
opportunities for children visiting our parks. The elements of this request will promote the 
following: 

• 	 Safe areas for children to play 
• 	 Physical challenges that promote childhood fitness 
• 	 A positive public image of TNR and Parks 
• 	 Improved accessibility 
• 	 Lower maintenance costs 

Creating a safe envirorunent for children's play does not mean that we produce a "risk free" 
envirorunent. Learning and play involves risk taking on the part of our visitors. Our duty is to 
remove or control all recognized hazards in the play area. 

Over 70% of children's playground injuries result from falls. Therefore, the primary 
consideration for playscape safety is ensuring the ground surface is designed to absorb the shock 
of a child's fall. 

Providing shade and weather protection to our visitors is an important service our park system 
can provide the public. If funded, this request will result in creating play areas that are safe and 
enjoyable for our park visitors. 

04.01.13 	 3 FY 14 Maya Playscape Capital Request 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http:04.01.13


Item 8Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



  
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date:  November 19, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Juanita Jackson/854-4467 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Sherri E. Fleming,  
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Request from the Health and Human 
Services and Veterans Service Department To Print 5,000 Copies of the Urban Coyote 
Brochure  
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
See attached  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends approval of this item. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
See attached 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
See attached 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget Office 
Cyd Grimes, CPM, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Nicki Riley, CAP, CMA, Travis County Auditor 
Patty Lennon, Financial Analyst, Travis County Auditor’s Office 
Aerin Toussaint, Analyst, Planning and Budget Office 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, HHSVS 

Item 9Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Where We Are

Coyote sightings near greenbelts in Travis County 
are increasing as the adaptable animals discover 
that an urban environment provides many sources 
of food.

Coyotes have adjusted to the human popu lation 
expansion of Travis County, and have already  
dispersed into the developed urban landscape 
where they tend to thrive.

As humans expand their living areas and coyotes 
expand their range, contact is inevitable.

This brochure provides information about what you 
can do to stay safe, help avoid coyote-human/pet 
conflicts and work with agencies to ad dress the 
problems associated with urban coyotes.

While the coyote problem isn’t going away, it can  
be managed and mitigated.

URBAN  
COYOTES

LIVING WITH

IN AUSTIN/TRAVIS COUNTY

 What to do, who to call

More  
Information
• Call 3-1-1

• Web Resources

USDA Pamphlet –  
Coyotes in Towns and Suburbs 
http://go.usa.gov/Dzyj

Texas Agrilife Extension’s  
Coyote Resources 
http://goo.gl/SaAVeQ

Request an educational program  
for your community: (512) 854-2994.

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Abundant Food

Coyotes have succeeded in the urban environment 
largely because of their varied behavior and diet. 
Urban coyotes have access to rodents, rabbits, 
fruit, insects, carrion, household garbage, compost 
piles, pets, pet food, and water from ponds and 
landscape irrigation runoff.

Lush home landscapes and greenbelts within ur ban 
areas attract food for coyotes and give coyotes 
space to move around. Coyotes will also prey on 
domestic livestock and poultry, deer and other 
urban wildlife.

Some people intentionally, or in many cases  
unin tentionally, feed coyotes.

No Fear

The most serious problem with the urbanization of 
coyotes is that they adapt to being around people. 
As they lose their fear, coyotes become bolder in 
approaching people and may put themselves in 
hazardous situations they would normally avoid.

Coyotes are active mainly during the nighttime, 
but they can be moving at any time during the day. 
Most sightings of coyotes occur during the hours 
close to sunrise and sunset.

The abundance of food regulates coyote numbers, 
reproduction, survival, dispersal and territories.  
In the wild, coyotes generally have home ranges  
of 3 to 16 square miles. But in suburban areas, 
where resources are plentiful, coyotes may need 
only 1⁄4 to 1⁄2 square mile. This can lead to  
large coyote populations, increasing the chance  
of contact with humans.

If You See a Coyote

To report coyote sightings, especially aggressive 
behavior toward people or pets, call 3-1-1. The 
infor mation gathered through 3-1-1 will be relayed 
to Texas Wildlife Services for response/follow-up.

Call 9-1-1 to report a coyote attack on a human.

Government Action

Travis County and Texas Wildlife Services, a  
Department of the Texas A&M Agrilife Extension 
Service, have partnered to address the coyote 
problem in Travis County. The City of Austin  
participates in this partnership.

Under the agreement, Texas Wildlife Services will 
provide technical assistance and direct control. 
Technical assistance involves assisting the public 
by providing advice, recommendations, informa tion, 
educational material, and educational pro grams.

Direct control will involve removal of coyotes that 
exhibit aggressive behavior toward people or pets, 
and pose a risk to human health and safety.

Do’s and Don’ts for Residents
1.  

Do not feed coyotes or other wildlife.

2.  
Eliminate sources of water.

3.  
Position bird feeders so that coyotes  

can’t get the feed.

4.  
Do not discard edible garbage  

where coyotes can get to it.

5.  
Secure garbage containers and  

eliminate gar bage odors.

6.  
Feed pets indoors whenever possible. Pick up  

any leftovers if feeding outdoors. Store pet food 
where it is inaccessible to wildlife.

7.  
Trim and clean, near ground level, any shrub bery 

that provides hiding cover for coyotes or prey.

8.  
Don’t leave children unattended.

9.  
Don’t allow pets to run free. Keep them safely 

confined and provide secure nighttime housing for 
them. Walk your dog on a leash and accompany 

your pet outside, especially at night.

10.  
Discourage coyotes from frequenting your area. 
If you start seeing coyotes around your home or 
property, chase them away by shouting, making 

loud noises or throwing rocks.

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett / 854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on items related the Program Year 
2012 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) for 
the Community Development Block Grant provided by HUD: 
 

A. Receive a summary of the annual performance report;  
 

B. Approve the draft of the Program Year 2012 Consolidated Annual 
Performance Evaluation Report to post for public comment. 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5301), the federal government, through 
the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), sponsors 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), a program that provides 
annual grants to cities and counties to develop viable urban communities 
by providing decent housing, a suitable living environment, and by 
expanding economic opportunities for low and moderate income persons. 
Since 2006, Travis County has received CDBG funds from HUD on an 
annual basis.  As a CDBG urban entitlement, Travis County must compile 
and publish a report detailing the use of CDBG funds and associated 
progress and accomplishments for every program year.  HUD calls this 
annual report the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER).   
 
The CAPER describes the County’s CDBG housing and community 
development activities as well as the County’s overall housing and 
community development efforts.  This year’s CAPER corresponds to 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 10Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

activities conducted during the 2012 program year spanning October 1, 
2012 to September 30, 2013. 
 
Please see the attached draft of the CAPER and a PowerPoint 
presentation for a summary of the 2012 program year. 
 
On October 29, 2013 the Travis County Commissioners Court approved a 
15-day public comment period spanning from November 25, 2013, through 
December 9, 2013, as well as a public hearing on December 3, 2013.  
Notice of the comment period and public hearing was provided in 
newspapers of general circulation, through postal and electronic mailings, 
on the County’s website, Facebook, Twitter and the seven Travis County 
Community Centers.   
 
Final approval of the CAPER by the Travis County Commissioners Court is 
anticipated to occur on December 17, 2013.  The CAPER is due to HUD no 
later than December 30, 2013. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends approval of the attached draft of the PY 2012 CAPER 
for public comment.   
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
When HUD awards CDBG funds to cities and counties, there is a mandate 
for CDBG entitlements to address the County’s housing, economic and 
community development needs of the low to- moderate income population. 
Given that often times the CDBG resources provided are limited, 
entitlements are expected to work in collaboration with other local funds to 
tackle the multiple community needs and ensure CDBG funds fall within the 
jurisdiction’s broader efforts. This is the reason why the CAPER documents 
both CDBG projects as well as the County’s efforts as a whole in the 
relevant areas.  
 
During PY12, spending occurred in six different projects benefitting 603 
people. Of the funds available to the activities, $496,692.18 was spent, per 
HUD’s data management system called IDIS and $173,045 was leveraged.  
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

The reports in Appendix B, Attachment A of the CAPER include data from 
HUD’s database. Due to the length of these reports, they will only be 
included in the final CAPER.  
 
In addition, the County’s fiscal year recently closed without sufficient time 
for staff to make all of the appropriate references in the report; therefore, all 
missing General Fund references will be updated in the final report.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
No budget impacts are anticipated by this item. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
None. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

(CDBG) PROGRAM 

PY 2012 CDBG Annual Report – Overview of 
Performance 
Travis County Commissioners Court 
November 19, 2013 

  
 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Project Status Update 

 
 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



OVERVIEW 

• During PY12, three new projects were launched, 
and four projects were renewed or continued 
from previous years. 

 

• Of the funds available $496,692.18 was spent. 

 

• 603 people benefitted from CDBG funded 
projects.  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

3 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY 2012 PROJECTS 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



5 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
 

• In previous years, Austin Habitat for Humanity used 
over a million dollars in CDBG funds to purchase  
31 lots on the Gilbert Lane parcel. 

• Two houses were completed during PY11 and are 
currently occupied by eligible homeowners.  

• More than half of the remaining 29 houses will be 
built in 2014 with the remainder completed in 2015.   

 

Contact Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc. at 

(512) 472-8788 to apply for a Habitat House.   
 

 

  6 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY 2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
LAND ACQUISITION 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• A Request-for-Qualifications (RFQ) process took 

place in PY11 and an Architectural and Engineering 
firm was selected to administer the design phase of 
the program.   

• In July of 2011 a Notice to Proceed was issued to the 
chosen firm. 

• During PY12 the Design Phase of the project was 
completed. 

• The Environmental Assessment for the project is 
complete.   

• Working on bid release for construction of the first set 
of roads.  

 

  
7 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY12 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
LAKE OAK ESTATES 

Of the $471,598 budgeted, $72,072.26 was expended in PY12 and $126,265.06 
of the total project budget has been spent.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• A Tier One environmental was drafted and 

      Request for Release of Funds completed.  

• An RFS was released in October 2012. 

• The contract was awarded in February  

      2013 

• Eligibility and Site Specific Environmental  

• Determinations were made for properties from the program waiting list 
throughout the spring of 2013. 

• Seven homes are complete at the close of the program year.  Eleven 
additional homes were under repair, but not completed by the close of the 
program year. 

 

  8 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY 2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
HOME REHABILITATION 

Of the $1,088,731 budgeted, $146,143.82 was expended in PY12. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• The project was launched in the fall of 2012. 

• In April 2013, 11 homebuyer applications were ready to close using FHA 
funding however the subrecipient was unsuccessful in acquiring FHA approval 
for the program. 

• One homebuyer was assisted using conventional financing. 

• The subrecipient was able to demonstrate to the lender that conventional 
financing could be used to make the remaining 10 loans successful, but the 
lender was not comfortable continuing without the support of FHA financing. 

• The County did not to renew the project contract when it terminated on 
September 30, 2013. 

•  The remaining funds from the project will be reprogrammed in accordance 
with the policies and procedures outlined in the Citizen Participation Plan.   

 

 

 

 

  

9 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY 2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
HOMEBUYER ASSISTANCE 

Of the $794,945 budgeted, $39,599.00 was expended in PY12.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• Outreach to a total of 84  agencies, school districts, churches and 

neighborhood associations to inform community members about the social 
work services available. 

• 375 people benefitted from services including case management, referrals, 
non-clinical counseling and crisis intervention.  

• 10 clients received assistance through the Youth and Family Assessment 
Center program.   

• 43 clients were assisted with State or County funded rent or utility assistance 
programs. 

• The project resulted in $24,708 dollars of leveraged funds. 

 

 

  10 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY 2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
SOCIAL SERVICE EXPANSION 

Of the $106,000 budgeted, $87,010.86 was expended in PY12.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
 

• The project was launched in July of 2013. 

• During the quarter that the project was active, five residents of the 
unincorporated areas received fair housing counseling. 

• Outreach was made to 15 community contacts, with an additional 5 
contacts made through advertising.   

• Two fair housing trainings were conducted for Travis County staff 
with a total of 78 participants. 

 

 

 

  

11 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY 2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Fair Housing Counseling 

Of the $43,451 budgeted, $15,535.00 was expended in PY12.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PROJECT STATUS: GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 
 

• The CDBG program underwent its second financial and programmatic 
monitoring review by HUD, with the result of no findings and no return of funds 
for ineligible use.   

• Staff monitored two programs provided significant amounts of technical 
assistance and training to contractors, internal departments and subrecipients. 

• The public comment draft of the Analysis of Impediments was readied for 
review by TCCC.  

• The PY11 CAPER and PY13 Action Plan were completed on time. 

• Staff assisted the Research and Planning Department of HHS/VS in drafting 
two reports: Travis County Snapshot from the American Community Survey 
and an annual Community Impact Report. 

 

 

  12 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY 2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION 

Of the $179,268 budgeted, $136,331.24 was expended in PY12.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PROJECT STATUS: HOUSING AND 
HOMELESSNESS 

 

• The Home Rehabilitation project and was successfully launched.   

• CDBG staff represented HHS/VS in the Ending Community Homelessness 
Coalition (ECHO).  

• As part of ECHO's Education and Outreach Work Group, CDBG 
staff contributed to the planning of ECHO's annual Hunger and Homelessness 
Awareness Week in November 2012.  

•  CDBG staff participated in the Independent Review Team for the Continuum of 
Care applications. 

• Staff participated in drafting the Scope of Work and RFS process for the City of 
Austin’s Housing Market Study.   

• CDBG staff participated in the Opportunity Mapping Project.  

 

 

 

 

  

13 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY 2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PROJECT STATUS: FAIR HOUSING 
 

• A contract was approved for a subrecipient to manage the new fair housing 
project. 

• All CDBG staff attended a fair housing training.  

• The CDBG funded Social Work project was cited by the AI consultant as a best 
practice for extending services into underserved areas, thereby furthering fair 
housing goals.    

• CDBG staff completed fair housing advocacy at the Department and 
community level that included attending meetings, providing tours and 
executing contracts with specific performance measures,  with the aim of  
expanding access in the unincorporated areas.  

• A variety of current general fund investments are made to address 
impediments to fair housing choice.   

 
14 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

PY 2012 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



   

 

 

 

 

 

• An informal consultation with HUD was held on September 9, 2013 to discuss the 

timeliness of CDBG spending.   

• On November 12, 2013, HUD provided notice it would reduce the PY13, allocation by 

$54,391. 

 

  
15 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

TIMELINESS 

TARGET: 1.5 

August 1st 2013 2.61 

September 30th 2013 2.4 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



11 Travis County CDBG Program, 2012 

CAPER SUBMISSION TIMELINE:  
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: 
• Comments are accepted beginning November 25, 2013 

at 8:00 a.m. and ending December 9, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.  Public hearing 
will be held on December 3, 2013 at 9:00 at Commissioners Court.   

 
TO ACCESS THE DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT (beginning November 25, 

2013): 
• Visit www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg 
• Visit any of the seven Travis County Community Centers 
• Or call 512-854-3460 to request a copy 

 
TO SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS: 
• Mail them to CDBG Program, Travis County HHSVS,  

P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX 78767  
• Email them to cdbg@co.travis.tx.us 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



   

TRAVIS COUNTY 
CDBG  

 

PY12 CONSOLIDATED 
ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 

EVALUATION REPORT 

 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT DRAFT 

10.1.2012 TO 9.30.2013 

PY 2012 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Prepared by: 
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 

CDBG Office 
 
 
 
County Executive 
Sherri E. Fleming 
 
CDBG Office 
Christy Copeland Moffett 
Martha Brown 
Elena Rivera 
 
Travis County Auditor’s Office 
Janice Cohoon 
 
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources 
Lee Turner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special thanks to the following people for 
providing information to assist staff in the 
completion of this report. 
 
Austin Tenants’ Council 
Kathy Stark 
 
Health and Human Services and Veterans Service Staff 
Lisa Glass 
Laura Sovine 
 
Homebase Texas 
Ivette Benitez 
 
Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. 
Cindy Spackman 
 
Travis County Housing Services 
Lance Pearson 
 
Travis County Housing Authority 
Craig Alter 
 
Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
Andrea Shields 
 

Questions or Comments?  
 
For questions or for more information, please contact the CDBG Office at cdbg@co.travis.tx.us.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX  
CDBG ANNUAL 
REPORT  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 

 

 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX 
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

 
Samuel T. Biscoe 

Travis County Judge 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Bruce Todd 
County Commissioner 

Precinct Two 
 

Ron Davis 
County Commissioner 

Precinct One 
 

Gerald Daugherty 
County Commissioner 

Precinct Three 

Margaret Gomez 
County Commissioner 

Precinct Four 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                     Table of Contents 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Acronyms ......................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
 
Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Executive Summary ......................................................................................................................................................... 7 
 
SECTION I: GENERAL QUESTIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 11 
Status of Projects ............................................................................................................................................................. 11 
Geographic Distribution of Projects ................................................................................................................................ 25 
Geographic Distribution of Projects and Racial Concentrations ...................................................................................... 26 
Performance Evaluation of Projects ................................................................................................................................ 32 
Expenditures and Leveraged Resources for PY 2012 ....................................................................................................... 37 
Expenditures Per Project ................................................................................................................................................. 38 
Timely Spending of Funds ................................................................................................................................................ 39 
Managing the Process ...................................................................................................................................................... 40 
Monitoring ....................................................................................................................................................................... 44 
Institutional Structure and Coordination ......................................................................................................................... 48 
Public Engagement .......................................................................................................................................................... 50 
Evaluation of the CDBG Program ..................................................................................................................................... 51 
 
SECTION II: HOUSING AND SERVICES FOR THE HOMELESS ............................................................................................................ 53 
Housing Investments ....................................................................................................................................................... 53 
Overview of Housing Services Supported by Travis County ............................................................................................ 55 
Barriers to Affordable Housing ........................................................................................................................................ 58 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice ............................................................................................................................... 60 
Homelessness .................................................................................................................................................................. 63 
HOME/American Dream Down Payment Initiative ......................................................................................................... 64 
Emergency Shelter Grant ................................................................................................................................................. 65 
Addressing “Worst Case” Housing Needs ........................................................................................................................ 65 
 
SECTION III: NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ACTIONS ............................................................................ 66 
Non-Housing Community Development Investments ..................................................................................................... 66 
Overview of Travis County CDBG Investments in Community Development .................................................................. 67 
Anti-Poverty Strategy....................................................................................................................................................... 69 
Non-Homeless Special Needs .......................................................................................................................................... 70 
Lead-Based Paint ............................................................................................................................................................. 71 
Specific HOPWA Objectives ............................................................................................................................................. 72 
 
APPENDICES..................................................................................................................................................................... 73 
Appendix A  ...................................................................................................................................................................... 73 
Appendix B  ...................................................................................................................................................................... 76 
 

 
 
   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Acronyms 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   4 

ACRONYMS 
 
Throughout this report, the reader will note the following acronyms: 
 

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act 
AI Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 
AP Action Plan 
CAPER Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report  
CDBG   Community Development Block Grant 
CFR Code of Federal Regulation 
Con-Plan Consolidated Plan (governs CDBG Programs) 
CPD Community Planning and Development (part of HUD) 
CPP Citizen Participation Plan 
EA Environmental Assessment 
ESG  Emergency Shelter Grant 
FHA Federal Housing Administration (part of HUD) 
FSS Family Support Services (a Travis County Social Service Program) 
FTEs Full Time Equivalents 
HACT Housing Authority of Travis County 
HHS/VS Travis County Department of Health & Human Service and Veteran Services 
HOME  HOME Investment Partnership Program (HUD’s Program) 
HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HUD’s Program) 
the Accounting Software used by Travis County 
HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 
IDIS Integrated Disbursement Information System (HUD’s Financial Management System)) 
LMA Low Mod Area of Benefit 
LMC Low Mod Clientele 
LMH Low Mod Housing 
LMI Low- and Moderate-Income (80% or below median household income) 
LMJ Low Mod Jobs 
MFI Median Family Income 
OMB Office of Management and Budget 
PY Program Year 
PY11 Program Year 2011 
RFP Request for Proposals 
RFQ Request for Qualifications 
RFS Request for Services 
TC Travis County 
TCHFC Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
TxDOT Texas Department of Transportation  
TNR Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources 
URA Uniform Relocation Act 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section I :: General Questions 

 
 

 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) initiative is a federal grant program administered by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The program provides annual grants 
to cities and counties to carry out a variety of community development activities aimed at revitalizing 
neighborhoods, improving affordable housing options, and providing improved community facilities 
and services.  
 
Based on its population, in 2006, Travis County qualified as an urban county, a federal designation 
which afforded the County the opportunity to apply for CDBG funds. That year, Travis County applied 
for and received CDBG funds for the first time and has continued to receive funding for the past seven 
years. The County’s annual allocation is based on a HUD-designed formula that takes into account the 
county’s population size, poverty rate, housing overcrowding, and age of housing.  
 
Usage of CDBG funds must meet a variety of parameters set nationally by HUD and locally by the 
County. Federal regulation requires that a minimum of 70% of the CDBG funds focus on projects for 
low- to moderate-income residents. Additionally, Travis County’s allocation specifically targets 
residents living in the unincorporated areas of the county and to be eligible, the activities must meet 
one of the following HUD national objectives: 

• Benefit low- and moderate-income persons; 
• Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight; or 
• Address other community development needs that present a serious and immediate threat to the 

health and welfare of the community. 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
The administration of the CDBG program follows a cycle that includes the drafting of a Consolidated 
Plan (ConPlan), an Action Plan (AP), and a Consolidated Annual Evaluation and Performance Report 
(CAPER). The current ConPlan identifies the County’s community and housing needs and outlines the 
strategies to address those needs over a three-year period. The Action Plan defines the specific 
activities to be undertaken during each program year (PY) to address the priorities established in the 
ConPlan. The CAPER is conducted annually to assess yearly accomplishments.   
 
The following figure is a simplified visual representation of the CDBG cycle. As shown, citizen 
participation has a central role in setting the priorities to be addressed and defining projects to tackle 
identified needs. 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   6 

 
Figure 1: CDBG Cycle 

 

 
 

 
The Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) is the lead 
agency designated by the County for the grant administration of the CDBG program and the single 
point of contact with HUD. 
  

Public 
Engagement 

Consolidated 
 Plan 

Annual Action 
Plan 

Substantial 
Amendments 

Annual 
Report 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   7 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
As a CDBG urban entitlement, Travis County must compile and publish a report detailing the use of 
CDBG funds and associated progress and accomplishments for every program year.  HUD calls this 
annual report the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER).  
 
Specifically, the CAPER describes the County’s CDBG housing and community development activities as 
well the County’s overall housing and community development efforts. This specific document 
corresponds to activities conducted during Program Year 2012 (PY12) spanning October 1, 2012 to 
September 30, 2013. 
 
The CAPER is written to provide HUD with required CDBG information and provide the public an 
update of the progress made in this initiative. As a result of serving two audiences, the report follows 
the federal reporting requirements, while also presenting information in a format meant to be easily 
understood by County departments, service providers and residents. The report includes specific 
outcome performance measures as delineated by HUD’s 2005 Community Planning and Development 
Outcome Performance Measurement System. 
 
Summary of Resources and Distribution of Funds 

The Program Year 2012 Action Plan detailed the proposed use of program funds for a single fiscal year 
from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013.  PY12 allocated funds were used along with 
remaining funds from prior years.  The following table represents use of funds for PY12 by project, 
including reallocated and unexpended funds from previous years, benefit in PY12 and status.   
 
 

Figure 2: Progress of CDBG Projects as of September 30, 2013 

Activities 

Expected 
Benefit/ 
Served in 

PY12 

Budgeted 
PY12 
Funds 

Prior Year funds 
available for 

PY12 (includes 
substantial 

amendments) 

Amount Spent 
in Prior Years 

Amount 
Spent in PY12 Status 

Production of New 
Owner Housing Units 
Via land acquisition 
and infrastructure 
development  

31/0 
 Housing 

Units 
$0 $4 $1,062,544.90  $0 

Continuing: Property 
acquired October 2010 & 
July 2011. Two houses 
are complete and 
occupied.  The remaining 
houses are scheduled to 
be completed in 2014 
and 2015.     

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   8 

Activities 

Expected 
Benefit/ 
Served in 

PY12 

Budgeted 
PY 12 
Funds 

Prior Year funds 
available for 

PY12 (includes 
substantial 

amendments) 

Amount Spent 
in Prior Years 

Amount 
Spent in PY12 Status 

Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 
Minor home repair 
up to $24,999 
 

35/7 
 Housing 

Units 

$256,024  
 $832,707 $0 $146,143.82 

Continuing:  A 
subrecipient was 
identified and a contract 
executed in February 
2013. The program was 
launched in the Spring of 
2013. The remaining 
units will be completed 
by February 2014. 

Homebuyer 
Assistance: 
Direct 
Homeownership 
Assistance through 
Down Payment 
Assistance and 
Shared Appreciation 
Gap Financing 

63/1 $0 $794,945 $0 $39,599.00 Completed 9/30/13  

Street 
Improvements: Lake 
Oak Estates  

126/0 $326,598  
 $145,000 $54,192.80 $72,072.26 

Continuing: This is a 
phased project.  During 
PY12,  design and the 
environmental study was 
completed. 

Public Services: 
Family Support 
Services (FFS) Social 
Work Services 
Expansion –Travis 
County HHS/VS 
Program 

400/ 375 $106,000  
 $0 $0 $87010.86 

 
Completed 9/30/13 
 
 
 

Public Services: Fair 
Housing Counseling 

35/ 5 clients 
receiving 

counseling;  
15/15 

community 
contacts;  

5/5 outreach 
contacts 

$28,451  
 $0 $0 $15,535.00 Completed 9/30/13 

 

Administration & 
Planning: CDBG N/A $179,268  

 $0 $0 $136,331.24  
Completed 9/30/13 

Total $866,341 $1,772,656 $1,116,737.70 $496,692.18  

 
 
 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   9 

Timely Spending of Funds  

As part of the mandate from Congress, HUD is required to determine whether Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) grantees carry out their program in a timely manner. A grantee is 
considered to be timely, if 60 days prior to the end of the grantee’s program year, the balance in its 
line-of-credit does not exceed 1.5 times the annual grant. If the grantee exceeds the amount allowed 
at that 60-day mark, they are considered to be non-compliant. For Travis County, the timeliness test 
occurs every August. If the grantee fails to meet the timeliness requirements for two consecutive 
years, HUD can reduce the grant amount available for the next program year by the exact amount of 
the credit balance in excess of 1.5 times the annual grant.  
 
For the second year, the County was out of compliance with timeliness, with a ratio of 2.38, and was 
offered an informal consultation to discuss the factors that have contributed to its non-compliance. On 
September 9, 2013, County Judge Sam Biscoe, Sherri Fleming, and Christy Moffett participated in a 
conference call with HUD Officials from the San Antonio Field Office and Washington, DC.   On 
November 12, 2013, the County was notified that $54,391 would be removed from its PY13 allocation 
resulting in the grant award changing from $909,925 to $855,534, a reduction of 5%.  Staff is working 
on a substantial amendment to the PY13 Action Plan to address the reduction.   
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Public Participation  

During PY12, the public had ample opportunity to participate in the development of the PY13 Action 
Plan. During the months of February and March 2013, the public had an opportunity to identify the 
needs of the unincorporated areas by: 

1) Attending one of five public hearings, 
2) Turning in a Participation Form, or  
3) Turning in a Project Proposal form.   
 
Public Hearings and Participation Forms 

The purpose of the hearings and participation forms was to obtain the public’s input on community 
development, housing, and public service needs, as well as potential project ideas to address those 
needs. The first hearing, held at the Travis County Commissioners Court (TCCC), followed a traditional 
hearing format, while those held in each of the precincts had an information session followed by 
facilitated discussion.  The hearings were held according to the following schedule:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   10 

Figure 4: Locations and Dates of Public Hearings Held to Collect Information for the   
PY13 Action Plan  

Locations of Hearings Dates/Times of Public hearings 

Travis County Commissioners Court,  
Austin Tuesday, February 19, 2013 9:00 am  

Westside Meeting Hall,  
Austin Wednesday, February 20, 2013 6:30 pm  

South Rural Community Center,  
Del Valle Thursday, February 21, 2013 6:30 pm  

East Rural Community Center,  
Manor Wednesday, March 6, 2013 6:30 pm  

West Rural Community Center,  
Oak Hill Thursday, March 7, 2013 6:30 pm  

 
Members of the public that could not participate in public hearings had the choice of providing their 
input by filling out a Participation Form or a Project Proposal Form. These forms were provided to 
interested parties upon request and were available in both English and Spanish on the Travis County 
CDBG website. 
 
Every year during the development of the Annual Action Plan, a 30-day public comment period is held 
to receive comments on the proposed uses of CDBG funds. The comment period includes two public 
hearings held at the Travis County Commissioners Court.  For the development of the PY13 Action Plan 
the 30-day public comment period was held from June 24, 2013 to July 24, 2013 and the two public 
hearings occurred on July 2, 2013 and July 9, 2013.  
 
The public comment period was advertised on the County’s website and in newspapers of general 
circulation during the week of June 3, 2013. In addition, notifications by mail and e-mail were sent to 
service providers, to citizens who attended public hearings in the past, to the community liaison 
departments of school districts, and to neighborhood associations.  The announcements were available 
in English and Spanish. 
 
During the week of November 4th, 2013, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing the 
availability of the PY 2012 CAPER, the public comment period and the public hearing at Travis County 
Commissioners Court.  Travis County HHS/VS drafted the CAPER and presented it to the Travis County 
Commissioners Court on November 19, 2013.  After presentation to Travis County Commissioners 
Court, the CAPER will be posted for public review and written comments prior to approval by the Travis 
County Commissioners Court.  The comment period will be held from November 25, 2013 to December 
9, 2013.  Additionally, a public hearing will be held at Travis County Commissioners Court on December 
3, 2013.    

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   11 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

GENERAL QUESTIONS 
 
 
 

 
 
 

STATUS OF PROJECTS 
 
 

PROJECT 1:   
OWNER HOUSING – PRODUCTION OF NEW UNITS 

Activity:  Land Acquisition  

IDIS Activity Numbers:  7 for PY06, 10 for PY07, 26 for PY08, and 33 for PY10 

 

    
Dedication of first house for the project           Dedication of second house for the project 

 
Project Description 

Parcels on one large tract of land in unincorporated Travis County were acquired to build affordable 
single-family housing of which 17 units will be dedicated to low-income families (25-50% Median 
Family Income) and 14 units will be dedicated to moderate-income families (up to 80% Median Family 
Income).  Financing for the lots is available to homeowners as a 10-year forgivable loan.  Single-family 
housing is defined as a one- to four-family residence.  Public hearings were held to inform the public of 
the location(s) prior to the purchase of the land.   
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   12 

Austin Habitat for Humanity, a local nonprofit, will secure funding for the construction of homes on the 
acquired property.  Thirty-one units of affordable housing will be created.  The number of individuals 
impacted will vary depending upon the families selected for the housing units.   
 
Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 Two houses were completed during PY11 and are currently occupied.  
 No units were built in PY12, however, planning for the full build out for PY 13 and PY 14 occurred.   
 
Performance Measure 

Affordability for the purpose of creating decent housing. 

 

 
  

Activity Con-Plan 
Priority 

Funds 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended during  

PY12 

Total CDBG 
funds 

Expended 

Amended 
Goal/ 
Actual 

Owner 
Housing High CDBG 

Private 
Prior Years: 

$1,062,548.90 $0 $0 $1,062,544.90 31/2  
Housing Units 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   13 

PROJECT 2:   
HOMEOWNER REHABILITATION 

Activity:  Home Repair 

IDIS Activity Numbers:  39 and 43 for PY06-12 

 
Before and after repairs of bathroom 

Project Description 

This project funds home repair and weatherization services to low- and moderate-income 
homeowners in the unincorporated areas of Travis County.  The program seeks to improve the energy 
efficiency, physical living conditions, accessibility and safety in owner-occupied homes. Services are 
provided by a nonprofit, Meals on Wheels and More, Inc., designated subrecipient and identified 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   14 

through a formal application process in which it demonstrated the ability to provide services and 
adhere to federal guidelines. The program will target households at or below 80 percent of the median 
family income. A maximum of $24,999 of CDBG assistance per year will be provided to a homebuyer 
for a single home in the form of a 5-year forgivable loan. 
 
Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 A Tier One environmental was drafted and Request for Release of Funds completed;   
 October 2012: An RFS was released; 
 February 2013: The contract was awarded; 
 March-April 2013: Eligibility and Site Specific Environmental Determinations were made for 

properties from the program waiting list; 
 May-September 2013: Site Specific Determinations are ongoing and home repairs for seven (7) 

homes are complete at the close of the program year.  Eleven (11) additional homes were under 
repair, but not completed by the close of the program year. 

 Of the 7 homes completed during the reporting period:   
 5 units received modifications for ADA accessibility 
 7 units received repairs to address health and safety concerns 
 5 units received repairs to address major system repairs 
 3 units received repairs to address energy efficiency 

 
Performance Measure 

Improving the quality of owner housing. 
 

Activity 
Con-
Plan 

Priority 

Funds 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended 

during  
PY12 

Total CDBG 
funds 

Expended 

Amended 
Goal/ 
Actual 

Home 
Rehabilitation High CDBG 

 

Prior Years*: 
$832,707 

PY12 $256,024 
 

$ 0 $146,144 $146,144 35/ 7 
Housing Units 

* Includes funds from a Substantial Amendment in June 2012 that reallocated funds from prior year project savings and 
from deletion of YFAC Flex Fund project.   
 

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   15 

PROJECT 3:   
LAKE OAK ESTATES 

Activity:  Street Improvements  

IDIS Activity Numbers:  35 for PY11, 38 for PY12 

 
Project Description: 

The Lake Oak Estates Neighborhood 
completed a primary survey in March 2011 
and was identified as a low- to moderate- 
income area. The roads in the unincorporated 
areas of Lake Oak Estates do not meet Travis 
County standards; therefore, the substandard 
roads cannot be accepted into the Travis 
County road maintenance program.   
 
 
 

The street improvement scope of work may include, 
but is not limited to: 1) design services, 2) land 
surveying services, 3) geo-technical services, 4) 
drainage design services, 5) utility location and 
relocation coordination services, 6) environmental 
review and related regulatory permits, 7) acquisition 
of right-of-way and easements, and 8) construction. 
 
 
 
 

The project will take place in three phases and include the improvement to sections of Cavalier Canyon 
Drive, Bowling Lane, Covenant Canyon Trail, Holly Lane and related cross streets.  The first phase, 
funded with PY11 grant funds, included: 1) design services, 2) land surveying services, 3) geo-technical 
services, 4) drainage design services, 5) utility location and relocation coordination services, 6) 
environmental review and related regulatory permits, and 7) project management time. The 
improvements impact 126 people, of which, 85.7% are considered low to moderate income based on 
the primary survey.     

Facing Northwest on Holly Lane 

Facing Southeast on Bowling Lane 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   16 

 
Project Status and Progress to Date 

 A Request-for-Qualifications (RFQ) process took place in PY11 and an Architectural and Engineering 
firm was selected to administer the design phase of the program.   

 In July of 2011 a Notice to Proceed was issued to the chosen firm. 
 During PY12 the Design Phase of the project was completed. 
 The Environmental Assessment for the project is complete.   

 
Performance Measure 

Accessibility for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment. 
 

Activity Con-Plan 
Priority 

Funds 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
 Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended 

during 
PY12 

Total CDBG 
Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Street 
Improvements High CDBG 

Prior Years: 
$145,000 

PY12: 
$326,598 

 

NA $72,072 $126,265 
126/0 
People 

 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   17 

PROJECT 4:   
HOMEBUYER ASSISTANCE 

Activity:  Direct Homeownership Assistance through Down Payment Assistance and Shared 

Appreciation Gap Financing 

IDIS Activity Number:  28 for PY09 & PY10 

 
Project description 

In an effort to make housing affordable to “first-time home purchasing” families whose annual 
household income is at or below 80 percent of the Area Median Income (AMI), the Travis County 
Affordable Housing Ownership Program will make Shared Appreciation Gap Financing and Down 
payment Assistance loans available. The project will be administered by Homebase Texas, a designated 
subrecipient. All program income will be reinvested into the Homebuyer Assistance program. 
 
Shared Appreciation Gap Financing 
Households earning 80% or less of the AMI may obtain up to $30,000 to reduce the sales price to an 
amount affordable to the household. Actual assistance amount will be calculated based on actual 
family need. The loan is a 0% interest, 30-year note with no required annual or monthly payments. 
Upon resale, refinancing, lease, or other transfer of title, the loan must be repaid in full plus a 
percentage of the property’s appreciation value. 
 
Down Payment Assistance 
Households earning 80 percent or less of the area Median Family Income (MFI) may obtain up to 
$8,000 to cover down payment and reasonable closing costs. The loan is a 0% interest, 5-year note 
with no required annual or monthly payments. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each 
year of homeownership. The loan is fully forgiven at the end of 5 years. A minimum household 
investment of $500 is required. 
 
All households who are interested in receiving financial assistance through the Travis County 
Affordable Housing Ownership Program are required to participate in a minimum of eight (8) hours of 
HUD-certified housing counseling.  
 
Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 A Request-for-Services (RFS) process took place in PY11 and a subrecipient was selected to 
administer the program.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   18 

 The subrecipient contract was approved on September 11, 2012 and the project launched in the 
fall of 2012. 

 In April 2013, eleven homebuyer applications were ready to close using FHA funding for the 
primary home loan, however the subrecipient was unsuccessful in acquiring FHA approval for the 
program. 

 One downpayment assistance loan and one shared appreciation gap financing loan (both loans 
made to the same homebuyer) were successfully closed in April using conventional financing. 

 The subrecipient was able to demonstrate to the mortgage lender that conventional financing 
along with the homebuyer assistance product could be used to make the remaining 10 loans 
successful, but the lender was not comfortable continuing without the support of FHA financing. 

 The County did not to renew the contract for the program when it terminated on September 30, 
2013. 

 The remaining funds from the project will be reprogrammed in accordance with the policies and 
procedures outlined in the Citizen Participation Plan.   
 

Performance Measure 

Availability for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment. 

 

Activity Con-Plan 
Priority Fund Sources CDBG 

Funding 
Leveraged 

Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended during 

PY12 

Total 
CDBG 
Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Homebuyer 
Assistance High CDBG Prior Years: 

$794,945 N/A $39,599 $39,599 

 
63/1 

Households 
 
 

 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   19 

PROJECT 5:   
PUBLIC SERVICES: Social Work Services Expansion 

Activity:  HHS/VS Family Support Services (FFS) Division Social Work Services Expansion 

IDIS Activity Number:  40 for PY12 

 
Project Description 

This program is an internal Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service (HHS/VS) 
expansion of existing services. In PY11, the program was redesigned to expand social work services by 
increasing to the equivalent of one-and-a-half social workers resulting in additional capacity to provide 
case management, information and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention, and outreach 
in all four precincts of the unincorporated areas. The 1.5 full time equivalents (FTEs) partially funded 
eight social workers who work at a Travis County HHS/VS facility; however, to reduce transportation 
barriers, the social workers provide the majority of service provision through home visits. Additionally, 
part of the funds will be used for operating expenses such as items necessary to provide home-based 
services, and mileage and training, among other related expenses.   
 
Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 Outreach to a total of 84 agencies, school districts, churches, and neighborhood associations during 
PY12 to inform community members about the social work services available. 

 Three hundred and seventy five people benefitted from services provided during PY12. Services 
included case management, referrals, non-clinical counseling, and crisis intervention.  

 Ten clients received assistance through the Youth and Family Assessment Center program.   
 Forty-three clients were assisted with Travis County or State funded rent or utility assistance 

programs. 
 A map is included below to show the number and distribution of clients served by the program in 

PY12. 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                         Page    |   20 

  Map 1:  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   21 

Performance Measure 

Availability for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment. 
 

Activity Con-Plan 
Priority 

Fund 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged  
Funding* 

CDBG funds 
Expended 

during 
PY12 

Total CDBG 
Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Public 
Services High 

 
CDBG 

 

 
PY12: 

$106,000 
 

 
$24,707.53 

 
$87,011 $87,011 400/ 375 

People 

*Leveraged funding comes from Travis County General Fund rent and utility assistance, Flexible Youth Funding and State 
pass through funds for utility and rental assistance.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   22 

PROJECT 6:   
PUBLIC SERVICES: Fair Housing 

Activity:  Fair Housing Counseling 

IDIS Activity Number:  41 for PY12 

 
Project Description 

The funds are allocated for Fair Housing Counseling for residents of the unincorporated areas and the 
Village of Webberville. This program expands existing fair housing services in the unincorporated areas 
of the County and the Village of Webberville, to serve approximately 35 people. Fair housing services 
include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint processing and testing in support of an 
individual complainant. Additionally, part of the funds will be used for allowable program delivery costs 
such as marketing materials and office supplies. At least 51% (18) of the recipients will be at or below 
80% of the Median Family Income (MFI). Because housing discrimination occurs at all income levels, 
the project will be allowed to service up to 17 households above 80% MFI. Furthermore, an additional 
$15,000 was set aside in the administrative and planning budget to provide fair housing outreach and 
training which are not allowable fair housing activities under the public services cap. 
 
Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 Due to competing priorities with larger contracts, the project launch was delayed until July of 2013. 
 During the quarter that the project was active, five residents of the unincorporated areas received 

fair housing counseling. 
 Outreach was made to 15 community contacts, with an additional 5 contacts made through 

advertising.   
 Two fair housing trainings were conducted for Travis County staff with a total of 78 participants. 

 
Performance Measure 

Availability for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment. 
 

Activity Con-Plan 
Priority 

Fund 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged  
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended 

during 
PY12 

Total CDBG 
Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Public 
Services High 

 
CDBG 

 

 
PY12: 

$28,451 

 
$0 

 
$15,535 $15,535 

35/ 5 People; 
15/15 Community 

Contacts; 
5/5 Outreach Contacts 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   23 

PROJECT 7:   
PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION 

Activity:  Administration 

IDIS Activity Number:  42 for PY12 

  
Project Description 

The funds allocated for administration will pay for the operating expenses associated with the grant 
including office supplies, training, contracted services, interpreting, membership, and other business 
related expenses.  Additionally, the funds will pay for a portion of the salary for the CDBG Planners and 
a portion of the salary of a Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Senior Engineer who acts as a project manager for CDBG-funded street and water supply improvement 
projects.  The TNR Senior Engineer also coordinates the preparation of project scopes, eligibility, cost 
estimates, and project design.  
 

Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 The CDBG program underwent its second financial and programmatic monitoring review by HUD, 
with the result of no findings and no return of funds for ineligible use.   

 Through an RFS process a nonprofit was contracted to administer the Home Rehabilitation project 
and the project was successfully launched.  

 A contract was approved for a subrecipient to manage the new fair housing project and two fair 
housing trainings were conducted for Travis County staff with a total of 78 participants. 

 Staff participated in drafting a scope of work and in the RFS process for the City of Austin’s Housing 
Market Study. 

 Staff provided significant amounts of technical assistance and training to contractors, internal 
departments and subrecipients. 

 The public comment draft of the Analysis of Impediments was readied for review by TCCC.  
 The PY 11 CAPER and PY13 Action Plan were completed on time. 
 Staff assisted the Research and Planning Department of HHS/VS in drafting two reports: Travis 

County Snapshot from the American Community Survey and an annual Community Impact Report. 
 Staff participated in homeless and housing planning through a variety of groups including the 

steering committee for a regional Opportunity Mapping project, ECHO and the Continuum of Care 
Independent Review Team. 

 Staff completed fair housing advocacy at the Department and community level to expand access to 
programs in the unincorporated areas.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   24 

 Staff attended meetings, provided tours, and executed contracts with specific performance 
measure to target the unincorporated areas.   

 
Performance Measure 

N/A 
 

Activity Con-Plan 
Priority 

Fund 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged  
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended during 

PY12 

Total CDBG 
Funds Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Planning High 
CDBG 
Travis 

County 

$179,268  
  $137,804.67 $136,331 $136,331 N/A 

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   25 

 

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS 
 
Travis County’s CDBG program serves the unincorporated areas of the county and the Village of 
Webberville.  The program does not have any designated target areas. Refer to the table below for 
specific descriptions of geographic distribution for each one of the CDBG projects.  For a map of the 
project locations and racial and ethnic concentrations, please refer to the maps below.  
 

Figure 6: Geographic Distribution of Grant Activity for the Program Year 2012 

Project Location/ Census Tract 

Production of New Owner Housing Units: via 
Land acquisition  Precinct 1, Census Tract:  22.05 Block Group: 4 

Street Improvements: Lake Oak Estates Precinct 4, Census Tract:  17.42, Block Group: 2 

Public Services: Family Support Services Social 
Work Services Expansion 

Various eligible households in the unincorporated areas of Travis 
County. Specifically residents in the following zip codes were served 
in PY12: 78612, 78617, 78621, 78641, 78645, 78653, 76854, 78660, 
78724, 78725, 78728, 78736, 78737, 78744, 78747, 78748. 

Public Services: Fair Housing Counseling 
Households residing in the unincorporated areas of the County and 
the Village of Webberville. Specifically residents in the following zip 
codes were served in PY12:  78728, 78734, 78748. 

Housing Rehabilitation  Eligible households residing in the unincorporated areas of the 
County and the Village of Webberville 

Homebuyer Assistance Eligible households residing in the unincorporated areas of the 
County and the Village of Webberville 

 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report            Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   26 

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS & RACIAL CONCENTRATION 
 
This section outlines the projects in relation to the racial and ethnic concentrations in the areas where 
they are located.  The table below demonstrates the racial breakout of persons served by projects 
implemented during PY12 and the maps identify where each of the street improvements, land 
acquisition, and public service projects are located.   
 

Figure 7: PY12 Project Beneficiaries by Race and Ethnicity 

Project 

Ethnicity Race 
Total 

People 
Benefited 

 
Hispanic Non-

Hispanic 

American 
Indian or 
Alaskan 
Native 

Asian/ 
Pacific 

Islander 

Black or 
African 

American 
White 

Other/ 
Multi 
Race 

 Public Services, 
Other – FFS 
Services* 

136 239 3 1 60 297 14 375 

 Public Services, 
Other – Fair 
Housing 
Counseling* 

2 3 0 0 1 4 0 5 

 Lake Oak Estates 88 38 0 0 0 29 97 126 

 Homebuyer 
Assistance* 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 

 Homeowner 
Rehabilitation* 7 11 0 0 11 5 2 18 

 Administration 
and Planning N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 78^ 

Total 233 292 3 1 73 335 113 603 

*Data gathered from the PY12 performance report submitted by service providers. 

^ This number includes participants in 2 fair housing trainings, demographic information was not collected.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                          Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                         Page    |   27 

 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Map 2:  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   28 

 
  

Map 3:  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   29 

 
  

Map 4:  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   30 

 
  
Map 5:  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   31 

 
  

Map 6:  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX           Page    |   32 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF PROJECTS 
 
Compliance with CDBG National Objectives 

The use of CDBG funds requires selecting eligible projects that meet one of the three national 
objectives prescribed by HUD.  These are: 

1) Benefitting low/moderate income (LMI) persons;  
2) Addressing slum or blighted areas; and  
3) Addressing an urgent need.  
 
All of the projects implemented during the Program Year 2012 met the national HUD objective of 
benefiting low/moderate income persons, thereby complying with the additional HUD requirement of 
spending 70% of CDBG funds on LMI persons.  The CDBG Financial Summary for Program Year 2012 
Report located in Appendix C shows that 100% of the PY12 expenditures benefitted low to moderate 
income persons. 
 
For an activity to qualify as meeting the LMI national objective, grantees must certify they are following 
one of four qualifying categories: area of benefit activities, limited clientele activities, housing 
activities, and job creation or retention activities. A low-to-moderate (low-mod) area of benefit (LMA) 
activity is one that benefits all residents in a particular area, where at least 45.14% (based on an 
exception criteria) of the residents are LMI persons. A limited clientele (LMC) activity is one where 51% 
of the beneficiaries have to be LMI persons.  Low-mod housing (LMH) applies to activities that aim to 
provide or improve permanent residential structures, which upon completion will be occupied by LMI 
households.  A low-mod job (LMJ) creation activity is one designed to create or retain permanent jobs, 
at least 51% of which will be made available to or held by LMI persons. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   33 

 
 

  

Map 7: 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section I :: General Questions 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX           Page    |   34 

The following table summarizes the category under which each project qualifies to meet the LMI 
national objective as well as the specific number of clients served in each target income area. In the 
cases of projects where no individuals have received services yet, a check mark identifies the 
anticipated income targets for the clients that will benefit from that project.   
 

Figure 8: PY12 Beneficiaries By Income 

Project National 
Objective 

 
Low to Moderate Income Target 

 

Above 
Moderate 

Income 
(Above 80% 

MFI) 

 
Total People 

Benefited Very Low 
 (<30% MFI) 

Low  
(30.1 to 

50% MFI) 

Moderate  
(50.1 to 

80% MFI) 

Home Rehabilitation 
Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
(LMH) 

12 1 

 
5 

N/A 18 

Street Improvements 
Lake Oak Estates 

Low/Moderate 
Income Area 
Benefit* (LMA) 

53 38 17 18 126 

Homebuyer Assistance 
via Direct 
Homeownership 
Assistance 

Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
(LMH) 

0 1 

 
 

0 N/A 1 

Public Services, Other – 
FFS Services 
 

Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele (LMC) 

305 46 24 N/A 375 

Public Services, Other – 
Fair Housing 
Counseling 

Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele (LMC) 

2 2 1 0 5 

Administration and 
Planning N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 78^ 

Total persons served  372 88 47 18 603 

MFI = Median Family Income as defined by HUD Area Benefit 
*Road Improvement projects qualify as a Low-Mod Area of Benefit through an Exception Rule Provision or Upper Quartile 
Criterion permitted by HUD. Travis County’s exception rule is 45.14%.  To learn more about the Exception rule visit the 
following site: http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/lawsregs/notices/2005/05-06.pdf. The Lake Oak Estates neighborhood 
conducted a primary survey that indicated 85.7% of respondents were below 80% MFI.    
^This number includes participants in 2 fair housing trainings, income information was not collected.   
Note: A checkmark indicates anticipated income levels of project beneficiaries.  
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/lawsregs/notices/2005/05-06.pdf


PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   35 

Compliance with ConPlan Goals 

CDBG projects must also fit within one of the high priority project categories approved by Travis 
County Commissioners Court for the 2011-2013 planning period. The following list summarizes those 
high priorities identified and the corresponding projects implemented during PY12.  
 

Figure 9: High Priorities in the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan and  
Projects Implemented in PY12 

High Priorities  Projects  

Housing Home Buyer Assistance; Home Repair 

Infrastructure Street Improvements: Lake Oak Estates 

Community Services Public Services: Social Work Expansion; Fair Housing Counseling 

 
 

Assessment of Goals and Objectives 

This section articulates the CDBG accomplishments for PY12 as they relate to the goals and objectives, 
spending, overall performance and effective grant management. A total of 603 people benefited from 
the projects completed under the second year of the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan.   
 
It is important to note that in many cases the impact of the projects will not be captured for a number 
of years, given some of the projects will take 12-60 months to implement and complete. For example, 
the production of new owner housing units will not be completed until 2016. Even though CDBG funds 
are only expected to support the acquisition of the land, the performance indicator will not be 
achieved until the houses are fully constructed and qualifying households have purchased the homes.   
 
 

Figure 10: Summary of Specific Objectives (HUD Table 1C) 

Project Title Specific Objectives Sources of 
Funds Performance Indicators Year Target 

# Actual # 
Percent 

Completed 

SL-1 Availability/Accessibility of Living Environment  (Outcome/Objective) 

Street Improvements: 
Lake Oak Estates 

Improve quality of 
public improvement 

for lower income 
persons 

CDBG 

Number of people who 
will benefit from 
improved road 

2011 0 0 0% 

2012 126 0 0% 

2013 126 N/A N/A 
Multiyear Goal 126 0 0 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   36 

Project Title Specific Objectives Sources of 
Funds Performance Indicators Year Target # Actual # 

Percent 
Completed 

SL-1 Availability/Accessibility of Living Environment  (Outcome/Objective) 

Fair Housing Counseling 
Improve the availability 
of services for low/mod 

income persons 
CDBG 

Number of people with 
expanded access to 
service 

2011 N/A N/A N/A 

2012 35 7 20% 

2013 68 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 103 7 7% 

Family Support 
Services Social Work 
Services Expansion 

Improve the availability 
of services for low/mod 

income persons 

 
CDBG 

Number of people with 
expanded access to 
service 

2011 500 391 78%* 

2012 400 375 94%* 

2013 400 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 1300 766 59% 

 
Homeowner 
Rehabilitation:  
Plainview Estates 
 

Improve the quality of 
owner housing CDBG-R 

Number of households 
who will benefit 

2011 39 20 51%* 

2012 N/A N/A N/A 

2013 N/A N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 39 20 100% 

Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 

Improve the quality of 
owner housing CDBG 

Number of housing units 
rehabilitated 

2011 20 0 0% 
2012 8 7 88% 

2013 7 N/A N/A 
Multiyear Goal 35 7 20% 

DH-2 Affordability of Decent Housing  (Outcome/Objective) 

Owner Housing -
Production of New 
Units: Land Acquisition 

Owner Housing CDBG 
Number of housing units 
constructed 

2011 6 2 33% 

2012 6 0 0% 

2013 6 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 18 2 11% 

Homebuyer Assistance Owner Housing CDBG 
Number of households 
who will benefit 

2011 20 0 0% 

2012 15 1 6% 

2013 4 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 39 1 2% 

*The project is complete.   
 
 
 
The coding system used in the Outcome/Objective rows in the table above follows the numbering 
system established in the Community Planning and Development Outcome Performance Measurement 
System.  The outcome/objective numbers stand for the following: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   37 

Figure 11: Numbering System for Outcome and Objective Coding 

Objective 
Outcome 

Availability/Accessibility Affordability Sustainability 

Decent Housing DH-1 DH-2 DH-3 

Suitable Living Environment SL-1 SL-2 SL-3 

Economic Opportunity EO-1 EO-2 EO-3 

 
 

EXPENDITURES AND LEVERAGED RESOURCES FOR PROGRAM YEAR 
2012 
 
Overall Expenditures 

During PY12, spending occurred in six different projects. Of the funds available to the activities, 
$496,692.18 was spent, per HUD’s data management system called IDIS.  
 

Figure 12: CDBG PY12 Summary Financial Report from IDIS 

CDBG Program Year 2012 Summary Financial Report 

Carryover from PY11 $1,752,348.26 

PY12 CDBG Entitlement Grant $896,341 

Total CDBG Funds Available for PY12 $2,648,689.20 

PY12 Funds Committed $2,648,689.20 

PY12 Funds Expended $496,692.18 

Carryover to PY13 $2,151,997.10 

HUD Timeliness Ratio 2.4 

 

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   38 

EXPENDITURES PER PROJECT 
 
The following figure summarizes the budgeted funding, the expended funds and the percent expended 
for each of the projects. 
 

Figure 13:  Summary of PY12 Expenditures by Project 

Activities PY12 Budgeted Funding Available Expended 
during PY12 

Percent 
Expended 

PY12 Cap 
Percentages 

Production of New Owner Housing 
Units:  
Via land acquisition and infrastructure 
development  

Prior Year’s Funding: $4 
PY12: $0 $0 99.9% N/A 

Homeowner Rehabilitation: 
Minor home repair up to $24,999 
 

Prior Year’s Funding: $832,707.96 
PY12: $256,024 $146,143.82 13% N/A 

Homebuyer Assistance: 
Direct Homeownership Assistance 
through Down Payment Assistance and 
Shared Appreciation Gap Financing 

Prior Year’s Funding: $794,945 
PY12: $0 $39,599.00 5% N/A 

Street Improvements:  
Lake Oak Estates  

Prior Year’s Funding: $145,000 
PY12: $326,598 $72,072.26 15% N/A 

Public Services, Other:  
Family Support Services (FFS) Social 
Work Services Expansion –Travis 
County HHS/VS Program 

$106,000 $87,010.86 82% 10% 

Public Services, Other:  
Fair Housing Counseling $28,451 $15,535.00 55% 2% 

Administration & Planning:  
CDBG $179,268 $136,331.24 76% 16% 

 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   39 

TIMELY SPENDING OF FUNDS 
 
As part of the mandate from Congress, HUD is required to determine whether Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) grantees carry out their program in a timely manner. A grantee is 
considered to be timely, if 60 days prior to the end of the grantee’s program year, the balance in its 
line-of-credit does not exceed 1.5 times the annual grant. If the grantee exceeds the amount allowed 
at that 60-day mark, they are considered to be non-compliant. For Travis County, the timeliness test 
occurs every August. If the grantee fails to meet the timeliness requirements for two consecutive 
years, HUD can reduce the grant amount available for the next program year by the exact amount of 
the credit balance in excess of 1.5 times the annual grant. For the second year, the County is out of 
compliance with timeliness, with a ratio of 2.38, and was offered an informal consultation to discuss 
the factors that have contributed to its non-compliance.  On September 9, 2013, County Judge Sam 
Biscoe, Sherri Fleming, and Christy Moffett participated in a conference call with HUD Officials from 
the San Antonio Field Office and Washington, DC.  
 
The primary reasons the County did not meet its most recent timeliness test are related to the 
homebuyer assistance project that did not perform as expected – providing assistance to only one 
homebuyer, and a series of implementation struggles with the owner occupied home rehabilitation 
project.  Both projects are new programs for CDBG, funded with money dating back to 2008 to present.   
 
Both projects’ implementation schedules were set up to assist the County in achieving timeliness, 
however both projects encountered unforeseen delays. For the Homebuyer Assistance project, in April 
2013, eleven homebuyer applications were ready to close using FHA funding for the primary home 
loan, however the subrecipient was unsuccessful in acquiring FHA approval for the program. Assistance 
was provided to one homebuyer using a conventional loan. In August 2013, the County sent a letter to 
the non-profit notifying them of the intent to let the contract expire and close out procedures.  The 
contract should be closed out by November 30, 2013.   
 
The Home Rehabilitation program was ready for implementation in March 2013; however, the first 
round of site specific determinations was not ready until May 23rd.  Site specific environmental 
determinations were started in January 2013.  The County received some guidance from the Regional 
office about contaminants and toxins needing to be checked at the State and Federal level.  As a result 
of the guidance to check at the State level, the first house was not cleared until May 23, 2013.  HUD 
gave the CDBG office permission to stop checking at the State level on July 18, 2013.  Between May 23 
and July 18, CDBG staff cleared 7 houses for repair.  From July 19 – Aug 23, roughly one month, 19 
houses were cleared, a 271% increase.  At the close of the program year, repairs on seven houses are 
complete with an additional 11 underway and 4 more out for bid.  It is projected that the subrecipient 
will expend all funds in the contract by February, 2014.  
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   40 

On November 12, 2013, the County was notified that $54,391 would be removed from its PY13 
allocation resulting in the grant award changing from $909,925 to $855,534, a reduction of 5%.  Staff is 
working on a substantial amendment to the PY13 Action Plan to address the reduction.   
 
 
Leveraging Resources 

Although no matching requirements are mandated for CDBG, during the reporting period, Travis 
County was successful in using HUD’s CDBG funds to leverage additional funds from public sources.  
The following table summarizes the amount of dollars leveraged: 
 

Figure 14: PY12 Leveraged Resources 

Project/Activity  
Leveraged Partners Committed 

Leveraged Resources 
Spent during   

PY12 

Family Support Services Social 
Work Services Expansion 

 General Fund rent and 
utility assistance 

programs 
TBD $8,525.53 

State rent and utility 
assistance programs TBD $10,533.13 

Youth and Family 
Assessment Center 
(flexible funding) 

TBD $16,182.00 

Administration and Planning of 
CDBG 

Travis County General 
Fund $177,135 $137,804.67 

Total Leveraged Funding $173,045.33 

MANAGING THE PROCESS 
 
Comprehensive Planning 

The Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service (HHS/VS) Department has a Research 
and Planning (R&P) Division tasked with much of the comprehensive planning for the department, 
both internally and externally with community partners.  The R&P Division focuses on different issue 
areas including basic needs, workforce development, child and youth services (with particular 
emphasis on early childhood education), public health (particularly HIV/AIDS), behavioral health, and 
efforts to organize the community around support for the elderly and immigrants.  Additionally, the 
R&P Division provides information services to inform decision making in the HHS/VS Department and 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   41 

across the community.  These services include:  an annual report of community trends and statistics 
based on the American Community Survey, periodic surveys of community-based organizations, and 
focused research and analysis upon request. 
 
CDBG makes requests of the R&P Division for technical assistance, as needed, to assist with data 
collection, resource development, and planning in the areas related to housing, homelessness and 
community development.  This collaborative effort increases capacity and reduces duplication of 
planning efforts for the Department.   
 
During PY12, CDBG staff collaborated with R&P staff on data verification and review of the Travis 
County Snapshot from the American Community Survey, an annual summary of Travis County’s social, 
housing, and economic characteristics, based on the results from the U.S. Census Bureau’s American 
Community Survey.  Additionally, CDBG staff drafted portions relating to housing and homelessness for 
the Community Impact Report, an annual report that provides performance data, client data, and other 
information about the social service investments of the Travis County HHS/VS Department. 
 
Over the Program Year 2012, CDBG staff has also participated in the following comprehensive planning 
efforts: 
 
Homelessness 

During PY12, CDBG staff represented HHS/VS in the Ending Community Homelessness Coalition 
(ECHO).  This membership provided the opportunity to be involved in the issue area, to advocate for 
the homeless population found in the unincorporated areas, to identify service strategies, and to 
ensure identified pockets of homeless persons in the unincorporated areas are included in the annual 
homeless count. As part of ECHO's Education and Outreach Work Group, CDBG staff contributed to the 
planning of ECHO's annual Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week in November 2012.  CDBG also 
staff participated in the Independent Review Team for the Continuum of Care applications.  The County 
Executive of the HHS/VS Department was chair of ECHO’s Membership Council and the Finance 
Committee for the Permanent Supportive Housing. Finally, HHS social workers participated in the 
annual Point In time Count of the homeless population.   
 
Resource Development 

The Research and Planning Division has a staff person dedicated to monitoring and reviewing grant 
opportunities.  Over the last program year, CDBG and R&P staff kept one another informed about 
federal, State, and local funding streams and new funds available through various systems  
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   42 

Affordable Housing 

During PY12, staff participated in meetings with other regional entities to discuss more coordinated 
planning in the county as well as the five-county region.  The CDBG staff participated in drafting a 
scope of work and in the RFS process for the City of Austin’s Housing Market study.   
 
Opportunity Mapping 

CDBG staff participated in the steering committee for the update to the Opportunity Maps for the 5-
county region composed of Bastrop, Caldwell, Hays, Travis and Williamson counties.  The central 
premise of opportunity mapping is that residents of a metropolitan area are situated within an 
interconnected web of opportunities that shape their quality of life.  The maps use a variety of 
indicators relating to education, economics, transportation, health, and neighborhood quality, to show 
the level of opportunity to which people in different parts of the region have access. The first set of 
maps was created in 2007 and the updates with a final report were completed in early 2013. The 
initiative was led by the nonprofit Green Doors, and the maps were created by the Kirwan Institute.    
The completed maps will be used by a variety of stakeholders to help site projects and make other 
planning decisions.  
 
Analysis of Impediments 

Travis County contracted with the firm Mullin & Lonergan to undertake an AI for the County.  As part of 
the research for the AI, the consultants held two community forums, and conducted onsite interviews 
and focus groups with a wide variety of stakeholders, both internal and external to the County.  At the 
close of PY12, a draft of the AI is ready for presentation to Commissioners Court.  The presentation will 
take place on November 5, 2013 to be followed by a public comment period.   
 
Foreclosures  

During the Program Year, CDBG purchased county-wide foreclosure data.  This data was presented in 
the PY13 Action Plan.  CDBG anticipates continuing to work collaboratively through participatory 
research in this area to ensure a consistent message on the issue. 
 
Board, Commission and Association Involvement 

Staff from different divisions of the HHS/VS department, including CDBG and R&P, are currently 
involved in numerous boards, commissions, associations, and councils, not only to further the 
understanding of the relationship between the community and the needs of its most vulnerable 
residents, but also to be a resource to the community, offering data and analysis, grant-writing skills, 
contacts with influential businesses, community and government leaders, and knowledge of 
government-funded program opportunities. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   43 

 
 
Compliance with Certifications 

Travis County carried out all planned actions described in the HUD–approved Consolidated Plan, 
including: 
 
 Pursuing all resources indicated in the Consolidated Plan.  Resources include leveraged dollars for 

grant administration, homes built on acquired land, and public services. 
 Travis County provided requested certifications of consistency for HUD programs in a fair and 

impartial manner. 
 Travis County did not hinder the Consolidated Plan implementation through any action or willful 

inaction. 
 
Anti-Displacement and Relocation 

Consistent with the goals and objectives of 24 CFR Part 570.606, Travis County commits to making all 
reasonable efforts to ensure activities undertaken with federal funds will not cause unnecessary 
displacement or relocation of persons (families, individuals, businesses, nonprofit organizations and 
farms).  
 
Travis County’s policy on displacement, at present, is to not fund projects that displace persons.  Travis 
County did not demolish real property with PY12 funds.   The rehabilitation work that occurred was of 
a voluntary nature and conducted in such a manner that no one was displaced.  
 
Specific Activities 

HUD requires reporting on certain types of activities funded by CDBG.  Below is the list of responses to 
the required questions.   

• Low/Mod Job Activities: Travis County did not undertake any low/mod job activities during the 
reporting year.  

• Low/Mod Limited Clientele Activities: The Social Work Services Expansion and Fair Housing 
Counseling project is currently being implemented successfully. Please refer to the table title 
“Benefit to Low and Moderate Income Persons by Project” to see the breakdown of clients by 
income level. 

• Housing Rehabilitation: Travis County funded housing rehabilitation project during PY12 using 
CDBG funds. 
Seven units were rehabilitated with CDBG funds this year.  Please refer to the section “Project 2: 
Homeowner Rehabilitation” of this report for more detailed information.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   44 

• Neighborhood Revitalization Strategies: Travis County does not currently have any HUD-approved 
neighborhood revitalization strategy areas. 

 
Fiscal Related Items 

HUD requires reporting on certain types of fiscal-related items funded by CDBG.  Below is the list of 
responses to the required questions.   

• Program Income: Travis County did not receive any program income during the 2012 program year. 
• Prior Period Adjustments: Travis County did not have any prior period adjustments for the 2012 

program year. 
• Loans and Other Receivables:  Travis County retains a promissory note and deed of trust with 

Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc. on 29 lots related to the Gilbert Lane Land Acquisition project.  
This loan is in place to ensure that the required units are built per the subrecipient agreement.  No 
payments are required and no interest is accrued.   

• Travis County retains a promissory note and deed of trust for one Shared Appreciation Gap 
financing loan in the amount of $30,000, and one Downpayment Assistance loan in the amount of 
$3,930.58.  Both loans were made through the Homebuyer Assistance program to the same 
homebuyer.  No payments are required and no interest is accrued on either loan.  The Shared 
Appreciation loan has a thirty year term, to be repaid upon refinancing, sale or transfer of title of 
the home.  The Downpayment Assistance loan is forgivable over a five year term, or must be repaid 
on a pro rata schedule if refinancing, sale or transfer of title of the home occurs before the five 
years have elapsed. 

• Travis County retains a contract with seven homeowners for variable amounts for home 
rehabilitation.  The loan is forgivable over a five year term or must be repaid on a pro rata schedule 
if refinancing, sale or transfer of title of the home occurs before the five years have elapsed.     

• Lump Sum Agreements: Travis County did not use any lump sum agreements during the 2012 
program year. 
 

MONITORING 
 
As the lead agency for the development and implementation of the Consolidated Plan, the Travis 
County HHS&VS Department implements standard policies and procedures for monitoring CDBG 
programs.  These monitoring activities ensure compliance with program regulations and compliance 
with financial requirements. Federal guidelines include: OMB A-110, OMB A-122, 24 CFR Part 570.603 
(CDBG Labor Standards), 570.901-906 (CDBG) and the Davis Bacon Act and Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act (CDBG). 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   45 

HHS/VS provides contract administration for community development activities in conjunction with the 
Transportation and Natural Resources Department, including but not limited to contract negotiations, 
compliance monitoring, and payment and contract closeout.  
 
Frequency and Results of Monitoring Activity 

Sub-recipients 

Sub-recipient agreements will be used to conduct housing, community development and public service 
activities. The sub-recipient agreement will be the foundation for programmatic monitoring. Sub-
recipients will be monitored for programmatic compliance on-site or remotely in the following manner:  

1. All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by financial 
services and the Auditor’s Office.  

2. All new sub-recipients will be desk audited monthly and monitored semi-annually until no findings 
occur.  

3. After four consecutive semi-annual monitoring reports with no findings annual visits will occur.  
 
Financial monitoring will be completed as necessary and as directed by the sub-recipient fiscal 
performance and the external monitoring needs of the Travis County Auditor’s office. Programmatic 
and fiscal monitoring may not occur concurrently. 
 
Contractors 

Contractors may be used to provide some housing, community development and public services. 
Contractors submit periodic reimbursement requests that document and verify expenditures. The 
contract agreement will be used as the primary basis for monitoring. The following steps are an 
integral part of the monitoring process for each contract:  

1. On-site or remote reviews at an established periodic interval (prior to project commencement) will 
occur to ensure compliance with terms of the contract, HUD guidelines, state/local building and 
construction standards, and review of engineering plans and specifications.  

2. If a contractor is found to be out of compliance, a notice is sent stating their contractual obligation 
and required action. Failure to comply may result in loss of current and/or future contracts as well 
as a hold on any payments.  

3. All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by financial 
services and the Auditor’s Office.  

 
 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   46 

Internal Travis County Departments 

For CDBG funded projects implemented by Travis County Departments, the CDBG office has instituted 
controls at key points of the project implementation process to ensure program compliance.  The 
CDBG office: 

 Meets with each project manager and relevant project-related staff at regular intervals throughout 
the implementation period to review project status, implementation, effectiveness of programs, 
and compliance issues. 

 Reviews any request for purchase prior to HHS/VS department approval. 
 Reviews all Request for Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Request for Services, Invitations for 

BID and contracts prior to the release by the Purchasing Department.  
 Requests technical assistance from HUD, as needed, on behalf of each project. 
 Reviews the results of project environmental reviews, and submits the appropriate paperwork to 

HUD. 
 Verifies and documents target area, and service area eligibility, monitoring documentation on a 

quarterly basis.  
 Reviews CDBG project expenditures on a monthly basis before draw-downs are made.   
 
CDBG staff completed a variety of monitoring tasks for each project.   
 
Street Improvements: Lake Oak Estates 

 Kept in communication with the project manager. 
 Tracked invoices determine how long they were taking to get through the system.     
 Reviewed environmental documents as needed.   
 Reviewed draws prior to requesting reimbursement from IDIS. 

 
Land Acquisition Project with Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc. (AHFH) 

 Staff requested updated construction schedule.   
 No houses were started during the year so no eligibility files were checked.   
 Single Audit was reviewed.   
 Requested an updated insurance certificate. 
 Viewed files prior to HUD audit to ensure they were in order.   
 
Public Services, Other: Family Support Services Social Work Services Expansion 

 Provided technical assistance and worked out service delivery issues as needed throughout the 
year. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   47 

 A new Project Manager began oversight of the program so training of the program occurred to get 
her up to speed.   

 Reviewed quarterly performance reports. 
 Reviewed almost social work files at the beginning of PY12 as a continuation of PY11 file review.  .  

Of the files reviewed, no files were determined ineligible.   
 

Homebuyer Assistance Program:  Down Payment Assistance and Shared Appreciation Gap Financing 

 From October to December 2012, CDBG staff held both on site meetings with the subrecipient and 
conference calls on at least a monthly basis to review program status and respond to technical 
assistance questions during the start-up phase of the project; 

 CDBG staff reviewed program brochures and provided revisions to ensure that the program was 
being accurately marketed;  

 During March and April 2013, CDBG staff worked with the subrecipient to attempt to resolve issues 
relating to acquiring FHA approval for the program; 

 CDBG staff reviewed the one program client file to confirm that all program guidelines were being 
met prior to the closing of a down payment loan and a shared appreciation loan;  

 From May to September 2013, CDBG staff held weekly conference calls with the subrecipient to 
receive status reports on the program and respond to any technical assistance questions; 

 In June 2013, CDBG staff conducted an onsite monitoring visit with the subrecipient and reviewed 
all program and client files; CDBG staff provided guidance on client file documentation and 
organization; 

 In June 2013, the County Auditor’s office had multiple meetings with the subrecipient to review 
financial files and invoicing procedures; the Auditor’s office provided technical assistance and 
created worksheets for the subrecipient.   

 
Home Rehabilitation Project 

 Created a subrecipient manual to help with program compliance. 
 Worked collaboratively to come up with program forms and reports.   
 Completed several rounds of income, assets and other programmatic requirements training. 
 Reviewed first sets of eligibility completed and provided feedback. 
 CDBG Manager meets with each client to sign rehabilitation contract at the preconstruction 

meeting to ensure program compliance and comprehension of forgivable loan.   
 Responded to technical assistance questions as needed.  
 
Fair Housing Project 

 Created a subrecipient manual to help with program compliance. 
 Met with subrecipient to discuss documentation needed for billing. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   48 

 Responded to technical assistance questions as necessary. 
 

Results of Monitoring Efforts  

 CDBG staff provided feedback on files that needed to have work done.   
 No findings were made. 
 CDBG staff provided training as needed to address capacity issues. 
 Ended with one program implementation being unsuccessful – Home Buyer Assistance Program.  

As we have looked at other home buyer assistance programs locally and nationwide, several 
programs have struggled to be successful; therefore, it is likely the current housing and credit 
market greatly affects the success of these types of programs.   

 

INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURE AND COORDINATION 
 
Effective implementation of the PY12 Action Plan involved a variety of key stakeholders.  Coordination 
and collaboration within the Travis County departments and between agencies was instrumental in 
meeting community needs effectively.  The departments within Travis County involved in the 
implementation of projects are described below. 
 
Health and Human Services & Veterans Service Department 

The HHS/VS Department is the lead county agency responsible for the administration of the County’s 
CDBG funding.  This Department has the primary responsibility of assessing community needs, 
developing the Consolidated Plan and annual Action Plans, managing project activities in conjunction 
with other county departments and community partners, administering the finances, and monitoring 
and reporting.  The CDBG office is located in the Office of the County Executive within HHS/VS.  The 
Department reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court for oversight authority. 
 
The CDBG office works with the Research and Planning Division (R&P) within HHS/VS in the areas of 
community planning, data collection, and resource development.  The CDBG office will continue to 
keep R&P informed about HUD funding streams and continue to work collaboratively identifying and 
sharing relevant data to ensure a consistent message on emerging issues such as changing housing 
needs and foreclosure.   
 
Additionally, the Family Support Services (FSS) Division of HHS/VS is the project manager for a CDBG 
public service project.  FSS also manages the seven Travis County Community Centers which provide a 
key access point for the public to access CDBG information. The CDBG office works closely with the 
Division to ensure the public’s access to CDBG documents and encourage outreach and public 
engagement through the Centers. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   49 

 
Travis County Commissioners Court 

The Commissioners Court is made up of four elected commissioners, one to represent each county 
precinct, and the County Judge who serves as the presiding officer. As a group, the Commissioners and 
County Judge are the chief policy-making and governing body of the county government. The 
Commissioner’s Court makes all final decisions about CDBG fund allocations. 
 
Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

The Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) and the CDBG office work closely to 
coordinate environmental review functions, project planning, project implementation and GIS 
mapping. Additionally, over the last year, TNR’s planning division and CDBG staff have begun to work 
more collaboratively to ensure consistent messaging regarding housing, transportation and community 
development.   TNR and CDBG employees have been trained in HUD environmental regulations.  This 
cross training of both departments allows for quality review and peer consultation.  Finally, the CDBG 
office and the CDBG funded Senior Engineer coordinate the preparation of project scopes, eligibility, 
cost estimates, and project design. The Senior Engineer also plays an active role in the implementation 
of CDBG & CDBG-R projects that are managed by TNR such as the street improvement projects for Lake 
Oak Estates and the Plain View Estates water connection project. 
 
County Attorney’s Office 

The County Attorney is an elected official and the County Attorney’s Office creates and reviews legal 
agreements as well as provides legal advice and consultation for the Department.  They have created 
templates to assist with CDBG procurement actions, related consultant services, construction 
documents, and templates for sub-recipient agreements.   
 
Purchasing Office 

The Purchasing Office manages the CDBG procurement processes for commodities, professional 
services and construction. Expertise in the area of federal standards has been created within the 
Office.  The Office ensures compliance with required labor standards and submits related reports to 
the CDBG office. The Purchasing Office reports to the Purchasing Board, which was established by the 
Travis County Commissioner’s Court.    
 
Coordination  

The Travis County CDBG office anticipates coordinating with a variety of local nonprofits and 
governmental entities activities related to grant management and community planning. The following 
list provides some examples of the type of engagements the CDBG office built during PY11:  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   50 

• Partnerships with local Community Housing and Development Organizations (CHDOs), nonprofits, 
and other community development and housing providers to explore options for community 
development and public service projects and leverage other federal, state, local and private 
funding.  

• Coordination of planning efforts with the Travis County Housing Authority and Travis County 
Housing Finance Corporation for the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice. 

• Engagement of other municipalities in Travis County for future collaboration in the areas of 
community development and housing activities.  

• Coordination of planning efforts with different entities in the Austin metropolitan region such as of 
the City of Austin and other cities in the county, for areas such as combining future efforts in the 
development of documents such as comprehensive Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 
and a comprehensive Housing Market Study for the county/region.  

• Consultation with other entitlement counties and cities to exchange models for CDBG grant 
management and project implementation;  

 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 
 
Travis County implements a citizen participation process based upon 24 CFR Part 91.105 and the 
Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) approved by Travis County Commissioners Court on April 11, 2006 and 
it was amended on July 20, 2010.  The approved CPP identifies the strategies and structure to fully 
engage the community.   
 
PY 2013 Action Plan 

During the month of February 2013, the County held five public hearings specifically to solicit input for 
the use of CDBG funds.  In addition, during the month of July, Travis County held two public hearings 
and a 30-day public comment period to solicit final comment on the proposed uses of CDBG funds.  For 
a detailed version of the public participation activities and comments received please refer to the PY13 
Action Plan. 
 
PY12 CAPER 

During the week of November 4th, 2013, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing the 
availability of the PY 2012 CAPER, the public comment period and the public hearing at Travis County 
Commissioners Court.  The notice appeared in several area newspapers that target the unincorporated 
areas of Travis County.  A copy of the notice may be found in Appendix B in English (Attachment A) and 
Spanish (Attachment B).  Public notices were also posted at the seven Travis County Community 
Centers, on the Travis County Website, Facebook and Twitter pages.  Email and postal mail notices 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   51 

were provided to people who attended public hearings previously or who requested to be on the 
notification list. 
 
Travis County HHS/VS drafted the CAPER and presented it to the Travis County Commissioners Court 
on November 19, 2013.  After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the CAPER will be 
posted for public review and written comments prior to approval by the Travis County Commissioners 
Court.   
 
The comment period will be held from November 25, 2013 to December 9, 2013.  Additionally, a public 
hearing will be held at Travis County Commissioners Court on December 3, 2013.   The public will have 
the opportunity to submit comments on the CAPER in writing via email, postal mail, or verbally at the 
public hearing. The draft CAPER was posted on the Travis County CDBG website 
(www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG), and copies of the full document were available for review at the seven 
Travis County Community Centers.   
 
Summary of Citizen Comments on the CAPER 

Comments will be added to the final draft of the CAPER.  
 
Response to Comments 

Responses will be added to the final draft of the CAPER.  
 

EVALUATION OF THE CDBG PROGRAM 
 
Strengths  

During the 2012 Program Year, the CDBG program underwent its second financial and programmatic 
monitoring review by HUD, with the result of no findings and no return of funds for ineligible use.  
 
Staff continued to work with Departments, evaluate systems, identify weaknesses and work on 
improvements to address areas of concern.   The program excels in providing quality planning and 
detailed program guidance.  This year, staff spent a large amount of time giving technical assistance to 
struggling programs.   
 
Additionally, each County Department involved with CDBG projects continues to be extremely 
cooperative in communicating status of projects, issues, challenges and resolutions to problems.  This 
level of cooperation allows compliance to be more easily achieved.   
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG


PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                 Section I :: General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   52 

In PY 12, the program also made progress in Fair Housing. A contract was put in place with Austin 
Tenants Council, to provide fair housing counseling to residents of the unincorporated areas and 
trainings were provided for HHS/VS employees.   
 
Challenges   

Homebuyer Assistance 
CDBG ended with one program’s implementation being unsuccessful – Homebuyer Assistance 
Program.  As we have looked at other home buyer assistance programs locally and nationwide, several 
programs have struggled to be successful; therefore, it is likely the current housing and credit market 
greatly affects the success of these types of programs.  The program would need to be repackaged and 
funded at a lesser level in the future.   
 
Timeliness 
The County continues to struggle with timely, or slow spending.  The successful implementation of the 
home rehabilitation and fair housing programs concludes start-up of all existing projects for the 
program.  Moving forward over the next few program years, the strategy will be to limit activities only 
to the types of projects that were undertaken in the first seven years of the program. This will be key in 
allowing the program to steadily implement projects and expend funds.  The home rehabilitation 
program has the capacity to spend over $100,000 a month which should prove helpful in achieving 
timeliness in the future.   
 
Goals for Improvement                          

Staff has identified the following goals for improvement: 

1. Continue to look for training opportunities to support knowledge gain to increase grant 
management skills and CDBG knowledge for County staff. 

2. Collaborate with County staff to work through issues with the financial system. 
3. Create workflows that allow ample time for County processes and reduce project implementation 

delays.   
4. Request prioritization of CDBG projects with other Departments to help with timeliness. 
5. Provide better training for subrecipients and contractors to increase compliance. 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   53 

 

 
 
 

HOUSING AND SERVICES FOR THE HOMELESS 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 HOUSING INVESTMENTS 
 
The tables below summarize the number of homeowner and renter households at various income 
levels in unincorporated Travis County with housing problems, and the assistance goals of the CDBG 
program over the planning period.   In PY12, a total of seven households received assistance through 
the Home Rehabilitation Project, and one household through the Homebuyer Assistance Program, 
please refer to the project descriptions above for additional information.   
 
 

Figure 15: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Owner Households 

 Percent of 
Households 

Number of 
Households* 

Priority 
Need 

Carryover 
from 

previous 
years 

Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 

Goal Actual Goal Actual Goal Actual 

Very Low 
Income 

Household 
84% 1,782 High 10 3 0 3 4 3 TBD 

Low Income 
Household 72% 1,618 High 27 3 1 3 2 3 TBD 

Moderate 
Income 

Household 
56% 2,451 Medium 52 1 1 6 2 1 TBD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   54 

 
 
 

Figure 16: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Renter Households 

 
 

 
Percent of 

Households 

 
Number of 

Households* 

Priority 
Need 

Goals 

Carryover 
from previous 

years 
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Very Low 
Income 

Household 
85% 5,736 Medium 0 0 0 0 

Low Income 
Household 86% 4,374 Medium 0 0 0 0 

Moderate 
Income 

Household 
40% 2,706 Low 0 0 0 0 

*The number of households with a housing need was calculated based on the total number of households with a housing problem (see 
figure 3.23 in section 3 of the 2011-2013 Con-Plan.)  Because this number was only available for all of Travis County, in order to estimate 
the need for the unincorporated areas alone, the total number of renter households with a housing problem at each income level was 
multiplied by the approximate percentage of population in Travis County that lives in the unincorporated area (17 percent.)    
 

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   55 

OVERVIEW OF HOUSING SERVICES SUPPORTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY 
 
In addition to CDBG, Travis County addresses the housing needs of its residents through diverse 
strategies that include the support of homeless and emergency shelters; transitional, public, assisted, 
and rental housing; first-time homebuyer programs and owner-occupied assistance programs. These 
services are either directly delivered by county departments, affiliate entities or by contracted not-for-
profit agencies. The following chart is a visual representation of the different departments/affiliate 
entities of the County working on a variety of housing services. 
 

 
 
 
Travis County HHS/VS Housing Services 

The Travis County Housing Services Division performs weatherization and home repairs on houses 
occupied by county residents to improve energy efficiency, the physical living conditions, and safety in 
these homes. Funding for services comes from the Texas Department of Housing and Community 
Affairs, and the Travis County General Fund.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Figure 17: Travis County Departments Providing Housing Services 

Health and Human Services & 
Veteran Services Department  

Travis County  
Housing Finance 

Corporation  

Housing Authority of 
Travis County  

Community 
Services – 

Housing Division 

CDBG 
Program  

Family 
Support 
Services  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   56 

In the reporting period, a total of 303 county residents received energy saving and home repair 
assistance.  The assistance was distributed in the following manner:1  

 183 low-income homeowners and renters were helped to meet energy savings through the state-
funded Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) and a state-funded grant from the 
Department of Energy. 

 120 low-income homeowners were assisted with home repair through General Fund dollars. 
 
Travis County HHS/VS Family Support Services Division 

The Family Support Services (FSS) Division provides rent and mortgage assistance for 30-day housing 
stabilization as well as utility assistance. Funding for services comes from the Travis County General 
Fund, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Comprehensive Energy Assistance 
Program and a variety of local electric and gas utility providers.  
 
Other Travis County HHS/VS Divisions 

Other HHS/VS Divisions provide emergency rent or utility assistance on a smaller scale than FSS.  These 
dollars are usually a part of a comprehensive case management program with strategic use of funds for 
families in need. 
 
Travis County Housing Finance Corporation  

Through the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (TCHFC), Travis County is engaged in a number 
of efforts to foster and maintain affordable housing. The Corporation provides single-family home 
ownership (including down-payment assistance) opportunities to first-time homebuyers who meet 
certain income requirements. The Corporation also issues tax-exempt bonds to finance the 
construction or acquisition of multi-family apartments that must provide rental units to certain low and 
moderate-income families.  
 
TCHFC continues to collaborate with FSS to implement a Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) 
program funded through the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs to provide rental 
assistance and case management for up to 24 months for certain low income households.  
 
Twenty nine households received Tenant Based Rental Assistance during the past year.  $164,044.89 
has been spent for rent and utilities assistance.   
 

                                           
1 Please note that some individuals may be counted in multiple categories due to receipt of assistance from any combination of these 
programs. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   57 

TCHFC assisted in the acquisition and rehabilitation of a large affordable apartment complex 
(Champions Crossing Apartments owned by a nonprofit housing entity) through a bond issue.  The 
bond issue allowed for the apartments to be purchased and improved, as well as providing affordable 
housing for Travis County citizens. 
 
The TCHFC Board approved the issuance of a $1.8 million loan to a developer applying for low income 
housing tax credits (LIHTC) for a family property in northwest Travis County, a submarket of the ETJ 
with very little affordable housing. The loan program satisfies TDHCA’s requirements for local 
government participation in LIHTC developments, and allowed Travis County to participate more 
directly in addressing the need for workforce housing in the greater County area. The loan has a term 
of five years and a fixed 3% interest rate per the State’s guidelines. 
 
The Housing Authority of Travis County 

The Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) manages three public housing sites, a Section 8 Housing 
Choice Voucher Program and, three Shelter Plus Care Projects.  
 
The three public housing sites have a total of 105 housing units and are located within the City of 
Austin. Additionally, HATC manages 33 units of Senior Housing in Manor, and 16 duplex units in Del 
Valle. The Housing Authority's affiliated entity, Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, is the general 
partner in three tax credit multifamily properties, including 208 units of Senior Housing in Pflugerville, 
70 units of senior housing in Austin, and a 192 unit family property in Austin. The Shelter Plus Care 
projects provide rental assistance for homeless people with chronic disabilities in the Austin-Travis 
County area. The program utilizes integrated rental housing and flexible and intensive support services 
to promote community tenure and independence.  
 
In the City of Austin and the unincorporated areas, HATC administers the Section 8 Housing Choice 
Voucher Program, assisting very low income, disabled and elderly families or individuals. During the 
program year, HATC set aside 22 vouchers for homeless individuals who will receive services through 
Travis County Criminal Justice planning received from the Department of Justice to create more 
Permanent Supportive Housing opportunities.   
 
The CDBG program will continue to support HATC’s efforts to provide homeownership and affordable 
housing opportunities to low-income residents. CDBG staff has worked with HATC staff to locate sites 
in the unincorporated areas that are appropriate for rehabilitation or development. Though no sites 
have been identified yet, staff will continue to work collaboratively to find opportunities to work 
together.  
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   58 

BARRIERS TO AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 
In the PY11 – PY13 Consolidated Plan, eight barriers to affordable housing were outlined. These 
barriers were identified through the needs assessment, housing market analysis, provider forum and 
surveys, consultations and public hearings. 
 
Lack of Funding for Affordable Housing  

Funding for affordable housing requires many different products to achieve the desired affordability  
levels needed in a community. Funding mechanisms including the HOME Investment Program, tax  
credits, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Federal Housing Administration loans, and  
down-payment assistance – just to name a few – are key to increasing the affordable housing stock.  
Currently, Travis County does not receive a HOME formula allocation, which is a major funding source 
for many entitlement communities to develop affordable housing. The past federal budget cycles 
resulted in major cuts to programming for many entitlement communities across the country, due to 
overall reduced funding of the CDBG and HOME programs, as well as reductions to specific 
jurisdictions’ allocations based on the new 2010 Census data.  
 
As part of the ongoing negotiations over spending cuts at the federal level, it is possible that the 
amount of money allocated to the CDBG and HOME programs will be decreased again in the next 
federal budget, resulting in the City of Austin and Travis County having less money available for 
affordable housing and other support activities. With a rapidly growing population in Travis County, an 
ever-growing demand for affordable rental units, and an upward trend in home prices, it is likely that 
affordable housing developers and public entities will face significant challenges in meeting the 
region’s need for affordable housing in the coming years.  The County advocates for increased federal 
funding for affordable housing development.   
 

Land Costs  

Land values in rural Travis County have steadily increased over the past decade.  In western Travis 
County land values remain strong enough to discourage the development of much-needed affordable 
housing.  
 
Using CDBG funds the County acquired a parcel of land for the development of affordable housing.  
Two houses are complete and occupied with the remaining 29 houses scheduled for completion by 
2015. 
 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   59 

Tight Credit Market  

In the wake of the recession and collapse of the housing market, banks have significantly tightened 
credit requirements. While these tighter requirements were put in place to correct sub-prime lending 
practices that contributed to the foreclosure crisis, they also make it more difficult for some qualified 
buyers—particularly lower income homebuyers—to purchase a home or refinance an existing loan. 
This credit market also impacts a developer’s ability to borrow funds to create rental housing.  
 
During the reporting period, the County funded a Homebuyer Assistance Program to provide down 
payment and shared appreciation loans to assist qualifying homebuyers.  One homebuyer accessed the 
program in PY12. Due to a variety of factors the program will not be continued, for more information 
please refer to the status updates for Project 4, above.   
 
Building Codes, Zoning Provisions, Growth Restrictions and Fees  

Currently, Travis County does not have any building codes, zoning provisions or growth restrictions in 
the unincorporated areas. This is largely a function of state statutes that place significant limits on the 
authority of counties to regulate or restrict development. While less restrictions, codes and provisions 
initially increase affordable development, it also increases the likelihood for substandard housing and 
other unsuitable living conditions throughout the unincorporated areas.  
 
During the reporting period, no changes were made however the County now collects and maintains 
the inspection reports for new subdivisions for those living in the unincorporated areas.   
 
Environmental Regulations  

Several state and federal regulations exist to protect the environment including the Endangered 
Species Act, the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System and the Wetland regulations. Texas 
rules include regulations for the installation of septic systems and for development over the Edwards 
Aquifer. These regulations may increase costs for development, affecting affordability especially in the 
Western parts of Travis County where endangered species habitat and the Edward Aquifer are located.  
 
During the reporting period, no actions were taken. 
 
Other factors affecting affordability 

Though housing affordability is traditionally evaluated by the percentage of income required for 
housing costs, policy makers and planners are increasingly considering the impact that housing location 
has on the overall affordability for a household. This is a particularly useful framework for considering 
affordability in the unincorporated areas of Travis County, where housing prices may be lower but 
other factors may be considerably more expensive.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   60 

 

• Transportation  
Transportation costs are a major component of household expenditures. Residents of the 
unincorporated areas generally must travel farther for work, school and shopping, and have less 
access to public transit options. As a result, it is likely that residents of the unincorporated areas 
have higher transportation costs than residents of more densely developed urban neighborhoods.  

• Infrastructure  
Many parts of the unincorporated areas lack existing water and wastewater infrastructure and/or 
maintained. The costs of installing necessary infrastructure would make a property unaffordable to 
an individual or an affordable housing nonprofit developer.  

• Utility Costs  
The cost of utilities in the unincorporated areas varies, depending on the provider of the service in 
a given area. Based on input received through the social work program and resident engagement, 
monthly utility bills often represent a burden to very low-income households.  

 
During the program year, the public service project referred clients to utility assistance programs, and 
infrastructure was improved through the use of grant funds.  Additionally, the Department made 
strategic investments with CARTS to improve access to job centers for areas in the Eastern part of the 
County.   
 

 
IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE 
 
HUD has a commitment to eliminate racial and ethnic segregation, physical and other barriers to 
persons with disabilities, and other discriminatory practices in the provision of housing. HUD extends 
the responsibility of affirmatively furthering fair housing to local jurisdictions through a variety of 
regulations and program requirements.  
 
As an entitlement county receiving CDBG funds from HUD, Travis County must fulfill its fair housing 
responsibilities by developing an Analysis of Impediments (AI) to Fair Housing Choice and by taking 
actions to overcome the identified impediments. Given the County’s limited history administering the 
grant (since October 2006), the complexities of conducting a thorough analysis, and the limited staff 
resources, the CDBG office of Travis County developed a preliminary analysis to lay the foundation for 
a more comprehensive analysis to be conducted by a consultant.  
 
The City of Austin conducted an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice, published in February, 
2005. Since much of the analysis conducted by the city used county level data, the impediments 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   61 

identified in this analysis can be expected to be true for other areas of the county, including the 
unincorporated areas. The identified impediments are the following: 

• Lack of accessible housing to meet the need of the disabled community throughout the county  

• Lack of affordable housing  

• Discrimination of minorities in housing rental and sales market  

• Misconception by property managers concerning family occupancy standards  

• Predatory lending practices  

• Disparity in lending practices  

• Failure of mortgage lenders to offer products and services to very low income and minority census 
tracts people  

• Insufficient financial literacy education  
• Insufficient income to afford housing  
 
In addition to the City of Austin’s study, the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan allowed the County to lay the 
foundation for a robust AI with the key issues identified in the unincorporated areas which include 
population shifts, foreclosures, and lack of housing for specific populations. 
 
In PY11, Travis County contracted with the firm Mullin & Lonergan with General Fund dollars totaling 
over $60,000 to undertake an AI for the County.  As part of the research for the AI, the consultants 
held two community forums, as well as on site interviews and focus groups with a wide variety of 
stakeholders, both internal and external to the County.  At close of program year, the consultants the 
public comment draft of the AI has been completed.  The draft was presented to the Commissioners 
Court on November 5, 2013, with a public comment period to follow.   
 
During PY12, all CDBG staff participated in a fair housing training  conducted by the Austin Tenant’s 
Council.  The CDBG funded Social Work project was cited by the AI consultant as a best practice for 
extending services into underserved areas, thereby furthering fair housing goals.   CDBG staff 
completed fair housing advocacy at the Department and community level that included attending 
meetings, providing tours and executing contracts with specific performance measures, with the aim of  
expanding access in the unincorporated areas.  
 
Travis County Social Service Contracts in the amount of $XX* went towards legal aid and tenants’ 
council services to provide fair housing resources for a total of 9,354 clients in the 2012 program year.2  

                                           
2Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   62 

Literacy / Workforce Development / Job Training3 

Through Social Service contracts, Travis County funds nonprofits that provide literacy and workforce 
education services throughout the county.  As this issue closely aligns with CDBG’s current service area 
priorities, this is the first year that the CDBG office has decided to include more detailed information 
on these services within the CAPER.4 Travis County Social Service Contracts in the amount of $XX* 
went towards literacy, job training and workforce development programs to provide employment 
resources for a total of 22,869 clients in the 2012 program year. Of these clients, approximately 1,451 
were enrolled in job training programs.5 

 
Equality of Access to Services 

In the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan, CDBG established that access to a variety of services were key in 
restricting fair housing choice.  Due to the proximity to services, often times people living in the 
unincorporated areas access services less frequently than those living in the urban core.  This may 
occur for a variety of reasons, however, to provide the best access possible, the Department funds the  
CDBG Social Work Expansion Program.  During the program year, a program design occurred, which 
increased funding, to allow for the equivalent of 1.5 FTEs, thereby expanding both the geographical 
range and increasing the number of residents in the unincorporated areas that were able to be served 
by the program. The difference in the amount and geographical location of clients served by the 
program is shown in the map below.  Additionally, an investment of $50,000 to expand the homeless 
point in time counting in the outlying areas as well as homelessness awareness activities was made as 
well as a $6,000 investment to participate in Opportunity Mapping for further examine equity and 
opportunity.    
 
Food Deserts/Food Poverty 

Through Social Service contracts, Travis County funds nonprofits that provide meal services throughout 
the county to increase access. Travis County Social Service Contracts in the amount of $XX* went 
towards literacy, job training and workforce development programs, and a total of 6,211,734 meal 
equivalents were provided in the 2012 program year.6  

                                                                                                                                                  
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp 
*This number was unavailable at time of report drafting, it will be added to the final draft.   
3 Ibid. 
4 Due to changes in funding priorities for social service contracts throughout fiscal year 2011-2012 some numbers may not accurately 
reflect the exact number of clients served based on inconsistent reporting requirements. 
5 Ibid. 
*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   
6 Due to the nature of this cluster of service providers, some of the agencies within this category overlap in providing meal equivalents.  
Therefore client numbers may appear higher than they actually are. 
*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX          Page    |   63 

HOMELESSNESS  
 

Planning Efforts to End Homelessness 

Travis County is a member of the Ending Chronic Homelessness (ECHO) Coalition whose mission is to 
identify specific strategies and oversee ongoing planning and implementation of a plan to end chronic 
homelessness in Austin and Travis County. The coalition is comprised of four committees or work 
groups: Housing, Continuum of Care (CoC), Outreach and Education, Data, and the 100,000 Homes 
Campaign. These committees in turn have subcommittees. Regular monthly meetings for each 
committee/subcommittee are held, and plenary meetings for all ECHO members are held quarterly.   
  
Travis County CDBG staff joined ECHO’s Planning and Evaluation Committee during PY07. In PY11, 
Travis County granted ECHO $50,000 to provide administrative and operating support to the newly 
formed nonprofit to administer homelessness prevention services within the County.  Since then 
County staff have participated in a number of subcommittees including the annual Point-in Time-
Count, and the Independent Review Team that reviews and ranks CoC applications and provides 
feedback to contracting agencies as well as the Housing Committee and Membership Council. Refer to 
the section on HUD Continuum of CARE (CoC) Funding for further details on CoC. 
 
Homeless Services7   

During the 2012 program year, Travis County did not target the use of CDBG funds toward homeless 
efforts.  However, Travis County invested $XX* in general fund dollars via contracts with social service 
providers targeting the homeless persons in conjunction with the Austin/Travis County ESG grant 
administration and the Austin/Travis County Plan to End Chronic Homelessness.  Services provided 
include: 

• 1,113 unduplicated clients received case management 
• 56  unduplicated clients received supportive housing  
• 4,165 adults and children received shelter 
• 138 adults and children were placed in transitional housing  
• 117,212 bed/nights were offered for emergency shelter. 
 

                                           
7 Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp 
*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   64 

Homelessness Prevention 

A variety of homelessness prevention efforts are made through the Travis County General Fund and 
other grant sources.  HHS/VS invests funds through its Family Support Services Division (FSS) to address 
housing stability issues including rent, mortgage and utility assistance.  During the reporting period, FSS 
provided over $ XX*8 of General Fund and grant assistance dollars to provide: 

 XX* individuals with emergency rent/mortgage payments to stabilize housing for 30 days. 
 XX* individuals with utilities to resolve an energy crisis and maintain housing. 
 
HHS/VS invests $ XX* through social service contracts focusing on housing stability.  Services provided 
include: 

 4,327 unduplicated clients received homelessness prevention services; 
 89,992 hot meals provided.   

 
HUD Continuum of CARE (CoC) Funding 

Continuum of Care is a funding mechanism by which HUD awards through a national competition 
grants for the Supportive Housing Program (SHP), Shelter Plus Care (S+C) and the Section 8 Moderate 
Rehabilitation Single-Room Occupancy (SRO) Program to states, localities and nonprofit organizations.  
 
The SHP program provides funding for the development of transitional housing for homeless 
individuals with disabilities. The S+C program provides rental assistance for homeless people with 
chronic disabilities (usually severe mental illness, HIV/AIDS, and chronic drug and/or alcohol 
dependency). All grantees are required to match their federal funding for rental assistance with equal 
funding for supportive services. The SRO program provides project-based rent subsidies for occupants 
of single-room occupancy facilities that have undergone moderate rehabilitation. 
 
The Austin/Travis County received approximately $ 5.4 million in HUD Continuum of Care (CoC) 
funding. Part of the funding will focus on projects that qualify as part of the SHP program while the 
other part will target projects under the S+C programs. Additionally, the CoC received a Samaritan 
bonus to increase funds for permanent supportive housing.   
 

HOME/ AMERICAN DREAM DOWN PAYMENT INITIATIVE (ADDI) 
 
Travis County does not receive HOME or ADDI funds at this time.   
 

                                           
* At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                    Section II :: Housing and Services for the Homeless 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   65 

EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT  
 
Travis County does not receive Emergency Shelter Grant funds at this time.   
 

ADDRESSING “WORST CASE” HOUSING NEEDS  
 
Addressing the housing needs of persons with disabilities and households who live at or below 50% of 
the Median Family Income (MFI) is critical to ensuring a viable community.  HUD defines households 
with worst case needs as unassisted renters with incomes below 50% of the local area median 
incomes, who pay more than half of their income for housing or live in severely substandard housing.   
 
CDBG Efforts 

CDBG has funded home rehabilitation, homebuyer assistance and land acquisition to support 
affordable housing development to reduce the cost burden for households at or below 80% MFI.  
During PY12, seven households received assistance through the CDBG Home Rehabilitation program, 
one households received assistance through the Homebuyer Assistance Program.   
 
Travis County Efforts   

The County addresses worst case housing needs in a variety of ways including targeted investments to 
low income persons. The Travis County Housing Services performs weatherization and home repairs on 
houses occupied by county residents to improve energy efficiency, the physical living conditions, and 
safety in these homes.  During PY12 a total of 303 county residents received energy saving 
weatherization and emergency repair assistance.   
 

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   66 

 

 

NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AND OTHER ACTIONS 
 

 
 

 
 

NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENTS 
 
Non-Housing Community Development projects include infrastructure, public facilities and public 
service projects. Out of these three categories Travis County identified infrastructure and community 
services as high priorities for the 2011-2013 Consolidated Planning period. The table below 
summarizes the non-housing community development gaps in funding, as well as the assistance goals 
of the CDBG program over the planning period.     
 

Figure 18: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Owner Households 

 Needs Gap 
Priority 
Need 

Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 

Goal Actual Goal Actual Goal Actual 

Infrastructure $26,000,000 $26,000,000 High $145,000 $54,193 $280,000 $72,072 $380,000 TBD 

Community  
Services* $3,000,000 $3,000,000 High $118,500 $89,469 $118,500 $102,546 $118,500 TBD 

Public 
Buildings & 

Facilities 
$15,000,000 $15,000,000 Medium $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 TBD 

Business & 
Jobs $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Medium $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 TBD 

 
 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   67 

 
OVERVIEW OF TRAVIS COUNTY CDBG INVESTMENTS IN COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
The following table outlines the total amount of CDBG funding committed throughout the program’s 
history to infrastructure, community service, public buildings and facilities, business and job.  For 
actual expenditures of current projects please refer to the specific project descriptions above, for 
historical expenditures please consult prior year’s CAPERs9.    
 

Figure 19: Overview of Travis County CDBG Investment in Community Development   

Community Development Needs/Projects Priority Need Level CDBG Investments 

Infrastructure 

Water Improvements PY06  
Northridge Acres High $ 200,000 

Street Improvements PY06 
Apache Shores High $ 305,000 

Street Improvements P 07 
Apache Shores High $ 500,000 

Street Improvements PY06  
Lava Lane High $ 83,659 

Street Improvements P 09 
Lava Lane High $ 60,000 

Street Improvements PY10 
Lava Lane High $ 400,000 

Street Improvements PY11 
Lake Oak Estates High $ 145,000 

Street Improvements PY12 
Lake Oak Estates High $326,598 

Total Infrastructure 
 

$2,020,257  
 

                                           
9 All prior year CAPERs are available for download at the Travis County CDBG website: 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/cdbg/plans_reports/plans.asp 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/cdbg/plans_reports/plans.asp


PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   68 

Community Service 

Other Public Service Needs PY07  High $ 64,000 

Other Public Service Needs PY08  High $ 64,877 

Other Public Service Needs PY09  High $ 35,000 

Other Public Service Needs PY10  High $69,295 

Other Public Service Needs PY11 High $ 118,500 

Other Public Service Needs PY12 
Social Work High 

$106,000 
 

Other Public Service Needs PY12 
Fair Housing High $28,451 

Total Community Service 
 

$486,123  
 

Public Buildings & Facilities Medium $ 0 

Business & Jobs Medium  $ 0 

 
In addition to CDBG investments, the County’s infrastructure department, Transportation and Natural 
Resources, conducts community development activities in the form of public parks, bridge and 
drainage projects, storm water management, road maintenance, on-site sewage facilities, 
transportation planning, and various other projects, approximately totaling over $50 million. 
 
Water and Wastewater Needs 

Since the inception of the CDBG Program, there has been strong interest in water and wastewater 
projects from residents in the unincorporated areas.  To date, the Travis County CDBG office has 
received public requests for water infrastructure projects that taken together would cost $16,000,000 
to implement and requests for wastewater infrastructure projects that would cost a total of 
$8,000,000 to implement.  A higher percentage of these requests have come from neighborhoods on 
the eastern side of the county.  Due to funding constraints, no water infrastructure projects are 
currently funded through the CDBG program.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   69 

 
Transportation10 

Travis County’s HHS/VS provides services to populations through direct services as well as social service 
contracts and inter-local agreements with other governmental organizations.  Travis County HHS/VS 
invests in different programs to address community development needs. Transportation is one of 
many social service contracts that Travis County invests in to improve access and ensure inclusion.  In 
program year 2012, $XX* went towards service providers working to create improved access through 
418,113 trips provided for 12,780 individuals. 
 

ANTI-POVERTY STRATEGY 
 
Travis County’s lead agency for administering CDBG funds is the Health and Human Services & 
Veterans Service Department. The goal of the department is to address community needs through 
internal and external investments and services. The department strives to accomplish the following: 
Maximize quality of life for all people in Travis County; Protect vulnerable populations; Invest in social 
and economic well-being; Promote healthy living: physical, behavioral, and environmental; and Build a 
shared understanding of our community. 
 
Annually, over $XX* million is invested in alleviating the conditions which contribute to poverty by 
stabilizing housing, providing comprehensive case management, and increasing opportunity through 
workforce development and youth and child programs – just to name a few. Furthermore, the CDBG 
program has invested in expansion of an internal social work program to serve 375 people to link them 
to services to improve self-sufficiency and quality of life; while investments in housing will be made to 
reduce cost burden and to improve access to safe and decent housing. 
 
Travis County operates a number of anti-poverty programs that assist individuals and families on 
multiple fronts in transitioning from crisis to self-sufficiency. The County carries out its anti-poverty 
programs both through the direct delivery of services managed by HHS/VS and by purchasing services 
from private and not-for-profit agencies in the community – referenced above. In addition to the 
provision of direct services, Travis County continually assesses the poverty and basic needs of county 
residents, works with stakeholders in facilitating anti-poverty efforts, and supports public policy 
initiatives that prevent and ameliorate conditions of poverty. 

                                           
10 Travis County HHS/VS has invested in multiple agencies providing transportation services through social service contract dollars for 
many years.  However, due to shifts in funding priorities and reporting requirements, this category only captures performance data for 
one service provider for PY 2011. 
* At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   70 

 
Overall, the needs of the residents in the unincorporated areas have not been studied in depth and 
quantified as much as those that live within the city limits. The work of the social services program and 
collaborative planning will continue to identify those needs and will serve as a starting point for a more 
thorough needs assessment.  
 
 

NON-HOMELESS SPECIAL NEEDS 
 
HUD identifies non-homeless special needs populations as elderly, frail elderly, those with severe 
mental illness, the developmentally disabled, the physically disabled, persons with alcohol and other 
drug addictions, victims of domestic violence, and persons living with HIV/AIDS.   
 
Travis County’s HHS/VS provides services to special needs populations through direct services as well 
as social service contracts and inter-local agreements with other governmental organizations.  Travis 
County HHS/VS invests in different programs to address public health, substance abuse, indigent 
health, and mental health needs. Additionally, CDBG funded programs will be marketed to populations 
with specialized needs and services to ensure inclusion and improve access. 
 
Services for Elderly & Frail Elderly11 

Travis County funded $XX* of services to the elderly and frail elderly through social service contracts 
during the reporting period. Services provided include case management, in-home care services, meals 
and bill payer services. In-home services include assistance with personal hygiene tasks as well as 
housekeeping, while bill payer services included assistance with finances and money managements. In 
total: 

• 4,393 unduplicated clients were served,  
• 923 unduplicated clients received case management services,  
• 582,081 prepared meals were provided, and  
• 1,226 individuals received in-home services. 
 

                                           
11 Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   71 

Services for Persons with Physical Disabilities or Developmental Delays12 

Through social service contract investments during the reporting period, Travis County funded $XX* of 
services for persons with physical disabilities and developmental delays.  Services centered around 
employment and job-readiness, case management, early childhood intervention, basic needs 
assistance, and social/recreational opportunities.  A total of 4,793 unduplicated children and adults 
were served during the reporting period.  Amongst the total number of clients, 1,843 case 
management hours were recorded. 
 
Services for Victims of Domestic Violence13 

Travis County funded $XX * of services for persons experiencing abuse, neglect, domestic violence, and 
sexual assault through social service contract investments during the reporting period.  Services 
centered around advocacy, crisis management, emergency shelter, transitional housing and 
counseling.  Approximately 48,383 days of shelter and 2,447 unduplicated adults and children received 
services during the reporting period. 
 
Services for Persons Living with HIV/AIDS14 

In PY12 Travis County funded$ XX* of services for persons living with HIV/AIDS (PWLA) through social 
service contract investments.  Services centered around advocacy, crisis management, emergency 
shelter, transitional housing, and counseling.  A total of 980 persons received services including case 
management, medical care retention, client advocacy, medication adherence assistance, food pantry 
assistance, nutritional counseling, home health, prevention and support groups.  Additionally, Travis 
County provided other services through public health inter-local agreements. 
 

LEAD-BASED PAINT 
 
During PY12, the CDBG office continued to develop a lead-based paint procedures manual for guiding 
the implementation of the home rehabilitation project. Prior to contracting for the owner occupied 
home repair program, the County will finish the manual and follow its guidelines to comply with the 
Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (Title X) and subsequent changes in 
                                           
12 Ibid. 
*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   
13 Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp. 
14 Ibid. 
*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III :: Non-Housing Community 
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   72 

September, 1999.  Activities supported with Travis County CDBG funds must be in full compliance with 
the Lead Safe Housing Rule (24 CFR Part 35) of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD). The CDBG program has created guidelines to ensure that the necessary steps for 
notification, identification and treatment of Lead Based Paint are followed, for owner occupied 
rehabilitation projects, homebuyer assistance projects and other projects as appropriate. 
 

HHS/VS Housing Services Division, which receives funds through State grant funds and the Travis 
County General Fund, provides limited lead-based paint remediation on houses built before 1978 
where small holes in the wall or similar acts that could cause additional possible lead exposure are 
made.  The lead safe practices are used to ensure client and worker safety.  Areas disturbed are sealed 
and all loose contaminates are removed.  The Housing Services Division does not have a complete lead 
abatement process nor does it have a formal lead based paint remediation program; however, they do 
perform Lead Safe work as prescribed by the EPA in conjunction with their WAP and Home Repair 
Programs.  Housing Services is an EPA Certified Lead Safe Firm who employs EPA Certified Lead Safe 
Renovators and complies with lead safe practices when working on homes built prior to 1978.  
 

SPECIFIC HOPWA OBJECTIVES 
 
Travis County does not receive HOPWA funds at this time.  
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Appendix A :: Public Engagement 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   73 

 

APPENDIX A  
Attachment A: Public Comment Advertisements 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Appendix A :: Public Engagement 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   74 

Spanish Version 

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                         Appendix A :: Public Engagement 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   75 

 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 

 
 

Attachment B: Summary of Public Comments 
 

To be added to final draft.  
 

 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                             Appendix B :: IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   0 

APPENDIX B 
 

 
 
 
 

Attachment A: CDBG Financial Summary Report (CO4PR26) 

 

To be added to final draft.   

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                             Appendix B :: IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   86 

APPENDIX B 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B: Program Year 2011 Summary of Accomplishments (CO4PR23) 
 
 
 

To be added to final draft.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix B :: IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   87 

APPENDIX B
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment C: Summary of Consolidated Plan Projects (PR06) 
 
 

To be added to final draft.  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix B :: IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   1 

APPENDIX B 
 
 
 
 

 
Attachment D: CDBG Activity Summary Report for Program Year 2011 (CO4PR03) 

 
 

To be added to final draft.  
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Item 11Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Item 12Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Item 13Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Item 14Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 
 

Meeting Date:  November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Travis R. Gatlin, 512-854-9065 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget 
 

Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: RECEIVE ANNUAL DEBT MODEL 
PRESENTATION AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON FISCAL 
YEAR 2014 DEBT ISSUANCE PROJECT LIST. 
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 

See attached backup. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

See attached backup. 
 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 

See attached backup. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 

See attached backup. 
 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Leslie Browder, Planning and Budget Office (512) 854-9106 
Jessica Rio, Planning and Budget Office, (512) 854-9106 
David Salazar, County Judge’s Office, (512) 854-9555 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 15Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Item 16Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 19, 2013   
Prepared By/Phone Number: Richard Villareal/512-854-4881, Marvin 
Brice, CPPB/512-854-9765  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract Award for University Savings 
Building (USB) Roof Replacement, IFB No. B1305-016-RV, to the low 
bidder, QA Construction Services, Inc. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract requires the Contractor to provide labor equipment, 
materials and supervision necessary to replace the lower roof expansion 
at the University Savings Building.  

IFB No. 1305-016-RV was issued on June 5, 2013, to solicit bids for the 
project referenced above.  After a total of thirty-six (36) vendors were 
solicited, two (2) bids were received electronically in response to the 
solicitation when subject IFB opened on June 26, 2013, at 2:00 p.m.   

The apparent low bidder is QA Construction Services, Inc. with a Base 
Bid of $59,950.00.  Facilities Management Department (FMD) is 
recommending, with Purchasing’s concurrence, contract award to QA 
Construction Services, Inc., for the base bid amount of $59,950.00.  
FMD has deemed that the price is fair and reasonable.        

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $59,950.00    
Contract Type: Construction   
Contract Period: Sixty (60) Calendar Days after NTP issuance 
  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 17Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: 36  Responses Received: 2  
HUB Information: No  % HUB Subcontractor: 0%  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  Funds Reservation No. 300000583  
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



I

R
e
v
ie

w
e
d

a
n

d
A

c
k

n
o

w
l e

d
g

e
d

B
y

:

I

,
-

T
R

A
V

IS
C

O
U

N
T

Y
P

U
R

C
H

A
S

IN
G

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
S

r
B

ID
T

A
B

U
L

A
T

IO
N

F
O

R
M

B
ID

N
O

.:
B

13
05

-0
16

-R
V

B
ID

D
A

T
E

:
Ju

n
e

26
,

20
13

B
IO

S
SO

L
IC

IT
E

D
:

35

D
E

SC
R

IP
T

IO
N

:
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

S
av

in
g
s

B
ui

ld
in

g
(U

SB
)

R
oo

f
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

O
PE

N
T

IM
E

:
2:

00
p.

m
.

C
S

T
B

ID
S

R
E

C
E

iV
E

D
:

2

D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
:

T
ra

vi
s

C
ou

nt
y

F
ac

il
it

ie
s

M
an

ag
em

en
t

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

B
ID

S
E

X
PI

R
E

:
S

ep
te

m
b

er
2

6
,

20
13

H
U

B
S

SO
L

IC
IT

E
D

:
4

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
IN

O
:

L
lo

yd
E

va
ns

51
2-

85
44

77
3

H
U

B
S

R
E

C
E

IV
E

D
:

0

U
ni

t
U

ni
t

P
ri

ce
B

id
de

r’
s

N
am

e
B

e
B

id
—

A
ft

O
ne

-
A

lt-
T

w
o

2
B

on
d

A
dd

.
E

tti
.

C
ar

t.
S

ec
.

S
af

et
y

H
U

B
In

fo
nn

ai
to

n
:
;

-
-
-

-

1
Q

A
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
,

In
c
.

$
5

9
,9

5
0

.0
0

$
6

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
7

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
8
.0

0
$
1
4
.0

0
X

X
X

X
X

N
O

0.
0%

2
O

v
e
rt

h
e
T

o
p

S
y
s
te

m
s
,

L
td

.
$
6
4
,1

5
0

.0
0

$
5
4
,5

9
0
.0

0
$7

5,
64

0.
00

$5
.0

0
$1

0.
00

X
X

X
X

X
N

O
31

.0
%

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

f/
SI

G
N

A
TU

R
E

PR
IN

T
N

A
M

E
D

A
TE

f
i
f
*

L
L

f
r
I
..

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Richard Villareal

From: Kevin Carison <kevinc@qasystems.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 29, 2013 3:10 PM
To: Richard Villareal
Subject: USB Bid

Richard,

This email is to to confirm Bid #B1305-016-RV that bid 6/23/13 is still good. Even though the 90 days has
expired QA Construction Services Inc. still honors our quote.

Please let me know if you need anything from us to expedite this contract.

Thank you,

Kevin W Carlson Sr
Sales Manager
QA Construction Services Inc.
5811 Blue Bluff
Austin Texas 78724
Office 512-637-6121
Fax 512-614-4764
www.gacsi.com

1

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Michael Long/854 4850; Marvin Brice/854 
9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 2, an assignment of 
Contract No. 4400001140 from Brim, Arnett, Robinett, Conners & 
McCormick to The John McCormick Law Firm. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments: Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

Contract No. 4400001140 serves to provide litigation services from an 
outside counsel, Brimm, Arnett, Robinett, Conners & McCormick, 
approved by Commissioners Court on September 25, 2012. 

Modification No. 2 will assign all contract rights and obligations in the 
contract from Brim, Arnett, Robinett, Conners & McCormick to The John 
McCormick Law Firm. 

Modification No. 1 extended the contract for an additional period of one, 
from October 1, 2013 through September 30, 2014. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last _12__ months $4990.62 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information: N/A 

Award Amount:    
Contract Type:   
Contract Period:   

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 18Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations: N/A  

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: N/A 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400001 140-Legal Services PAGE 1 OF 3 PAGES
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: Michael Long DATE PREPARED: October 18, 2013

P0 BOX 1748 TEL. NO: (512) 854-4850
AUSTIN, TX 78767 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185

ISSUED TO: Brim, Aniett, Robinett Conners & MODIFICATION NO.: 2 EXECUTED DATE OF ORiGINAL
McCormick CONTRACT: 9/18/2012
2525 Wallingwood Dr., Bldg. 14
Austin, TX 78746
Attn: John McCormick

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: 9/18/2012-9/30/2012 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: 10/1/2013-9/30/14

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: $As needed Current Modified Amount S N/A

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: Upon execution of this modification, the contract is modified as provided below:

1. Pursuant to section 12.1, all contract rights and obligations will be assigned from Brim, Arnett, Robinett, Conners &
McCormick to The John McCormick Law Firm.

2. Assignment and Acceptance of Assignment is attached on page 2.

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full
force and effect.

U DBALEGAL BUSINESS NAME:

U CORPORATION
BY: **See pages 2 and 3 for signature approval lines

SIGNATURE U OTHER

BY:_____________________________________________________ DATE:
PRINT NAME

TITLE:_______________________________________________________
ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

TRAVIS CUNTY TE DATE:

BY:(/Ø
/1CYD V. (RIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY: **See page 3 for signature approval line
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

Note to Vendor/City:

[X j Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.
F I DO NOT execute and return to Travis County Retam for your records

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



ASSIGNMENT AND ACCEPTANCE OF ASSIGNMENT
OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

AND CONSENT

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on September 25, 2012, Brim, Arnett, Robinett, Conners &
McCormick (the “Firm”) and Travis County entered into a Legal Services
Agreement (the !Contract?) under which the Firm would provide Litigation
Services; and

WHEREAS, the Contract has been modified one time, so the Contract and
one modification are incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, the Contract provides for prior written approval before an
assignment may occur; and

WHEREAS, the Firm desires to assign all Contract rights and obligations
in the Contract to The John McCormick Law Firm (McCormick), and McCormick
desires to assume the rights and the duties that accrue under the Contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Firm and McCormick agree to the following:

The Firm, effective 67?9”7L 1,
, in consideration of

the acceptance of all obligations thereunder that accrue and other good and
valuable consideration, by this instrument assigns all of its rights, and all of the
duties and obligations under the Contract to McCormick.

By:

Date:

____________

Printed Name: £ c#,4iW

Date:

300478-1

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



McCormick accepts the assignmerft of the rights, and all of the duties and
obligations under the Contract and does, in consideration of Travis Countys
consent to the Assignment, ass me, agree to perform and be bound by the
covenants, ob tions and agreem ts contained in the Contract.

By:

_____________________________

Printed Name: F fr C. (r-btCC.

Title: /wve

Date: Io(7_3/l>

TRAVIS COUNTY consents to the above Assignment and Acceptance of
rights, and of duties and obligations described above, and requests the Firm to
transfer all Travis County files and documents (hardcopy and electronic) to
McCormick as soon as practicable.

TRAVIS COUNTY

By:

__________________

Printed Name: Samuel T. Biscoe

Title: Travis County Judge

Date:

300478-1

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Lori Clyde/854-4205 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 10 to Interlocal 4400000352 
(H.T.E. Contract # IL040167LC), City of Austin, for the Operation and 
Maintenance of the Regional Radio System (RRS). 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing did not 
participate in negotiations. 
 
The RRS program is a cooperative effort involving partners from the City 
of Austin, University of Texas at Austin, Austin ISD and Travis County.  
This radio system enables public safety/service agencies to 
communicate and cooperate with each other by allowing direct access to 
information and the beneficial exchange of it. 

Travis County Emergency Services recommends approval of this 
modification.  Given that this agreement automatically renews annually, 
the requested action will be an internal administrative change for 
informational purposes and to ratify contractual spending authority for 
Travis County’s portion of the shared program budget this fiscal year. 

The cost for Travis County’s portion for FY14 is $1,706,680.00.   

Modification No. 9, approved in Commissioners Court, January 22, 
2013, was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY13 
budget. 

Modification No. 8, approved in Commissioners Court, January 24, 
2012, was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY12 
budget. 

Modification No. 7, approved in Commissioners Court, February 15, 
2010, was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY11 
budget. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 19Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Modification No. 6, approved in Commissioners Court, December 1, 
2009, was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY10 
budget. 
 
Modification No. 5, approved in Commissioners Court, October 28, 
2008, was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY09 
budget. 

Modification No. 4, approved in Commissioners Court, October 30, 
2007, was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY08 
budget. 

Modification No. 3, approved in Commissioners Court November 7, 
2006, was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY07 
budget. 

Modification No. 2, approved in Commissioners Court October 25, 2005, 
was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY06 budget.   

Modification No. 1, approved in Commissioners Court December 21, 
2004, was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY05 
budget.   

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $2,496,665.00 has 
been spent against this contract. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:   $1,706,680.00 
Modification Type:    Approval to spend amount budgeted for RRS 
O&M 
Modification Period:  October 1, 2013 through September 30, 2014 
 

 Funding Information: 
  Funds Reservation #: 300000901 
  Funding Account(s):  147001001, 511620 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400000352 (IL040167LC) Regional Radio System (RRS) O&M          
                                        PAGE 1 OF 3 PAGES 

 
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE 

700 LAVACA, SUITE 800 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST:  Lori Clyde  

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9700 

FAX NO:   (512) 854-9185 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

November 5, 2013 

 
ISSUED TO: 

City of Austin 

P.O. Box 1088 

Austin, TX  78767-1088 

MODIFICATION NO.:  

10 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 

CONTRACT:  

January 20, 2004 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  _January 20,2004-September 30, 2004 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  October 1, 2013-September 30, 2014 

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:        

Original Contract Amount: $_404,888.00         Current Modified Amount $_1,706,680.00. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 

modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

 

 

Replace Exhibit G, RRS Interlocal Agreement for the Operation and Maintenance of the Regional 

Radio System Budget for FY13 with the attached Exhibit G, RRS Interlocal Agreement for the 

Operation and Maintenance of the Regional Radio System FY14 RRS O&M Budget.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note to Vendor:  

[    ] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[  X  ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 

LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:        

 

     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 

     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 

 

TITLE:            

            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400000352 (IL040176LC) Page 2 of 3Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400000352 (IL040176LC) Page 3 of 3Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch 46663; Marvin Brice 49765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language: Approve Contract No. 4400001664, Molly Ann 
Harfoush, Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Services (SANE), to 
provide forensic examinations for sexual assault victims and 
suspects. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiners perform specialized forensic 
examinations for sexual assault victims and evidence collection. 
Contract 4400001664 is a new contract adding Molly Ann Harfoush to 
the certified Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner Services approved roster.   

 
The Office of the Attorney General (OAG) sets the rates that may be 
charged for these services.  In addition, such services are reimbursable 
by the OAG, up to a maximum $700 per occurrence. 

 
This contract is for professional services and therefore exempt from 
competitive bidding and competitive proposal requirements in the 
County Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOVT CODE ANN. SEC. 262.023.  
An exemption order for medical services was approved by the court on 
September 12, 2000. 

 
Subject to continued funding by the Commissioners Court, this contract 
shall automatically renew each October 1 for a term of one year for five 
(5) renewal terms concluding September 30, 2019.   

 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 20Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  As Needed Basis   
Contract Type:  Professional Services Agreement 
Contract Period:  11/19/13 – 9/30/13 (5-Renewal Terms) 
  

 
 Funding Information: 

 SAP Shopping Cart:   
  Funding Account(s):    001-3725-563-6313 
  Comments:  on an as needed basis 

 

 
 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY
:

AND

MOLLY ANN HARFOUSH

FOR

SEXUAL ASSAULT NURSE EXAMINER SERVICES

CONTRACT NO. 4400001664

Travis County Purchasing Office

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Definitions 3
2.0 Term 4
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities 4
4.0 Compensation, Billing and Payment 5
5.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access 7
6.0 Amendments/Modifications 8
7.0 Other Provisions 8

Approvals 14

Attachments

Attachment A — Scope of Services & Performance Measures 15
Attachment B — Fee Schedule 17
Attachment C — Insurance Requirements 18
Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including 20

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons 21
Attachment E — Certification 23

2

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
SEXUAL ASSAULT NURSE EXAMINER SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the following parties: Travis County, Texas, (the
“COUNTY”) and Molly Ann Harfoush, (the “CONTRACTOR”).

WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to obtain the services of certified Sexual Assault Nurse Examiners to perform
specialized forensic examinations for sexual assault victims and evidence collection for persons twelve (12) and
older if male, and pubescent and beyond if female: and to also include suspect examinations and blood/body
fluid collections;

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the professional ability and expertise, and any necessary professional
degrees, licenses, and certifications to provide these services;

NOW, THEREFORE, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

1.0 DEFiNITIONS

In this Agreement,

1.1 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court.

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor.

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and Molly Ann Harfoush.

1.5 “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

1.5.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth
more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for the purchase of any
property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or,

1.5.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a
calendar year;

1.5.3 but does not include

1.5.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a
posted, published, or marked price available to the public,

1.5.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal,
family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to

3

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the
ordinary course of its business; and

1.5.3.3 a transaction for a fmancial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of
Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee
or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or
she should have known about the Contract.

1.6 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavits
attached to this contract and marked as Attachment D.

1.7 “Sheriff’ means the Honorable Gregory Hamilton, the Travis County Sheriff, or his successor.

1.8 “Client” means a sexual assault victim, and/or suspect.

1.9 “Contract Funds” means all funds paid by County pursuant to Section 4.0 of this Contract.

1.10 “Department” means the Travis County Sheriffs Office.

1.11 “Fiscal Year” means the County fiscal year, currently that period beginning on October 1 of one
year and continuing through September 30 of the following year.

2.0 TERM

2.1 Initial Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by
all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2014, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

2.2 Renewal Term(s). Subject to continued funding by the Commissioners Court, this Agreement
shall thereafter automatically renew on October 1 of each year for succeeding terms of one year unless
sooner terminated by either party as provided herein.

2.3 Termination. Either party may terminate this Contract at any time by giving the other party
written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of the termination.

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1 Scope of Services. CONTRACTOR shall perform, in a timely manner, the services and activities
described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is expressly
incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

3.2 Ethical Standards. CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary
powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and his best professional
judgment.

3.3 Subcontracting. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is prohibited
from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the CONTRACTOR’S obligations
under this Agreement.

4

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities
pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 S.933].

3.5 Legal Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws,
rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the
performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.

3.6 Payment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently
delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector.

3.7 Insurance Requirements CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out
in Attachment C, “Insurance Requirements”, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof.

3.8 Federal Funds. CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or
will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual
information relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the SHERIFF and may rely on
all factual information supplied by the SHERIFF in response to these requests. However SHERIFF
shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any elected official of County for
any other purpose than conveying factual information.

3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entermg into this Agreement, COUNTY has
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services
and their qualifications and that any other person must be approved by COMMISSIONERS COURT
before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done will be
done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the services in
CONTRACTOR’ S proposal.

4.0 COMPENSATION, BILLING AND PAYMENT

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR’s compliance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof.

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: NA-As needed Basis
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None.

5

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY’S satisfaction and given COUNTY’S
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY’S obligation to make any payment to
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR’ S profession.

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall invoice COUNTY monthly for services performed pursuant to
this Contract. Invoices shall be submitted by the 10th of the month immediately following the month in
which the services were rendered. Invoices shall contain the following information.

4.4.1 Name of Travis County Client for whom payment is requested (masked by
confidentiality);

4.4.2 Description of Services provided;

4.4.3 Rate of Services; and

4.4.4 Total Amount

The Contractor shall attach the appropriate supporting documentation, when necessary, for each
client for whom payment is requested. Original invoices shall be sent to:

Travis County Sheriffs Office - Fiscal
POBoxl748
Austin, TX 78767
Fax 512/854-9185

4.5 Overpayment and Disallowed Payments.

4.5.1 CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30)
days after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent
Agreement with CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to
COUNTY within thirty (30) days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next
advance or payment payable to CONTRACTOR

4.5.2 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges and agrees that Contractor shall be liable to
County for any payments disallowed pursuant to financial, performance and compliance audit(s)
with respect to Contract Funds. Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that reimbursement
to County of any disallowed payments shall be paid by Contractor from funds other than Contract
Funds.

4.6 Taxpayer Identification. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue
Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in

6

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable.

4.7 Delinquent Property Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of invoicing, the
CONTRACTOR hereby assigns any payments to be made for services rendered hereunder to the Travis
County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes.

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt.

4.8.1 Tn accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Govermnent Code, If notice of
indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the
indebtedness of CENTER to the State, the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not be
drawn on a COUNTY fund in favor of the CENTER, or an agent or assignee of CENTER until:

4.8.1.1 the County Treasurer notifies CENTER in writing that the debt is outstanding;
and
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid.

4.8.2 “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from written
agreements with the COUNTY.

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply any funds COUNTY owes CENTER to the outstanding balance of
debt for which notice is made under section 4.8.1.1 above, if the notice includes a statement that
the amount owed by the COUNTY to CENTER may be applied to reduce the outstanding debt.

4.9 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement.

4.10 Exemption from County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. CODE ANN. § 262
q., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Agreement is exempt from the requirements of the

County Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or professional services.

4.11 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if during budget planning and
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of
COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it.

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of records
and other information relating to Psychological / Psychiatric services in accordance with the applicable
federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical standards. This
provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client information. Upon
authorization from COUNTY to render client files anonymous, CONTRACTOR agrees to mask
information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY’ S monitoring and evaluation
duties in any way.

7

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shall make
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any litigation
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR

5. 3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their
authorized representatives.

5.4 Right to Contractual Material. All work products produced under this Agreement including
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries,
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR ffl become property of the
COUNTY.

6.0 AMENDMENTS / MODIFICATIONS

6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of this
Agreement or any attachment to it to the SHERIFF with a copy to the Purchasing Agent.

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy,
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise Contractor as to such
authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit
any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing
Agent to sign the Amendment.

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS:

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS,
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY

8

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARISING
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS
CONTRACT.

7.2 Copyrights, Patents & Licenses. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable
copyrights, patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on
materials used in this Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the County shall not be liable for any
infringement of those rights and any rights granted to the County shall apply for the duration of this
Agreement. Consultant shall indemnify the County, its officers, agents, and employees from all claims,
losses, damages, causes of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation, court costs
and attorney fees for damages to any person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual
infringement of existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in this Agreement.

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working days after being
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any,
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided
herein. Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions.

7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may,
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein.

7.5 Non-Waiver of Default

7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of
any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist.

7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment,
act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it. Any
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies.

7.6 Forfeiture of Contract: Contractor shall forfeit all benefits of the contract and
County shall retain all performance by Contractor and recover all consideration or the value of all
consideration, paid to Contractor pursuant to this contract if:

(A) Contractor was doing business with any Key Contracting Person at the time of
execution of the contract or had done business during the 365 day period immediately
prior to the date on which it is executed or

9

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

(B) Contractor does business with a Key Contracting Person at any time after the date on
which the contract is executed and prior to full performance of the contract.

7.7 Entire Agreement

7.7.1 Entire Agreement. All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement
related to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this
Agreement have been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies
and procedures approved by Commissioners Court for County. Any prior agreements, promises,
negotiations, or representations not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect.

7.7.2 Attachments. The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance
with all the provisions of this Agreement.

7.7.2.1 Attachment A — Scope of Services & Performance Measures
7.7.2.2 Attachment B — Fee Schedule
7.7.2.3 Attachment C — Insurance Requirements
7.7.2.4 Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including:

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons
7.7.2.5 Attachment E —Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,

Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts

7.8 Notices:

7.8.1 Written Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail,
postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the
party at the address herein specified.

7.8.2 County Address. The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be:

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. CPPO (or her successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

The Honorable Gregory Hamilton (or his successor in office)
Travis County Sheriff
P0 Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

10

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

7.8.3 Contractor Address. The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this
Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be:

Molly Ann Harfoush
321 Kensington Lane
Austin, Texas 78737

7.9 Change of Address. Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8. Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen
(15) days of the change.

7.10 Authority: The SHERIFF or designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the work to
be performed under this Agreement. The SHERIFF shall have complete authority to interpret and define
in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S services. The
SHERIFF may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive information.

7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent. When the Contractor andlor County
have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract, the Contractor or
County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing Agent by providing the Purchasing Agent with
written notice of the dispute. Such notice shall contain a specific written description of the issues
involved as well as the Contractor’s requested resolution of the dispute and any other relevant
information which Contractor desires to include. As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing
Agent, the Purchasing Agent will act as the County representative in any further issuances and in the
administration of this Contract in relation to the described dispute. Unless otherwise stated in this
Contract, any document, notice or correspondence in relation to the disputes at this stage not issued by or
to the Purchasing Agent is may be considered void. If the Contractor does not agree with any document,
notice or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized
County person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the
Executive Manager within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document, notice or
correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail. The Purchasing Agent will issue a
written notice of the fmal resolution of the dispute to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
the initial written notice of dispute by the Purchasing Agent. If this final resolution does not resolve the
dispute to the Contractor’s satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the
Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent will provide a copy of such
response to the Executive Manager. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten (10) calendar
days after receipt of the unsatisfactory fmal resolution. Contractor then has the right to be heard by
Commissioners Court and the Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on the
Commissioners Court agenda.

7.12 Mediation. If the Contractor is not satisfied with the resolution of the dispute pursuant to
paragraph 7.11, Contractor shall notify the Travis County Management representing this contract, and, if
mediation is acceptable to both Parties in resolving the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties
agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas, or another mediation group as chosen by
County and approved by Contractor, as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in the TEX.
CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023. Unless both Parties are satisfied with the result of
the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute. All
communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in TEX. CIV.

11

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.073, unless both Parties agree, in writing, to waive the
confidentiality.

7.13 Cooperation and Coordination. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with COUNTY
staff and other contractors as reasonable and necessary and as required by the SHERIFF.

7.14 Independent Contractor. The parties expressly acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR is an
independent contractor, operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and
liabilities applicable to him as an independent contractor. CONTRACTOR shall not be considered an
employee of COUNTY, or gain any rights against COUNTY pursuant to the COUNTY’ S personnel
policies.

7.15 Governing Law. The validity of this agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as
the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

7.15.1 Severability. Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this Agreement
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective shall not impair,
invalidate, or nullify the remainder of this Agreement, but the effect thereof shall be limited to
the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph or article so held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective.

7.15.2 Law and Venue. All obligations under this Agreement shall be performable in Travis
County, Texas. Venue for any litigation concerning this Agreement shall be in the City of
Austin, Travis County.

7.15.3 Assignment. No party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this Agreement
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR that
no officer, agent, employee or representative of COUNTY has any authority to assign any part of
this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court.

7.16 Binding Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and their respective
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. Neither the COUNTY nor the CONTRACTOR may
assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent
of the other party hereto.

7.17 Performance of Other Services. As a part of this Agreement, it is understood that
CONTRACTOR is free to provide services outside this Agreement as it sees fit at those times which
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is also understood that COUNTY is free to have more
than one contractor providing the type of services included in this Agreement.

7.18 Survival. Conditions and covenants of this Agreement which by their terms are performable
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or
end and remain fully performable.

7.19 Certificate of Contractor. The Contractor certifies that neither the Contractor nor any members of
the Contractor’s firm nor any Subcontractor has:

12

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

7.19.1 Employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingency fee or other
consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for the
Contractor) to solicit or secure the work provided by the Contract.

7.19.2 Agreed, as an expressed or implied condition for obtaining this Contract, to employ or
retain the services of any firm or person other than in connection with carrying out the work to be
performed under this Contract.

7.19.3 Paid or agreed to pay to any firm, organization, or person (other than bona fide employees
working solely for the Contractor) any fee, contribution, donation, or consideration of any kind
for, or in connection with, procuring or carrying out the work provided under this Contract.

7.19.4 Been suspended or debarred from federal or state procurement.

The Contractor further agrees that this certification may be furnished to any local, state or federal
government agencies in connection with this Contract and for those portions of the program involving
participation of agency grant funds and is subject to all applicable state and federal, criminal and civil
laws.

7.20 Interpretational Guidelines

7.20.1 Computation of Time. When any period of time is stated in this Agreement, the time
shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period. If the last day of
any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that COUNTY has declared a holiday for its
employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation.

7.20.2 Number and Gender. Words of any gender in this Agreement shall be construed to
include any other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise.

7.20.3 Headings. The headings at the begmning of the vanous provisions of this Agreement
have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or
subsection and are not to be used in construing this Agreement.

7.21 Conflict of Interest Ouestionnaire: If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code,
the Consultant shall complete and file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk,
Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751. The Consultant shall update this
Questionnaire by September 1 of each year for the duration of this Contract, as required by Chapter 176
of the Local Govermnent Code. In addition, if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes
incomplete or inaccurate, the Consultant shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The Consultant should
note that the law requires the County to provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the official Travis
County Internet website. -

7.22 County Monitoring. The Contractor will be monitored by the Sheriff (or his designee) for
compliance with the requirements of this Contract.

7.23 The person or persons signing this Agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or representing
themselves as signing this agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and guarantee

13

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

that he, she or they have been duly authorized by CONTRACTOR to sign this Agreement on behalf of
CONTRACTOR and to bind CONTRACTOR validly and legally to all terms, performances, and
provisions in this Agreement.

DUPLICATE ORIGINALS

This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both parties.

M ly Ann Harfoush Travis County

By: ‘1i’ çkO3 143 By: Samuel T. Biscoe
Name and Title (Printed) Travis County Judge

Date:________________________ Date:_________________

Approved as to Legal Form By:

_______________________________

Assistant County Attorney

Approved by Purchasing:

_______________________________

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO Purchasing Agent

14

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

ATTACHMENT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Contractor shall provide forensic sexual assault examination and evidence collection services for COUNTY. Contractor will
practice within the guidelines and bylaws ofthe ATC Program and shall follow the Policy and Procedure for SANE nurses
providing care through St. David’s Medical Center.

Under the tenns and conditions ofthis agreement, Coniractor shall conduct sexual assault examinations and suspect
examinations as requested and directed by Travis County Sheriffs Office (TCSO).

Once a SANE examination is approved by law enforcement, the charge nurse ofthe Emergency Depailment is
notified by law enforcement to contact the SANE on call. The call schedule and contact numbers are located in the
Doctor On-Call Book in the Nurse’s Station in the Emergency Department. There is an expectation of 7 thy/24
hour coverage.

When it is deemed necessary to utilize a SANE for collection of forensic evidence horn a suspect, the protocol will
be to contact the on-call SANE nurse to collect the evidence. A SANE will contact the appropriate law enforcement
officer and arrange for the evidence collection, as needed by law enforcement.

Contractor shall meet and maintain all minimum requirements set by the federal, state, and local law, mles and regulations
during the tenn ofthis Contract, including but not limited to, licensing and training requirements.

Contractor agrees that once a forensic exam is begun it must be continuous until completed.

The SANE will arrive within one hour ofactivation upon request ofTCSO.

Contractor shall submit an invoice to TCSO iqon the rendition of services in accordance with the Contract TCSO will
provide a W-9 Taxpayer Identificalion Fom to the billing SANE for their signature.

Contractor shall provide and maintain malpractice insurance, at his/her own expense, with companies admitted to do
business in the State ofTexas.

Contractor shall maintain all professional records, including verification of insurance and licensing. This information shall
be available to any representative ofTCSO for review at any reasonable time.

It is understood by this Agreement that Contractor shall be at all times an independent contractor and is not an agent or
employee ofthe County or TCSO. It is also understood by this Agreement that Contractor has the professional ability and
expertise, and any necessary professional degrees, licenses, or certifications and is willing to provide theses services to
COUNTY.

15

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

Definitions:

Sexual Assault Examination: The use of a sexual assault evidence collection kit designed for the purpose
of gathering biological and trace evidence from a victim who is deemed to have been sexually assaulted
withing ninety six hours of either presenting himself/herself to a hospital or notifying TCSO, and, after
interviewing/reporting, it is deemed necessary to utilize a forensic examination with evidence collection.
A forensic examination includes obtaining a history from the patient, a detailed head-to-toe physical
examination looking for trauma, a detailed ano-genital examination looking for trauma, and th collection
of evidence. The examination may include the use of a colposcope and video/printing/photography.
This examination includes any laboratory results and the presentation of any video prints/photographs
obtained during the forensic examination, including any written interview documents, graphs, charts, or
opinions, and the packaged evidence included inside the sexual assault evidence collection kit.

Suspect Examination: The use of a suspect evidence collection kit designed for the purpose of gathering
biological and trace evidence, as well as biological samples from a person who has been identified as a
suspect of a sexual assault/abuse. Upon request of TCSO, this examination would include any written
interview documents, graphs, charts, or opinions, and the packaged biological samples and/or evidence
included inside the suspect evidence collection kit.

Blood/Body Fluid Collection: The collection of blood/body fluids for forensic analysis/biological
sampling of any person, victim or suspect. This would include use of either a sexual assault evidence
collection kit or a suspect evidence collection kit and the appropriate forensic paperwork, and
maintenance of chain-of-custody.

Forensic Evaluation: A forensic sexual assault examination without biological evidence collection designed
for the purpose of gathering physical evidence, documentation of the presence of physical trauma to a
victim who is deemed to have been sexually assaulted, after presenting himself7herself to a hospital or
notifying TCSO, and after interviewing/reporting, it is deemed necessary to utilize a forensic examiner for
the purposes of a forensic examination. A forensic exam may include the use of a colposcope and video
printing/photography, a history from the patient, a detailed head-to-toe physical examination looking for
trauma, and a detailed ano-genital examination looking for trauma with the precise injury documentation,
laboratory results and including any written interview documents, graphs, charts, or opinions.

16

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

ATTACHMENT B
FEE SCHEDULE

For and in consideration of full and satisfactory performance of the services and activities described in the
Scope of Services Attachment A, Travis County shall pay Contractor as follows:

A. Sexual Assault Exams

In addition to the above CPT Codes, other CPT Codes approved by the Office of Attorney General for the
purposes of a SANE exam will be paid at the current reimbursement rate set by the Office of Attorney
General.

B. Sexual Assault Examination (Call-out with no exam performed), the sum of two hundred
dollars ($200.00).

C. Suspect Examination, (Including collection of Blood/Body Fluid), the sum of one hundred
seventy-five dollars ($175.00).

D. Suspect Examination (Call-out with no examination performed), the sum of seventy-five
dollars $75.00.

E. Forensic Evaluation, the sum of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00).

F. Forensic Evaluation (Call-out with no examination performed), the sum of one hundred fifty
dollars ($150.00).

G. Blood/Body Fluid Collection ONLY, (From suspect), the sum of one hundred dollars
($100.00).

H. Blood/Body Fluid Collection ONLY, (Call-out with no examination performed), the sum of
seventy five dollars ($75.00).

CPT Codes Amount Description
99285 $195.00 Sexual Assault Exam, without use of colposcopy
99499 $106.00 Evaluation & Management
57542 $233.00 Sexual Assault Exam, with use of colposcopy
46600 $71.00 Anoscopy
99000 $20.00 Specimen Handling
36415 $20.00 Venipuncture
99050 $20.00 After Hours (4:3OPM-10:OOPM Mon-Sat)
99056 $39.00 Sunday or Holiday
99052 $39.00 Night Hours (10:OOPM-8:OOAM Mon-Sat)
99170 $128.00 Anogenital Exam
99199 $100.00 Anogenital exam utilizing digital photography (high resolution) - in adult

females, adult males, or children suspected of trauma.

17

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

ATTACHMENT C
INSURANCE REOUIREMENTS

Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have,
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate
insurance options shall be imposed as follows:

I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors’ Insurance.

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the
duration of the Contract.

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating
of B+ Vifi or higher.

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis
County contract number and all endorsements by number.

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall be
considered primary for all claims.

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of
policies and endorsements.

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during gy term of the Contract and
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded.

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during y term of this
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance.

18

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s).

II. Specific Requirements

A. Transportation / Personal Auto

If NO transportation service (s) of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to
travel to and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of
$ 100,000I$300,000I$50,000 may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance.

B. Professional Liability and/or E & 0 Insurance

1. Minimum Limit: $1,000,000 per Occurrence,

2. If coverage is written on claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires
or is tenninated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and ll contain both
the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date.

19

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

ATTACHMENT D
ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Date:________________________________________
Name of Affiant: ML4 kQ&L*j )
Title of Affiant: SP& w4
Business Name of Proponent: I\.ri i..xf
County of Proponent: J\

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. Proponent has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this solicitation which is attached to this affidavit as
Exhibit “1”.

5. Afflant has personally read Exhibit ito this Affidavit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit “1” with whom Proponent is doing business or has done
business during the 365 day period immediately bef ‘e the date of this affidavit whose name is not disclosed in the
solicitation.

.,

‘2,2 Ot
Ad&ess

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by I k( —Lit (OLLS k on UCtlN 3j, 2O3.

E!ss.4a ‘&—

Notary Public, State of_____________

Typed or printed name of notary
My commission expires:

PATRICIA ESTRADA
Notaty PubC, State of Texas

My Commission Expires
January 29, 2017

20

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

EXHIBIT A
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

October 9, 2013

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holdin2 Office/Position Individual is Ascnniated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant David Salazar*
Commissioner, Precinct I Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd*
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant
Executive Assistant Sara Krause*
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhom
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty*
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charyln Daugherty Consultant
Executive Assistant Bob Moore*
Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow*
Executive Assistant Barbara Smith*
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Nicki Riley
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Interim Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escaniilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Aftorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge
Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson

21

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

Purchasing Agent .Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback*
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Exuiration
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Jayne Rybak, CTP 12/14/13
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Karen Huber 01/01/14
Executive Assistant Garry Brown 01/01/14
Executive Assistant Julie Wheeler 01/01/14
Executive Assistant Jacob Cottingham 01/01/14
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt 05/31/14
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB 06/28/14

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

22

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



4400001664

ATTACHMENT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR
COVERED CONTRACTS

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has a right to obtain a
contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion. Each covered contractor must also
screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to both contract and subcontract.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms:

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was entered into. If it is
later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any time the potential
contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily
excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules
implementing Executive Order 12549.

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it shall not knowingly
enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, andlor Travis County, as applicable.

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? YES NO

5. The potential contractor flrther agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled “Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts “without modification, in all covered subcontracts”; and
in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered
subcontractors upon each subcontract’s initiation and upon each renewal.

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this certification document. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract knowingly enters into a covered
subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to
other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including
suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED
CONTRACTS

Indicate in the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor:

The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this contract by any federal department or
agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County.

L1 The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certif’ to one or more of the terms in this certification. In this instance, the
contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make certification. Attach the
explanation(s) to this certification.

Name of Contractor Vendor ID. or Social Security No.

ccLcb t&i

Signature of Authj.zed Representative Date Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative

23

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Lori Clyde/854-4205 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 11 to Interlocal Contract No. 
4400000350 (H.T.E. Contract no. IL030285LC), City Of Austin, for the 
Operation and Maintenance of the Combined Transportation, Emergency & 
Communications Center (CTECC). 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement 
action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 
 
The CTECC program is an interlocal cooperative effort involving partners from 
the City of Austin, Texas Department of Transportation, Capital Metro and 
Travis County.  All four entities, along with citizens of central Texas currently 
benefit from ongoing operations at CTECC.  This facility houses regional public 
safety/service systems related to two-way radio communications, computer-
aided dispatch, 9-1-1, mobile data, joint emergency operations, and intelligent 
transportation.  County emergency management activities presently operate out 
of CTECC, as do Sheriff Dispatch functions. 

Travis County Emergency Services recommends approval of this modification.  
Given that this agreement automatically renews annually, the requested action 
will be an internal administrative change for informational purposes and to 
confirm contractual spending authority for Travis County’s portion of the shared 
program budget this fiscal year. 
 
County representatives on the Operating and Governing Boards, the CTECC 
General Manager, as well as other city and county resource staff support the 
recommendation. 
 
Travis County’s FY13 CTECC O&M share is $2,025,152.00.  
 
Modification No. 10, approved in Commissioners Court November 13, 2012, 
was to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY13 budget. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 21Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Modification No. 9, approved in Commissioners Court January 24, 2012, was to 
confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY12 budget. 
 
Modification No. 8, approved in Commissioners Court February 15, 2011, was 
to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY11 budget. 
 
Modification No. 7, approved in Commissioners Court December 1. 2009, was 
to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY10 budget. 
 
Modification No. 6, approved in Commissioners Court October 28, 2008, was to 
confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY09 budget. 
 
Modification No. 5, approved in Commissioners Court January 29, 2008, was to 
confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY08 budget. 
 
Modification No. 4, approved in Commissioners Court January 9, 2007, was to 
confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY07 budget. 
 
Modification No. 3, approved in Commissioners Court October 25, 2005, was to 
confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY06 budget. 
 
Modification No. 2, approved in Commissioners Court December 21, 2004, was 
to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY05 budget. 
 
Modification No. 1, approved in Commissioners Court February 10, 2004, was 
to confirm and approve Travis County’s portion of the FY04 budget. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $1,590,067.00 has been 
spent against this contract. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:   $2,025,152.00 
Modification Type:   Approval to spend amount budgeted for CTECC O&M 
Modification Period:  October 1, 2013 through September 30, 2014 

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Funds Reservation #: 300000900 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER:   4400000350 (IL030285LC) CTECC O&M AGREEMENT 
                                           PAGE 1 OF 6 PAGES 

 
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE 

700 LAVACA, SUITE 800 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST:  Lori Clyde  

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9700 

FAX NO:   (512) 854-9185 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

November 8, 2013 

 
ISSUED TO: 

City of Austin 

P.O. Box 1088 

Austin, TX  78767-1088 

MODIFICATION NO.:  

11 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 

CONTRACT:  

October 10, 2002 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  _October 10,2002-September 30, 2003 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  October 1, 2013-September 30, 2014 

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:        

Original Contract Amount: $_886,960         Current Modified Amount $_2,025,152.00. 

 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 

modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

 

 

Replace Exhibit B, Estimated Operation Budget for FY13 with the attached Exhibit B, Estimated 

Operation Budget for FY14.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note to Vendor:  

[    ] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[  X  ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 

LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:        

 

     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 

     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 

 

TITLE:            

            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  C.W. Bruner, 512-854-9763, Purchasing    
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Consider and take appropriate action on request to 
issue Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 1311-003-CW, for professional 
services associated with Health Plan Third Party Administration (includes 
Case/Disease Management, Wellness, COBRA and Retiree Billing 
Services) and Pharmacy Benefit Management and for fully-insured Vision 
and Specific Stop Loss coverage.  
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

The contract for Third Party Administration of the Travis County Health 
Plans with United Healthcare (UHC) has been in force since October 1, 
2001. This contract includes services for the payment of claims, provider 
network utilization and discounts, case and disease management, plan 
reporting, COBRA administration, retiree health plan billing, vision 
insurance and certain wellness programs. The contract also includes the 
Pharmacy Benefit Management services with Optum Rx. 

HRMD and Purchasing feel the County would benefit from the 
competitive bid process for these services and have prepared a Request 
for Proposal (RFP). The document has been reviewed by the HRMD, 
County Attorney, and Purchasing staff, as well as the contracted 
consultant, Gallagher Benefit Services.  The RFP includes a request for 
proposals for the following services: 

 Health Plan Third Party Administration (includes case/disease 
management, claims payment, wellness programs, provider 
network and discounts, COBRA administration and retiree billing) 

 Pharmacy Benefit Manager 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 22Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Stop Loss Insurance 

 Vision Insurance 
 
HRMD and Purchasing are requesting the Court to authorize issuance of 
RFP No. 1311-003-CW as the next step of the procurement process to 
solicit proposals.  The RFP is attached for the Court’s review and approval. 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 

HRMD 

Human Resources Management 
Department 

700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 P.O. Box 1748 Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX(512) 854-6677 • • • 

 
 
November 12, 2013 
 
 
TO:  C.W. Bruner, Purchasing Agent  
 
 
FROM: John Rabb, Benefit Manager 
 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendation for the release of the Solicitation for Health Plan Third Party 

Administration, Pharmacy Benefit Management, Vision Coverage and Stop 
Loss Insurance for Fiscal Year 2015. 

 
The contract for Third Party Administration of the Travis County Health Plans with United 
Healthcare (UHC) has been in force since October 1, 2001. This contract includes services 
for the payment of claims, provider network utilization and discounts, case and disease 
management, plan reporting, COBRA administration, retiree health plan billing, vision 
insurance and certain wellness programs.  The contract also includes the Pharmacy Benefit 
Management services with Optum Rx. 
 
We feel the County would benefit from the competitive bid process for these services and 
have prepared a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the solicitation of proposals. The document 
has been reviewed the HRMD staff, County Attorney staff and the contracted consultant, 
Gallagher Benefit Services, and includes a request for bids for the following services: 
 

 Health Plan Third Party Administration (includes case/disease management, claims 
payment,  wellness programs, provider network and discounts, COBRA administration 
and retiree billing) 

 Pharmacy Benefit Manager 
 Stop Loss Insurance 
 Vision Insurance 

 
We recommend the Purchasing Department release the prepared RFP.  An evaluation 
committee will be formed to evaluate, score and then recommend the awarding of a contract 
to Commissioners Court with an effective date of October 1, 2014 (FY 15). The competitive 
bid process will ensure the County is receiving the best value and rates for the services and 
coverage’s listed above. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact John Rabb at 854-2742. 
 

  
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 

TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING OFFICE
                               Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO, Purchasing Agent

 
700 Lavaca, Suite 800, Austin, Texas 78701 Office (512) 854-9700 Fax (512) 854-9185 

 

November 19, 2013 
 
Dear Proposers: 
 
You are invited to submit proposals in accordance with the attached requirements packet for: 
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) # 1311-003-CW for professional services associated with Health Plan 
Third Party Administration (includes Case/Disease Management, Wellness, COBRA and Retiree Billing 
Services) and Pharmacy Benefit Management and for fully-insured Vision and Specific Stop Loss coverage. 

 
Proposals shall be submitted with ONE (1) ORIGINAL (MARKED “ORIGINAL”), with SEVEN (7) COPIES 
AND THREE (3) ELECTRONIC VERSIONS OF THE PROPOSAL, submitted on THREE (3) “flash” drives, 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent no later than 10:00 A.M. CST, January 7, 2014 at 10:00 A.M. CST.  
Proposals will be opened at 10:00 A.M. CST, January 7, 2014. 
 

The street address of the Travis County Purchasing Agent is 700 Lavaca, Suite 800, Austin, Texas 78701. The 
mailing address is P.O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas 78767. 
  
For any information related to this Solicitation, Proposers may only contact Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent; 
Bonnie Floyd, Assistant Purchasing Agent; or C.W. Bruner, Purchasing Agent Assistant IV.  Contact with any 
other person associated with this Solicitation may result in disqualification of the proposal. 
 
NOTE: During this procurement process, potential Proposers SHALL NOT contact individual members 
of the Travis County Commissioners Court regarding this solicitation.  Any such contact may result in 
disqualification of the proposal. 
 
 
 
Your consideration of this proposal request is appreciated. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING OFFICE 
 
Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Purchasing Agent 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 1 of 85 
 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) # 1311-003-CW 

Health Plan Third Party Administration (TPA), Pharmacy Benefit Management (PBM), Fully Insured Vision 
and Specific Stop Loss Coverage 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
PART  SECTION TITLE         PAGE 
 
PART I GENERAL REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................. 6-26 
 
Section A General Information .............................................................................................................6 
Section B Required Documentation ...................................................................................................11 
Section C Additional Information ......................................................................................................15 
Section D Negotiations .......................................................................................................................19 
Section E Background ........................................................................................................................20 
Section F Questionnaires and Requests for Information for Health Plan Third Party Administration 

and Pharmacy Benefit Management  .................................................................................21 
Section G Required Procedures and Information for Specific Stop Loss Coverage ..........................22 
Section H Required Procedures and Information for Vision Coverage ..............................................24 
 
PART II SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FOR TPA AND PBM ........................................... 27-30 
  
1.0  Retention of Services and Minimum Duties ......................................................................27 
2.0   Contract of Honorable Undertaking ...................................................................................27 
3.0 Essential Elements of Service ............................................................................................28 
 
PART III SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR TPA AND PBM .................................................... 30-34 
 
1.0 Term of Contract ................................................................................................................30 
2.0 Options to Renew ...............................................................................................................30 
3.0 Fees for Services ................................................................................................................30 
4.0 Contract Administration.....................................................................................................30 
5.0 Minimum Coverage for Insurance .....................................................................................31 
6.0 Escrow Account .................................................................................................................33 
7.0 Delivery Point ....................................................................................................................34 
 
PART IV GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR TPA AND PBM .................................................. 34-48 
 
1.0 General Definitions ............................................................................................................34 
2.0 Contractor Responsibilities .......................................................................................... 35-37 

Timeliness of Services ...............................................................................35 
Cooperation and Coordination ...................................................................36 
Personnel Used...........................................................................................36 
Professional Qualifications ........................................................................36 
Right to Contractual Material ....................................................................36 
Rights to Contractor’s Work Products .......................................................36 
Standard of Care ........................................................................................36 
Ethical Standards .......................................................................................36 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 2 of 85 
 

 

Civil Rights/ADA Compliance ..................................................................36 
Records: maintenance, retention, access and duplication of information ..37 
Return of County Equipment and Access Keys .........................................37 
Legal Compliance ......................................................................................37 
Conflict of Interest Questionnaire ..............................................................37 
Certification Regarding Debarment ...........................................................37 
HIPAA Business Associate Agreement .....................................................37 

3.0 Contractor Certifications, Warranties, and Acknowledgements .................................. 37-38 
Limit of Authority of Representatives of County ......................................37 
Truth of Proposal .......................................................................................37 
Compliance with Licensure Requirements ................................................38 
Copyrights, Patent and Licenses ................................................................38 
Payment of Property Taxes ........................................................................38 
Independent Contractor ..............................................................................38 
No Agency Relationship ............................................................................38 
Understanding of Requirements ................................................................38 
Financial Status ..........................................................................................38 
Commissions ..............................................................................................38 
Gratuities ....................................................................................................38 
Lobbying with Federal Funds ....................................................................38 

4.0 Compensation and Payments ....................................................................................... 39-40 
Taxpayer Identification Number ................................................................39 
Fees and Invoicing .....................................................................................39 
Acceptance of Services ..............................................................................39 
Delayed Payment to Contractor due to Outstanding Debt .........................39 
Timely Payment .........................................................................................39 
Unauthorized Invoicing .............................................................................39 
Return of Overpayment ..............................................................................40 

5.0 Risk Allocation ............................................................................................................ 40-42 
Definition of Claim ....................................................................................40 
Indemnifications ........................................................................................40 
Claims Notification ....................................................................................40 
Requirement for Insurance  ........................................................................40 
General Insurance Requirements ...............................................................41 

6.0 Changes to Contractor’s Rights and Obligations ...............................................................42 
Assignment ................................................................................................42 
Subcontracting ...........................................................................................42 
General Changes ........................................................................................42 
Requests for changes ..................................................................................42 
Purchasing Agent Authority ......................................................................42 
Change of Name ........................................................................................42 

7.0 Dispute Resolution ....................................................................................................... 42-43 
Procedure ...................................................................................................42 

Notice of Dispute ...............................................................42 
Flow of Information ...........................................................43 
Proposed Resolution ..........................................................43 
Appeal ................................................................................43 

Mediation ...................................................................................................43 
Suspension .................................................................................................43 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 3 of 85 
 

 

Non-waiver of Default ...............................................................................43 
8.0 Termination .................................................................................................................. 43-44 

Termination for Convenience ....................................................................43 
Termination for Default .............................................................................44 
Funding Out ...............................................................................................44 

9.0 Forfeiture of Contract Benefits ..........................................................................................44 
10.0 Notice .................................................................................................................................45 

Written .......................................................................................................45 
County Address ..........................................................................................45 
Contractor Address ....................................................................................45 
Change of Address .....................................................................................45 

11.0 General Provisions ....................................................................................................... 45-48 
Time of the Essence ...................................................................................45 
Retained Right of Management .................................................................45 
Non-Exclusivity .........................................................................................46 
Execution of Other Documents ..................................................................46 
Force Majeure ............................................................................................46 
Entire Agreement .......................................................................................46 
Priority of Parts ..........................................................................................46 
Law and Venue ..........................................................................................47 
Binding Contract ........................................................................................47 
Survival of provisions ................................................................................47 
Interpretational Guidelines ................................................................... 47-48 

Sovereign Immunity and Affirmative Defenses ................47 
Severability ........................................................................47 
Computation of Time .........................................................47 
Number and Gender ...........................................................47 
Headings ............................................................................47 

Exemption from County Purchasing Act ...................................................48 
Duplicate Originals ....................................................................................48 

Signature Page ...........................................................................................................................................48 
 
The following attachments will be included in the contract FOR TPA and PBM: 
 
Contract Attachment A Description of Services, Schedules, and Deliverables * 
Contract Attachment B Fee Rates, Payment Schedule and Invoicing Requirements * 
Contract Attachment C  Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 

Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts ** 
Contract Attachment D Ethics Affidavit ** 
Contract Attachment E Business Associate Agreement 
 
* To be negotiated. 
** In Solicitation Attachments for completion. 
 
PART II SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FULLY INSURED STOP LOSS COVERAGE . 58-59 
 
1.0 Effective Date of Coverage ................................................................................................58 
2.0 Travis County’s Essential Elements of Coverage ..............................................................58 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 4 of 85 
 

 

PART II SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FULLY INSURED VISION COVERAGE ........ 59-60 
 
1.0 Effective Date of Coverage ................................................................................................59 
2.0 Travis County’s Essential Elements of Coverage ..............................................................59 
 
PART III SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE ....................... 60-62 
 
1.0 Term of Agreement ............................................................................................................60 
2.0 Option to Extend ................................................................................................................60 
3.0 Administration of Contract ................................................................................................60 
4.0 Minimum Coverage for Insurance .....................................................................................60 
 
PART IV GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE ..................... 62-72 
 
1.0 General Definitions ............................................................................................................64 
2.0 Reserved .............................................................................................................................64 
3.0 Contractor Certification .....................................................................................................64 
4.0 Disputes and Appeals .........................................................................................................64 
5.0 Funding Out .......................................................................................................................65 
6.0 Reserved .............................................................................................................................65 
7.0 Invoicing/Payment .............................................................................................................65 
8.0 Discounts............................................................................................................................65 
9.0 Officials Not To Benefit ....................................................................................................65 
10.0 Covenant Against Contingent Fees ....................................................................................65 
11.0 Assignment ........................................................................................................................66 
12.0 Force Majeure ....................................................................................................................66 
13.0 Termination for Convenience ............................................................................................66 
14.0 Termination for Default .....................................................................................................66 
15.0 Changes ..............................................................................................................................67 
16.0 County Access ...................................................................................................................67 
17.0 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance ..........................................................................................68 
18.0 Reserved .............................................................................................................................68 
19.0 Assignment of Contract or Mortgage ................................................................................68 
20.0 Gratuities ............................................................................................................................68 
21.0 Forfeiture of Contract ........................................................................................................68 
22.0 Notices ...............................................................................................................................68 
23.0 Construction of Contract ....................................................................................................69 
24.0 Entire Contract ...................................................................................................................69 
25.0 Contractor Indemnification ................................................................................................69 
26.0 Insurance Requirements .....................................................................................................69 
27.0 Additional General Provisions ...........................................................................................71 
28.0 Designated County Holidays 2013 ....................................................................................71 
29.0 Reserved .............................................................................................................................71 
30.0 Delayed Payment to Contractor due to Outstanding Debt .................................................71 
31.0 Non-Waiver of Default ......................................................................................................72 
32.0 Certification of Eligibility ..................................................................................................72 
33.0 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire ......................................................................................72 
Signature Page ...........................................................................................................................................72 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 5 of 85 
 

 

The following attachments will be included in the contract FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE: 
 
Contract Attachment A Description of Services, Specimen Policy, and Report Deliverables * 
Contract Attachment B Premium Rates, Levels of Coverage, Payment Schedule and Invoicing * 
 
Contract Attachment C Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 

Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts ** 
Contract Attachment D Ethics Affidavit ** 
 
* To be negotiated. 
** In Solicitation Attachments for completion. 

 
 
The following Solicitation Attachments Apply to the TPA, PBM and Fully Insured Coverage’s:  
 
Solicitation Attachment 1 Statement of Proposed Services 
Solicitation Attachment 2 Questionnaires *** 
Solicitation Attachment 3 References 
Solicitation Attachment 4 Ethics Affidavit 
Solicitation Attachment 5 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 

Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts 
Solicitation Attachment 6 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 
Solicitation Attachment 7 Historically Underutilized Business (Hub) Program Subcontracting 

Declaration 
Solicitation Attachment 8 Travis County Summary Plan Description (6 plans) *** 
Solicitation Attachment 9 Census Data *** 
Solicitation Attachment 10 De-identified Health Plan Claim Detail *** 
Solicitation Attachment 11 De-identified Pharmaceutical Claims Experience *** 
Solicitation Attachment 12 FY2014 Travis County Benefits Guide *** 
Solicitation Attachment 13 Current Third Party Administration Agreement *** 
Solicitation Attachment 14 Current Stop Loss Agreement *** 
Solicitation Attachment 15 Monthly Claim Summary, Membership by Month and Large Loss Claim 

Information *** 
Solicitation Attachment 16 Current Health Plan Network Provider Listing *** 
Solicitation Attachment 17 Current Vision Plan Network Provider Listing *** 
 
*** See Part I, Section B, Subsection 2.4 for how to request these solicitation attachments. 
 
IMPORTANT NOTES: 

 
The above information is protected under the HIPAA Privacy Regulations and must be handled accordingly 
Travis County has endeavored to assure the accuracy of the attached data but provides no guarantee. 
 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 6 of 85 
 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) # 1311-003-CW 

Health Plan Third Party Administration (TPA), Pharmacy Benefit Management (PBM), Fully Insured Vision 
and Specific Stop Loss Coverage 

 
PART I - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
PART I, SECTION A - GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
1.0 PURPOSE: 

 
Travis County seeks a contract with a company who demonstrates a commitment to help the County 
meet its objectives. Travis County Purchasing Agent is requesting proposals from qualified firms 
authorized to do business in the State of Texas and capable of providing one or more of the following 
services for Travis County (the "County"): 
 

1. Health Plan Third Party Administration (includes Disease/Case Management, Wellness, 
COBRA administration and Retiree Billing) and 

2. Pharmacy Benefit Management and  
3. Fully insured Specific Stop Loss Coverage and  
4. Fully insured Vision Coverage  

 
2.0 INCURRED EXPENSES: 

 
There is no expressed or implied obligation for Travis County to reimburse Proposers for any expense 
incurred in preparing proposals in response to this request, and Travis County will not reimburse anyone 
for these expenses.  All costs directly or indirectly related to preparation of a response to this Solicitation 
or any oral presentations required to supplement and/or clarify a Proposal which may be required by the 
County are the sole responsibility of the Proposer.  Travis County will consider proposals from all 
responsible Proposers. 

 
3.0 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL: 

 
3.1 To be considered, proposals shall be submitted with ONE (1) ORIGINAL (MARKED 

“ORIGINAL”), with SEVEN (7) COPIES AND THREE (3) ELECTRONIC VERSIONS OF 
THE PROPOSAL, SUBMITTED ON THREE (3) FLASH DRIVES to the Travis County 
Purchasing Agent no later than 10:00 A.M. CST, January 7, 2014 at 10:00 A.M. CST.  Proposals 
will be opened at 10:00 A.M. CST, January 7, 2014.All proposals must to be addressed to: 

 
All hard copy proposals shall be addressed to either: 

 
(Street address) (Mailing address) 

Cyd Grimes Cyd Grimes 
Travis County Purchasing Agent Travis County Purchasing Agent 

700 Lavaca, Suite 800 P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78701 Austin, Texas 78767 

 
3.2 The envelope in which the proposal is enclosed shall be marked: 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 7 of 85 
 

 

 
SEALED PROPOSAL 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) # 1311-003-CW 
Health Plan TPA, PBM, Fully Insured Vision and Specific Stop Loss Coverage 

DO NOT OPEN IN MAILROOM 
 

3.3 Proposals submitted by electronic transmission other than as instructed above will not be 
considered; however, proposals may be modified by electronic transmission if the modification 
is received prior to the time and date set for the proposal opening and specific proposal prices are 
not exposed by the modification. 
 

3.4 Proposals responding to the four services in the RFP may be prepared separately or as a single 
Proposal.  Because these services are complementary, the County has requested proposals 
simultaneously and will review the proposals together.    County will conduct as much of the 
solicitation process for the four services together as is legally appropriate. For instance, there will 
be one Pre-Proposal Conference to discuss all services. However, the County will evaluate the 
proposals for the services separately and in compliance with the different legal requirements that 
apply to the solicitation of each service. 

 
4.0 LATE PROPOSALS OR MODIFICATIONS: 
 

Proposals and modifications received after the time set for the proposal submission will not be 
considered. 

 
5.0 PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE: 
 

An Optional pre-proposal conference is scheduled for all prospective proposers as follows: 
 

DATE:  December 4, 2013 
TIME:  02:00 P.M CST 
PLACE: Travis County 

Multifunction Conference Room, 1st Floor 
700 Lavaca Street 
Austin, Texas 78701 

 
5.1 Proposers are encouraged to attend the Pre-Proposal conference and make their attendance a 

matter of record by completing a sign-in roster identifying the prospective proposer, name, and 
title of their attending representative. 
 

5.2 The purpose of the Pre-Proposal Conference is to insure; 
 

5.2.1 a clear understanding of County needs, 
 

5.2.2 the accuracy of requirements, descriptions, and solicitation terms, conditions, and 
documents, and 

 
5.2.3 identification of any problems which might prevent obtaining the proper services at a fair 

and reasonable price, or any issues that inhibits a fair and accurate solicitation or restricts 
competition. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 8 of 85 
 

 

 
5.3 Any changes resulting from the Pre-Proposal Conference which affect requirements or the scope 

of work, or which may require an extension to the proposal opening date will be reduced to 
writing in the form of an amendment to this solicitation.  Such amendment will be disseminated 
to all proposers that have obtained copies of this solicitation from BidSync. 

  
6.0 WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS: 
 

A proposal may not be withdrawn or cancelled by the Proposer without the permission of Travis County 
Commissioners Court for one hundred fifty (150) days following the date designated for the submission 
of proposals, and a Proposer agrees to this by submitting a proposal.  All Proposals are valid for a period 
of one hundred fifty (150) calendar days subsequent to the date designated for submissions of proposals 
unless a longer acceptance period is offered in the Proposal. 

 
7.0 POINTS OF CONTACT: 
 

Information regarding the purchasing process, the contents of this Solicitation, or questions concerning 
the technical requirements in Part II may be obtained from C.W. Bruner, Purchasing Agent Assistant IV, 
Travis County Purchasing Office, 700 Lavaca, Suite 800, Austin, Texas, Telephone (512) 854-9760, 
c.w.bruner@co.travis.tx.us.  Mention the Solicitation number at the top of this page. 

 
8.0 CLARIFICATION OR OBJECTION TO PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 

If any person contemplating submitting a proposal is in doubt as to the true meaning of the requirements 
or other documents or any part of them, that person may submit questions to the Purchasing Agent on or 
before TEN CALENDAR DAYS BEFORE the proposal is due. All such requests for information shall 
be made in writing and the person submitting the request is responsible for its prompt delivery.  Any 
interpretation of this Solicitation is made only by Solicitation Amendment issued by the Purchasing 
Agent.  A copy of such Solicitation Amendment is mailed or delivered to each person that received a 
solicitation from the Travis County Purchasing Agent.  Any Solicitation Amendment shall clearly state 
whether the interpretation related to the professional services or the fully insured coverage portion of 
this Solicitation. 

 
9.0 GENERAL CONDITIONS: 
 

Proposer shall thoroughly examine the technical requirements, performance parameters, instructions and 
all other contract documents. Proposal shall set forth accurate and complete information as required by 
this Solicitation (including attachments) for the services being proposed. No plea of ignorance by the 
Proposer of conditions that exist or that may exist later as a result of failure or omission on the part of 
the Proposer to make the necessary examinations and investigations, or failure to fulfill in every detail 
the requirements of the contract documents, will be accepted as a basis for varying the requirements of 
Travis County or the compensation to the Proposer. 

 
10.0 ETHICS POLICY: 

 
County has adopted an Ethics Policy that controls the way in which County contracts with vendors who 
have entered into certain transactions with persons who are influential in selecting vendors for a 
particular contract and in determining the terms and conditions of the contract.  The persons that the 
County considers to be influential in this contract are called Key Contracting Persons and are listed in 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 9 of 85 
 

 

the Exhibit A to the Affidavit at the end of Part I.  The transactions that are covered by the Ethics Policy 
are those that involve either of the following: 
 
10.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth more than 

$250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for the purchase of any property or 
property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 
 

10.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in existence any 
legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a calendar year; 

 
10.3 But does not include: 
 

10.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a posted, 
published, or marked price available to the public, 
 

10.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, family or 
household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to similarly situated 
individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the ordinary course of its 
business; and 

 
10.3.3 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of Contractor if 

Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee or 
representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or she 
should have known about the Contract. 

 
This policy requires a Proposer to inform Travis County of covered transactions with the Key 
Contracting Persons that have occurred in the year before they submit their proposals and to swear and 
submit the affidavit at the end of this section with their proposal.  This policy also requires the selected 
Proposer not to enter into covered transactions with the Key Contracting Persons at any time during the 
contract. If the selected Proposer does not comply with these information requirements, the selected 
Proposer shall continue to perform the contract and forfeit all of the benefits of the contract as provided 
in 9.0 of the General Provisions in Part IV-For TPA and PBM for the Health Plan Third Party 
Administration (includes Disease/Case Management, Wellness, COBRA and Retiree Billing) and 
Pharmacy Benefit Management services and in 22.0 of the General Provisions in Part IV-For Fully 
Insured Coverage for the Specific Stop Loss Coverage and Vision Coverage. 

 
11.0 COMPLIANCE WITH THE TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT 
 

Travis County is subject to the Texas Public Information Act.  Proposers should be aware that this act 
requires Travis County to provide copies of its records whenever a member of the public requests the 
information.  There are exceptions to disclosure of records that protect truly proprietary information, 
copyrights and other intellectual property.  However, submissions must be made to the Attorney General 
each time a request is made and these must be supplemented by the proposer if the materials are to be 
treated as an exception to disclosure.  Being aware of this requirement and being discreet in claims of 
confidentiality are appreciated.   

 
12.0 HUB PROCUREMENT PROGRAM: 

 
12.1 General Information 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 10 of 85 
 

 

 
12.1.1 It is the policy of Travis County that HUBs will have the maximum opportunity to 

participate in the performance of County contracts and subcontracts.  The Travis County 
HUB Program goals in the Construction category is an Overall 13.7% Minority-Owned 
Business Enterprise (MBE) goal and an Overall 13.8% Women-Owned Business 
Enterprise (WBE) goal (Sub-goals:  1.7% African-American, 9.7% Hispanic-American, 
2.3% Native/Asian-American). The program strongly encourages prime contractors to 
initiate a “Good Faith Effort” to provide subcontracting opportunities to Certified HUBs. 
 

12.1.2 To be considered as a “Certified HUB” the contractor and/or subcontractors shall have 
officially been certified as a HUB, M/WBE, or a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
(DBE) by the State of Texas, the City of Austin, or the Texas Unified Certification 
Program, and hold a current certification at the time the contract or subcontract is entered 
into. 

 
12.1.3 A “Subcontractor,” for the purpose of this section, is defined as any contractor/vendor 

who provides supplies, materials and/or services to a second contractor/vendor if the 
supplies/materials/services are used in fulfillment of the second contractor’s/vendor’s 
contractual obligations with the County. 

 
12.2 REQUIREMENTS DURING PROCUREMENT PROCESS 

 
12.2.1 During the procurement process, there are certain requirements the Proposer will be 

requested to fulfill as they relate to the utilization of HUBs.  In fulfilling these 
requirements, the HUB SUBCONTRACTING DECLARATION FORM, found in this 
section, should be completed and returned with the bid. 
 

12.2.2 Please type or print all required information required in the appropriate SECTION(S) of 
this Form.  FAILURE TO COMPLETE THE APPLICABLE SECTION(S) OF THIS 
FORM MAY RESULT IN YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL BEING DISQUALIFIED. 

 
12.2.3 By completing this form and listing the Certified HUB Subcontractors, you (Prime 

Contractor) indicate that you have contacted the listed HUBs and the authorized 
representatives agree as to price, terms and conditions, and scope of the proposed 
subcontract.  Should this contract be awarded to your company you agree to subcontract 
with the listed HUBs for the price and at the terms, conditions, and scope as disclosed. 

 
12.3 CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

 
12.3.1 The Travis County Purchasing Office implemented an electronic reporting system 

(Vendor Tracking System) to eliminate standard forms, and streamline the current 
manual process of tracking payments to all first-tier subcontractors/sub-consultants by 
performing all such tracking procedures electronically. 
 

12.3.2 The selected contractor is responsible for the use of the system, and must require all 
subcontractors to be responsible for system reporting. 

 
12.3.3 Training and additional information regarding the use of this system will be provided to 

the selected Contractor by Travis County Purchasing Office HUB staff after contract 
award, but prior to commencement of contract performance. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 11 of 85 
 

 

 
If you have any questions regarding this system or difficulty in locating Certified HUB Subcontractors 
contact the Travis County HUB staff at (512) 854-9700 for assistance. 

 
PART I, SECTION B -REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 

 
1.0 The following documentation shall be submitted with the proposal.  Paragraph 2.0 lists documentation 

that will be used in the evaluation of the proposal.  Paragraph 3.0 lists other documents that shall be 
submitted.  Please note this Section B may not address all documentation required by this Solicitation.  
The Proposer is cautioned to read the entire Solicitation document to determine all requirements.  
TRAVIS COUNTY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT A PROPOSAL WHICH DOES NOT 
CONTAIN ALL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THIS SOLICIATION DOCUMENT. 
 

2.0 To achieve a uniform review process and to obtain a maximum degree of comparability, Travis County 
requires that proposals be submitted in the following format: 
 
2.1 Tab 1 - Title Page 
 
Title page must show the Solicitation subject, making note of which of the four services are proposed; 
the Proposer's legal business name; the name, address, and telephone number(s) of the designated 
individual(s) who will be responsible for answering technical and contractual questions with the respect 
to the proposal; and the date of the proposal. 

 
2.2 Tab 2 - Transmittal Letter 

 
Submit a signed letter briefly addressing the Proposer's understanding of the work to be done, the 
commitment to do the work detailed within this Solicitation, and a statement explaining why the 
Proposer believes itself to be best qualified to do the required work. 
 

2.3 Tab 3 – Statement of Services Proposed 
 
Complete the Statement of Services Proposed provided in Solicitation Attachment 1 and insert it 
in your proposal after the Transmittal Letter. 
 

2.4 Tab 4 - Description of Proposer 
 

The description must include the services the Proposer is proposing to provide, the number of 
employees both inside and outside of Travis County, and a description and location of service 
facilities and a description of Proposer's entity status. 
 

2.5 Tab 5 - Detailed Proposal 
 

The detailed proposal must address the ability to provide services for each requirement of the 
Solicitation related to Health Plan Third Party Administration (which includes Case/Disease 
Management, Wellness, COBRA administration and Retiree Billing Services) and Pharmacy 
Benefit Management as set forth in Parts II-For TPA and PBM through IV-For TPA and PBM of 
this Solicitation if these services are being proposed.  In addition, the detailed proposal must 
include a completed questionnaire for the services proposed. 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 12 of 85 
 

 

2.5.1 The detailed proposal must address the ability to provide services for each requirement of the 
Solicitation related to Specific Stop Loss Coverage and Vision Coverage as set forth in Parts II-
For Fully Insured Coverage through IV- For Fully Insured Coverage of this Solicitation if these 
services are being proposed.  In addition, the detailed proposal must include the completed 
Solicitation Attachment 2 – Questionnaires for the services proposed. 
 
The questionnaires must be requested from C.W. Bruner, Purchasing Agent Assistant IV, via 
email at c.w.bruner@co.travis.tx.us.  All proposers must include a completed questionnaire for 
General Information.  Proposers must also include a completed questionnaire applicable for each 
of the services proposed: 
 
1. General Information;  
2. Health Plan Third Party Administration (which includes, Case/Disease Management, 

Wellness, COBRA administration and Retiree Billing Services); 
3. Pharmacy Benefit Management; 
4. Fully Insured Specific Stop Loss Coverage; and 
5. Fully Insured Vision Coverage 
 
The questionnaire must be completed on the form submitted for each of the services you are 
proposing. 
 
See especially Part I, Section C, Evaluation and Award Criteria for information required. 

 
2.6 Tab 5 – Fees 

 
2.6.1 Each proposal must provide all fees and rates proposed for the services. In evaluating 

fees provided the County will also consider discounts proposed to determine the best 
value. The County is requesting that, regardless of the format in which fees are quoted, 
that a separate quote be provided for each line of coverage, broken down as follows: 

 
Part I – Medical ASO Fees 

Claim Administration Fees 
Network Access Fee 
Disease Management Fees 
Case Management Fees 
Wellness Fees 
Utilization Review/Large Case Management Fees 
Coordination of Benefit Fee 
Subrogation Fees 
Shared Savings Fees 
Reporting Fees 
Wellness Fees 
Fees to Integrate with Outside Stop Loss 
Fees to Integrate with Outside PBM 
COBRA Administration Fees 
Retiree Billing Fees 

 
If a bundled PEPM Fee is quoted please also break out the fee into the above categories.  
Any additional fees for custom reports, etc. must be outlined. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 13 of 85 
 

 

 
Part II – Pharmacy Benefit Management Fee 

 
Part III – Specific Stop Loss Premium 

 
Part IV – Vision Coverage Premium 

Employee Only 
Employee + Child 
Employee + Children 
Employee + Adult 
Employee + Adult + Child 
Employee + Adult + Children 

 
2.6.2 Rates for expense reimbursement must be stated on an appropriate unit basis. If Proposer 

wants increases in fees at the beginning of each option period, these must be stated in the 
proposal by a year to year basis for each proposed service. 
 

2.6.3 Formula for Fee or Premium Increase for Option Years and Fee or Premium Caps for 
Options Years if Proposer  wants an adjustment of the rates in the option periods must be 
stated in a manner that results in a certain or ascertainable fee or premium. 

 
2.7 Tab 6 – Sample Reports 
 

Each proposal must provide sample reports the Proposer currently uses for each proposed service 
and details, specific to electronic downloads, of the reports that would be made available to 
Travis County. 
 

2.8 Tab 7 – Re-Pricing of Claims Data 
 

Each proposal must provide re-pricing information based on the health and pharmacy claim data 
included in Solicitation Attachment 10 – De-identified Health Plan Claim Detail and Solicitation 
Attachment 11 – De-identified Pharmaceutical Claims Experience.  
 

2.9 Tab 8 - Complete and submit the following documents: 
 
2.9.1 Solicitation Attachment 1 – Statement of Proposed Services 

 
2.9.2 Solicitation Attachment 3 – References 

 
2.9.3 Solicitation Attachment 4 – Ethics Affidavit (Notarized) 

 
2.9.4 Solicitation Attachment 5 - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 

and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts 
 

2.9.5 Solicitation Attachment 6 – Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 
 

2.9.6 Solicitation Attachment 7 – Historically Underutilized Business (Hub) Program 
Subcontracting Declaration 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 14 of 85 
 

 

2.9.7 Contract provisions detailing terms and conditions not covered in Solicitation 
 

2.9.8 Fee compensation 
 

2.9.9 All other information required by this Solicitation 
 

2.10 Tab 9 – Deviations from the RFP terms and conditions in the respective Parts II through IV, as 
applicable to the services proposed. 

 
For any deviations requested, the Proposer must clearly indicate each deviation and indicate the 
alternative language requested along with the business need for the alternative language.  The 
failure to identify deviations or proposed changes with a full explanation constitutes acceptance 
by the Proposer of the terms and conditions proposed by the County in this Solicitation. 
 

NOTE:  FAILURE TO PROVIDE ALL INFORMATION REQUESTED MAY RESULT IN 
DISQUALIFICATION OF THE PROPOSAL.

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 15 of 85 
 

 

PART I, SECTION C - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
1.0 PRE-AWARD SURVEY: 

 
After proposal opening and prior to award, County reserves the right to make a pre-award survey of 
Proposer's facilities and equipment to be used in the performance of this work.  Proposer agrees to allow 
all reasonable requests for inspection of facilities with two (2) calendar days advance notice.  Failure to 
allow an inspection shall be cause for rejection of a proposal as non-responsive.  Travis County reserves 
the right to reject facilities or equipment as unacceptable for performance as a result of the pre-award 
survey. 

 
2.0 PROPOSAL DISCLOSURE: 

 
Proposals will be opened so as to avoid disclosure of the contents to competing Proposers.  Proposals 
will be kept secret during the process of negotiation.  However, all proposals will be open for public 
inspection after award except for information that qualifies as trade secrets and confidential information 
under the Texas Open Records Act if this information is identified as confidential by the Proposer. 

 
3.0 EVALUATION FACTORS FOR TPA AND PBM: 

 
Travis County will consider several evaluation factors, of which price is only one factor.  The selection 
process will be based on the responses for the TPA and PBM services in this RFP, and any 
interviews/demonstrations required to verify the ability of Proposer to provide the services/products 
proposed in response to this document, along with reference checks. Evaluation factors and associated 
point values are listed in order of importance: 
 
Evaluation Category Description Total Possible Points – 1,000 
 
I. Health Plan TPA Services 500 Points 
 
Administrative Services 

 Competitive pricing for all services 
 Ability to add Out-of-Network providers to Network when requested 
 Ability to integrate with outside vendor(s) 
 Ability to accept downloads from outside vendor(s) and frequency that downloads are updated 

 
Medical Claims Administration 

 Quality, performance and accuracy 
 Guarantees on claim resolution for members and for Travis County 
 Human Resources Staff 
 Claims payment system 
 Dedicated Account Manager and tenure 
 Customer service response times 
 Flexibility 

 
Networks 

 Provider disruption 
 Level of network discounts 
 Ability to provide actual discounts, down to specific claim level 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 16 of 85 
 

 

Cost Containment Programs 
 Utilization Review and Large Case Management 
 Disease Management 
 Case Management 
 Return on investment for programs 
 Coordination of Benefits 
 Subrogation 

 
Wellness Programs 

 Biometric Screenings, HRA 
 Web/Smartphone Tools 
 Wellness challenges 
 Health coaches 
 Return on investment 

 
Reporting 

 Standard reports 
 Custom reports 
 Flexibility 
 Ability to incorporate clinic data into reports 
 Ad Hoc reporting capabilities 

 
Website 

 Employer portal 
 Participant portal 
 Ability to view claims history and prescriptions 
 Transparency Tools 

 
Intangibles 

 
Financial Viability 

 
II. Pharmacy 250 Points 

 
Pharmacy 

 Competitive pricing 
 Transparent pricing 
 Rebates 
 Covered PDL 
 Specialty Rx 
 Mail Order 
 Retail Pharmacy Network 
 Ability to provide Rx repricing down to the actual claim and pharmacy level 

 
Reporting 

 Standard reports 
 Custom reports 
 Flexibility 
 Ability to incorporate clinic data into reports 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 17 of 85 
 

 

 Ad Hoc reporting capabilities 
 

Website 
 Employer portal 
 Participant portal 
 Ability to view claims history and prescriptions 
 Transparency Tools 

 
Intangibles 

 
Financial Viability 

 
4.0 EVALUATION FACTORS FOR Fully Insured Coverage: 

 
Travis County will consider several evaluation factors, of which price is only one factor.  The selection 
process will be based on the responses to the fully insured coverage in this RFP, and any 
interviews/demonstrations required to verify the ability of Proposer to provide the services/products 
proposed in response to this document, along with reference checks. Evaluation factors and associated 
point values are listed in order of importance: 
 
Evaluation Category Description Points – 250 
 

 
I. Stop Loss 200 Points 

 
Stop Loss 

 Competitive pricing 
 Contractual terms 
 Reporting 
 Claims processing 
 Financial viability of Reinsurance Carrier 
 Intangibles 

 
 

II. Vision 50 Points 
 

Vision 
 Competitive pricing 
 Contractual terms 
 Claims processing 

 
Networks 

 Provider disruption 
 Level of network discounts 

 
Reporting 

 Standard reports 
 Custom reports 
 Flexibility 
 Ability to incorporate clinic data into reports 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 18 of 85 
 

 

 Ad Hoc reporting capabilities 
 

Website 
 Employer portal 
 Participant portal 
 Ability to view claims history and prescriptions 
 Transparency Tools 

 
Intangibles 

 
Financial Viability 

 
5.0 METHOD OF AWARD: 

 
5.1 The award of the contract shall be made to the responsible Proposer, whose proposal is 

determined to be the best evaluated offer resulting from negotiation, taking into consideration the 
relative importance of price and other evaluation factors set forth herein. 
 

5.2 Prompt payment discounts will not be considered in determining low proposals and making 
awards. 

 
5.3 In considering the proposals, Travis County reserves the right to select one or more responsible 

Proposers. 
 
5.4 Travis County reserves the right to award only a portion of this Solicitation. 
 
5.5 Travis County reserves the right to cancel this Solicitation at any time. 
 

6.0 PRELIMINARY FILE REVIEW: 
 
The Benefits function for the County is set up as a division within the County's Human Resources 
Management Department.  Successful Proposer may contact Mr. John Rabb, Travis County Benefits 
Manager, at (512) 854-2742, to arrange implementation after contract award. 

 
7.0 CONTRACT: 

 
When Travis County awards a contract for Health Plan Third Party Administration (which includes 
Case/Disease Management, Wellness, COBRA and Retiree Billing Services) and/or Pharmacy Benefit 
Management to the successful Proposer, the contract will only include the following: 

 
PART II-For TPA and PBM subject only to deviations requested in the proposal and 
supplemented by Contract Attachment A which will be based on the results of negotiations and 
the Proposer’s best and final offer and will include applicable portions of the successful 
proposal; 
 
PART III-For TPA and PBM subject only to deviations requested in the successful proposal that 
are subsequently approved by County; 
 
PART IV-For TPA and PBM subject only to deviations requested in the successful proposal that 
are subsequently approved by County and supplemented by Contract Attachment B which will 
be based on the results of negotiations and the proposer’s best and final offer and will include 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 19 of 85 
 

 

applicable portions of the successful proposal. 
 
Contract Attachments C, D, and E will be included in the contract and will only be subject to 
deviations requested in the successful proposal that are subsequently approved by County. 
 

When Travis County awards a contract for fully insured Specific Stop Loss Coverage and/or Vision 
Coverage to the successful Proposer, the contract will include only the following: 

 
PART II-For Fully Insured Coverage subject only to deviations requested in the successful 
proposal that are subsequently approved by County and supplemented by Contract Attachment A 
which will be based on the results of negotiations and the proposer’s best and final offer and will 
include applicable portions of the successful proposal such as a specimen copy of the applicable 
policy; 
 
PART III-For Fully Insured Coverage subject only to deviations requested in the successful 
proposal that are subsequently approved by County; 
 
PART IV-For Fully Insured Coverage subject only to deviations requested in the successful 
proposal that are subsequently approved by County and supplemented by Contract Attachment B 
which will be based on the results of negotiations and the proposer’s best and final offer and will 
include applicable portions of the successful proposal such as level of coverage and applicable 
premiums. 
 
Contract Attachments C and D will be included in the contract and will only be subject to 
deviations requested in the successful proposal that are subsequently approved by County. 

 
PART I, SECTION D - NEGOTIATIONS 

 
1.0 NEGOTIATIONS: 

 
1.1 The Purchasing Agent supervises all negotiations. 

 
1.2 Discussions may be conducted with responsible Proposers who submit proposals determined to 

be reasonably susceptible of being selected for award.  Those Proposers will be accorded fair and 
equal treatment with respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of proposals.  
Revisions to proposals may be permitted after submission and before award for the purpose of 
obtaining best and final offers. 

 
1.3 Proposers may be required to submit additional data during the process of any negotiations. 
 
1.4 Travis County reserves the right to negotiate the price and any other term with the Proposers. 
 
1.5 Any oral negotiations shall be confirmed in writing prior to award. 
 

2.0 DEVIATIONS:  Requirements stated in this Solicitation become part of the contract resulting from this 
Solicitation unless the Proposer requests a deviation.  Any requests for deviations from these 
requirements shall be specifically defined by the Proposer in the proposal.  If accepted, the deviation 
becomes part of the contract.  Travis County reserves the right to modify the requirements of this 
Solicitation. 
 

3.0 RESERVATION OF RIGHTS: 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 20 of 85 
 

 

 
3.1 County expressly reserves the right to: 

 
3.1.1 waive any defect, irregularity or informality in any proposal; 

 
3.1.2 waive any noncompliance with the requirements of this Solicitation 

 
3.1.3 reject or cancel any proposal or parts of any proposal; 

 
3.1.4 accept proposals from one or more Proposers; or 

 
3.1.5 procure the services in whole or in part by other means. 

 
4.0 PROTESTS:  Protests before award shall be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Agent not later than 

six (6) calendar days after proposal opening, and protests after award shall be submitted within ten (10) 
calendar days after award by Commissioners Court.  The Purchasing Agent shall rule on the protest in 
writing within ten (10) calendar days from date of receipt.  Any appeal to the Purchasing Agent's 
decision shall be made and submitted to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10) calendar days after receipt 
of the decision. The Purchasing Agent presents the matter for final resolution to Commissioners Court.  
Appellant is notified of the time and place the appeal is to be heard by Commissioners Court and 
afforded an opportunity to present evidence in support of the appeal. 
 

PART I, SECTION E, BACKGROUND 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

 
Travis County has retained ASO Medical Administration that includes Disease Management/Case 
Management, Wellness, Vision, COBRA administration and Retiree Billing as well as Pharmacy Benefit 
Management through United Healthcare for the past 10+ years. Travis County has retained Specific Stop 
Loss through Sun Life for 2+ years. 
 
Travis County has been self-funded for health benefits since October 1, 2001, and currently offers three 
partially self-funded coverage options in its medical plans for employees: an exclusive provider 
organization (EPO), and a preferred provider organization (PPO) and a custom plan for Travis County, 
the Co-Insured EPO (CEPO) with each having similar type of benefits, at different levels of 
reimbursement. Travis County offers the same three options in separate plans for its retirees with 
Medicare being primary for those in all three plans who are Medicare eligible.   All plans currently have 
$275,000 ISL coverage. Travis County currently contributes 100% of the premium for employee only 
coverage for PPO and CEPO plans, with the Employee contributing $109 per month on the EPO plan for 
employee only coverage. The employees are responsible for any dependent premium. Retirees are 
responsible for premiums for both themselves and their dependents. There are approximately 4,448 
eligible employees, and approximately 764 retirees enrolled in medical coverage. 

 
Currently the active employees and retirees are offered their choice of the same plan of benefits; 
however the premium rate structure is different. Retirees and their eligible dependents (including 
surviving spouses) are eligible for coverage under the medical plan.  Employees and retirees (with any 
eligible dependents, including retirees’ surviving spouses, and domestic partners) may change plans, 
drop or enroll in the coverage every year at annual enrollment or as HIPAA provides.  Note: Retirees 
must have had their dependent covered at the time they retired to ever cover them on plan.  Once 
coverage is dropped, neither retirees nor their dependents may enroll at a future date.  
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 21 of 85 
 

 

Stop loss coverage started October 1, 2001 as a “12/12” contract, and subsequently at each yearly 
renewal has been on an “Incurred/Paid” contract basis. This is defined as any claim incurred since 
November 1, 2011, but paid in current plan year (October 1, 2013 through September 30, 2014). 
 

2.0 MEDICAL PLAN INFORMATION: 
 

New employees are covered effective the first of the month following 30 days after the date of hire. 
 
Regular employees scheduled to work 20 or more hours per week are eligible for coverage. 
 
The County has a unique 6-tier eligibility structure. 
 
Eligibility, billing and enrollment are maintained online and are self-administered. 
 
The County has transitioned away from using social security numbers to assigned employer ID numbers 
but still has social security numbers available if the need arises. 
 
There is no limitation on pre-existing conditions on the medical plan. 
 
Domestic partners (significant other or one other adult in household) and Sponsored Dependents (blood 
relative) are eligible for coverage. 
 
Covered Surviving Spouses of retirees who pass away while covered are eligible to continue coverage. 
 
Travis County has a few direct contracts with specified providers.  UHC administers the claim payment 
according to the direct contract. These contracts are primarily with Internal Medicine physicians and a 
Birthing Center who have not contracted directly with UnitedHealthcare and represent less than 1% of 
total cost of claims. The County has also directly contracted with a Dietician and local providers for 
PTSD conditions to waive copays for members. 
  
Travis County staff performs in-house weekly audit functions in both the eligibility and the claims area.  
This is based on the weekly reimbursement request received from UnitedHealthcare.  100% eligibility 
audit, and all claims over $25,000, all stop loss claims, and 15% of other claims are audited weekly.  
After audit, all claims are submitted to the Commissioners Court for approval before replacement 
funding of the Escrow account. 
 
Pharmacy benefit management is with Optum Rx with a traditional formulary. 
 
Prescription drugs are included in the individual stop loss. 
 
Three County-staffed on-site wellness and health clinics serve employees, retirees and their dependents 
for acute and chronic health conditions, as well as preventative and disease management.  Health 
screening and education classes are offered free.  
 
PART I, SECTION F, QUESTIONAIRES AND REQUESTS FOR DATA INFORMATION 

 
1.0 REQUEST FOR QUESTIONNAIRES: 

 
1.1 The questionnaire(s) must be requested from C.W. Bruner, Purchasing Agent Assistant IV, via 

email at c.w.bruner@co.travis.tx.us.  Proposer must mention Solicitation # and Solicitation Title 
in subject line of email request.  All proposers must include a completed questionnaire for 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 22 of 85 
 

 

General Information.  Proposers must also include a completed questionnaire applicable for each 
of the services proposed. 
 

1.2 The general section of the questionnaire must be completed as well as the section for each 
service you are providing: 

 
1.  Health Plan Third Party Administration 
2. Pharmacy Benefit Management 
3. Fully Insured Specific Stop Loss 
4. Fully Insured Vision 

 
1.3 The completed questionnaire must be included. 
 

2.0 REQUESTS FOR DATA INFORMATION: 
 

2.1 The solicitation attachments listed in this section of the solicitation must be requested from C.W. 
Bruner, Purchasing Agent Assistant IV, via email at c.w.bruner@co.travis.tx.us.  Proposer must 
mention Solicitation # and Solicitation Title in subject line of email request to receive the 
solicitation attachments below: 

 
 Solicitation Attachment 1 – Statement of Proposed Services 
 Solicitation Attachment 2 – Questionnaires 
 Solicitation Attachment 8 – Travis County Summary Plan Description (6 plans) 
 Solicitation Attachment 9 – Census Data 
 Solicitation Attachment 10 – De-identified Health Plan Claim Detail  
 Solicitation Attachment 11 – De-identified Pharmaceutical Claims Experience 
 Solicitation Attachment 12 - FY2014 Travis County Benefits Guide 
 Solicitation Attachment 13 - Current Third Party Administration Agreement 
 Solicitation Attachment 14 - Current Stop Loss Agreement 
 Solicitation Attachment 15 - Monthly Claim Summary, Membership by Month and Large 

Loss Claim Information 
 Solicitation Attachment 16 - Current Health Plan Network Provider Listing  
 Solicitation Attachment 17 - Current Vision Plan Network Provider Listing 

 
3.0 INCLUDED ATTACHMENTS: 

 
3.1 The following solicitation attachments are available at the end of this document. 
 

 Solicitation Attachment 3 – References 
 Solicitation Attachment 4 – Ethics Affidavit 
 Solicitation Attachment 5 - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 

and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts 
 Solicitation Attachment 6 – Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 
 Solicitation Attachment 7 – Historically Underutilized Business (Hub) Program 

Subcontracting Declaration 
 
PART I, SECTION G – REQUIRED PROCEDURES AND INFORMATION 

FOR FULLY INSURED SPECIFIC STOP LOSS COVERAGE 
 
1.0 LENGTH OF TERM: County is interested in obtaining a Stop Loss insurance agreement that can be 

extended over two (2) years.  This involves a contract with rates applicable for the initial guarantee 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 23 of 85 
 

 

period of twenty-four (24) months, with a formula provided for how rates will be determined for 
renewals that apply to year three (3) through four (4). 
 

2.0 DUPLICATE QUOTES: In an effort to avoid issues associated with the submission of duplicate 
quotes, it is the intent of the county in the event of receipt of duplicate quotes, to use the one that has the 
earliest received date stamp by the Purchasing Office. If quotes are from same carrier but the rates are 
different, we will not consider that a duplicate quote. 
 

3.0 UNDERWRITING INFORMATION: The information contained in this RFP is believed to be current 
and correct.  The ultimate responsibility for determining the full extent of the exposure and verification 
of all information presented in it rests solely with the Proposer.  Proposer should fully review the 
contents of this RFP and request additional supporting information as required.  The County is not 
responsible for any errors and/or omissions in this solicitation, or for the failure on the part of the 
Proposer to determine the full extent of the exposures. 
 

4.0 STANDARDS FOR INSURANCE COMPANIES: All insurance companies used must be qualified or 
licensed in Texas unless the company is a non-admitted or surplus lines company which is on the 
approved list of the State Board of Insurance.  Financial and operational strength of the qualified 
insurance company as evidenced by its A.M. Best's rating must be included with the proposal. The 
insurance companies must have a current A.M. Best's Insurance Reports general policyholder's rating of 
"A" or better and a financial size category of Class V or better.  Any respondent proposing to use a non-
admitted or surplus lines company should verify in writing that they have attempted to secure quotations 
and place the coverage through carriers admitted to do business in Texas. 
 

5.0 SUPPORT SERVICES: All proposals should fully describe the services to be provided by the 
insurance company.  A general outline of proposed services should be submitted.  To the extent the cost 
of these services is not included in the premiums being quoted, the proposer should state the additional 
cost.  The County intends to give due consideration to the ability of the insurance agent, broker and/or 
carrier to service this account.  Supporting information detailing these abilities is recommended. 
 

6.0 EXCLUSIONS: Indicate all exclusions that will be included in the insurance contract. 
 

7.0 SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS: Claims submitted by the County that are considered “clean” claims 
shall be reimbursed within fifteen (15) calendar days or less. 
 

8.0 FUNDING: Funds for payment on this contract have been provided through the county budget 
approved by Commissioners Court for this fiscal year only.  State of Texas statutes prohibit the 
obligations and expenditure of public funds beyond the fiscal year for which a budget has been 
approved.  However, the cost of items or services covered by this contract is considered a recurring 
requirement and is included as a standard and routine expense of Travis County to be included in each 
proposed budget within the foreseeable future.  County Commissioners expect this to be an integral part 
of future budgets to be approved during the period of this contract except for unanticipated needs or 
events, which may prevent such payments against this contract.  However, County cannot guarantee the 
availability of funds, and enters into this Contract only to the extent such funds are made available.  The 
Fiscal Year for County extends from October 1st of each calendar year to September 30th of the next 
calendar year. 
 

9.0 PLAN FUNDING INFORMATION: Benefit claims are processed and paid by UHC using county 
funding held in an escrow account by UHC. When UHC drafts on the escrow account, UHC requests 
weekly reimbursement from Travis County. After an audit process is complete, Travis County staff 
submits a weekly reimbursement request to the Travis County Commissioners Court for approval.  A 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 24 of 85 
 

 

stop loss claim is currently handled as any other claim by UHC.  Payment is released as claims are 
processed.  Travis County is required to fund the stop loss claims as any other claim. 
 

10.0 MITIGATION OF HIGH EXPERIENCE:  Travis County operates three employee wellness and 
health clinics staffed by three physicians and two nurses who focus on: 
 

 Education for employees. 
 Screening for diabetes, cholesterol, hypertension, and heart disease, hoping to diagnose 

and catch these diseases early and to continue to monitor them. 
 Acute care at no cost to employees. 
 Wellness activities such as exercise and walking. 

 
11.0 REQUESTED COVERAGE OPTIONS: Travis County is soliciting proposals for the FY15 plan year 

commencing October 1, 2014.  Premiums are to be proposed for each option year on a composite basis 
(one rate combined for employee/retiree and dependents).  Each renewal option year must include 
renewal rates or a formula used to set the renewal rates.  Proposers must submit proposals for the 
following plans: 

 
 Individual Stop Loss Levels between $200,000 and $400,000 in increments of $50,000 

($275,000 currently in place with Sun Life). 
 Incurred of at least18 months and paid in 12 months, if not greater with an optional 

Terminal Liability Protection feature for 90 days.  The minimum incurred timeframe will 
be April 1, 2014 through September 30, 2015, and the paid timeframe will be October 1, 
2014 through September 30, 2015 for the first year plan year. 

 Agreement to provide renewal rates for years 2-4 on a paid basis with optional Terminal 
Liability Protection for 90 days. 

 Rates are to be quoted on a Per Employee per Month basis.  The County will not accept 
rates split by coverage tier. 

 
Assumptions for your Quote: 
 

 The current contract with SunLife includes runout protection for claims incurred prior to 
October 1, 2014 and paid between October 1, 2014 and December 31, 2014. 

 The ISL is to include managed pharmacy benefits, mental health/substance abuse, and all 
other benefits outlined in the Summary Plan Description.   

 ISL coverage is to apply to all medical/Rx plans (EPO, PPO, CEPO) 
 No lasering is allowed. 

 
11.1 Include information on how the stop loss reimbursement procedure would be coordinated with 

UHC’s procedure, stated above. Please be sure to indicate the entire procedure, noting what the 
processes are for UHC and Travis County, as well as your entity. 
 

11.2 Any items that are unable to be delivered must be shown in an exception in the submission. 
 

PART I, SECTION H – REQUIRED PROCEDURES AND INFORMATION 
FOR FULLY INSURED VISION COVERAGE 

 
1.0 LENGTH OF TERM:  County is interested in obtaining a Vision insurance agreement that can be 

extended over three (3) years.   This involves a contract with rates applicable for the initial guarantee 
period of thirty-six (36) months, with a formula provided for how rates will be determined for renewals 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 25 of 85 
 

 

that apply to year four (4) through five (5). 
 

2.0 DUPLICATE QUOTES:  In an effort to avoid issues associated with the submission of duplicate 
quotes, it is the intent of the county in the event of receipt of duplicate quotes, to use the one that has the 
earliest received date stamp by the Purchasing Office. If quotes are from same carrier but the rates are 
different, we will not consider that a duplicate quote. 
 

3.0 UNDERWRITING INFORMATION:  The information contained in this RFP is believed to be current 
and correct.  The ultimate responsibility for determining the full extent of the exposure and verification 
of all information presented in it rests solely with the Proposer.  Proposer should fully review the 
contents of this RFP and request additional supporting information as required.  The County is not 
responsible for any errors and/or omissions in this solicitation, or for the failure on the part of the 
Proposer to determine the full extent of the exposures. 
 

4.0 STANDARDS FOR INSURANCE COMPANIES:  All insurance companies used must be qualified or 
licensed in Texas unless the company is a non-admitted or surplus lines company which is on the 
approved list of the State Board of Insurance.  Financial and operational strength of the qualified 
insurance company as evidenced by its A.M. Best's rating must be included with the proposal. The 
insurance companies must have a current Best's Insurance Reports general policyholder's rating of "A" 
or better and a financial size category of Class V or better.  Any respondent proposing to use a non-
admitted or surplus lines company should verify in writing that they have attempted to secure quotations 
and place the coverage through carriers admitted to do business in Texas. 
 

5.0 SUPPORT SERVICES:  All proposals should fully describe the services to be provided by the 
insurance company.  A general outline of proposed services should be submitted.  To the extent the cost 
of these services is not included in the premiums being quoted, the proposer should state the additional 
cost.  The County intends to give due consideration to the ability of the insurance agent, broker and/or 
carrier to service this account.  Supporting information detailing these abilities is recommended. 
 

6.0 EXCLUSIONS:  Indicate all exclusions that will be included in the insurance contract. 
 

7.0 SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS:  Claims submitted by the County that are considered “clean” claims 
shall be reimbursed within fifteen (15) calendar days or less. 
 

8.0 FUNDING:  Funds for payment on this contract have been provided through the county budget 
approved by Commissioners Court for this fiscal year only.  State of Texas statutes prohibit the 
obligations and expenditure of public funds beyond the fiscal year for which a budget has been 
approved.  However, the cost of items or services covered by this contract is considered a recurring 
requirement and is included as a standard and routine expense of Travis County to be included in each 
proposed budget within the foreseeable future.  County Commissioners expect this to be an integral part 
of future budgets to be approved during the period of this contract except for unanticipated needs or 
events, which may prevent such payments against this contract.  However, County cannot guarantee the 
availability of funds, and enters into this Contract only to the extent such funds are made available.  The 
Fiscal Year for County extends from October 1st of each calendar year to September 30th of the next 
calendar year. 
 

9.0 REQUESTED COVERAGE OPTIONS:  Travis County is soliciting proposals for the FY15 plan year 
commencing October 1, 2014.  Each renewal option year must include renewal rates or a formula used 
to set the renewal rates.  Proposers must submit proposals with the following criteria: 
 

 Agreement to provide renewal rates for years 4 and 5. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 26 of 85 
 

 

 Rates are to be quoted on current 6 Tier coverage options.  The rates must be the same for 
retirees and employees. 

 Any items that are unable to be delivered must be shown in as a deviation in the submission. 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 27 of 85 
 

 

NOTE WELL:   
 
PART II-FOR TPA AND PBM will be included in the contract and will be supplemented by Contract 
Attachment A-FOR TPA AND PBM which will be based on the results of negotiations and the proposer’s 
best and final offer and will include applicable portions of the response provided by the successful 
proposer. 
 
PART III-FOR TPA AND PBM will be included in the contract subject only to deviations requested in 
the response provided by the successful proposer that are subsequently approved by County 
 
PART IV-FOR TPA AND PBM will be included in the contract and will be supplemented by Contract 
Attachment B-FOR TPA AND PBM which will be based on the results of negotiations and the proposer’s 
best and final offer and will include applicable portions of the response provided by the successful 
proposer.  Other than negotiations related to Contract Attachment B, Part IV-FOR TPA AND PBM will 
only be subject to deviations requested in the response provided by the successful proposer that are 
subsequently approved by County.   
 
Contract Attachments C-FOR TPA AND PBM, D-FOR TPA AND PBM, and E-FOR TPA AND PBM 
will be included in the contract and will only be subject to deviations requested in the response by the 
successful proposer that are subsequently approved by County. 
 
County expects to compile the contract for execution by selected proposer. 
 

PART II- - SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS FOR TPA AND PBM 
 

1.0 RETENTION OF SERVICES: 
 

1.1 Retention of Services.  County retains Contractor to provide Services described in Contract 
Attachment A-For TPA and PBM in connection with County's self-funded health care plans on 
the terms and conditions of this Contract, and Contractor accepts that retention and shall render 
the services described in this Contract.  Contractor shall perform its services for County under 
this Contract, solely in the interest of County, and shall exercise at least the degree of care, 
prudence, caution and judgment that Contractor exercises in the conduct of its own affairs. 
 

1.2 Minimum Duties.  In order to meet and fulfill its responsibilities under this Contract, Contractor 
shall: 

 
1.2.1 Cooperate to the fullest extent possible with County, 

 
1.2.2 Perform all reasonable administrative and clerical work necessary to the performance of 

its duties and responsibilities under this Contract, 
 

1.2.3 Provide County or its designated legal representative copies of all materials requested 
pertaining to any matters encompassed by the terms and scope of this Contract (cost to be 
borne by County), and 

 
1.2.4 Be available to discuss services provided or meet with representatives of County at 

mutually agreeable times and places. 
 

2.0 CONTRACT OF HONORABLE UNDERTAKING: 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 28 of 85 
 

 

The purposes of this Contract are not to be defeated by a narrow, technical construction of its provisions. 
This Contract shall be considered as an honorable undertaking and shall be subject to a liberal 
construction for the purpose of giving effect to the intentions of the parties to it.  As such, if any 
services, functions or responsibilities not specifically described in this Contract are required for the 
proper performance and provision of the Services, they shall be deemed to be implied by and included 
within the scope of the Services to the same extent and in the same manner as if specifically and fully 
described in this Contract.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Contract, Contractor shall be 
responsible for providing the facilities, personnel and other resources as necessary to provide the 
Services. 
 

3.0 TRAVIS COUNTY’S ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF SERVICE: 
 
Contractor must provide a Dedicated Account Management Team. 
 
Contractor shall provide Standard monthly reports and custom reports as required. 
 
Contractor shall provide quarterly reviews and an annual review with the Account Management 
Team. 
 
Contractor must provide at least two (2) file layout options for plan enrollment information. 
 
Contractor shall provide a secure portal to share data. 
 
Contractor shall interface with other Travis County contractors. 
 
Contractors shall allow County to self-bill administrative fees on a monthly basis. 
 
File Transfer Method and Frequency: Contractor must support the File Transfer Protocol via an 
FTP server, and Travis County must be able to login to the FTP server.  Contractor must allow 
Travis County to transfer files on whatever frequency is needed (i.e. daily, weekly, bi-weekly, 
and monthly) 
 
Claims and Customer Service: Contractor must provide prompt customer service and thorough 
and responsive processing of all claims submitted by the plan participants.  Travis County 
reserves the right for representatives to visit and review the provider’s claims processing 
operations during normal business hours. 
 
Notice of Denial: In case of denial of a claim for payment for any reason, Contractor notifies the 
claimant in writing in a clear, concise and easy-to-understand manner giving the reason for 
denial.  If there is an appeal process involved, the claimant will be provided full information 
relating to the procedures and steps to follow. 
 
Communication: Contractor commits to a high level of communication so participants can have 
an understanding of the plan’s design and value of the benefits being offered.  Contractor should 
provide high quality communication to employees by conducting meetings and by providing 
written and visual materials in a simplified, easy-to-understand manner.  Contractor must attend 
all open enrollment meetings and health fairs. 
 
Contract Transition: When services end either by contract expiration or by termination, 
Contractor shall continue services at the rates applicable to the most recent term until a new 
provider becomes operational, if requested by Travis County Purchasing.  Contractor 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 29 of 85 
 

 

acknowledges its responsibility to cooperate fully with the replacement provider and Travis 
County to assist with and ensure a smooth transition. 

 
4.0 TRAVIS COUNTY’S ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF SERVICE FOR: 

 
MEDICAL ADMINISTRATION: 
 
 
Contractor shall provide a Dedicated Billing Representative. 
 
Contractor shall provide a Dedicated Claim Advocate 
 
Contractor shall be capable of supporting direct contracts with providers and Ambulatory 
Surgical Centers. 
 
Contractor must handle the initial level of the appeal process with County handling Level II and 
providing an IRO for Level III. 
 
Contractor shall be capable of handling benefit exceptions within 48-72 hours once approved by 
Travis County. 
 
Contractor must support and report on claims incurred at onsite County clinic. 
 
Contractor must integrate and interface with outside Pharmacy Benefit Manager, Stop Loss 
providers and other third party vendor(s) selected, as applicable. 
 
Contractor must provide detailed claims data as requested to analyze network discounts.  This 
includes, but is not limited to, repricing Medical claims down to the insured level by provider. 
 
If County desires for Contractor to handle the run-off of any claims made prior to the date of 
termination, then it will give Contractor written notice of that intention and Contractor shall 
handle run-off claims on a claim-by-claim basis at no additional cost for a period of 1 year after 
each claim was originally reported.  After this 1 year period, Contractor shall be paid for its 
services at the rates in Contract Attachment B. 
 
PHARMACY 
 
Contractor shall provide a Dedicated Billing Representative. 
 
Contractor shall provide a Dedicated Claim Advocate 
 
Contractor must handle the initial level of the appeal process with County handling Level II and 
providing an IRO for Level III. 
 
Contractor shall be capable of handling benefit exceptions within 48-72 hours once approved by 
Travis County. 
 
Contractor shall be capable of interfacing with the Medical Third Party Administrator, Stop Loss 
Provider and or any other third party vendor(s) selected, as applicable. 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 30 of 85 
 

 

If County desires for Contractor to handle the run-off of any claims made prior to the date of 
termination, then it will give Contractor written notice of that intention and Contractor shall 
handle run-off claims on a claim-by-claim basis at no additional cost for a period of 1 year after 
each claim was originally reported.  After this 1 year period, Contractor shall be paid for its 
services at the rates in Contract Attachment B. 

 
PART III - SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR TPA AND PBM 

 
1.0 TERM OF CONTRACT:  This contract commences as of 12:00 a.m. Central Time on October 1, 

2014.  Contractor shall begin providing services under this contract effective October 1, 2014.  The term 
of this contract ends 12:00 a.m., Central Time on October 1, 2015, unless the contract is terminated 
sooner pursuant to the terms of Section 14.0 of this contract and unless County exercises any of its 
options to extend the contract. 
 

2.0 OPTION TO EXTEND:  Unless terminated sooner and subject to the continued funding by the 
Commissioners Court, County may unilaterally extend this Contract by written modification for 
additional one (1) year periods (individually, an “Option to Extend” and collectively, the “Options to 
Extend”).  Contractor shall provide notice of any renewal increase at least 90 days before the end of the 
current term.  Unless otherwise provided in the modification, all provisions of this contract remain 
unchanged.  County must not exercise an Option to Extend sooner than ninety (90) days before the end 
of that term.  Changes in rates shall not occur more than once annually on the anniversary of the 
commencement of the contract. 
 

3.0 FEES FOR SERVICES, CONTRACT ATTACHMENT B 
 

If there are no fees listed in Contract Attachment B for a particular 
Service, Contractor shall not charge County any fee for that service.  
 

4.0 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION: 
 

4.1 The Purchasing Agent is the chief procurement officer and acts as the overall contract 
administrator.  The Purchasing Agent may designate representatives to transmit instructions and 
receive information. 
 

4.2 The Project Manager has been designated as County’s primary representative on the project and 
acts on behalf of County with respect to Services and has the authority to interpret and define in 
writing policies and make decisions about Contractor performance.  Project Manager may 
designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive information.   The Project Manager 
oversees day to day work and reviews, inspects and examines Contractor’s performance of 
Services under this Contract on behalf of the County.  Whenever Contractor is required to obtain 
the approval of County or report to County, Contractor shall seek approval from and shall deliver 
the report to the Project Manager, or any other person that the parties may from time to time 
direct in writing.  The Project Manager establishes requirements, approves and coordinates 
schedules, users, and equipment.  The Project Manager for this Contract is the county department 
named below: 

 
Travis County Human Resources Management Department 
Attn: John Rabb 
700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 
Austin, Texas 78701 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 31 of 85 
 

 

5.0 MINIMUM COVERAGE FOR INSURANCE: 
 

5.1 Minimum Coverage. Minimum insurance coverage may be written as combined single limits or 
structured using primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary 
policy. Contractor acknowledges and shall maintain the following standard minimum insurance 
coverage applicable to Contractor and any subcontractor performing work related to Services all 
in compliance with Part IV-For TPA and PBM, sections 5.4 and 5.5: 

 
5.1.1 Workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance that meets the following 

requirements: 
 

5.1.1.1 Coverage that is consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’ 
Compensation Act, 
 

5.1.1.2 Employers’ liability limits of: 
 
$500,000 bodily injury each accident, 
$500,000 bodily injury by disease, and 
$500,000 policy limit. 

5.1.1.3 Policies that are subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the 
following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304), and 
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601). 

5.1.2 Commercial general liability insurance that meets the following requirements: 
 

5.1.2.1 Minimum limits for coverage: 
 
$500,000   per occurrence for coverage A for Bodily Injury and Property Damage,   
$500,000  per occurrence for coverage B Personal Injury and Advertisement, and  
$1,000,000   policy aggregate. 

5.1.2.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and contains the following 
coverage or is endorsed in favor of Travis County as follows: 
 
Blanket contractual liability for this Contract, 
Independent Contractor Coverage, 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), 
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205), and 
Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010). 

5.1.3 Business automobile liability insurance that meets the following requirements: 
 

5.1.3.1 If any form of transportation for county personnel or clients is provided, 
minimum coverage for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with a 
combined single limit of $300,000 per occurrence. 
 

5.1.3.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 32 of 85 
 

 

Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A), 
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A), and 
Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B). 

5.1.3.3 Alternative Insurance Requirement. If no transportation services of any type are 
provided, and use of motor vehicles is strictly limited to travel to and from work 
or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of $100,000 
/ $300,000 / $50,000 may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability 
Insurance in sections 5.1.3.1 and 5.1.3.2. 
 

5.1.3.4 Any Policy under section 5.1.3.3 must be subject to the laws of the State of Texas 
and include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A), and 
Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B). 

5.1.4 Professional liability / E & O insurance that meets the following requirements: 
 

5.1.4.1 Minimum limit for coverage for malpractice, negligent acts, errors, or omissions 
and sexual harassment: 

 
5.1.4.1.1 $1,000,000 per claim, and 

 
5.1.4.1.2 $3,000,000 aggregate. 

 
5.1.4.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the following 

endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
 

5.1.4.2.1 Waiver of Subrogation (if including in Commercial General insurance, 
Form CG 2404 or its equivalent, and 
 

5.1.4.2.2 Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (if including in Commercial 
General Insurance, Form CG 2404 or its equivalent. 

 
5.1.4.3 If coverage is written on a claims made basis, the retroactive date must be prior to 

the earlier of the date this Contract is signed or effective and include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract ends.  The Certificate 
of Insurance must state whether the coverage is claims made and contain both the 
retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting date. 
 

5.1.4.4 Any subcontractor who is not covered under Contractor’s professional liability 
insurance shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually 
on the renewal date of their insurance policy. 

 
5.1.5 Blanket Crime Policy Insurance. 

 
5.1.5.1 Contractor shall provide a Blanket Crime Policy with a minimum coverage of the 

total amount payable under the Contract or for the amount of scheduled advances 
in the Escrow Account. 
 

5.1.5.2 If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 33 of 85 
 

 

to the date Services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this 
Contract, whichever is earlier.  Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended 
reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. The 
Certificate of Insurance shall clarify whether coverage is claims made and shall 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period 
date. 

 
5.1.5.3 Additional insured status for Travis County is not required. 

 
5.2 Contractor must mail the Certificate of Insurance, and updates, submitted in compliance with 

Part IV to the following address: 
Cyd Grimes 
Travis County Purchasing Agent 
RFP # 1311-003-CW 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 
6.0 “ESCROW ACCOUNT” 

 
6.1 Contractor acknowledges that Travis County is legally prohibited from authorizing any provider 

of administrative services authority make any withdrawals from its banking accounts for funding 
of the payments to participants.  County requires that Contractor establish an Escrow Account or 
similar funding relationship consistent with Texas law governing counties on the following or 
similar basis: 
 

6.2 Contractor shall establish an Escrow Account for payment of claims on behalf of County 
employees and their dependents.  Contractor shall not use the principal in the Escrow Account to 
pay for administrative fees or anything other than claims for participants.  Contractor shall pay 
all banking fees or charges incurred in connection with the Escrow Account and shall retain all 
income that the funds in the Escrow Account may earn.  Payments from the Escrow Account 
shall be made in accordance with the Travis County Plan Document.  County shall fund the 
Escrow Account at the beginning of the Contract and maintain the Escrow Account at an amount 
which is equal to two months of estimated claims based upon the experience of County for the 
preceding 12 month period.  Contractor may require adjustments to the level of funding in the 
Escrow Account that are necessary to maintain an amount equal to two months of actual paid 
claims.  If Contractor anticipates that additional funds are needed to pay for an extraordinary 
claim, it shall notify County of that additional amount and County shall fund the Escrow 
Account for that additional amount within 15 working days of receipt of the notice. 
 

6.3 County assumes financial responsibility for all claims and expenses for customary claims 
expenses related to the claims serviced under the Contract.  Contractor shall make the initial 
payment for all claims from the Escrow Account and send County a reimbursement statement at 
least monthly that indicates the amounts of payments made on behalf of County employees and 
their dependents.  County shall refund the Escrow Account for all payments made on behalf of 
County employees and their dependents within 30 days of the receipt of a reimbursement 
statement if the payments were made in compliance with the Contract.  County shall 
immediately notify Contractor if it contends that a payment made was not made in compliance 
with this Contract. 

 
6.4 Contractor shall not be liable for any failure to perform under this Contract or to pay claims 

under it if the failure arises out of the failure of County to fund the Escrow Account adequately.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 34 of 85 
 

 

If County fails to fund Escrow Account for 30 days, Contractor may terminate the services 
provided under this Contract. 

 
6.5 Within 30 days after the end of this Contract, Contractor shall pay County all funds remaining in 

the Escrow Account except for earned income and shall provide County with a reimbursement 
statement and supporting documentation for the difference between the funds in the Escrow 
Account at the end of this Contract and the amount at which Contractor and County have 
established the funding of the Escrow Account. 

 
7.0 DELIVERY POINT: 
 

Delivery of all services under this contract shall be FREE ON BOARD to final destination at the address 
shown below: 

 
Travis County Human Resources Management Department 
Attn: John Rabb 
700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 
Austin, Texas 78701 

 
PART IV - GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR TPA AND PBM 

 
1.0 GENERAL DEFINITIONS: 

 
1.1 "Auditor" means the Travis County Auditor or her designee. 

 
1.2 "Commissioners Court" means Travis County Commissioners Court. 
 
1.3 "County" means Travis County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas. 
 
1.4 "County Building" means any County owned buildings and does not include buildings leased by 

County. 
 
1.5 “Day” means calendar day. 
 
1.6 "Escrow Account" means the Impressed Account established by Contractor for payment of 

claims on behalf of County. 
 
1.7 "Historically Underutilized Business" or "HUB" means any entity or association formed to make 

a profit in which one (1) or more persons who are educationally or economically disadvantaged 
because of their identification as members of one of the following groups: African Americans, 
Hispanic Americans, Asian Pacific Americans, Native Americans or Women of any ethnicity 
have the following rights: 

 
1.7.1 own at least fifty-one percent (51%) of all classes of shares or other equitable securities 

and have incidents of ownership, including an interest in profit and loss, equivalent to the 
percentage of capital, equipment or expertise contributed to the business where 
ownership is measured as though the community property interest of a spouse is the 
separate property of that spouse, if both spouses certify in writing that the non-
participating spouse relinquishes control over his or her spouse, and his or her community 
property, and not as if it is subject to the community property interest of the other spouse;  
and 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 35 of 85 
 

 

1.7.2 have a proportionate interest and demonstrated active participation in the control, 
operation and management of the business's affairs; where control means having 
recognized ultimate control over all day-to-day decisions affecting the business, and is be 
known to, and at least tacitly acknowledged in day-to-day operations by employees of the 
business and by those with whom business is conducted, and holding a title 
commensurate with that control. 

 
1.8 "Is doing business" and "has done business" mean: 

 
1.8.1 Paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or other valuable thing which is 

worth more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for purchase 
of any property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 
 

1.8.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in 
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in 
a calendar year; 

 
1.8.3 but does not include: 

 
1.8.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a 

posted, published, or marked price available to the general public. 
 

1.8.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, 
family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to 
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the 
ordinary course of its business; and 

 
1.8.3.3 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 

Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, 
employee or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a 
position that he or she should have known about the Contract 

 
1.9 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit A to Affidavit. 

 
1.10 “Project Manager” means the Human Resources Management Department or its designee. 
 
1.11 "Purchasing Agent" means the Travis County Purchasing Agent or her designee. 
 
1.12 “Service” means the activities, obligations, and deliverables described in the Scope of Services 

in Contract Attachment A. 
 
1.13 "TPA” means Third Party Administrator. 
 
1.14 “Working Day” means Monday through Friday except for days that County has designed as 

holidays. 
 

2.0 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

2.1 Timeliness of Services.  Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner. 
 

2.2 Cooperation and Coordination. Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate with County staff and 
other entities as reasonable and necessary and as required by the Project Manager. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 36 of 85 
 

 

 
2.3 Personnel Used.  Contractor expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Contract, County 

has relied on the representations of Contractor about the persons who will be performing the 
Services and their qualifications. Contractor shall ensure that all work done is done by the 
employees or members of Contractor that are presented as performing the Services in 
Contractor’s proposal. Contractor shall not use any other person to provide Services unless, 
before providing Services, the Purchasing Agent approves the person at the request of Project 
Manager. 

 
2.4 Professional Qualifications.  At all times during Contract, Contractor shall maintain in good 

standing its professional license and accreditations applicable to Services. Contractor shall perform 
all acts reasonably necessary to maintain and improve its professional competence and training.  
Contractor shall Notify County within 2 Work Days if any adverse action related to its professional 
license and accreditations occurs. 

 
2.5 Right to Contractual Material.  All work products created or produced by Contractor as a result 

of Services, including programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation 
to any responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related material are the property of the County 
at the time of creation. Any intellectual property rights granted to the County survive the 
termination of this Contract and endure for the useful life of the contractual material and other 
intellectual property rights provided. 

 
2.6 Rights to Contractor’s Work Products.  Upon full payment, Contractor assigns to County any and 

all rights, title and interest, including, without limitation, copyrights, trade secrets and 
proprietary rights to the work products developed or prepared specifically for County under this 
Contract.  The work products exclude all third party works and products whether or not included 
or embedded in the Contractor’s work products.  The work products are deemed to be “works 
made for hire” under the federal copyright laws.  Contractor shall give County reasonable 
assistance, at County's expense, to perfect this assignment of these rights, title and interest.  
However, if the work products include intellectual property owned or developed by Contractor 
before and independent from, its obligations under this Contract, Contractor retains all rights to 
that previous and independent product. In addition, Contractor retains the right to use its 
knowledge, experience, and know-how, including processes, ideas, concepts and techniques 
developed in the course of performing the Services. 

 
2.7 Standard of Care. Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, Contractor shall perform all 

Services using at least the standard of care that a reasonably prudent person in that profession in 
Travis County, Texas would use in similar circumstances. This Contract shall not be construed to 
relieve Contractor of this duty. 

 
2.8 Ethical Standards.  Contractor shall perform the Services and exercise all discretionary powers in 

a manner consistent with applicable standards of professional conduct and ethics and 
Contractor’s best professional judgment. 

 
2.9 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance.  In relation to performing the Services, Contractor shall not 

discriminate against any applicant, employee, patient or other person on the basis of race, color, 
religion, sex, age, national origin or disability and provide all accommodations for disability 
required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
2.10 Records. 
 

2.10.1 Maintenance and Retention. Contractor shall create and maintain  all necessary and 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 37 of 85 
 

 

appropriate information and documentation (including accounting records) related to the 
Services for at least three (3) years after providing the Services, or until any litigation 
concerning any Services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. 
 

2.10.2 Access.  At reasonable times and on reasonable notice, Contractor shall make available to 
County or its duly authorized representatives any information and documentation in 
Contractor’s possession or control, which directly pertains to Services for audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions for as long as Contractor has access to the 
information and documentation. 

 
2.10.3 Duplication of information and documentation.  Contractor shall provide copies of 

information and documentation to County upon written request to Contractor at a cost 
based on the rates applicable to copies provided pursuant to the Texas Public Information 
Act. 

 
2.11 Return of County Equipment and Access Keys.  At the end of this Contract, Contractor shall 

return property of any kind, including all keys, access cards and other means of access to county 
buildings and other property that have been provided to it or its staff.    Contractor shall not 
permit its employees to take or retain any County property or any property of County employees. 
 

2.12 Legal Compliance. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, 
regulations, and ordinances applicable to the performance of all Services. 

 
2.13 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire. If required, Contractor shall complete, file and update a 

Conflict of Interest Questionnaire in compliance with Chapter 176 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. Contractor acknowledges that the law requires the County to provide access 
to this questionnaire on the official Travis County website. 

 
2.14 Certification Regarding Debarment.  Contractor shall complete and update a Certification 

Regarding Debarment on the form in Contract Attachment C-For TPA and PBM whenever there 
is a change in status. 

 
2.15 HIPAA Business Associate Agreement. Contractor shall execute and deliver to County the 

Business Associate Agreement in the form in Contract Attachment E-For TPA and PBM 
simultaneously with the execution of this Contract. 

 
3.0 CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATIONS, WARRANTIES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: 

 
3.1 Limit of Authority of County Representatives.  Contractor acknowledges that no officer, 

agent, employee, or representative of County has any authority to change this 
Contract, to approve assignment of any part of it, or to waive any provision of it 
unless expressly granted that specific authority by Commissioners Court. 
 

3.2 Truth of Proposal.  Contractor warrants that all of the information provided in its proposal is true 
and correct and that Contractor will use its best efforts to provide quality service to County. 

 
3.3 Compliance with Licensure Requirements.  Contractor warrants that Contractor is current in 

payment and in good standing under all licensure requirements applicable to its business and the 
Services to be provided under this contract pursuant to all federal and state statutes, rules and 
regulations. 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 38 of 85 
 

 

3.4 Copyrights, Patents, and Licenses.  Contractor represents that all applicable copyrights, patents, 
licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials used 
in this Contract have been adhered to, and warrants that the County is not liable for any 
infringement of those rights. 

 
3.5 Payment of Property Taxes.  Contractor warrants that Contractor is not currently delinquent in 

payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor–Collector. 
 
3.6 Independent Contractor. Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is an independent contractor, 

operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and liabilities 
applicable to it as an independent contractor.  Contractor acknowledges that neither it nor its 
employees are an employee of County, and Contractor and its employees do not gain any rights 
against County pursuant to the County personnel policies and procedures. 

 
3.7 No Agency Relationship. Contractor acknowledges that it does not have the authority to enter 

into any contract in the name of County or otherwise bind County in any way without the 
express written consent of County.   County does not have the authority to enter into any contract 
in the name of Contractor or otherwise bind Contractor in any way without the express written 
consent of Contractor. 

 
3.8 Understanding of Requirements.  Contractor represents that it has thoroughly examined the 

technical requirements, performance parameters, instructions and all other contract documents. 
Contractor has made all investigations necessary to be thoroughly informed regarding technical 
requirements, performance parameters for delivery of material, equipment and/or services as 
required by this contract. 

 
3.9 Financial Status.  Contractor certifies that it is a duly qualified, capable, and otherwise bondable 

business entity, that it is not in receivership or contemplates same, and has not filed for 
bankruptcy. It further certifies that the company, corporation or partnership is not currently 
delinquent with respect to payment of property taxes within County. 

 
3.10 Commissions.  Contractor warrants that no persons or selling agency has been retained to solicit 

this Contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee 
income, supplemental income, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established 
commercial selling agencies maintained by the Contractor to secure business. If Contractor 
violates this warranty, Contractor is subject to termination of this Contract without recourse or 
compensating County for the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or 
contingent fee at County’s discretion. 

 
3.11 Gratuities.  Contractor warrants that Contractor and any one acting on behalf of Contractor has 

not offered or given any gratuities of any kind including entertainment, or gifts to any County 
official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect of this 
Contract. 

 
3.12 Lobbying with Federal Funds.  Contractor warrants that Contractor has not paid and will not pay, 

and no one else has paid or will pay on behalf of Contractor, any federally appropriated funds  to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of 
Congress in connection with awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, 
the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, or the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 39 of 85 
 

 

 
4.0 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT: 

 
4.1 Taxpayer Identification Number. Contractor shall provide County with an Internal Revenue 

Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations before any Contract funds 
are payable. 
 

4.2 Fees and Invoicing.  In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the Services by 
Contractor and Contractor’s compliance with this Contract, County shall pay Contractor in 
accordance with the Fee Rates and Payment Schedule in Contract Attachment B-For TPA and 
PBM based on invoices prepared by County in compliance with Contract Attachment B-For TPA 
and PBM.  County is not liable for any advance payments. 

 
4.3 Acceptance of Services.  County is not responsible for the cost of any Services until County has 

accepted the Services.  County shall accept Services when County determines, in its sole 
discretion,  that the Services have been performed and completed in a good and timely manner to 
County’s satisfaction and at a standard acceptable in Contractor’s profession.  County shall not 
unreasonably withhold acceptance. 

 
4.4 Delayed Payment to Contractor Due to Outstanding Debt. 
 

4.4.1 In section 4.4, “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees owing to the state or the 
County, and indebtedness arising from written agreements with Texas or County for 
which a notice with evidence has been filed with the County Auditor or Travis County 
Treasurer. 
 

4.4.2 Section 154.045 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes County not to draw a 
check on any County fund in favor of the Contractor, or its agent or assignee until the 
Debt is paid after the Travis County Treasurer notifies Contractor in writing that the Debt 
is outstanding. 

 
4.4.3 If the Treasurer’s notice states that any amount owed by the County to Contractor may be 

applied to reduce the outstanding Debt, County may apply any amount County owes 
Contractor to the outstanding balance of the Debt. 

 
4.5 Timely Payment.  County pays Contractor within thirty (30) Days after County accepts the 

Services and County receives a complete and accurate invoice, whichever is later.  County pays 
interest on overdue payments in compliance with Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

4.6 Unauthorized Invoicing.  County is not liable for any of the following: 
 

4.6.1 costs incurred or performances rendered by Contractor before or after the Contract term, 
 

4.6.2 expenses not billed to County within the applicable time limits in this Contract, or 
 

4.6.3 any costs for activities not included as Services. 
 
4.7 Return of Overpayment. Contractor is liable to County if and when County determines that a 

payment has resulted in overpayment. Contractor shall repay the overpayment to County within 
thirty (30) Days after County requests a repayment. If Contractor does not repay the 
overpayment within thirty (30) Days, County may offset the amount of any overpayment against 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 40 of 85 
 

 

the next amount payable to Contractor under this or any other contract. 
 

5.0 RISK ALLOCATION: 
 

5.1 Definition of Claim  In section 5.1 and 5.2.2, “Claim” means any negligence, cause of action, 
suit, proceeding before any administrative agency, loss, damages, or liability of any kind, 
including all expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney’s fees. 
 

5.2 Indemnification. 
 

5.2.1 Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless County, its officers, agents, 
and employees, from all Claims for injury to or death of any person, for any 
act or omission by Contractor, or for damage to any property, arising out of 
or in connection with the Services. 
 

5.2.2 Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officers, 
agents, and employees from all Claims for damages to any person or 
property arising in connection with any alleged or actual infringement of 
existing patents, licenses, copyrights or other intellectual property rights 
applicable to materials used in and work products arising from this Contract. 

 
5.3 Claims Notification.  If Contractor receives notice or becomes aware of any Claim against 

Contractor or County, without regard to who brought it, Contractor shall give County Notice 
within three (3) Working Days after Contractor becomes aware of the Claim or threat of Claim. 
Unless otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish County copies of all pertinent papers received 
by Contractor regarding the Claim. Contractor’s Notice shall include: 

 
5.3.1 a written description of the Claim; 

 
5.3.2 the name and address of whoever made or threatened to make the Claim; 

 
5.3.3 the basis of the Claim; 

 
5.3.4 the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the Claim was instituted; and  

 
5.3.5 the name of any other persons against whom this Claim is being made or threatened. 

 
5.4 Requirement for Insurance. Contractor shall have and maintain at least the minimum types of 

insurance listed in Part III-For TPA and PBM throughout the term of this Contract.  Contractor’s 
insurance must be sufficient to cover the needs of Contractor pursuant to applicable generally 
accepted business standards related to the risks associated with providing the Services, but not 
less than the minimum coverage limits listed in Part III-For TPA and PBM. Depending on 
Services provided by Contractor, supplemental insurance requirements or alternate insurance 
options may apply in addition to those listed in Part III-For TPA and PBM.  If County authorizes 
Contractor to subcontract Services under this Contract, Contractor shall either maintain insurance 
that covers all subcontractors and complies with 5.5 and Part III-For TPA and PBM throughout 
the term of the Contract or ensure that all subcontractors have and maintain insurance for the 
work related to the Services that is performed by them and that their insurance complies with 
sections 5.4 and 5.5 and Part III-For TPA and PBM while performing work related to the 
Services. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 41 of 85 
 

 

 
5.5 General Insurance Requirements. Contractor shall comply with the following requirements 

related to insurance: 
 

5.5.1 Contractor shall obtain insurance written by companies licensed in Texas that have an 
A.M. Best rating of B+ VIII or higher.  If Contractor wants to use surplus carriers, these 
carriers are subject to County approval. 
 

5.5.2 Insurance that names Travis County as an additional insured is primary for all claims 
under it. 

 
5.5.3 Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to 

limit the responsibility or liability of the Contractor. 
 

5.5.4 Before Contractor begins Services, Contractor shall have at least the required insurance 
in force.  Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse and shall not 
permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced during this 
Contract. Contractor is responsible for all premiums, deductibles, and self-insured 
retention. 

 
5.5.5 Contractor shall submit a Certificate of Insurance written on the state-approved form and 

signed by the writing agent or the carrier to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10) 
Working Days after the earlier of execution of the Contract by both parties, or the 
effective date of the Contract. The Certificates of Insurance must include the Travis 
County contract number, all deductibles and self-insured retention, and the following 
endorsements, if applicable: 

 
5.5.5.1 an endorsement that names Travis County as additional insured where County’s 

interest may lie, 
 

5.5.5.2 an endorsement which makes the insurance primary for all claims, 
 

5.5.5.3 a Waiver of Subrogation endorsement 
 

5.5.5.4 a Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation endorsement 
 

5.5.6 Contractor shall provide replacement Certificates of Insurance to the Purchasing Agent 
within ten (10) days of the each renewal of insurance during the term of this contract in 
compliance with section 5.5.3. 
 

5.5.7 On its request, County is entitled to receive certified copies of policies and endorsements 
at no additional expense to County. 

 
5.5.8 Contractor acknowledges that County has the right to review insurance requirements 

during any term of the Contract and to require that Contractor make reasonable 
adjustments when the Services have changed or expanded. 

 
6.0 CHANGES TO CONTRACTOR’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS: 

 
6.1 Assignment. The parties may not assign any rights or duties in this Contract without the prior 

written approval of the other party. Contractor may submit a written request for an assignment to 
the Purchasing Agent with a copy to Project Manager.  The Purchasing Agent shall submit 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 42 of 85 
 

 

requests to the Commissioners Court for appropriate action.  If Contractor fails to obtain 
approval, County may delay payment or exercise other legal or equitable rights.  If Contractor 
assigns this Contract in compliance with this section, all aspects of this Contract are binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of its successors in interest and assigns.  If County assigns this 
Contract in compliance with this section, all aspects of this Contract are binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of its successors in interest and assigns. 
 

6.2 Subcontracting.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Contract, Contractor may not 
subcontract with any other person to perform any of the Services or other obligations under this 
Contract.  If subcontracting is allowed, Contractor must provide for insurance for subcontracts as 
stated in section 5.4 and Part III and require subcontractors to complete and update a 
Certification Regarding Debarment on the form in Contract Attachment C whenever there is a 
change in status and provide the Purchasing Agent with copies of these certifications. 

 
6.3 General.  Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Contract, any change to this Contract 

must be in writing and signed by each party. 
 
6.4 Requests for Changes.  Contractor shall submit requests for changes to this Contract to the 

Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Project Manager. 
 
6.5 Purchasing Agent Authority.  The Purchasing Agent has certain limited authority to approve 

changes subject to Chapter 262 of the Texas Local Government Code and County policy 
approved by the Commissioners Court.  Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may 
approve certain requests to change this Contract.  At any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit 
any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the 
Purchasing Agent to approve the change. 

 
6.6 Change of Name.  If Contractor’s actions require County to recognize a change of Contractor’s 

name, Contractor must notify the Purchasing Agent immediately.  County does not recognize 
any change in its Contractor’s obligations until Purchasing Agent approves the change. 

 
7.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION: 

 
7.1 Procedure. 

 
7.1.1 In this section 7.1, “Correspondence” means any notice, document, letter, email, or other 

tangible transfer of information related to an issue and “Dispute Manager” means the 
Purchasing Agent or other representative authorized by Commissioners Court. 
 

7.1.2 Notice of Dispute. If the Contractor and the Project Manager have been unable to resolve 
any issue related to this Contract, Contractor may submit a Notice of the dispute to the 
Dispute Manager.  The Notice should contain specific details about the issues and 
Contractor’s preferred resolution of the dispute, including mediation, if desired. The 
Contractor may include any other relevant information. 

 
7.1.3 Flow of Information. After the Dispute Manager receives the Contractor’s Notice, the 

Dispute Manager represents the County in the administration of the dispute. After this 
Notice, any additional Correspondence is not effective unless it is directed to or sent by 
the Dispute Manager.  If Contractor disagrees with any Correspondence issued by the 
Dispute Manager, Contractor shall submit a written response detailing its reasons for 
disagreement with the Correspondence to the Dispute Resolver and the Project Manager 
within ten (10) Days after receipt of the Correspondence. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 43 of 85 
 

 

 
7.1.4 Proposed Resolution. Within thirty (30) Days after the Dispute Manager receives 

Contractor’s response, the Dispute Manager must send a final written proposal for 
resolution of the dispute to Contractor. 

 
7.1.5 Appeal. If the final written proposal does not resolve the dispute to Contractor’s 

satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written appeal to the Commissioners Court through 
the Dispute Manager within ten (10) Days after receipt of the unsatisfactory proposal. 
The Dispute Manager forwards a copy of the appeal to the Project Manager for it to be 
placed on the Commissioners Court agenda. The Commissioners Court hears the appeal.   
Contractor may make a presentation at that hearing. 

 
7.2 Mediation. When mediation is acceptable to both parties, the parties may use a mutually 

acceptable mediator, or a mediator appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction. Mediation is 
conducted in compliance with Chapter 154 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. 
Unless both parties are satisfied with the mediated resolution, the mediation is not a final and 
binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation must 
remain confidential in compliance with section 154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and 
Remedies Code, unless both parties agree in writing to waive confidentiality. 
 

7.3 Suspension. After Notice to Contractor, County may suspend this Contract in whole or in part 
and withhold further payments to Contractor until County and Contractor resolve the issues 
causing the suspension. Contractor shall not incur additional obligations of Contract funds after 
receipt of a Notice of suspension until Contractor receives a Notice from County that the issues 
supporting suspension are resolved to County’s satisfaction. 

 
7.4 Non-Waiver of Default. County expressly reserves all its rights under this Contract.  Any action 

that County takes to exercise any right or remedy shall not be interpreted as a waiver of any other 
rights or remedies or preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Contract or 
under any law.  A payment, act, or omission by County shall not impair or prejudice any of its 
rights or remedies. 

 
8.0 TERMINATION: 

 
8.1 Termination for Convenience.  County may terminate this Contract at any time by giving 

Contractor notice of termination at least sixty (60) Days before the effective date of the termination. 
If County terminates this Contract, County is not liable for any loss of profits anticipated by 
Contractor. Contractor may terminate this Contract on the anniversary of the Contract with a by 
giving the County notice of termination at least one hundred and eighty (180) Days before the 
effective date of the termination. 
 

8.2 Termination for Default.  Either party may terminate this Contract for the failure of the other 
party to perform any material provision of this Contract by delivering Notice of termination for 
default. A party may not terminate for default if the party was a contributing cause of the failure 
to perform. The Contract terminates immediately when the defaulting party receives that Notice. 
If County terminates this Contract, County is not liable for any loss of profits anticipated by 
Contractor. 

 
8.3 Funding Out.  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if the Commissioners Court fails 

to provide funding for this Contract during the budget planning and adoption process for the next 
County fiscal year, County may terminate this Contract after giving Contractor twenty (20) 
Days’ Notice that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 44 of 85 
 

 

 
9.0 FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT BENEFITS: 

 
9.1 In section 9.2 and Contract Attachment D, “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean: 

 
9.1.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing with a value of 

more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for the purchase of 
any property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 
 

9.1.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money or goods, or otherwise creating or having in 
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in 
a calendar year; 

 
9.1.3 but do not include: 

 
9.1.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a 

posted, published, or marked price available to the public, 
 

9.1.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, 
family, or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to 
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the 
ordinary course of its business; and 

 
9.1.3.3 if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation, any transaction for a 

financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of Contractor by its agent, 
employee, or other representative who does not know and is not in a position that 
he or she should have known about the Contract. 

 
9.2 In section 9.3 and the Ethics Affidavit, “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business 

listed in Exhibit 1 to the Ethics Affidavit attached to this Contract as Contract Attachment D. 
 

9.3 Contractor shall forfeit all benefits of this Contract and County shall retain all performance by 
Contractor and recover all considerations, or the value of all consideration, paid to Contractor 
pursuant to this Contract if Contractor 

 
9.3.1 was doing business with a Key Contracting Person when this Contract was executed, 

 
9.3.2 had done business with a Key Contracting Person during the year immediately before 

execution of this Contract, 
 

9.3.3 or does business with any Key Contracting Person at any time after execution of this 
Contract and before full performance of it. 

 
9.4 Contractor shall give County notice if the Contractor does business with any Key Contracting 

Person at any time after execution of this Contract and before full performance of it within 
twenty (20) Days Contractor begins doing business. 
 

10.0 NOTICE: 
 

10.1 Written Notice.  All notices between the parties and related to this Contract shall be given to the 
other party in writing. If a notice is delivered in person to the address in this section 10.9.4 for 
the party to whom the notice is given, that notice is deemed to have been given immediately.  If a 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 45 of 85 
 

 

notice is placed in the United States mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with 
return receipt requested, addressed to the address in this section 10.9.4 for the party to whom the 
notice is given, that notice is deemed to have been given on the third Working Day following 
mailing. 
 

10.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes and notices under this Contract is: 
 
Purchasing Agent: 
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. (or her successor) 
Travis County Purchasing Agent 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 
With copies to (registered or certified mail, not required): 
 

Project Manager: 
Human Resources Management Department 
John Rabb 
Benefit’s Manager 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
 

10.3 Contractor Address.  The address of Contractor for all purposes and notices under this Contract 
is the address stated on the award of contract. 
 

10.4 Change of Address.  Each party may change its address for notice by giving Notice of the new 
address.  County and Contractor shall give Notice to each other of any change in its address, 
including a change in the person to whom attention is directed, within fifteen (15) Days of the 
change. 

 
11.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

 
11.1 Time is of the Essence. Timing of performance of the Services and of delivery of all deliverables 

is of the essence. If delivery or completion dates cannot be met, Contractor must inform the 
Project Manager immediately. Providing this information does not change the delivery or 
completion dates unless this Contract is amended. 
 

11.2 Retained Right of Management.  Nothing in this Contract is intended to or may operate as a bar 
to County’s continuing right to oversee the performance delegated in this Contract in order to 
protect its interests in these matters. This paragraph shall not reduce the compensation received 
by Contractor under this Contract. 

 
11.3 Non-Exclusivity.  As a part of this Contract, the parties understand that Contractor may provide 

services outside this Contract as it sees fit at those times when Contractor is not obligated to 
County and there is no conflict with County interests.  The parties also understand that County is 
free to have more than one contractor providing the type of services included in this Contract. 

 
11.4 Execution of Other Documents.  All parties shall promptly and duly execute and deliver to the 

other further documents and assurances and take actions that a party may reasonably request to 
more fully carry out the intent and purpose of this Contract. 

 
11.5 Force Majeure.  “Force Majeure” means any cause generally recognized under Texas law as 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 46 of 85 
 

 

constituting impossible conditions. Neither party is financially liable to the other party for delays 
or failures in Contract performance caused by Force Majeure. These delays or failures to perform 
extend the period of performance for a period of time equal to the subsistence of the impossible 
conditions.  If Force Majeure conditions exist, the party affected by them shall give the other 
party Notice within five (5) Working Days after the conditions begin.  If timely Notice is 
impractical due to the Force Majeure conditions, then the party must provide Notice in as timely 
a manner as practicable.  If Notice is not provided timely, the party experiencing Force Majeure 
waives it as a defense. 

 
11.6 Entire Agreement.  This Contract which is composed of Parts I, II, III, and IV and the Contract 

Attachments listed in this subsection contains the entire agreement between County and 
Contractor related to the subject matter of this Contract.  If County and Contractor made any prior 
agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations that County and Contractor have not 
expressly stated in this Contract, those prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations 
are of null and void. The attachments listed in this subsection are hereby made a part of this 
Contract and constitute promised performances by Contractor throughout this Contract: 

 
11.6.1 Contract Attachment A-For TPA and PBM, Description of Services, Schedules for 

Completion and Report Deliverables, including parts of Proposal 
 

11.6.2 Contract Attachment B-For TPA and PBM, Fee Rates, Payment Schedule and Invoicing 
Requirements 

 
11.6.3 Contract Attachment C-For TPA and PBM, Certification regarding Debarment, 

Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts 
 

11.6.4 Contract Attachment D-For TPA and PBM, Ethics Affidavit 
 

11.6.5 Contract Attachment E-For TPA and PBM, Mutual Business Associates Agreement 
 
11.7 Order of Priority of Contract Attachments and Parts. If there is a conflict between the parts or the 

attachments or both, the conflict is resolved as follows: 
 

11.7.1 Contract Attachment E-For TPA and PBM, Business Associate Agreement overrides all 
other Contract Attachments and all Parts. 
 

11.7.2 Contract Attachment A-For TPA and PBM overrides Contract Attachments B-For TPA 
and PBM, C-For TPA and PBM and D-For TPA and PBM and all Parts. 

 
11.7.3 Contract Attachment B-For TPA and PBM overrides Contract Attachment C-For TPA 

and PBM and D-For TPA and PBM and all Parts. 
 

11.7.4 Part II-For TPA and PBM overrides Parts III-For TPA and PBM and IV-For TPA and 
PBM. 

 
11.7.5 Part III-For TPA and PBM overrides Part IV-For TPA and PBM. 

 
11.8 Law and Venue.  This Contract is governed by the laws of the State of Texas and all obligations 

under this Contract are performable in Travis County, Texas. 
 

11.9 Binding Contract.  Despite any other provision in this Contract, this Contract is binding upon 
County and Contractor and their respective successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 47 of 85 
 

 

 
11.10 Survival of Provisions.  Conditions and covenants of this Contract which by their terms are 

performable after the termination of this Contract shall survive such termination and remain fully 
performable. 

 
11.11 Interpretational Guidelines 
 

11.11.1Sovereign Immunity and Affirmative Defenses.  This Contract shall not be interpreted to 
include anything that is effective as a waiver of sovereign immunity or any affirmative 
defenses available to County. 
 

11.11.2Severability.  If any portion of this Contract is ruled invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of the Contract shall remain valid and binding. 

 
11.11.3Computation of Time.  In computing a time period under this Contract, exclude the first 

Day and include the last Day. If the last Day does not occur on a Working Day, the 
period is extended until the next Working Day after the last Day. Commissioners Court 
usually designates the following as holidays: 

 
New Year’s Day (January 1st or Monday after if it falls on a weekend) 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (3rd Monday in January) 
President's Day (3rd Monday in February) 
Memorial Day (4th Monday in May)  
Independence Day (July 4th or Monday after if it falls on a weekend)  
Labor Day (1st Monday in September) 
Veteran’s Day (November 11th or Monday after, if it falls on a weekend) 
Thanksgiving Day (4th Thursday AND Friday in November) 
Christmas Season (December 25th AND either day before or day after whichever 
allows a four day weekend, if possible) 
 

11.11.4Number and Gender.  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, words of any gender 
are construed to include the other two genders and words in singular and plural are 
construed to include the other. 

 
11.11.5Headings.  The headings and titles throughout this Contract are included only to make it 

easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection and are not to be 
used in construing this Contract. 

 
11.12 Exemption from County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to Section 262.024 of the Texas Local 

Government Code, the Commissioners Court hereby orders this Contract exempt from the 
requirements established by Section 262.023 of the Texas Local Government Code because it is 
a contract for the purchase of personal or professional services. 
 

11.13 Duplicate Originals. This Contract will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when 
executed by both parties. 

 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
By:        
 
Printed Name:       

Its Duly Authorized Agent 
 
Date:        
TRAVIS COUNTY: 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 48 of 85 
 

 

By:        
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 

 
 
Date:       

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
        
Barbara Wilson, Travis County Attorney 
 
Date:        
 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS CONFIRMED: 
 
        
Nicki Riley, CPA, Travis County Auditor 
 
Date:        

 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND POLICY CONFIRMED AND APPROVED: 
 
          
Cyd V. Grimes, CPM, CPPO, Travis County Purchasing Agent  
 
Date:          
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 49 of 85 
 

 

CONTRACT ATTACHMENT E 
 

MUTUAL BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND  

CONTRACTOR 
 

This Business Associate Agreement ("BAA") is executed by the following parties: 
Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas (“County”) and  
 
_____(name of contractor)________, a ______(legal description of Contractor) ________ ("Contractor"). 
 

RECITALS 

County and Contractor are entering into a contract that involves access to information governed by HIPAA 
and HITECH. 

 
They are entering into this BAA:  

(1) to provide Contractor with satisfactory assurances, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.314(a), 
that County will appropriately safeguard any electronic protected health information that County creates, 
receives, maintains or transmits on Contractor’s behalf and  

(2) to provide County with satisfactory assurances, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.314(a), that 
Contractor will appropriately safeguard any electronic protected health information that Contractor 
creates, receives, maintains or transmits on County’s behalf.  45 CFR 164.308 (b). 

 
AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, County and Contractor mutually agree to the following terms and conditions. 
I.  TERM. 

1.1. This BAA commences on the date on which it is signed by the last party to sign it.  This BAA continues 
in force until it is terminated by one of the parties.   

II.  COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY 

2.1. Directly Regulated  County acknowledges that it is directly regulated by HIPAA and HITECH and Part 
164. 

2.2. County Compliance with Part 164.  County shall comply with the applicable requirements of Part 164.  
45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(A).  County shall use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, with Part 
164 to prevent use or disclosure of electronic protected health information other than as provided for in this 
BAA.  45 CFR 164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(B). 

2.3. Subcontractor Compliance with Part 164.  County shall ensure that any subcontractors that create, 
receive, maintain, or transmit electronic protected health information on behalf of County agree to comply with 
the applicable requirements of Part 164 by entering into a contract with the subcontractor that complies with 45 
CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(B).  If County knows of a pattern of activity or practice of a subcontractor that constitutes a 
material breach or violation of the subcontractor's obligation under that contract, County shall take reasonable 
steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and, if such steps were unsuccessful, terminated the 
contract, if feasible.  45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(iii). 

2.4. Notice of Breach to Contractor  County shall report to Contractor any security incident of which it 
becomes aware, including breaches of Contractor’s unsecured protected health information as required by 45 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 50 of 85 
 

 

CFR § 164.410.  County shall report to Contractor any successful security incident in detail as promptly as 
possible and no later than 2 business days after County becomes aware of it. County may report to Contractor 
unsuccessful security incidents in the aggregate at least once each quarter.  County determines if there has been 
a data breach for data that initiated with County and whether data that initiated with County has been 
compromised.  45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(C).   

2.5. Policies and Training  County shall implement, maintain and enforce procedures and policies consistent 
with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, HITECH and Part 164.  County shall provide its employees 
working in areas treated as a covered entity with appropriate regular training in these policies and procedures 
and compliance with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, HITECH and Part 164.  County shall ensure that 
these employees comply with these procedures and policies.   

2.6. Notice of Breach.  Following the discovery of a breach of unsecured protected health information, 
County shall notify Contractor of the breach without unreasonable delay and no later than 60 calendar days after 
discovery of a breach.  This notice shall include, to the extent possible, the identity of each individual whose 
unsecured protected health information has been, or is reasonably believed by County to have been accessed, 
acquired, used, or disclosed during the breach and any other available information that Contractor is required to 
include in its notice to the individual under 45 CFR § 164.404(c).  For purposes of this paragraph, a breach shall 
be treated as discovered by County as of the first day on which that breach is known to County or, by exercising 
reasonable diligence, would have been known to County. County shall be deemed to have knowledge of a 
breach if the breach is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person, 
other than the person committing the breach, who is an employee, officer, or other agent of County. 45 CFR 
164.410. 

2.7. Permitted Uses and Disclosures  County may use protected health information provided to County by 
Contractor data for the following activities: 

2.7.1. Treatment of patients, 

2.7.2. Payment,  

2.7.3. Healthcare operations including quality assessment and improvement activities, competence or 
qualifications of health care professionals, conducting or arranging for medical review business 
planning and development, business management and general administrative activities of 
County, 

2.7.4. proper management and administration of County,  

2.7.5. Making protected health information available for amendment and incorporating any 
amendments to protected health information in accordance with Part 164, and 

2.7.6. Making the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures available in accordance 
with Part 164. 

2.8. Required Uses and Disclosures  County shall disclose protected health information and make its internal 
practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of protected health information received from, or 
created or received by County available to the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services for 
purposes of determining Contractor’s or County’s compliance with Part 164.  County shall also disclose 
protected health information to Contractor when requested by an individual or the individual's designee, as 
necessary to satisfy Contractor’s obligations to provide the individual with access to inspect and obtain a copy 
of his or her protected health information in a designated record set, subject to the exclusions in § 
164.524(a)(1), in the electronic format requested if it is readily producible in such form and format; or, if not, in 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 51 of 85 
 

 

a readable electronic form and format as agreed to by the covered entity and the individual in compliance with 
Part 164. 

2.9. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures  County shall not use or further disclose genetic information for 
underwriting purposes or sell protected health information or use or disclose protected health information other 
than as permitted or required by the BAA or as required by law.  For purposes of this paragraph, sale of 
protected health information means a disclosure of protected health information by County where County 
directly or indirectly receives remuneration from or on behalf of the recipient of the protected health 
information in exchange for the protected health information but does not include disclosure of protected health 
information as specifically limited in 45 CFR § 164.502(5). 

2.10. Accounting of Disclosures  Except as otherwise permitted or required by this BAA, County shall report 
to Contractor any use or disclosure of the information of which it becomes aware, including breaches of 
unsecured protected health information.  45 CFR § 164.410 and 45 CFR 164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(C). 

2.11. Return or Destruction of Data  At termination of the BAA, if feasible, County shall return or destroy all 
protected health information received from, or created or received by County on behalf of Contractor that 
County still maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information. If such return or destruction is not 
feasible, County shall extend the protections of the BAA to the information and limit further uses and 
disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible. 

2.12. Compliance with Laws  County shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in the 
performance of this BAA.  

III.  CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY 

3.1. Directly Regulated  Contractor acknowledges that it is directly regulated by HIPAA and HITECH and 
Part 164. 

3.2. Contractor Compliance with Part 164.  Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Part 
164.  45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(A).  Contractor shall use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, 
with Part 164 to prevent use or disclosure of electronic protected health information other than as provided for 
in this BAA.  45 CFR 164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(B). 

3.3. Subcontractor Compliance with Part 164.  Contractor shall ensure that any subcontractors that create, 
receive, maintain, or transmit electronic protected health information on behalf of Contractor agree to comply 
with the applicable requirements of Part 164 by entering into a contract with the subcontractor that complies 
with 45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(B).  If Contractor knows of a pattern of activity or practice of a subcontractor that 
constitutes a material breach or violation of the subcontractor's obligation under that contract, Contractor shall 
take reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and, if such steps were unsuccessful, 
terminated the contract, if feasible.  45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(iii). 

3.4. Notice of Breach to County  Contractor shall report to County any security incident of which it becomes 
aware, including breaches of County’s unsecured protected health information as required by 45 CFR § 
164.410.  Contractor shall report to County any successful security incident in detail as promptly as possible 
and no later than 2 business days after Contractor becomes aware of it. Contractor may report to County 
unsuccessful security incidents in the aggregate at least once each quarter.  Contractor determines if there has 
been a data breach for data that initiated with Contractor and whether data that initiated with Contractor has 
been compromised.  45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(C).   

3.5. Policies and Training  Contractor shall implement, maintain and enforce procedures and policies 
consistent with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, HITECH and Part 164.  Contractor shall provide its 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 52 of 85 
 

 

directors, employees, and volunteers with appropriate regular training in these policies and procedures and 
compliance with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, HITECH and Part 164.  Contractor shall ensure that its 
directors, employees, volunteers and subcontractors comply with these procedures and policies.   

3.6. Notice of Breach.  Following the discovery of a breach of unsecured protected health information, 
Contractor shall notify County of the breach without unreasonable delay and no later than 60 calendar days after 
discovery of a breach.  This notice shall include, to the extent possible, the identity of each individual whose 
unsecured protected health information has been, or is reasonably believed by Contractor to have been accessed, 
acquired, used, or disclosed during the breach and any other available information that County is required to 
include in its notice to the individual under 45 CFR § 164.404(c).  For purposes of this paragraph, a breach shall 
be treated as discovered by Contractor as of the first day on which that breach is known to Contractor or, by 
exercising reasonable diligence, would have been known to Contractor. Contractor shall be deemed to have 
knowledge of a breach if the breach is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to 
any person, other than the person committing the breach, who is an employee, officer, or other agent of 
Contractor. 45 CFR 164.410. 

3.7. Permitted Uses and Disclosures  Contractor may use protected health information provided to 
Contractor by County data for the following activities: 

3.7.1. Treatment of patients, 

3.7.2. Payment,  

3.7.3. Healthcare operations including quality assessment and improvement activities, competence or 
qualifications of health care professionals, conducting or arranging for medical review business 
planning and development, business management and general administrative activities of 
Contractor, 

3.7.4. Proper management and administration of Contractor,  

3.7.5. Making protected health information available for amendment and incorporating any 
amendments to protected health information in accordance with Part 164, and 

3.7.6. Making the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures available in accordance 
with § 164.528. 

3.8. Required Uses and Disclosures  Contractor shall disclose protected health information and make its 
internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of protected health information received 
from, or created or received by Contractor available to the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human 
Services for purposes of determining Contractor’s or County’s compliance with Part 164.  Contractor also shall 
disclose protected health information to County when requested by an individual or the individual's designee, as 
necessary to satisfy County’s obligations to provide the individual with access to inspect and obtain a copy of 
his or her protected health information in a designated record set, subject to the exclusions in § 164.524(a)(1), in 
the electronic format requested if it is readily producible in such form and format; or, if not, in a readable 
electronic form and format as agreed to by the covered entity and the individual in compliance with Part 164. 

3.9. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures  Contractor shall not use or further disclose genetic information for 
underwriting purposes or sell protected health information or use or disclose protected health information other 
than as permitted or required by the BAA or as required by law.  For purposes of this paragraph, sale of 
protected health information means a disclosure of protected health information by Contractor where Contractor 
directly or indirectly receives remuneration from or on behalf of the recipient of the protected health 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 53 of 85 
 

 

information in exchange for the protected health information but does not include disclosure of protected health 
information as specifically limited in 45 CFR § 164.502(5). 

3.10. Accounting of Disclosures  Except as otherwise permitted or required by this BAA, Contractor shall 
report to County any use or disclosure of the information of which it becomes aware, including breaches of 
unsecured protected health information.  45 CFR § 164.410 and 45 CFR 164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(C). 

3.11. Return or Destruction of Data  At termination of the BAA, if feasible, Contractor shall return or destroy 
all protected health information received from, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of County that 
Contractor still maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information. If such return or destruction is 
not feasible, Contractor shall extend the protections of the BAA to the information and limit further uses and 
disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible. 

3.12 Compliance with Laws  Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in the 
performance of this BAA.  

IV.  LIABILITY 

4.1. County is not liable for and Contractor assumes full risk of any claims, damages or attorney’s fees of 
every kind for injury to or death of any person and for damages to or loss of property arising in whole or in part, 
directly or indirectly, as a result of the operations, including acts and omissions, of the Contractor under this 
BAA.   

4.2. Contractor is not liable for and County assumes full risk of any claims, damages or attorney’s fees of 
every kind for injury or death of any person and for damages to or loss of property arising in whole or in part, 
directly or indirectly, as a result of the operations, including acts or omissions, of the County under this BAA.   

4.3. By entering into this BAA, County does not waive, and shall not be deemed to waive, any right, defense, 
or immunity that County may have. 

V.  LIMIT ON AGENTS 

5.1. No agent, official, employee, or representative of County has the authority to amend or assign this BAA 
or waive violations of it unless expressly granted this specific authority by the Commissioners Court.  

VI.  BREACH 

6.1. The failure of either party to comply with the terms and conditions of this BAA is a breach of this BAA.  

VII.  MEDIATION 

7.1. When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising under this BAA, the parties 
agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas as the provider of mediators for mediation as 
described in the TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE ANN., §154.023.  Unless both parties are satisfied with the 
result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute.  All 
communications within the scope of the mediation must remain confidential as described in TEX. CIV. PRAC. 
AND REM. CODE ANN.,  §154.073, unless both parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality.  

VIII.  TERMINATION 

8.1 County for Cause Termination.  County has the right to terminate this BAA and the BAA, in whole or in 
part, for one or more of the following reasons at any time in compliance with 7.2:  

8.1.1 Contractor fails to cease violations of this BAA or HIPAA or HITECH or Part 164,  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 54 of 85 
 

 

8.1.2 Contractor has violated its policies and procedures arising from compliance with HIPAA or 
HITECH or Part 164 or both one or more times, 
8.1.3 Contractor has failed to comply with any term or condition of this BAA, or 
8.1.4 Contractor is unable to conform to changes required by federal, state or local laws or regulations 
related to performance under this BAA. 

 
8.2 Procedure.  At least  thirty (30) days before the effective date of termination, County must notify 
Contractor in compliance with Article XIII of the decision to terminate this BAA, the existence and nature of 
the breach, the effective date of termination and, in the case of a partial termination, the portion of the BAA to 
be terminated.  Contractor may avoid termination of this BAA pursuant to 7.1.1, 7.1.2, and 7.1.3 if Contractor 
cures the breach to the satisfaction of County within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of breach.  The time to 
cure may be extended, at the sole discretion of County, as long as the Contractor diligently continues to work 
toward completion of the cure. If the breach is not cured to the satisfaction of County prior to the effective date 
of termination or any extension of the date allowed by County in writing, the Contractor is in default and the 
participation of the Contractor is automatically terminated on that date.  
 
8.3 Contractor For Cause Termination.  Contractor may terminate this BAA, in whole or in part, at any time 
for any of the following reasons in compliance with 7.4:  

8.3.1 County fails to cease violations of this BAA or HIPAA or HITECH or Part 164,  
8.3.2 County has violated its policies and procedures arising from compliance with HIPAA or 
HITECH or Part 164 or both one or more times, 
8.3.3 County has failed to comply with any term or condition of this BAA, or 
8.3.4 County is unable to conform to changes required by federal, state or local laws or regulations 
related to performance under this BAA. 
 

8.4 Procedure.  At least  thirty (30) days before the date of termination, Contractor must notify County in 
compliance with Article XIII of the decision to terminate this BAA, the reasons for termination, the effective 
date of termination and in the case of a partial termination, the portion of the BAA to be terminated.  County 
may avoid termination of this BAA pursuant to 7.3.1 or 7.3.2 or 7.3.3 if County corrects the causes of the 
reasons for termination stated in the notice to the satisfaction of the Contractor prior to the effective date of 
termination. 

8.5 Mutual Termination.  Either party has the right to terminate this BAA, in whole or in part, when both 
parties agree, in writing, that the continuation of the activities under this BAA would not produce beneficial 
results commensurate with the further expenditure of funds and what conditions of termination will apply, 
including the effective date of termination and, in case of partial termination, the portion of the BAA to be 
terminated. 

IX.NON-WAIVER AND RESERVATION OF REMEDIES 

9.1. Non-Waiver.  Any act of forbearance by either party to enforce any provision of this BAA shall not be 
interpreted as a modification of this BAA or as a waiver of any breach or default of the other party which then 
exists or may subsequently exist.  The failure of either party to exercise any right or privilege granted in this 
BAA shall not be interpreted as a waiver of that right or privilege.  In this BAA, County and Contractor do not 
waive any immunity or defense that would otherwise be available to them against claims arising in the exercise 
of their governmental powers and functions.  

9.2. Reservation of Rights and Remedies.  All rights of both parties under this BAA are specifically reserved.  
Any payment, act or omission by a party must not impair or prejudice any remedy or right of that party under 
this BAA.  Any right or remedy stated in this BAA must not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy 
under this BAA, the law or at equity, nor must any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be 
deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 55 of 85 
 

 

X.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

10.1. Agreement All Inclusive.  All oral and written agreements between the parties to this BAA relating to 
the subject matter of this BAA that were made prior to the execution of this BAA have been reduced to writing 
and are contained in this document.  

XI.  ASSIGNABILITY  

11.1. Neither party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this BAA without the prior written 
approval of the other party.  It is acknowledged by Contractor that no officer, agency, employee or 
representative of County has any authority to grant such assignment unless expressly granted that authority by 
the Commissioners Court.  

XII.  AMENDMENTS 

12.1. Amendment of BAA. Any change to the provisions of this BAA must be made in writing and signed by 
both parties: County and Contractor.  It is acknowledged by Contractor that no officer, agency, employee or 
representative of County has any authority to change the provisions of this BAA unless expressly granted that 
authority by Commissioners Court.  

12.2. Contractor Request.  Contractor must submit all requests for changes to this BAA to the County 
Purchasing Agent. The County Purchasing Agent must present the Contractor ’s requests to Commissioners 
Court for consideration.  

12.3. County Request.  County must submit all requests for changes to this BAA to the person designated for 
notice by Contractor.  That person must present County's requests to the Contractor for consideration.  

XIII.  NOTICES  

13.1. Written Notice.  All notices sent pursuant to this BAA shall be in writing and either hand delivered or 
sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. 

13.2. County Address.  Notice sent pursuant to this BAA may be delivered or mailed to County.  If delivered, 
notice shall be delivered at the following address: 

County Purchasing Agent 
700 Lavaca, Suite 800  
Austin, Texas  78701 

 
13.3.   If mailed, notice shall be mailed to the following address: 

County Purchasing Agent 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas  78767 

 
13.4. Contractor Addresses.  Paper Notices sent pursuant to this BAA shall be delivered or mailed to 
Contractor at the addresses shown in its contract with County for third party administration service for its health 
plan unless notice of change has been provided.   

13.5. Time of Delivery.  When notices sent are hand delivered, notice is effective upon delivery.  When 
notices are mailed by registered or certified mail, notice shall be deemed effective three days after deposit in a 
U.S. mail box or at a U.S. post office. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 56 of 85 
 

 

13.6 Change of Address.  Contractor may change its address for notice under this contract by providing a 
notice of the change to County in compliance with this Article XIII. 

XIV.  INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT 

14.1. Third Party Rights Not Created.  This BAA is not intended and shall not be interpreted to create any 
rights or remedies in any person or legal entity that is not a party to it and neither County nor Contractor is 
waiving any defense or immunity to which it is entitled against any person or legal entity that is not a party to it.   

14.2. Law.  This BAA is governed by the laws of the United States of America and the laws of Texas.  This 
BAA is performable in Travis County, Texas.  

14.3. Severability.  If any portion of this BAA is ruled invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remainder of it must be construed as if that portion were not included in the BAA and the remainder remains 
valid and binding.  

14.4. Definitions.   In this BAA, all words and phrases used in this BAA and defined in 45 CFR Parts 160 
through 164 inclusive have the same meaning in this BAA as they have in 45 CFR Parts 160 through 164 
inclusive.  In addition, in this BAA 

14.4.1. Business Day.  “Business Day” means Monday through Friday unless County has designated one 
of these days as a County holiday.  

14.4.2. Commissioners Court. "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court.  

14.4.3. HIPAA“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. 

14.4.4. HITECH  “HITECH” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical 
Health Act of 2009. 

14.4.5. Part 164.  “Part 164” means 45 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 164 which forms a portion of 
the regulations issued under HIPAA and HITECH.  

14.4.6. County Purchasing Agent. “County Purchasing Agent " means the Travis County Purchasing or 
her designee. 

14.5. Computation of Time.  When any period of time is stated in this BAA, the time must be computed to 
exclude the first day and include the last day of the period.  If the last day of any period falls on a Saturday, 
Sunday or a day that County has declared a holiday for its employees, these days must be omitted from the 
computation.  

14.6. Number and Gender.  Words of any gender in this BAA must be construed to include any other gender 
and words in either number must be construed to include the other unless the context in the BAA clearly 
requires otherwise.  

14.7. Headings.  The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this BAA have been included only 
to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection and are not to be used in 
construing this BAA. 

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 57 of 85 
 

 

XV.  DUPLICATE ORIGINALS  

15.1. This document is executed in duplicate originals.  

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

 
By:         
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Travis County, Texas 
 
Date:         
 
 
CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Title:         
 
Date:         
 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 58 of 85 
 

 

NOTE: PARTS II-FOR FULLY INSURED, III-FFOR FULLY INSURED, AND IV-FFOR FULLY 
INSURED, ALONG WITH THE CONTRACTOR'S PROPOSAL, AND ANY DEVIATION TO WHICH 
TRAVIS COUNTY HAS AGREED, IN WRITING, BECOME THE CONTRACT. 
 

PART II - SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS: STOP LOSS FOR FULLY INSURED 
 
1.0 EFFECTIVE DATE OF COVERAGE:  The effective date of the Stop Loss insurance will be 

12:00:01 a.m., October 1, 2014. 
 

2.0 TRAVIS COUNTY’S ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF COVERAGE: 
 

Stop Loss policies must include coverage for all eligible employees, dependents, and retirees as defined in 
the Summary Plan Description. 
 
High dollar claims submitted to the stop loss carrier must not be delayed or pended if all of the paperwork is 
submitted according to established protocol only for verification of the individual’s eligibility if the 
individual’s eligibility has been determined on a previous claim. 
 
The “group health plans” are the plans on file with the Third Party Administrator at the time coverage is 
issued. Any amendments to the plans such as an amendment extending coverage to those who meet the 
definition of eligible dependent must be approved in writing by the County and the stop loss carrier. 
Changes in claims experience and employee demographics clauses that permit the insurer to change its 
coverage in the event that the number of covered employees increases or decreases by a certain percentage, 
must be eliminated from all layers of stop loss coverage. 
 
In the alternative, carrier must agree to provide 120 day notice of rate or coverage change including 
cancellation due to claim or demographic changes. 
 
Contractor shall provide Standard monthly reports and custom reports as required. 

 
Contractor shall provide quarterly reviews  and an annual review with the Account Management Team. 

 
Contractor must provide an interface with the SAP custom interface for file feeds and interface with 834 
file 
Contractor shall provide a secure portal to share data. 
 
Contractor shall interface with other Travis County contractors. 

 
Contractors shall allow County to self-bill administrative fees on a monthly basis.  

 
File Transfer Method and Frequency: Contractor must support the File Transfer Protocol via an FTP 
server, and Travis County must be able to login to the FTP server.  Contractor must allow Travis County 
to transfer files on whatever frequency is needed (i.e. daily, weekly, bi-weekly, and monthly) 
 
Claims and Customer Service: Contractor must provide prompt customer service and thorough and 
responsive processing of all claims submitted by the plan participants.  Travis County reserves the right 
for representatives to visit and review the provider’s claims processing operations during normal 
business hours 
 
Notice of Denial: In case of denial of a claim for payment for any reason, Contractor notifies the 
claimant in writing in a clear, concise and easy-to-understand manner giving the reason for denial.  If 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 59 of 85 
 

 

there is an appeal process involved, the claimant will be provided full information relating to the 
procedures and steps to follow. 
 
Communication: Contractor commits to a high level of communication so participants can have an 
understanding of the plan’s design and value of the benefits being offered.  Contractor should provide 
high quality communication to employees by conducting meetings and by providing written and visual 
materials in a simplified, easy-to-understand manner.  Contractor must attend all open enrollment 
meetings and health fairs. 
 
Contract Transition: When services end either by contract expiration or by termination, Contractor shall 
continue services at the rates applicable to the most recent term until a new provider becomes 
operational, if requested by Travis County.  Contractor acknowledges its responsibility to cooperate 
fully with the replacement provider and Travis County to assist with and ensure a smooth transition. 
 
PART II - SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS: VISION FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE 

 
1.0 EFFECTIVE DATE OF COVERAGE: The effective date of the vision insurance will be 12:00:01 

a.m., October 1, 2014. 
 

2.0 TRAVIS COUNTY’S ESSENTIAL ELEMENTS OF COVERAGE: 
 

Policy must include coverage for all eligible employees, dependents, and retirees as defined in the Summary 
Plan Description. 
 
The “group health plans” are the plans on file with the Third Party Administrator at the time coverage is 
issued. Any amendments to the plans such as an amendment extending coverage to those who meet the 
definition of eligible dependent must be approved in writing by the County and the vision carrier. 
Changes in claims experience and employee demographics clauses that permit the insurer to change its 
coverage in the event that the number of covered employees increases or decreases by a certain percentage, 
must be eliminated from all layers of stop loss coverage. 
 
In the alternative, carrier must agree to provide 120 day notice of rate or coverage change including 
cancellation due to claim or demographic changes. 
 
Contractor shall provide Standard monthly reports and custom reports as required. 

 
Contractor shall provide quarterly reviews  and an annual review with the Account Management Team. 

 
Contractor must provide an interface with the SAP custom interface for file feeds and interface with 834 
file 
Contractor shall provide a secure portal to share data. 
 
Contractor shall interface with other Travis County contractors. 

 
Contractors shall allow County to self-bill for premium on a monthly basis. 

 
File Transfer Method and Frequency: Contractor must support the File Transfer Protocol via an FTP 
server, and Travis County must be able to login to the FTP server.  Contractor must allow Travis County 
to transfer files on whatever frequency is needed (i.e. daily, weekly, bi-weekly, and monthly) 
 
Claims and Customer Service: Contractor must provide prompt customer service and thorough and 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 60 of 85 
 

 

responsive processing of all claims submitted by the plan participants.  Travis County reserves the right 
for representatives to visit and review the provider’s claims processing operations during normal 
business hours 
 
Notice of Denial: In case of denial of a claim for payment for any reason, Contractor notifies the 
claimant in writing in a clear, concise and easy-to-understand manner giving the reason for denial.  If 
there is an appeal process involved, the claimant will be provided full information relating to the 
procedures and steps to follow. 
 
Communication: Contractor commits to a high level of communication so participants can have an 
understanding of the plan’s design and value of the benefits being offered.  Contractor should provide 
high quality communication to employees by conducting meetings and by providing written and visual 
materials in a simplified, easy-to-understand manner.  Contractor must attend all open enrollment 
meetings and health fairs. 
 
Contract Transition: When services end either by contract expiration or by termination, Contractor shall 
continue services at the rates applicable to the most recent term until a new provider becomes 
operational, if requested by Travis County.  Contractor acknowledges its responsibility to cooperate 
fully with the replacement provider and Travis County to assist with and ensure a smooth transition. 
 
Contractor must agree to mirror provisions of Plan Document/Summary Plan Description. 

 
PART III - SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE 

 
1.0 TERM OF AGREEMENT: The initial term of agreement is for two years from 12:00:00 a.m., 

October 1, 2014 through 11:59:59 p.m., September 30, 2016. 
 

2.0 OPTION TO EXTEND:  County may unilaterally extend this Contract for two (2) additional one (1) 
year periods.  In addition the County may unilaterally extend the contract for three (3) additional one 
(1) month periods (individually, an “Option to Extend” and collectively, the “Options to Extend”), and 
all provisions of this Contract, except for term and price, shall remain unchanged and in full force and 
effect.    Contractor shall provide notice of any renewal increase at least 90 days before the end of the 
current term.  County may exercise an Option to Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to 
expiration of the then current term.  Changes in rates shall not occur more than once annually on the 
anniversary of the commencement of the contract. The total term of this Contract, including the 
Options to Extend, shall not exceed fifty-one (51) months.  County has the right to exercise all or a 
portion of the Options to Extend, in any combination it deems necessary. 
 

3.0 ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT: Contractor shall perform all services necessary to place and 
manage the policy in a good and workmanlike manner at a standard acceptable for a similar business in 
Travis County and to render all services promptly and efficiently.  The Contractor shall name the person 
or the team that will manage this account and act as the contact for Travis County. 
 

4.0 MINIMUM COVERAGE FOR INSURANCE: 
 
4.1 Minimum Coverage. Minimum insurance coverage may be written as combined single limits or 

structured using primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary 
policy. Contractor acknowledges and shall maintain the following standard minimum insurance 
coverage applicable to Contractor and any subcontractor performing work related to Services all 
in compliance with Part IV-For Fully Insured Coverage, sections 26.1 and 26.2: 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 61 of 85 
 

 

4.1.1 Workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance that meets the following 
requirements: 

 
4.1.1.1 Coverage that is consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas 

Workers’ Compensation Act, 
 

4.1.1.2 Employers’ liability limits of: 
 

$500,000 bodily injury each accident, 
$500,000 bodily injury by disease, and 
$500,000 policy limit. 

 
4.1.1.3 Policies that are subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the 

following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304), and 
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601). 

4.1.2 Commercial general liability insurance that meets the following requirements: 
 

4.1.2.1 Minimum limits for coverage: 
 
$500,000 per occurrence for coverage A for Bodily Injury and Property 

Damage, 
$500,000 per occurrence for coverage B Personal Injury and Advertisement, 

and 
$1,000,000 policy aggregate. 

4.1.2.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and contains the following 
coverage or is endorsed in favor of Travis County as follows: 
 
Blanket contractual liability for this Contract, 
Independent Contractor Coverage, 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), 
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205), and 
Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010). 

4.1.3 Business automobile liability insurance that meets the following requirements: 
 

4.1.3.1 If any form of transportation for county personnel or clients is provided, 
minimum coverage for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with a 
combined single limit of $300,000 per occurrence. 
 

4.1.3.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A), 
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A), and 
Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B). 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 62 of 85 
 

 

 
4.1.3.3 Alternative Insurance Requirement. If no transportation services of any type are 

provided, and use of motor vehicles is strictly limited to travel to and from work 
or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of $100,000 
/ $300,000 / $50,000 may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability 
Insurance in sections 5.1.3.1 and 5.1.3.2. 
 

4.1.3.4 Any Policy under section 5.1.3.3 must be subject to the laws of the State of 
Texas and include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A), and 
Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B). 

4.1.4 Professional liability / E & O insurance that meets the following requirements: 
 

4.1.4.1 Minimum limit for coverage for malpractice, negligent acts, errors, or omissions 
and sexual harassment: 

 
4.1.4.1.1 $1,000,000 per claim, and 

 
4.1.4.1.2 $3,000,000 aggregate. 

 
4.1.4.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the following 

endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
 

4.1.4.2.1 Waiver of Subrogation (if including in Commercial General 
insurance, Form CG 2404 or its equivalent, and 
 

4.1.4.2.2 Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (if including in Commercial 
General Insurance, Form CG 2404 or its equivalent. 

 
4.1.4.3 If coverage is written on a claims made basis, the retroactive date must be prior 

to the earlier of the date this Contract is signed or effective and include a three 
(3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract ends.  The 
Certificate of Insurance must state whether the coverage is claims made and 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting date. 
 

4.1.4.4 Any subcontractor who is not covered under Contractor’s professional liability 
insurance shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually 
on the renewal date of their insurance policy. 

 
4.1.5 Blanket Crime Policy Insurance. 

 
4.1.5.1 Contractor shall provide a Blanket Crime Policy with a minimum coverage of the 

total amount payable under the Contract or for the amount of scheduled advances 
in the Escrow Account. 
 

4.1.5.2 If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior 
to the date Services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this 
Contract, whichever is earlier.  Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended 
reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. The 
Certificate of Insurance shall clarify whether coverage is claims made and shall 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 63 of 85 
 

 

contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period 
date. 

 
4.1.5.3 Additional insured status for Travis County is not required. 

 
4.2 Contractor must mail the Certificate of Insurance, and updates, submitted in compliance with 

Part IV-For Fully Insured Coverage to the following address: 
 
Cyd Grimes 
Travis County Purchasing Agent 
RFP # 1311-003-CW 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 
PART IV - GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE 

 
1.0 GENERAL DEFINITIONS: 

 
1.1 "Auditor" means the Travis County Auditor or her designee. 

 
1.2 "Commissioners Court" means Travis County Commissioners Court. 
 
1.3 "County Building" means any County owned buildings and does not include buildings leased by 

County. 
 
1.4 "Is doing business" and "has done business" mean: 
 

1.4.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth 
more than $250 in exchange for personal services or for purchase or use of any property 
or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 
 

1.4.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in 
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in 
a calendar year; 

 
1.4.3 but does not include 

 
1.4.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting person at a 

posted, published, or marked price available to the general public, 
 

1.4.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting person for personal, 
family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to 
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the 
ordinary course of its business; and 

 
1.4.3.3 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of 

Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, 
employee or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in 
position that he or she should have known about the contract. 

 
1.5 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit A to Affidavit. 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 64 of 85 
 

 

1.6 "Purchasing Agent" means the Travis County Purchasing Agent or her designee. 
 
1.7 "County" means Travis County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas. 
 
1.8 "Historically Underutilized Business" or "HUB" means any entity or association formed to make 

a profit in which one (1) or more persons who are educationally or economically disadvantaged 
because of their identification as members of one of the following groups: African Americans, 
Hispanic Americans, Asian Pacific Americans, Native Americans or Women of any ethnicity 
have the following rights: 

 
1.8.1 own at least fifty-one percent (51%) of all classes of shares or other equitable securities 

and have incidents of ownership, including an interest in profit and loss, equivalent to the 
percentage of capital, equipment or expertise contributed to the business where 
ownership is measured as though the community property interest of a spouse is the 
separate property of that spouse, if both spouses certify in writing that the non-
participating spouse relinquishes control over his or her spouse, and his or her community 
property, and not as if it is subject to the community property interest of the other spouse;  
and 
 

1.8.2 have a proportionate interest and demonstrated active participation in the control, 
operation and management of the business's affairs; where control means having 
recognized ultimate control over all day-to-day decisions affecting the business, and is be 
known to, and at least tacitly acknowledged in day-to-day operations by employees of the 
business and by those with whom business is conducted, and holding a title 
commensurate with that control. 

 
2.0 RESERVED 

 
3.0 CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATIONS: 

 
3.1 Contractor certifies that it is a duly qualified, capable, and otherwise bondable business entity, 

that it is not in receivership or contemplates same, and has not filed for bankruptcy. It further 
certifies that Contractor is not currently delinquent with respect to payment of property taxes 
within County. 
 

3.2 Contractor warrants that all applicable copyrights, patents, and licenses which may exist on 
materials used in this contract have been adhered to and further warrants that County shall not be 
liable for any infringement of those rights and any rights granted to County shall apply for the 
duration of the contract.  Contractor shall indemnify County, its officers, agents and employees 
from all claims, losses, damages, causes of action and liability of every kind including expenses 
of litigation, and court costs and attorney fees for damages to any person or property arising in 
connection with any alleged or actual infringement of existing licenses, patents, or copyrights 
applicable to materials used in this Contract.  This section shall not be interpreted as a waiver of 
sovereign immunity and County retains all of its affirmative defenses. 

 
4.0 DISPUTES AND APPEALS: The Purchasing Agent acts as the County representative in the issuance 

and administration of this contract in relation to disputes.  Any document, notice, or correspondence not 
issued by or to the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County person, in relation to disputes is void 
unless otherwise stated in this Contract.  If the Contractor does not agree with any document, notice, or 
correspondence issued by the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County person, the Contractor must 
submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the 
document, notice, or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail.  If the matter is 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 65 of 85 
 

 

not resolved to the Contractor’s satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the 
Commissioners Court, through the Purchasing Agent, if the Notice is submitted within ten (10) calendar 
days after receipt of the unsatisfactory reply.  Contractor then has the right to be heard by 
Commissioners Court. 
 

5.0 FUNDING OUT: Despite anything to the contrary in this contract, if, during budget planning and 
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of 
County, County may terminate this contract after giving Contractor thirty (30) days written notice that 
this contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 
 

6.0 RESERVED 
 

7.0 INVOICING/PAYMENTS: 
 
7.1 Contractor shall provide County with an Internal Revenue Form W-9, Request for Taxpayer 

Identification Number and Certification, that is completed in compliance with the Internal 
Revenue Code and its rules and regulations before any Contract funds are payable. 
 

7.2 Payment shall be made by check or warrant by County upon satisfactory delivery and acceptance 
of products and services and submission of an invoice to the address below: 

 
Travis County Auditor 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 
7.3 Contractor shall accept self-billing on a monthly basis from County. 

 
7.4 Payment shall be deemed to have been made on the date of mailing of the check or warrant. For 

purposes of payment discounts, time will begin upon satisfactory delivery of products and 
services and/or submission of acceptable invoice, whichever is last.  Partial payments will not be 
made unless specifically requested and approved by County prior to Contract award. 

 
7.5 Accrual and payment of interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Texas Government 

Code Annotated, chapter 2251. 
 

8.0 DISCOUNTS: In connection with any discount offered, time is computed from the date of receipt of 
goods or services or from the date a correct invoice is received, whichever is the later date.  Payment is 
deemed to have been made on the date of mailing of the check or warrant. 
 

9.0 OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT:  If a member of the Commissioners Court belongs to a cooperative 
association, the County may purchase services from the association only if no member of the 
Commissioners Court will receive a pecuniary benefit from the purchase, other than as reflected in an 
increase in dividends distributed generally to members of the association. 
 

10.0 COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES: The Contractor warrants that no persons or selling 
agency has been retained to solicit this contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling 
agencies maintained by the Contractor to secure business.  For breach or violation of this warranty, 
County shall have the right to terminate this contract without liability, or in its discretion, as applicable, 
to add to or deduct from the contract price for consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of 
such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 66 of 85 
 

 

11.0 ASSIGNMENT: 
 
11.1 Assignment.  The parties to this contract shall not assign any of the rights or obligations under 

this contract without the prior written consent of the other party.  No official, employee, 
representative or agent of County has the authority to approve any assignment under this contract 
unless that specific authority is expressly granted by Commissioners Court. 
 

11.2 Successors Bound.  The terms, provisions, covenants, obligations and conditions of this contract 
are binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors in interest and the assigns of the 
parties to this contract if the assignment or transfer is made in compliance with the provisions of 
this contract. 

 
11.3 If a change of name is required, the Purchasing Agent shall be notified immediately.  No change 

in the obligation of or to Contractor will be recognized until it is approved by Commissioners 
Court. 

 
12.0 FORCE MAJEURE:  Neither party is liable to the other for any delays or damages or any failure to act 

caused by federal or state laws or the rules, regulations, or orders of any public body or official 
purporting to exercise authority or control respecting the operations covered by this contract, or caused 
by strikes not against the parties, actions of the elements, or acts of God and delays due to the above 
causes shall not be considered a breach of this contract. 
 

13.0 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: County reserves the right to terminate this contract on thirty 
(30) calendar days written notice for any reason deemed by Commissioners Court to serve the public 
interest, or resulting from any governmental law, ordinance, regulation, or court order. Termination for 
Convenience shall not be made when termination is authorized under any other provisions of this 
Contract, and termination for convenience shall not be taken with the intention of awarding the same or 
similar contract requirements to another source. In the event of such termination the County shall pay 
the Contractor those costs directly attributable to work done or supplies obtained in preparation for 
completion or compliance with this Contract prior to termination; provided, however, that no costs shall 
be paid which are recoverable in the normal course of doing business in which the Contractor is 
engaged. In addition, no costs which can be mitigated through the sale of supplies or inventories shall be 
paid. If County pays for the cost of supplies or materials obtained for use under this contract, said 
supplies or materials shall become the property of County and shall be delivered to the FOB point 
shown herein, or as designated by the Purchasing Agent. County shall not be liable for loss of any 
profits anticipated to be made hereunder.  This section shall not be interpreted as a waiver of sovereign 
immunity and County retains all of its affirmative defenses. 
 

14.0 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT: Failure by either County or Contractor in performing any 
provisions of this contract shall constitute a breach of contract. Either party may require corrective 
action within ten (10) calendar days after date of receipt of written notice citing the exact nature of the 
other's breach. Failure to take corrective action or failure to provide a satisfactory written reply excusing 
such failure within the ten (10) calendar days shall constitute a default. The defaulting party shall be 
given a twenty (20) calendar day period within which to show cause why this contract should not be 
terminated for default. Commissioners Court may take whatever action as its interest may appear, 
resulting from such notice. All notices for corrective action, breach, default or show cause shall be 
issued by the Purchasing Agent or County Attorney only and all replies shall be made in writing to the 
Purchasing Agent or County Attorney at the address provided in this contract. Notices issued by or to 
anyone other than the Purchasing Agent or County Attorney are null and void, and considered as not 
having been issued or received. County reserves the right to enforce the performance of this contract in 
any manner prescribed by law in case of default and may contract with another party with or without 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 67 of 85 
 

 

competition or further notification to the Contractor. As a minimum, Contractor shall be required to pay 
any difference in the cost of securing the products or services covered by this contract, or compensate 
for any loss or damage to the County derived under this contract if it becomes necessary to contract with 
another source because of a default, plus reasonable administrative costs and attorney's fees. In the event 
of Termination for Default, County, its agents or representatives, are not liable for loss of any profits 
anticipated to be made under this contract. This section shall not be interpreted as a waiver of sovereign 
immunity and County retains all of its affirmative defenses. 
 

15.0 CHANGES: 
 
15.1 Unless specifically provided otherwise in this contract, any change to the terms of this contract 

or any attachments to it shall be made by written change order signed by both parties.  The 
Purchasing Agent may at any time, by written document, make changes within the general scope 
of this contract that do not result in premium changes in any one of the following: 

 
15.1.1 Description of services; 

 
15.1.2 Place of delivery; 

 
15.1.3 Any aspect of contract to correct errors of a general administrative nature or other 

mistakes, the correction of which does not affect the scope of the contract and does not 
result in expense to the Contractor. 

 
15.2 It is acknowledged by Contractor that no officer, agent, employee or representative of County 

has any authority to change the scope of this contract or any attachments to it unless expressly 
granted that specific authority by the Commissioners Court. 
 

15.3 If any change under 16.1 causes an increase or decrease in the cost, or time required for 
performance of any part of the work under this contract, the Commissioners Court shall make an 
equitable adjustment in the contract price, the delivery schedule, or both, and modify the 
contract.   Contractor must submit any "proposal for adjustment" within 30 days after the date of 
receipt of the written order. 

 
15.4 Contractor shall submit all requests for alterations, additions or deletions of the terms of this 

contract or any attachment to it to the Purchasing Agent.  The Purchasing Agent shall present 
Contractor's requests to Commissioners Court for consideration. 

 
16.0 COUNTY ACCESS: Contractor shall maintain and make available all books, documents, and other 

evidence pertinent to the costs and expenses of this contract for inspection, audit or reproduction by any 
authorized representative of County to the extent this detail will properly reflect these costs and expense.  
These include all costs; both direct and indirect costs, cost of labor, material, equipment, supplies, and 
services, and all other costs and expenses of whatever nature for which reimbursement is claimed under 
this contract.  All required records shall be maintained until an audit is completed and all required 
questions arising therefrom are resolved, or 3 years after completion of the contract term, whichever 
occurs first; however, the records shall be retained beyond the third year if an audit is in progress or the 
findings of a completed audit have not been resolved satisfactorily. 
 

17.0 CIVIL RIGHTS/ADA COMPLIANCE: Contractor shall provide all services and activities required in 
a manner that would comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans With Disabilities Act 
of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933] if Contractor were an entity bound to comply with these laws.  
Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment based on race, 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 68 of 85 
 

 

religion, color, sex, national origin, age or handicapped condition. 
 

18.0 RESERVED 
 

19.0 ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT OR MORTGAGE: Contractor must not transfer or assign any part 
of or right or interest in this Contract, directly or indirectly, voluntary or involuntary without the express 
written approval of the Commissioners Court.  Contractor must not execute any mortgage, or issue any 
bonds, shares of stock, or other evidence of interest in County buildings. 
 

20.0 GRATUITIES: County may terminate this contract if it is found that gratuities of any kind including 
entertainment, or gifts were offered or given by Contractor or any agent or representative of Contractor 
to any County official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect of this 
contract.  If this contract is terminated by the County pursuant to this provision, County shall be entitled, 
in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover from the Contractor at least three times the cost 
incurred by Contractor in providing the gratuities. 
 

21.0 FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT:  Contractor must forfeit all benefits of the Contract and County 
must retain all performance by Contractor and recover all consideration or the value of all consideration, 
paid to Contractor pursuant to this contract if: 
 
21.1 Contractor was doing business at the time of submitting its proposal or had done business during 

the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of which its proposal was due with one or more 
Key Contracting Persons; or 
 

21.2 Contractor does business with a Key Contracting Person after the date on which the proposal that 
resulted in this Contract was submitted and prior to full performance of the Contract and fails to 
disclose the name of that Key Contracting Person in writing to each member of the 
Commissioners Court and to the County Clerk within ten (10) days commencing business with 
that Key Contracting Person. 

 
22.0 NOTICES: 

 
22.1 Any notice required or permitted to be given under this contract by one party to the other shall be 

in writing. The notice is deemed to have been given immediately if delivered in person to the 
party to whom the notice is given. The notice is deemed to have been given on the third day 
following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified 
mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the party to whom the notice is to be given at the 
address in this section. 
 

22.2 The address of County for all purposes under this contract shall be: 
 

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. (or her successor in office) 
Travis County Purchasing Agent  
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767-1748 

 
22.3 The address of the Contractor for all purposes under this contract shall be the address shown in 

the Notice of Contract Award. 
 

22.4 Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving notice of the change in compliance 
with this section. 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 69 of 85 
 

 

23.0 CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT: 
 

23.1 Law and Venue.  This Contract is governed by the laws of the United States of America and 
Texas and all obligations under this contract are performable in Travis County, Texas.  Venue for 
any dispute arising out of this contract is in Travis County, Texas. 
 

23.2 Severability.  If any portion of this contract is ruled invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any 
respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of it shall remain valid and binding. 

 
23.3 Headings.  Headings and titles at the beginning of the various provisions of this contract have 

been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that provision or 
subsection and shall not be used in construing this contract. 

 
23.4 Computation of Time.  When any period of time is stated in this contract, the time shall be 

computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period.  If the last day of any 
period falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or a day that Travis County has declared a holiday for its 
employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation.  All hours stated in this contract 
are stated in Central Standard Time or Central Daylight Saving Time as applicable in Austin, 
Texas at that time of year. 

 
23.5 Gender and Number:  Words of any gender in this contract shall be construed to include any 

other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other unless the 
context in the contract clearly requires otherwise. 

 
24.0 ENTIRE CONTRACT: All oral and written agreements between the parties to this contract relating to 

the subject matter of this contract that were made prior to the execution of this contract have been 
reduced to writing and are contained in this contract. 
 

25.0 CONTRACTOR INDEMNIFICATION: Contractor shall indemnify County, its officers, agents, and 
employees, from and against any and all third party claims, losses, damages, causes of action, suits, and 
liability of every kind whether meritorious or not and, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, 
and reasonable attorney's fees, arising in connection with the services provided by Contractor under this 
contract. 
 

26.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
 
26.1 Contractor shall have and maintain at least the minimum types of insurance listed in Part III-

FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE throughout the term of this Contract.  Contractor’s 
insurance must be sufficient to cover the needs of Contractor pursuant to applicable generally 
accepted business standards related to the risks associated with providing the Services, but not 
less than the minimum coverage limits listed in Part III-FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE. 
Depending on Services provided by Contractor, supplemental insurance requirements or 
alternate insurance options may apply in addition to those listed in Part III-FOR FULLY 
INSURED COVERAGE.  If County authorizes Contractor to subcontract Services under this 
Contract, Contractor shall either maintain insurance that covers all subcontractors and complies 
with 26.2 and Part III-FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE throughout the term of the 
Contract or ensure that all subcontractors have and maintain insurance for the work related to the 
Services that is performed by them and that their insurance complies with sections 26.1 and 26.2 
and Part III-FOR FULLY INSURED COVERAGE while performing work related to the 
Services. 
 

26.2 General Insurance Requirements. Contractor shall comply with the following requirements 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 70 of 85 
 

 

related to insurance: 
 

26.2.1 Contractor shall obtain insurance written by companies licensed in Texas that have an 
A.M. Best rating of B+ VIII or higher.  If Contractor wants to use surplus carriers, these 
carriers are subject to County approval. 
 

26.2.2 Insurance that names Travis County as an additional insured is primary for all claims 
under it. 

 
26.2.3 Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to 

limit the responsibility or liability of the Contractor. 
 

26.2.4 Before Contractor begins Services, Contractor shall have at least the required insurance 
in force.  Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse and shall not 
permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced during this 
Contract. Contractor is responsible for all premiums, deductibles, and self-insured 
retention. 

 
26.2.5 Contractor shall submit a Certificate of Insurance written on the state-approved form and 

signed by the writing agent or the carrier to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10) 
Working Days after the earlier of execution of the Contract by both parties, or the 
effective date of the Contract. The Certificates of Insurance must include the Travis 
County contract number, all deductibles and self-insured retention, and the following 
endorsements, if applicable: 

 
26.2.5.1 an endorsement that names Travis County as additional insured where 

County’s interest may lie, 
 

26.2.5.2 an endorsement which makes the insurance primary for all claims, 
 

26.2.5.3 a Waiver of Subrogation endorsement 
 

26.2.5.4 a Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation endorsement 
 

26.2.6 Contractor shall provide replacement Certificates of Insurance to the Purchasing Agent 
within ten (10) days of the each renewal of insurance during the term of this contract in 
compliance with section 5.5.3. 
 

26.2.7 On its request, County is entitled to receive certified copies of policies and endorsements 
at no additional expense to County. 

 
26.2.8 Contractor acknowledges that County has the right to review insurance requirements 

during any term of the Contract and to require that Contractor make reasonable 
adjustments when the Services have changed or expanded. 

 
27.0 ADDITIONAL GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

 
27.1 County may assign any of its obligations under this contract. 

 
27.2 Contractor must comply with all Federal and state laws and regulations, City and County 

ordinances, orders, and regulations, relating in any way to this contract. 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 71 of 85 
 

 

27.3 Contractor must secure all permits and licenses, pay all charges and fees, and give all notices 
necessary for lawful operations. 

 
27.4 Contractor must pay all taxes and license fees imposed by the Federal and the State governments 

and their agencies and political subdivisions upon the property and business of Contractor. 
 
27.5 Despite anything to the contrary in this contract, if the Contractor is delinquent in payment of 

property taxes at the time of providing services, Contractor hereby assigns the portion of the 
amount owing to it under this contract that is equal to the amount Contractor is delinquent in 
property tax payments to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of the 
delinquent taxes. 

 
28.0 DESIGNATED COUNTY HOLIDAYS 2014: No deliveries will be accepted on designated holidays, 

unless specific prior arrangements have been made.  Below is the approved holiday schedule.  Future 
schedules are expected to be similar. 

 
New Year’s Day (January 1st or Monday after if it falls on a weekend) 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (3rd Monday in January) 
President's Day (3rd Monday in February) 
Memorial Day (4th Monday in May)  
Independence Day (July 4th or Monday after if it falls on a weekend)  
Labor Day (1st Monday in September) 
Veteran’s Day (November 11th or Monday after, if it falls on a weekend) 
Thanksgiving Day (4th Thursday AND Friday in November) 
Christmas Season (December 25th AND either day before or day after whichever allows a four day 
weekend, if possible) 

 
29.0 RESERVED 

 
30.0 DELAYED PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR DUE TO OUTSTANDING DEBT: 

 
30.1 In this section, “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from 

written contracts with the County. 
 

30.2 In accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, if notice of Debt has been 
filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the Debt of Contractor to the 
State, the County or   a salary fund, a check or warrant may not be drawn on a County fund in 
favor of the Contractor, or an agent or assignee of Contractor until the County Treasurer notifies 
Contractor in writing that the Debt is outstanding; and the Debt is paid. 

 
30.3 County may apply any funds County owes Contractor to the outstanding balance of Debt for 

which notice is made under section 30.2 if the notice includes a statement that the amount owed 
by the County to Contractor may be applied to reduce the outstanding Debt. 

 
31.0 NON-WAIVER OF DEFAULT: 

 
31.1 The waiver of a breach of any term or condition of this contract is not a waiver of a subsequent 

breach of that term or condition, or a breach or subsequent breach of any other term or condition.  
No official, agent, employee or representative of County may waive any breach of any term or 
condition of this contract unless expressly granted that specific authority by Commissioner 
Court. 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 72 of 85 
 

 

31.2 All rights of County under this contract are specifically reserved and any payment, act or 
omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right of County under it.  Any right or 
remedy in this contract shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this 
contract or under any law, nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be 
deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

 
32.0 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY: Contractor shall provide County with the certification in 

Contract Attachment C-For Fully Insured Coverage at the time of submission of its proposal and at the 
time of execution of this contract.  If Contractor is placed on the list during the term of this contract, 
Contractor shall notify the Travis County Purchasing Agent.  False certification or failure to notify may 
result in terminating this contract for default. 
 

33.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE:  If required, Contractor shall complete, file and 
update a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire in compliance with Chapter 176 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. Contractor acknowledges that the law requires that the County provide access to this 
questionnaire on the official Travis County website. 

 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
By:        
 
Printed Name:       
Its Duly Authorized Agent 
 
Date:        

TRAVIS COUNTY: 
 
By:        
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 
 
 
Date:       

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
        
Barbara Wilson, Travis County Attorney 
 
Date:        
 

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS CONFIRMED: 
 
 
        
Nicki Riley, CPA, Travis County Auditor 
 
Date:        

 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND POLICY CONFIRMED AND APPROVED: 
 
          
Cyd V. Grimes, CPM, CPPO, Travis County Purchasing Agent  
 
Date:          

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 73 of 85 
 

 

SOLICITATION ATTACHMENT 3 - REFERENCES 
 
Vendor must complete and return concurrently with this solicitation to the Travis County Purchasing Office.  At 
least five (5) references must be identified. References listed must have done similar business with the vendor 
within the past five (5) years.  Three (3) references must be current customers, and two (2) references must be 
former customers within the past two (2) years.  County reserves the right to contact customer references listed 
and to use this information as a consideration when making a procurement decision. Offers will be considered 
only from contractors who, in the judgment of County, are able to show evidence of responsibility through their 
satisfactory past performance and demonstrated competence. 

CURRENT CUSTOMER: 

AGENCY NAME: _____________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _________________________
CITY, 
STATE _________________________

POINT OF CONTACT: _________________________ TITLE: _________________________
PHONE NUMBER: _________________________ EMAIL: _________________________
ADDITIONAL 
DETAILS: _____________________________________________________________ 

AGENCY NAME: _____________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _________________________
CITY, 
STATE _________________________

POINT OF CONTACT: _________________________ TITLE: _________________________
PHONE NUMBER: _________________________ EMAIL: _________________________
ADDITIONAL 
DETAILS: _____________________________________________________________ 

AGENCY NAME: _____________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _________________________
CITY, 
STATE _________________________

POINT OF CONTACT: _________________________ TITLE: _________________________
PHONE NUMBER: _________________________ EMAIL: _________________________
ADDITIONAL 
DETAILS: _____________________________________________________________ 

FORMER CUSTOMER: 

AGENCY NAME: _____________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _________________________
CITY, 
STATE _________________________

POINT OF CONTACT: _________________________ TITLE: _________________________
PHONE NUMBER: _________________________ EMAIL: _________________________
ADDITIONAL 
DETAILS: _____________________________________________________________ 

AGENCY NAME: _____________________________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: _________________________
CITY, 
STATE _________________________

POINT OF CONTACT: _________________________ TITLE: _________________________
PHONE NUMBER: _________________________ EMAIL: _________________________
ADDITIONAL 
DETAILS: _____________________________________________________________ 

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 74 of 85 
 

 

SOLICITATION ATTACHMENT 4 – ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
(Contract Attachment D) 

 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

 
 
Date:          
Name of Affiant:         
Title of Affiant:          
Business Name of Contractor:        
County of Contractor:         
 
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true: 
 
1. Affiant is authorized by Contractor to make this affidavit for Contractor.   
 
2.  Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.  
 
3. Affiant can read the English language.  
 
4. Contractor has received the list of Key Contracting Persons associated with this Contract which is 

attached to this affidavit as Exhibit 1.  
 
5.  Affiant has personally read Exhibit 1 to this Affidavit.  
 
6. Affiant has no knowledge of any Key Contracting Person on Exhibit 1 with whom Contractor is doing 

business or has done business during the 365-Day period immediately before the date of this affidavit.  
             

Signature of Affiant 
             

Address 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by    on  , 20__.  
 

                                          
   

Notary Public, State of ____________ 
      

Typed or printed name of notary 
My commission expires:     

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 75 of 85 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS 

November 19, 2013 
 
CURRENT 
      Name of Individual   Name of Business 
Position Held     Holding Office/Position   Individual is Associated      
 
  County Judge ...............................................Samuel T. Biscoe 
  County Judge (Spouse) ................................Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe  
  Executive Assistant  .....................................Cheryl Brown 
  Executive Assistant ......................................Melissa Velasquez 
  Executive Assistant ......................................Josie Z. Zavala 
  Executive Assistant ......................................David Salazar* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 1 ............................Ron Davis 
  Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) .............Annie Davis    Seton Hospital 
  Executive Assistant ......................................Deone Wilhite 
  Executive Assistant ......................................Felicitas Chavez 
  Commissioner, Precinct 2  ...........................Bruce Todd* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) .............Elizabeth Christian   Consultant 
  Executive Assistant  .....................................Sara Krause* 
  Executive Assistant  .....................................Joe Hon 
  Executive Assistant  .....................................Peter Einhorn 
  Commissioner, Precinct 3 ............................Gerald Daugherty* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) .............Charyln Daugherty   Consultant 
  Executive Assistant ......................................Bob Moore* 
  Executive Assistant ......................................Martin Zamzow* 
  Executive Assistant ......................................Barbara Smith* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 4 ............................Margaret Gomez 
  Executive Assistant ......................................Edith Moreida 
  Executive Assistant ......................................Norma Guerra 
  County Treasurer .........................................Dolores Ortega-Carter  
  County Auditor  ...........................................Nicki Riley 
  County Executive, Administrative ...............Vacant 
  County Executive, Planning & Budget ........Leslie Browder 
  County Executive, Emergency Services ......Danny Hobby 
  County Executive, Health/Human Services .Sherri E. Fleming 
  County Executive, TNR  ..............................Steven M. Manilla, P.E. 
  County Executive, Justice & Public Safety .Roger Jefferies 
  Director, Facilities Management ..................Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E. 
  Interim Chief Information Officer ...............Tanya Acevedo 
  Director, Records Mgmt & Communications Steven Broberg 
  Travis County Attorney  ..............................David Escamilla 
  First Assistant County Attorney ..................Steve Capelle 
  Executive Assistant, County Attorney .........James Collins 
  Director, Land Use Division ........................Tom Nuckols 
  Attorney, Land Use Division .......................Julie Joe 
  Attorney, Land Use Division .......................Christopher Gilmore  
  Director, Transactions Division  ..................John Hille 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ..................Daniel Bradford 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ..................Elizabeth Winn 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 76 of 85 
 

 

  Attorney, Transactions Division ..................Mary Etta Gerhardt  
  Attorney, Transactions Division ..................Barbara Wilson 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ..................Jim Connolly 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ..................Tenley Aldredge 
  Director, Health Services Division ..............Beth Devery 
  Attorney, Health Services Division .............Prema Gregerson 
  Purchasing Agent  ........................................Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
  Assistant Purchasing Agent  ........................Marvin Brice, CPPB 
  Assistant Purchasing Agent .........................Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................CW Bruner, CTP 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Lee Perry  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Jason Walker 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Richard Villareal 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Patrick Strittmatter 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Scott Wilson, CPPB 
 Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .....................Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Loren Breland, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................John E. Pena, CTPM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Rosalinda Garcia   
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Angel Gomez*  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ....................Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....................Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....................David Walch 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....................Michael Long, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....................Sydney Ceder* 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....................Ruena Victorino* 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ....................Rachel Fishback* 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II ......................Vacant  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II ......................L. Wade Laursen 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II ......................Sam Francis 
  HUB Coordinator .........................................Sylvia Lopez 
  HUB Specialist.............................................Betty Chapa 
  HUB Specialist.............................................Jerome Guerrero 
  Purchasing Business Analyst .......................Scott Worthington 
  Purchasing Business Analyst .......................Jennifer Francis 
  Purchasing Business Analyst .......................Jennifer Francis 
  HRMD, Benefits Director ............................Debbie Maynor 
  HRMD, Benefits Manager ...........................John Rabb 
  HRMD, Benefits Administrator ...................Shannon M. Steele 
  HRMD, Lead HR Financial Analyst ............Norman McRee 
  HRMD-Benefits ...........................................Zetta Garnett 
  HRMD-Benefits ...........................................Virginia Aleman 
  HRMD-Clinic ..............................................Josie Pena 
  Auditor .........................................................Beth Blankenship 
  Auditor .........................................................Bernadette Gutilla 
  Auditor .........................................................Greg Jacobs 
  Planning and Budget Office .........................Travis Gatlin 
  Planning and Budget Office .........................Diana Ramirez 
  Planning and Budget Office .........................Jessica Rio 
  TNR..............................................................Tina Salazar 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 77 of 85 
 

 

  ITS................................................................Tonya Mills 
  AFSCME......................................................Greg Powell 
  Health/Human Services ...............................Nancy Goodman-Gill 
  Commissioner, Precinct 3 ............................Martin Zamzow 
  District Attorney ..........................................Michele Pearson 
  District Attorney ..........................................Kenneth Evans 
  Facilities Management .................................Amy Draper 
  Facilities Management .................................Kimberley Jamail 
  Records Mgment & Communications .........Dobbs Rogers 
  TCSO ...........................................................Margaret Seville 
  TCSO ...........................................................Carri Turner 
  Tax Office ....................................................Kathleen Bellerose 
  Retiree ..........................................................Amador Munoz 
  CJP ...............................................................Kristy Vargas 
 
FORMER EMPLOYEES 
 
   Name of Individual 
Position Held    Holding Office/Position  Date of Expiration  
Purchasing Agent Assistant II ........................Jayne Rybak, CTP ..............................12/14/13 
Commissioner, Precinct 3 ..............................Karen Huber .......................................01/01/14 
Executive Assistant ........................................Garry Brown ......................................01/01/14 
Executive Assistant ........................................Julie Wheeler .....................................01/01/14 
Executive Assistant ........................................Jacob Cottingham ...............................01/01/14 
Commissioner, Precinct 2  .............................Sarah Eckhardt ...................................05/ 31/14 
Purchasing Agent Assistant III ......................Nancy Barchus, CPPB .......................06/28/14 
 
 
 * - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 78 of 85 
 

 

SOLICITATION ATTACHMENT 5 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND 

VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED 
(Contract Attachment C) 

 
 

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine 
whether each has a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, 
ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion.  Each covered contractor must also screen each of its covered 
subcontractors. 
 
In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to both contract 
and subcontract. 
 
By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following 
terms: 
 
1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 

contract was entered into.  If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an 
erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government or Travis County 
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this certification is 
submitted if at any time the potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted 
or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,” 
“proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in 
the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules implementing Executive Order 12549.   

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized 
by a federal department or agency, and/or Travis County, as applicable. 

 
Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? 
 
 ____YES   ____NO 

 
5. The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification 

titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered 
Contracts” without modification, in all covered subcontracts; and in solicitations for all covered 
subcontracts. 

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is 
erroneous.  A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each 
subcontract's initiation and upon each renewal. 

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in 
order to render in good faith the certification required by this certification document.  The knowledge and 
information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in 
the ordinary course of business dealings.  

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract 
knowingly enters into a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the 
federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including 
suspension and/or debarment. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 79 of 85 
 

 

 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND 
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 
 
Indicate in the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor: 

 
The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its 

principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this contract by any federal department or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County. 

 
The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certify to one or more of the terms in this certification.  

In this instance, the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to 
which he is unable to make certification.  Attach the explanation(s) to this certification. 
 
Name of Contractor    Vendor I.D. or Social Security No. 
 
       
 
 
 
Signature of Authorized Representative Date Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative 

  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 80 of 85 
 

 

SOLICITATION ATTACHMENT 6 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                        FORM CIQ 
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity 
 

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 1491, 80th Leg., Regular Session.  OFFICE USE ONLY 

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code by a person 
who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity 
and the person meets requirements under Section 176.006(a). 

By law this questionnaire shall be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity 
not later than the 7th business day after the date the person becomes aware of facts that require the 
statement to be filed. See Section 176.006, Local Government Code. 

A person commits an offense if the person knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government 
Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor. 

Date Received 

1 Name of person who has a business relationship with local governmental entity 
 
 

 

2  
 Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 
the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.) 

 
3 Name of local government officer with whom filer has employment or business relationship. 

 

  
 Name of Officer 

 
This section (item 3 including subparts A, B, C & D) shall be completed for each officer with whom the filer has an 
employment or other business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a), Local Government Code.  Attach additional 
pages to this Form CIQ as necessary. 

 
A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment 

income, from the filer of the questionnaire? 
 

  Yes  No 
 

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from or at the 
direction of the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not received from the local 
governmental entity? 

 

  Yes  No 
 

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire employed by a corporation or other business entity with respect to which the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more? 

 

  Yes  No 
 

D. Describe each employment or business relationship with the local government officer named in this section. 
 
 
 

4  
 

     
 Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity  Date  

 
Adopted 06/29/07 

 
  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 81 of 85 
 

 

SOLICITATION ATTACHMENT 7 – HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS (HUB) 
PROGRAM SUBCONTRACTING DECLARATION 

 

 

 

SECTION 3  DISCLOSURE OF CERTIFIED HUB SUBCONTRACTORS                                                                (Duplicate as necessary)   

Travis County exercises the right to verify subcontractors listed on this project.  It is the County’s practice to consider ethnicity before gender when 
distinguishing HUB certifications and calculating goal achievement.    
 
Note:  To be considered “certified” with the State of Texas, City of Austin or the Texas Unified Certification Program, please attach a current and valid  
certificate.  Sub-goals are included to assist you in diversifying your subcontractors. 
Sub Company Name:       State of Texas VID#:      

Address:       City:       State:       Zip Code:       

Contact:      Phone No.:       Fax No.:       E-mail:       

Subcontract Amount:            Percentage:       Description of Work:      

Is your company a certified HUB?  

 Yes  No 

 
Indicate Gender & Ethnicity:       

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable):  State of Texas (HUB)  City of Austin  

(M/WBE)  

 Texas Unified Certification Program 

(TUCP) (DBE) 

SECTION 1  PROPOSER AND SOLICITATION INFORMATION 

PROPOSER Company Name:       State of Texas VID#:      

Address:      City:      State:      Zip Code:      

Contact:       Phone No.:      Fax No.:       E-mail:       

Project Name:            Total Bid Amount:       Solicitation #:      

Is your company a certified HUB?  

 Yes  No 

 
Indicate Gender & Ethnicity:      

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable):  State of Texas (HUB)  City of Austin  

(M/WBE)  

 Texas Unified Certification Program  

(TUCP) (DBE) 

Definitions:  

HUB – Historically Underutilized Business ▪ M/WBE – Minority/Women-Owned Business Enterprise ▪ DBE – Disadvantage Business Enterprise 

The policy of the Travis County Purchasing Office is to ensure a “Good Faith Effort” (GFE) is made to assist certified HUB vendors and contractors in  
receiving contracts in accordance with the HUB Program policies and the Minority and Woman-owned Business (M/WBE) goals adopted by the Travis
County Commissioners Court.  Travis County encourages all Proposers to register as a County vendor through the County’s online vendor registration
*Prime Contractors who are awarded contracts with the County are required to make a “Good Faith Effort” to subcontract with HUBs.  This includes 
 professional services associated with the projects.   

SECTION 2  SUBCONTRACTING INTENTIONS 

Percentage to be subcontracted to Certified HUBs:      

Total MBE Dollars:      Total MBE Percentage:      Total WBE Dollars:      Total WBE Percentage:      

Check the box that applies to the Proposer: 
 We are able to fulfill all subcontracting opportunities with our own resources.  If circumstances necessitate the use of any  subs, I agree to seek    

      the timely authorization by the County and adhere to the submission of any required documentation.   (Complete Sections 5, 6 and 8) 
 We plan to subcontract some or most of the opportunities of this project and meet or exceed the set goals. (Complete Sections 3, 4, 6 and 8) 
 We plan to utilize subcontractors on this project, but will not meet the set goals. (Complete Sections 3, 4, 5, 6 and 8) 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 82 of 85 
 

 

Sub Company Name:       State of Texas VID#:      

Address:       City:       State:       Zip Code:       

Contact:       Phone No.:       Fax No.:       E-mail:       

Subcontract Amount:            Percentage:       Description of Work:       

Is your company a certified HUB?  

 Yes  No 

 
Indicate Gender & Ethnicity:       

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable):  State of Texas (HUB)  City of Austin  

(M/WBE)  

 Texas Unified Certification Program 

(TUCP) (DBE) 

Sub Company Name:       State of Texas VID#:      

Address:       City:       State:       Zip Code:       

Contact:       Phone No.:       Fax No.:       E-mail:       

Subcontract Amount:            Percentage:       Description of Work:       

Is your company a certified HUB?  

 Yes  No 

 
Indicate Gender & Ethnicity:       

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable):  State of Texas (HUB)  City of Austin  

(M/WBE)  

 Texas Unified Certification Program 

 (TUCP) (DBE) 

Sub Company Name:       State of Texas VID#:      

Address:       City:       State:       Zip Code:       

Contact:       Phone No.:       Fax No.:       E-mail:       

Subcontract Amount:            Percentage:       Description of Work:       

Is your company a certified HUB?  

 Yes  No 

 
Indicate Gender & Ethnicity:       

Certifying Agency (Check all applicable):  State of Texas (HUB)  City of Austin  

(M/WBE)  

 Texas Unified Certification Program 

 (TUCP) (DBE) 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 83 of 85 
 

 

 

  

SECTION 4  DISCLOSURE OF NON-HUB SUBCONTRACTORS                                                                           (Duplicate as necessary)        

Travis County exercises the right to verify subcontractors listed on this project.  

Sub Company Name:       State of Texas VID#:      

Address:       City:       State:       Zip Code:       

Contact:       Phone No.:       Fax No.:       E-mail:       

Subcontract Amount:            Percentage:       Description of Work:       

Sub Company Name:       State of Texas VID#:      

Address:       City:       State:       Zip Code:       

Contact:       Phone No.:       Fax No.:       E-mail:       

Subcontract Amount:            Percentage:       Description of Work:       

Sub Company Name:       State of Texas VID#:      

Address:       City:       State:       Zip Code:       

Contact:       Phone No.:       Fax No.:       E-mail:       

Subcontract Amount:       Percentage:       Description of Work:       

Sub Company Name:       State of Texas VID#:      

Address:       City:       State:       Zip Code:       

Contact:       Phone No.:       Fax No.:       E-mail:       

Subcontract Amount:       Percentage:       Description of Work:       

SECTION 5  NON-COMPLIANT FOR MEETING SET HUB GOALS CHECKLIST 

If you were unable to meet the set goals for this project, select the box by the response(s) that best fits your situation.   

 All subs to be utilized are “Non-HUBs.”                                                   HUBs solicited did not respond. 

 HUBs solicited were not competitive.                                                      HUBs were unavailable for the following trade(s):      

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 84 of 85 
 

 

 
 
  

SECTION 6  DETERMINATION OF “GOOD FAITH EFFORT” (GFE) CHECKLIST 

The following checklist shall be completed by the Proposer and returned with the response.  This list contains the minimum efforts that should be put f
the Proposer when attempting to achieve or exceed the HUB goals.  The Proposer may go beyond the efforts listed below.  If additional information is 
the Proposer will be contacted by the HUB Program Staff.  Select the box that describes your efforts. 
 

  Divide the contract work into the smallest feasible portions to allow for maximum HUB Subcontractor participation, consistent with standard and pr
       industry practices. 
 

  Notify HUBs of work that the prime contractor plans to subcontract, allowing sufficient time for effective participation?   
      The HUB Program encourages that three or more HUBs be notified per scope of work and given no less than five working days to respond.   
      (The notification should contain adequate information about the project i.e. plans, specifications, and scope of work; Bonding and insurance  
      requirements of the HUB subcontractor; and a point of contact within the Proposers organization.) 
 

 If a bid was requested from a HUB and then rejected, was a written rejection notice detailing the reasons why they were not selected issued?   
      If yes, provide a copy of the rejection letter. 
 

 Provide notices of opportunities to minority or women trade organizations or development centers to assist in identifying potential HUBs by dissem
      the information to their members/participants?  If yes, attach correspondence. 
 

 Proposer has (0) zero HUB participation.  Provide an explanation       
 

SECTION 7  RESOURCES 
 

TRADE ASSOCIATIONS PHONE (512) FAX E-mail/website 
Asian Construction Trade 926-5400 926-5410 www.acta-austin.com 
Austin Black Contractors 467-6894 467-9808 www.abcatx.com 

Austin Metropolitan United Black Contractors 784-1891 255-1451 unism@sbcglobal.net 

Natl. Assoc. of Women in Construction 
476-5534 476-8337  

US Hispanic Cont. Assoc. de Austin 
922-0507 374-1421 www.ushca-austin.com 

CERTIFYING AGENCIES TRAVIS COUNTY RECOGNIZES 
CERTIFYING AGENCIES 

VENDOR DATABASE WEBSITES  

State of Texas Centralized Master Proposers List www.cpa.state.tx.us/business.html CMBL includes certified 
HUBs. 

City of Austin Minority Vendor Database www.austintexas.gov/department/small-and-
minority-business 

Certified Vendors Directory 

Texas Unified Certification Program www.dot.state.tx.us/business TUCP DBE Directory 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Draft

 RFP # 1311-003-CW   Page 85 of 85 
 

 

 

 

SECTION 8  AFFIRMATION 

 
As evidenced by my signature below, I certify that all the information provided is correct to the best of my knowledge.  I am an authorized 
representative of the Proposer listed in SECTION 1, and that the information and supporting documentation submitted with HUB Forms are correct 
and true to the best of my knowledge.   
 
Proposer understands and agrees that, if awarded any portion of the solicitation: 
 

 The Proposer shall either utilize Travis County HUB Programs Vendor Tracking System (VTS) to report payments to sub- 
contractors on a monthly basis or submit monthly Payment Reports as requested by the HUB Program Coordinator. 

              
 The Proposer shall seek pre-approval from the HUB Program Coordinator prior to making any modifications to their HUB Sub- 
        contracting Plan.  The Proposer shall complete a HUB  Subcontractor/Subconsultant Change Form obtained from the HUB Program 
        Staff. Return form via fax to 512-854-9185 or email hubstaff@co.travis.tx.us. 
 
 Travis County HUB Program Staff will perform a Good Faith Effort (GFE) Review, documenting the efforts put forth by the Proposer. 

Name and Title:       Date:       

E-mail Address:      Signature:       

Provide contact information for the individual in your office who will handle invoicing for this project: 

Name and Title:       E-mail Address:       

Phone No.:      Fax No.:       

 

   Please be reminded that Travis County is not party to your agreement executed with the subcontractors and subconsultants.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Sylvia Lopez, HUB Coordinator,  
854-4561  
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M, CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  RECEIVE UPDATE ON DISPARITY STUDY FOR 
TRAVIS COUNTY AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION 
 
The County was approached in March 2012 to participate in the City of 
Austin’s next Disparity Study through an Interlocal Agreement.  In 
August 2012, $200,000 was earmarked by the Commissioners Court 
for the County to potentially participate in the study.  This amount 
does not include outside legal counsel which is estimated to be up to 
$100,000.  Since that time, staff has participated in a series of 
meetings to discuss scope and County participation, including a 
November 15, 2012 work session with the City of Austin and Bexar 
County both presenting.  Also, community small business 
representatives expressed their support of the County participating in 
the study.   
 
During a voting session on December 4, 2012, the Court directed staff 
to begin developing the County’s scope of work for a disparity study, 
but did not authorize participation as of yet.  On April 11, 2013 during 
a work session and April 23, 2013, during a voting session, 
Purchasing staff presented the draft of the scope.  
 
The City of Austin issued an RFQ in late December 2012 and awarded 
the contract on June 20, 2013 to National Economic Research 
Associates, Inc. or NERA to conduct an availability and disparity 
study.  Staff met with NERA twice to discuss the County’s scope and 
cost estimate with NERA providing an “in budget” scope for an 
availability study only and a “full blown” scope for a disparity study 
which surpassed the initial earmarked amount of $200,000 by 
$139,552.38.   

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
 

Item 23Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

The Purchasing Agent is requesting Court direction and approval of a 
Scope of Work, either for an “Availability Study” or the full blown 
“Disparity Study”, and authorize her to commence negotiations with 
the Consultant.  Any resulting contract will be presented to the Court 
for approval.  If Court approves Disparity Study, the Purchasing Agent 
request that Court direct PBO to find the additional funding. 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



DISPARITY STUDY 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY

HUB PROGRAM

-UPDATE-

Voting Session: November 19, 2013

Presented by: Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO, Purchasing Agent

Marvin Brice, Purchasing Agent Assistant

Sylvia Lopez, HUB Program Coordinator/DBE Liaison

Betty Chapa, Lead HUB Program Specialist

Jerome Guerrero, HUB Program Specialist

1

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



OVERVIEW

ó Recap Timeline of Events

ó Definitions of Studies

ó Studies’ Similarities

ó Studies’ Differences

ó Recap of NERA’s Recommendations

ó Studies’ Do Not Include

ó Disparity Study Pros/Cons

ó Possible Outcomes Moving Forward with a 
Disparity Study

ó Q&A

2

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



RECAP TIMELINE OF EVENTS

3

2012 2013

March - City of Austin invited County 
to participate (Cap. Metro, AISD 
invited)

April 11th - Work Session Staff 
presented the first draft of the scope

November 15th - Work Session (COA, 
Bexar Co.)

April 23rd - Voting Session Court 
approved draft scope and gave 
permission to begin negotiations with 
consultant

December 4th - Voting Session Court 
directed staff to begin developing 
County’s scope

June 20th - City of Austin approves 
contract with NERA

August 28th & October 23rd –
Purchasing Staff met with NERA

September 20th – NERA provided first 
cost estimate

November 4th – NERA provided 
revised cost estimate

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



DEFINITIONS OF STUDIES
ó Disparity Study:  An independent, objective, comprehensive 

assessment conducted in accordance with accepted practices in social 
science research…assisting government entities to survive 
constitutional challenges to their M/WBE, DBE or HUB Programs.  The 
principal goals of a legally defensible disparity study are to ensure compliance 
with constitutional mandates and equality of opportunity in the award and 
implementation of public contracts and purchase orders. (Some elements 
include case law, assessing geographic market, prime/subcontracting data 
earned by M/WBE/DBE/HUBs, public sector availability/utilization 
comparison, anecdotal evidence, qualitative/quantitative race-neutral 
measures, etc.)

ó Availability Study: An availability study is a subset of a disparity 
study, focusing primarily on measuring the fraction of businesses in the 
relevant marketplace that are M/WBE, DBE or HUB.

Sources: NCHRP Report 644; NERA City of Austin RFQ SMW0051 Response

4

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



ó Based on 3 years of prime and subcontracting data

ó Provide analysis of Travis County HUB program and procurement 
policies

ó Recent overview of current constitutional standards/case law

ó Monthly progress reports

ó Draft report

ó Narrowly tailored recommendations

STUDIES’ SCOPE COMPARISON
-SIMILARITIES-

Disparity Study ($339,552)

Availability Study ($199,969)

5

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



STUDIES’ SCOPE COMPARISON
-DIFFERENCES-

Disparity Study ($339,552) Availability Study ($199,969)

ó Study legally defensible

ó Will include subcontracting data 
collection to fill data collection 
gaps…accurate conclusions

ó NERA will be required to testify 
on the constitutionality of the 
County’s HUB program if 
challenged 6 years after study 
completion

ó Submit one electronic copy and  
25 copies of study

ó Study not legally defensible

ó Will not include any additional
subcontracting data collection to 
supplement existing gaps…possible 
inaccurate conclusions

ó NERA will not be required to testify 
on the constitutionality of the 
County’s HUB program if challenged

ó Submit only one electronic copy

ó Reduced outreach in support of 
focus group and survey participation

ó Reduced sample sizes for surveys

6

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



RECAP OF NERA’S 
RECOMMENDATIONS

ó Estimate of $339,552 is firm for either 3
years or 5 years of contract data

ó The most critical data to start study is
prime contracts and purchase orders;
more time would be given to collect
subcontracting payment data

ó Study would take up to 18 months

7

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



STUDIES DO NOT INCLUDE

ó Staffing Analysis

ó Costs to implement recommendations

ó Costs to conduct new study in 5-7 years

ó Costs to defend study if challenged

8

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



DISPARITY STUDY PROS/CONS

PROS CONS

ó Establish County’s program 
constitutionality

ó Show if County has past history of 
discrimination

ó Identify specific HUB program 
related issues/narrowly tailored 
recommendations

ó Assist in establishing realistic or 
contract specific goals

ó Establish a basis for reanalyzing 
the program in the future

ó Cost reduction partnering with 
the City of Austin

ó Ongoing incurred costs for 
reanalyzing study (Every 5-7 yrs.)

ó Enforcement/achievement of 
goals can still be an issue

ó Other incurred costs for 
additional staff, budget, etc.

ó Dissatisfaction from HUB 
community that enforceable 
goals are still not being met

ó Dissatisfaction from non-HUB 
community on compliance of 
achieving goals

ó Studies can take a year or more

9

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



POSSIBLE OUTCOMES OF MOVING 
FORWARD WITH A DISPARITY STUDY

ó Bid rejections if goals are not met and GFE is not
made (May result in negative affect on project
schedule and budget)

ó HUB participation remains low even with a
disparity study

ó Increased internal education and accountability of
County departments’ support

ó Prove “Statistically Significant” disparity in HUB
participation

ó Switch from voluntary Good Faith Effort (GFE) to
an enforceable race-conscious project specific goal
program

10

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



COURT DIRECTION?

Authorize Purchasing Agent to Finalize 
Contract Negotiations for:

1) Availability Study (within budget), OR

2) Disparity Study (need additional funding)

11

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



THANK YOU FOR YOUR TIME 
AND CONTINUED SUPPORT.  

QUESTIONS

12

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Item 24Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Item 25Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, (512) 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Deece Eckstein, (512) 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING TRAVIS 
COUNTY APPOINTMENT TO THE CENTRAL HEALTH BOARD OF 
MANAGERS. 
 
SUMMARY AND IGR COORDINATOR RECOMMENDATION: 
The term of Clarke Heidrick, a Travis County appointee to the Central 
Health Board of Managers, expires on December 31, 2013. Because Mr. 
Heidrick had served on the Board for longer than six years, the Court 
issued a Call for Applications on Tuesday, October 15, with a deadline of 
Friday, November 15, 2013.  
 
IGR recommends that the Commissioners Court appoint a subcommittee 
consisting of at least one member of the Court and the County Executive 
for HHS&VS to review the applications submitted, recommend which 
applicants should be interviewed, and recommend a series of questions to 
be asked of candidates, said subcommittee to report back to the Court on 
Tuesday, December 3. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
Central Health/Travis County Healthcare District (TCHD) Board of 
Managers: 
 Nine members, with four-year staggered terms 

o Four appointed by the Travis County Commissioners Court 
o Four appointed by the Austin City Council 
o One appointed jointly by the two bodies 

 The term of one of the County appointees, Clarke Heidrick, expires at 
the end of 2013 

 Subject to the Uniform Appointment Process 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 26Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: The Commissioners Court makes four 
appointments to the Travis County Healthcare District (DBA Central Health) 
Board of Managers. Additionally, the Commissioners Court and the Austin 
City Council jointly make one appointment to the nine-member board. 
Terms are for four years, and are staggered. The Board’s bylaws provide 
that the Managers serve until their re-appointment or the selection of their 
successor. There are no term restrictions on the Central Health board. The 
Central Health Board of Managers is subject to the Court’s Uniform 
Appointment Process (Travis County Code, Chapter 1, §1.017).   
 
In the past, the Court has insisted that the process for recruiting, vetting 
and selecting candidates for the Central Health board be thorough, 
inclusive and deliberate. On October 15, the Court approved a Call for 
Applications and an application packet, and set a deadline of Friday, 
November 15, for applications. As of Thursday, November 14, six 
applications had been received. IGR will provide a full list of the applicants 
to members of the Court on Monday, November 18.   
 
With previous vacancies, the Commissioners Court has appointed a 
subcommittee consisting of at least one member of the Court and the 
County Executive for HHS&VS to review the applications submitted, and 
also to recommend a series of questions to be asked of finalists.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Not applicable.    
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
 
NAMES, PHONE NUMBERS AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS 

WHO MIGHT BE AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS 

REQUEST:   

 
Sherri Fleming 
County Executive, Health and Human Services & Veterans Services 
Phone:  854-4581 
Email: Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us  
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

mailto:Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us


John Hille, Transactions Division Director 
Travis County Attorney’s Office 
Phone: 854-9642 
Email: John.Hille@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Prema Gregerson 
Travis County Attorney’s Office 
Phone: 854-9224 
Email: Prema.Gregerson@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Beth Devery 
Travis County Attorney’s Office 
Phone: 854-6654 
Email: Beth.Devery@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Ann-Marie Price, Director of Government Affairs 
Central Health 
Phone: 978-8179 
Email: annmarie.price@centralhealth.net  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Current roster (redacted) of Central Health Board of Managers 

members, updated October 9, 2013.  
B. Travis County Commissioners Court, Adopted Process and Timetable 

for making a County appointment to the Central Health Board of 
Managers, October 15, 2013.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm

mailto:John.Hille@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Prema.Gregerson@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Beth.Devery@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:annmarie.price@centralhealth.net


ATTACHMENT A 

 Updated: October 9, 2013 

 

Central Health Board of Managers 
 

Current Membership First 
Appointed 

Date(s) 
Reappointed 

Term 
Expires 

Rosie Mendoza, Chair  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell  
Representing: City resident, if applicable 

08/01/04 03/05/09 12/31/16 

William “Kirk” Kuykendall, J.D.  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Outside  
Representing: City Council & Travis County 

06/07/13   12/31/16 

Brenda Coleman-Beattie, Treasurer  
Contact Phone:  
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

03/31/09 10/05/10 12/31/15 

Guadalupe Zamora, M.D.  
Contact Phone:  
Email Address:  
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

01/15/13 
 

12/31/16 

Thomas Coopwood, M.D.  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell  
Representing: City resident, if applicable 

01/01/08 12/08/11 12/31/14 

Katrina Daniel  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell 

07/23/09 01/27/11 12/31/14 

Clarke Heidrick  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

08/01/05 12/29/09 12/31/13 

Lynne Hudson  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell 

04/21/11   12/31/13 

Rebecca Lightsey  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

03/18/11 10/25/11 12/31/15 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 
 
ATTACHMENT B 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT (CENTRAL HEALTH) 

BOARD OF MANAGERS APPOINTMENT 
Proposed Process and Timetable 

Fourth Quarter, 2013 
 
2013 
October 15 Commissioners Court adopts selection process for 

Central Health Board of Managers appointment and 
issues Call for Applications 

 
November 15 Deadline for submission of applications 
 
November 19 IGR updates Court on status of applications  
 Court appoints task group to review applications 
 
December 3 Task Group updates Court on its review of applications  
 Court decides how many, which candidates to interview 
 
December 10 or Commissioners Court work session interviews with 
December 12 finalists (if necessary) 

• 40-minute interviews with each candidate 
• Prepared list of questions to be asked of each 

candidate 
• Open, but untelevised, session 

  
December 17  Commissioners Court selects Travis County appointee to 

Central Health Board of Managers for a term ending on 
December 31, 2017.  

 
 
 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 19, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the 
Voting Session and Special Voting Session of November 5, 2013. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item C3Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, November 5, 2013  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on November 5, 2013, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 
Morris Priest, Travis County resident 
Angelica Noyola, Travis County resident 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
1. Approve Resolution honoring “Veterans Day” in Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Olie Pope, Director, Veterans’ Services, Travis County Health and Human Services & 

Veterans Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Mike McNamara, Post 76, American Legion 
Michael J. Ramirez, United States Air Force veteran 
Alonzo Reyes, United States Air Force veteran 
Dan Arriano, United States Navy veteran 
Laura Jordan, Travis County resident 

 
MOTION: Approve the Resolution in Item 1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

 
2. Approve Resolution designating November as “Diabetes Awareness Month” in Travis County. 

(Commissioner Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Rosa Rios Valdez, CEO, Business Community Lenders (BCL) of Texas 
Margie Moore, Business Community Lenders board member 

 
MOTION: Approve the Resolution in Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
3. Approve Proclamation declaring November 7, 2013 as “Austin Adoption Day” in Travis County 

to be celebrated at Gardner-Betts Juvenile Justice Center. (Commissioner Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
J. Andrew Hathcock, Associate Judge, Travis County Civil District Courts 
Elizabeth Peña, Travis County District Clerk's Office 
Danikae Doetsch, Travis County District Clerk's Office 
Heather Dooley, Travis County Office of Child Representation 
Holly Benningfield, Adoption Supervisor, Child Protective Services (CPS) 
Eddie Wells, Law office of Denise Hyde 
Ebony Jackson, Child Advocacy Specialist, Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA) of 

Travis County 
 
MOTION: Approve the Resolution in Item 3. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Special Items 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
5. At 9:40 a.m. Provide update and recognition for completion of JP Odyssey Project. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Susan Steeg, Justice of the Peace, Precinct 3 
Tanya Acevedo, Interim Chief Information Officer (CIO), Information Technology Services 

(ITS) 
Terri Montgomery, Project Manager, ITS 
Yvonne Williams, Justice of the Peace, Precinct 1 
Glen Bass, Justice of the Peace, Precinct 2 
Bruce Elfant, Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector 
Walter LaGrone, Information Technology Director, ITS 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

 
MOTION: Approve the Resolution in Item 3. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests:   
 

a. A variance from Title 30-2-159 private streets for the McCormick Ranch on Lake Austin 
preliminary plan;  

 
b. A variance from Title 30-2-151 for the internal streets within McCormick Ranch on Lake 

Austin to not connect with existing streets;   
 
c. A variance from Title 30-3-191 for Phases 1 and 3 of the McCormick Ranch on Lake Austin 

to not construct sidewalks; and   
 
d. A variance from Title 30-2-158 for Granite Shoals Road in Phase 3 of the McCormick 

Ranch on Lake Austin preliminary plan to be greater than 2,000 feet in length in Precinct 
Two. (Commissioner Todd) 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. At 10:00 a.m. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to transplant a 30-inch 

diameter oak tree or replace it with an equivalent diameter of oaks to facilitate the completion of 
improvements to Frate Barker Road and related issues in Precincts Three and Four. 
(Commissioners Daugherty and Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Zoila Vega-Marchera, Austin Heritage Tree Foundation 
Tracey Huguley, Travis County resident 
Tom Watts, Travis County resident 

 
MOTION: Approve the contract to the overall low bidder, which includes relocation of 

the tree. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
8. Receive presentation regarding Travis County wildfire preparedness initiatives. 

 
RESULT: POSTPONED  

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

9. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a fire inspection coverage agreement between 
Travis County and Circuit of the Americas, LLC for County to provide fire inspection coverage 
for events at the Circuit of the Americas race track. 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
10. At 1:30 p.m. Receive information on two studies related to housing opportunity and 

impediments:   
 

a. The final results of a five-County opportunity mapping project; and   
 
b. The preliminary results of the analysis of impediments to fair housing choice for Travis 

County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Christy Moffett, Social Services Manager, Travis County Health and Human Services 

(TCHHS) 
Frank Fernandez, Executive Director, Green Doors 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Services (TCHHS&VS) 
Marjorie Williams, Principal, Mullin & Lonergan Associates 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Revised language: Approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and 

related special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. Request to extend the grant period for the Indigent Defense Systems Evaluation Project in 
the Criminal Courts to August 31, 2014; and   

 
b. Approve contract modification with the Hogg Foundation for Mental Health for the Juvenile 

Probation Pre-Doctoral Psychology Internship Program. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD) 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
MOTION: Approve the routine personnel amendments. 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
14. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,423,282.56 for the period of October 18 to October 24, 2013. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Receive presentation regarding the LEED Gold Certification awarded by the United States 

Green Building Council for the SMART Facility in Precinct Four. (Commissioner Gómez) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 
Gabriel Stock, Project Architect, FMD 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve broker/dealer applicants for 

conducting investment business with Travis County. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve order amending Chapter 23 

(Investment Policy and Procedures) of the Travis County Code. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on contract award to URS Corporation for program 

management services for development of the new civil and family courthouse. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Belinda Powell, Capital Planning Coordinator, PBO 
Dan Warth, Vice President, Project Principal, URS Corporation 

 
MOTION: Approve the contract as recommended by staff. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
NAYS: Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
19. Authorize Purchasing Agent to commence negotiations with the most highly qualified firm, 

Binkley-Barfield Inc., for engineering services in response to RFQ No. Q1306-018-L, Hamilton 
Pool Road safety improvements. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

20. Approve contract awards for miscellaneous groceries, IFB No. 1306-024-SC, to the low bidders 
for each line item, Shaver Foods, LLC, National Food Group, Inc. and Robbins Sales Company. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
21. Approve Modification No. 9 to Interlocal Agreement No. 4400000347, Austin Travis County 

integral Care, for the Community Action Network Policy Forum. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
22. Approve contract award for Fiscal Year 2013 HMAC overlay program, IFB No. B1307-011-JE, 

to the low bidder APAC of Texas, Inc. (Wheeler Companies) for Groups A, B, C, D, E, E-
Alternate and F. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
23. Consider and take appropriate action to authorize Sheriff Hamilton to execute memorandum of 

understanding and cost reimbursement agreement between the Travis County Sheriff’s Office 
and the Federal Bureau of Investigation related to participation in the Cyber Crimes Task Force. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate on request from the Travis County Sheriff’s Office to accept a 

total of $16,500.00 in donations for inmate programs from St. John’s United Methodist Church, 
the Seton Healthcare Family and Goodwill of Central Texas. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
25. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Robin Arnott. 
1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 25 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Clerk's Note: The Court directed staff to talk to Robin Arnott regarding Star Flight services and 
payments due. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

26. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 
Star Flight services rendered to Elizabeth Gray. 

1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 26 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Clerk's Note: The Court directed staff to talk to Elizabeth Gray regarding Star Flight services 
and payments due. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Julia Guardione. 
1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 27 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Clerk's Note: The Court directed staff to talk to Julia Guardione regarding Star Flight services 
and payments due. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
28. Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding payment for 

Star Flight services rendered to Julia Courtney. 
1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 28 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney.  

MOTION: Accept the settlement offer. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Samuel T. Biscoe 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
29. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a license agreement with the Republic of Texas 

Biker Rally, Inc., for an event at the Travis County Exposition Center. 
2
 

 
RESULT: POSTPONED  

 
30. Consider and take appropriate action on request from Saxet Gun Show to hold events at the 

Travis County Exposition Center Luedecke Arena during the period of March 29, 2014 through 
January 25, 2015. 

1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Francis Schenkkan, Travis County resident 
Tom Nuckols, Assistant County Attorney 
Ed Scruggs, Travis County resident 

Clerk's Note: The Court directed staff to negotiate further with the requesting party, the event 
sponsor. 

RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

Consent Items 
 

MOTION: Approve the following Consent Items: C1–C4 and Agenda Items 6.a–d, 11, 
12.a–b, 14, 16, 17, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, and 24. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, November 26, 2013 to receive comments 

regarding the total vacation of Crooked Cedar Ranch, Thomas Springs Road – 7 lots, City of 
Austin limited purpose ETJ and full purpose jurisdiction in Precinct Three. (Commissioner 
Daugherty) 

 
C4. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, November 26, 2013 to receive comments 

regarding the total vacation of Live Oak Acres subdivision, Thomas Springs Road – 3 lots, City 
of Austin limited purpose ETJ and full purpose jurisdiction in Precinct Three. (Commissioner 
Daugherty) 

Added Items 

 
A1. At 11:00 a.m. Receive briefing and take appropriate action regarding damage sustained during 

recent flooding including:   
 

a. Additional assistance for needy residents who suffered personal and property damage;   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
David Greear, Senior Engineer, TNR 
Pete Baldwin, Travis County Emergency Management Coordinator 
Marcia Zwilling, Travis County resident 

MOTION: Exempt from competition a contract with Texas Disposal Systems (TDS) 
to deliver Dumpsters to properties in the affected areas and indicate to 
TDS to place Dumpsters on private property where it is necessary, as 
close as possible to debris, to the extent that it is safe to do so. As TNR 
needs additional funds to cover this expense, they can expect 
appropriate assistance from the Commissioners Court at the appropriate 
time. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that residents requiring the placement of a Dumpster should call 
3-1-1.  

Clerk’s Note: The Court discussed waiving fees for rebuilding permits.  

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hank Smith, Texas Engineering Solutions 
Stacey Scheffel, Program Manager, On-site Sewage Facilities, TNR 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 

MOTION: Waive permitting fees, subject to the County's determination of the 
cause of the damage and the party's inability to pay. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Clerk’s Note: The Court discussed granting the County Executive, TCHHS&VS the ability to 
collect data and make decisions based on income and other eligibility criteria on a case by case 
basis to determine if fee waiver assistance, based on County policy, is warranted. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 
Stacey Scheffel, Program Manager, On-site Sewage Facilities, TNR 

MOTION: Grant the authority to the County Executive, TCHHS&VS. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 
 
b. Requests to use show barn at Travis County Exposition Center for livestock;   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger El Khoury, Director, FMD 

 
MOTION: Approve Item A1.b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
c. Program to dispose of large animal carcasses;   

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
David Greear, Senior Engineer, TNR 

 
MOTION: That County staff will continue to help with the disposal of large animal 

carcasses, if called upon to do so. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
d. Steps to prevent or minimize additional damage by future rain;  

Members of the Court heard from: 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

Marcia Zwilling, Travis County resident 
Phyllis Clair, Major, Travis County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) 
Jane McFarland, Travis County resident 
Dana Duyka, Travis County resident 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Don Ward, Director of Road Maintenance and Fleet Services, TNR  
Charles Bergh, Division Director, Parks and Natural Resources, TNR 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
e. County policy regarding the cleanup of public roads and rights-of-way;  

 
Members of the Court heard from: 

Jon White, Natural Resource Environmental Quality Division Director, TNR 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
f. Status of floodplain buy-out program; and 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Melinda Mallia, Environmental Project Manager, TNR 
Mickey Roberts, Environmental Specialist, Senior, TNR 
Pete Baldwin, Travis County Emergency Management Coordinator 
Stacey Scheffel, Program Manager, On-site Sewage Facilities, TNR 
Marya Crigler, Chief Appraiser, Travis County Appraisal District (TCAD) 

 
Clerk's Note: The Court noted that public meetings for Timber Creek residents interested in 
buyout will be scheduled.  The first will be November 13, 2013, at the South Rural Community 
Center in Del Valle at 6:30 p.m. A second meeting for anyone else interested in buyout will be 
held either Tuesday, November 12, 2013, or Thursday, November 14, 2013, at Langford 
Elementary School, 2206 Blue Meadow Drive, Austin.  Residents requiring information on 
Travis County's Floodplain Buyout Program should contact Mickey Roberts at 512-854-6613.   
 

RESULT: DISCUSSED 
 

g. Other related issues. 

Clerk's Note: The Court discussed the disposal of hazardous materials. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jon White, Natural Resource Environmental Quality Division Director, TNR 
Pete Baldwin, Travis County Emergency Management Coordinator 

 
Clerk's Note: The Court requested that citizens separate hazardous and recyclable materials 
from debris to be disposed of in the landfill. The City of Austin's Household Hazardous Waste 
Facility is located at 2514 Business Center Drive.  The Austin Resource Recovery Facility is 
located next door, and disposal fees are temporarily being waived.  Residents are also asked to 
separate televisions, computers and other electronic devices from general waste.  Residents 
should call 512-974-4343 for information. 
 
Clerk’s Note: The Court noted that donations to aid victims of the flooding may be made to the 
American Red Cross Disaster Relief Fund.  
 

RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 11 
 

 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm



November 5, 2013 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 12 
 

 

 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, November 5, 2013  

 Special Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Special Voting Session called to order on November 5, 2013, in the Travis County Administration 
Building, Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, 
County Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 

 
1. Ratify County Judge's declaration of an emergency flooding disaster in Travis County, effective 

November 4, 2013 

Members of the Court heard from: 
John Hille, Assistant County Attorney 
Pete Baldwin, Emergency Management Coordinator, Emergency Services 
Daniel Bradford, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Ratify the County Judge's declaration of an emergency flooding disaster in 

Travis County. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created on 11-14-2013 at 5:05 pm


	Item 01
	Item 04
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 08
	Item 09
	Coyote Printing 11 19 13
	UrbanCoyote-forprint#2

	Item 10
	Agenda Request Form PY 2012 CAPER Approval of DRAFT CAPER
	Meeting Date:  November 19, 2013
	Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:
	Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
	AGENDA LANGUAGE:
	Consider and take appropriate action on items related the Program Year 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report (CAPER) for the Community Development Block Grant provided by HUD:
	A. Receive a summary of the annual performance report;
	B. Approve the draft of the Program Year 2012 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report to post for public comment.
	BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
	STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
	FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:
	REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:

	PY12 Annual Report Summary_final
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	PY12_CAPER_vpublic comment draft
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
	GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS & RACIAL CONCENTRATION
	PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF PROJECTS
	Project
	National Objective
	Low to Moderate Income Target
	Above Moderate Income (Above 80% MFI)
	Total People Benefited
	Very Low (<30% MFI)
	Low (30.1 to 50% MFI)
	Moderate (50.1 to 80% MFI)

	EXPENDITURES AND LEVERAGED RESOURCES FOR PROGRAM YEAR 2012
	MANAGING THE PROCESS
	MONITORING
	INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURE AND COORDINATION
	PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT
	EVALUATION OF THE CDBG PROGRAM
	BARRIERS TO AFFORDABLE HOUSING
	IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE
	HOMELESSNESS 
	HOME/ AMERICAN DREAM DOWN PAYMENT INITIATIVE (ADDI)
	EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT 
	ADDRESSING “WORST CASE” HOUSING NEEDS 
	ANTI-POVERTY STRATEGY
	NON-HOMELESS SPECIAL NEEDS
	LEAD-BASED PAINT
	SPECIFIC HOPWA OBJECTIVES


	Item 11 
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	9750 : Contract No. 4400001687, USB Roof Replacement
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	bid tabulation
	Agreement for Construction Services
	Pricing validity


	Item 18
	9785 : legal services with John MCCormick
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	dept memo
	mod 2 McCormick


	Item 19
	9786 : 4400000352 (IL040167LC) RRS Mod 10
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	A10Memo_OM_RRS_ScanRecomTCPO_131017
	4400000352 (IL040167LC) RRS O&M Mod 10


	Item 20
	9788 : Approve Ct 44--1664 Harfoush SANE
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	9-23-2013 Memo
	44 1664 vendor signed


	Item 21
	9834 : 4400000350 IL030285LC CTECC O&M Mod 11
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	A11Memo_OM_CTECC_ScanRecom_131017
	IL030285LC CTECC O&M Mod 11


	Item 22
	9836 : Approve RFP for Health Benefits TPA and Fully Insured Vision & Stop Loss Coverage
	RFP for Health Benefits TPA and Fully Insured Vision and Stop Loss Coverage - Executive Summary PAM RFP # 1311-003-CW
	FY14_2013-11-04 TPA RFP Release Recommendation
	Draft RFP for Health Benefits, Vision, and Stop Loss


	Item 23
	9840 : Update on Disparity Study
	Disparity Study PAM
	Desparity Study Power Point


	Item 24
	Item 25
	Item 26
	Item C3
	1105 Ag Rq
	CC 1105




